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CMC is aleading global provider of
online trading and investing, with a
comprehensive retail, B2B

and institutional offering.

The business was startedin

1989 with a simple ethos: to make
financial markets truly accessible
for investors. This fundamental
belief remains at the heart of
everything we do at CMC Markets
and staying true to that has been
pivotal to our success.

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com
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Our strategic roadmap
7 N
Our vision Our purpose
To create an environment To constantly maintain
for your financial needs a superior and unrivalled
technology experience
for our clients
- /
7 N

Our strategic pillars

O1 02 03

Trading platform Investmentin business-to-business ‘Expansion of Invest platforms

product diversification (“B2B”) technology capability and institutional offering
\ v
7 N

Our sustainability pillars

O1 02 03 04 05

Client Positive Change Positive Platform Positive People Positive Planet Positive
( Seemoreonpage33 ) ( Seemoreonpage33 ) ( Seemoreonpage34 )
N /)

The things we live by .
—We stand with our clients —Weworkasateam:

—We are human | : —Wekeepit simple
—We take ownership’ —We focus onimpact

—We are bold
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Ata'gjlance -

Our clientbase . »-.
o
£

Total active clients'

266,8;7

CMC attracts a diverse range of
institutional and retail clients across
both our trading and investing
platforms. Regardless of client type,
we uphold our high standards of
protection and suitability, to ensure
every client receives the same level
of service excellence.

Our new investing platforms provide
the Group with access to a cohort
of clients in new geographies, with
the aim of providing clients with

opportunities for long-term investment

as another avenue to building
financial security. .

Our geographical reach

Continents Countries Offices

4. 12 14

With a presence in 14 offices located
in major financial centres around the
world, CMC Markets operates on a
hub-and-spoke model.

The Company’s headquarters are
based in London, while Germany
serves as _ﬁie hub for our European
operations, and Sydney acts as the
hub to support the Asia Pacific &
Canada ("APAC & Canada”) region.

. .B2B .

A Trading—4,044
B Investing—42,816

A Trading—55,294
B Investing—211,576

Breakdown of NOI B2B/B2C split of active clients
A Tradingnetrevenue—£259.1m A Trading—51,250

B Investing netrevenue—£34.0m B Investing—168,760

C Interestincome—£35.0m

D Otherincome-£4.7m

Refer to net revenue on Page 53

1 Active clients represent those individual clients which have traded with or held CFD or spread bet positions or which traded on the Invest platform on at least one occasion during the financial year.

2-CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Strategic report Governance

§

Our busﬁwess

Trading

We are committed to expanding our product
range in order to improve functionality for our
clients. With over 10,000 products currently
available through our trading platforms,

we aim to provide the most efficient pricing
structure possible. Our pricing system
undergoes continuous evolution to ensure
sophistication and minimise latency. We

use high precision clock time-stamping

at multiple points throughout the system
tomeasure latency in microseconds and
monitor itin real time. Our focus on best
executionenables us to set high standards
for execution quality.

We prioritise internal risk management by
storing trade and risk datain a high frequency
tickdatabase. Thisenables ustorecordallstages
of the risk management system, ensuring that
client order flow is managed efficiently.

Toachieve this, we have large quantitative
analytics and data science teams that develop
the hardware and software components

of our analytics environment. Data science
and machine learning models also play
acrucial role in our real-time and offline
decision-making processes.

Our ultimate goalis to offer our clients
market-leading access to liquidity, alongside
abest-in-class andresilient platform across
allaspects of our offering.

See more on page 12

Products utilised

Seepage 4

Products

° Contracts for difference (‘CFDs”)

e Outsourced trading platform technology e Stockbroking

Financial statements

Investing

We see significant growth potential across
globalinvestment platforms due to secular
shiftsininvestment trends,and we are
expanding our investing businesses to
capitalise onthese opportunities.

Seemore onpage 12

Pertiolio value

£155,829s6

o, A

™

Z 5‘50:47.3‘7

General investment account
£000
£0.00 (0.0%) 1

Stocks & shares ISA
£135,546.07

Self-invested personal pension
£20,28300

+ £442.30 [4.01%)

Products utilised

e Spread betting

e Options

Shareholder information

Institutional/B2B

Ourinstitutional clients are served by both

the trading and investing businesses.
Through our CMC Connect brand we offer
technology-powered solutions to mid-sized
and large financial institutions. CMC is already
atrusted service provider for execution,
clearing, and settlement services to several
major Australian financial service businesses.

Our B2B partnerships are at the core of
our growth strategy and our offering to this
important segment will be bolstered by our
product diversification which willexpand to
all our existing and new geographies over
the next 24 months. With growth from our
investing operations, we are strategically
positioning our business to leverage some
of the fastest growing trends in trading
andinvesting.

Our continued development work to
connect to multiple Electronic Crossing
Networks (‘ECNs”) and the deployment of a
competitive FX Spot product now allow for
significant growthin this asset class.

See more on page 12

Products utilised

e Technology-driven liquidity solution

Sustainability

Our Tomorrow: taking a positive position
Our goalat CMC Marketsiis to align with the global capital markets’ movement towards a sustainable future. We aim to achieve this by offering
responsible and innovative technological solutions that prioritise the protection, education, and inspiration of both our people and clients to invest

forthe future.

See more on page 32
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Our product offering

Contracts for
difference (“CFDs”)

A derivative product which allows clients to trade
using leverage in an underlying financial asset,
without certain costs and limitations associated
with ownership of the underlying asset.

Technology-driven
liquidity solution

Ourinstitutionalarm, CMC Connect actsasa
non-bank liquidity provider offering access toa
wide range of asset classes including Spot FX,
Indices, Commodities and cash equities. For
larger institutions, we are able to offer bespoke
solutions to help facilitate access across multiple
asset classes.

(o
Spread betting

A product available exclusively to residents
inthe UK and Ireland enabling clients

to speculate on price movementsinan
underlying financial asset.

: usao.ceh X+

10ay 1Week 1Year = Tomplates @ Md ® Foum @ Relaled

C § & % Fiovriles Timetame DrawTools Techrical  Pulterns
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Trading platform
technology solution

We offer outsourced platform technology to
clients also under the CMC Connect brand, where
ouraward-winning CMC trading platform can be
fully customised under a white label partnership or
branded platform for regulated entities looking to
offer our products to their clients.

o
Stockbroking

Our Australian stockbroking business offers

our clients the ability to trade Australian shares
andinternational shares from over 35 stock
exchangesin over 16 countries. This has been
supported through the launch of a fully native
mobile application offering a variety of instruments
including shares, options, managed funds,
warrantsand ETFs.

Our UK business currently offers General
Investment Accounts (“GlAs”) and Stocks and
Shares ISAs withaccess to arange of US and UK
stocks. SIPPs and mutual funds went live in April
2024. The Group has also launched CMC Invest
inSingapore.

®
Options

The addition of options on CMC's trading platforms
willbringadded benefits to our clients. New derivative
products will provide more flexibility to manage
risks and volatility compared to traditional CFD
and stock trading. Options have the ability to
enhance portfolio diversification and manage risk.
Options are a universally popular product and their
addition has the potential to be a significant
revenue generator for CMC in years to come.

Financial statements

3965 § 29,842.05

7.28 2.40 H: 5.

Popular Products

)

EUR/USD Tesla Moto

\ \

Germany 30 US NDAQ 100 US SPX 500

Shareholder information
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Operational and finangcial highlights

— Trading revenue'per active ~i=The inStitutionaI offering
clientup £717 (18%) to £4,685. ' ** .. continues to grow with the

—B2B represents 33% of-Group
turnover' (2023: 30%).

— Continued investment inour
‘Invest’ branded stockbroking

release of cash equities trading,
with further product releases
plannedin 2024.

—Ongoing operational resilience
demonstrated by the Group-

propositions through ; . i
enhancements to the CMC wide platform uptime of 99.95%.
| nvest Au St ral ia platform Read more about net revenue and our financial measures on page 53

including the release of crypto
trading, development of the
CMC Invest UK platformand the
release of CMC Invest Singapore.

Net operatingincome’

£332.8m

23 ) £288.4m
EQ ) £281.9m

Basic earnings per share

16.7p

14.7p

[ 22 ) 24.6p

N
(3]

1 Turnover réflects the notional value of client trades

Statutory profit before tax Group-wide platform uptime

o)
£63.3m 99.95%
£52.2m [23 ) 99.97%
PZ ) £91.5m | 22 ) 99.95%
Ordinary dividend per share®
| 22 ) 12.38p

2. Netoperatingincome represents total revenue net of introducing partner commissions and spread betting levies.

3 Ordinary dividends paid/proposed relating to the financial year.

6 -~ CMC Markets plc
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Strategic report

Award-winning
platforms

Seemoreonpages 28to 31

Governance

financialinstruments traded across the
Next Generation platformand over 40,000
instruments within Invest Australia

Shareholder information

The demands of our clients continue to evolve. Our goal
is to constantly maintain a superior and unrivalled
trading experience for our clients. Continuous
investment in our proprietary technology across both
our trading and investing platforms allows us to offer
awide suite of products. Our web-based and mobile
applications are continuously ranked amongst the best
inclass by our clients.

Our diverse
product offering

Seemoreonpages4and5

16%

share of Australian stockbroking market'

Launch of the Invest Singapore business,
providing clients access to 15 markets and
over 40,000 listed securities

We are investing to diversify our new products and
functionality across both our trading and investing
platforms. CFD trading remains at the core of what

we do. Thisis balanced with a world-class investing
businessin Australia. Similarly, the launch of CMC Invest
Singapore, along with the release of CMC Invest UK

in FY23, underpins our expansion into the high growth
opportunities.

Our
geographical
reach

See more on page 2

56%

of net revenue generated outside the UK
and Europe regions

Our global technology platforms allow access for retail,
professional and institutional clients through regulated
offices and branches in 12 countries, with a significant
presence inthe UK, Australia, Germany and Singapore.

Qur client
focus

See more on page 25

266,370

active clients across our trading and
investing businesses

Our clients are at the heart of what we do, and their input
drives us toimprove our business processes across
product development, marketing and client services as
we tailor new developments and targetimprovements.
We employ and develop high quality client services
staff to ensure best-in-class client service. Platform
resilience and user experience are at the core of all
developments and upgrades we deploy.

Our Tomorrow

See more on pages 32 to 41

5

core sustainability pillars

1 ASXand Chi-X combined trading statistics — IRESS.

Last year we introduced the Group's Our Tomorrow
sustainability strategy and its five core pillars structured
tofocus delivery on our material environmental, social
and governance (‘ESG”) risks. Through this year we
have continued to follow the five sustainability pillar
approach, further details of which can be foundin our
‘Sustainability’ section.




Chairman’s statement

Our long-term investments and
focus on institutional clients
and the business-to-business
market segment are beginning
to deliver for the Group

8- CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024

Our focus on diversification and enhancing
our B2B offering continues to build momentum
with clients and positions us to deliver on our
strategic vision.

The Board's strategy of diversification and placing a greater focus on
institutional clients and the B2B sector continues to build momentum. The
long-terminvestments we have made in our technology and our people will
continue to enhance our business performance and benefit our clients and
other stakeholders.

While we have given a greater focus to our institutional business, we of
course maintained investment in our retail business, launching our Invest
productin Singapore and continuing to enhance our Invest businessinthe
UK. We launched mutual funds on Invest UK as well as our SIPP product

post year-end, broadening the range of high-quality long-term investment
products for our UK retail customers. Inaddition to our product diversification,
we continue to pursue targeted geographical diversification, building on our
existing presence in Dubai and placing arenewed focus on governance and
capabilities in Europe to ensure a solid foundation for what is an attractive
growthregion. Our staff continue to be instrumental to our growth and
diversification. As we announced earlier in the year, the Group has reached
the peak of its investment cycle and the Board and senior management
conducted two restructuring reviews, leading to the loss of around 15% of roles
across the Group. While itis always a matter of great regret when colleagues
leave the business, we are now better placed to deliver on our growth
opportunities and leverage our scale to grow profit margins, whilst continuing
toinvestinour products and technology.

The long-terminvestments we
have made in our technology
and our people will continue to
enhance our business
performance and benefit our
clients and other stakeholders.”

James Richards
Chairman
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Results and dividend

Net operating income rose 15% to £332.8 millionin the year, following
improved trading conditions in the second half of 2024, with increased client
trading activity and further momentumin our B2B businesses. Profit after tax
for the year was £46.9 million. The Board recommends a final dividend of 7.3
pence per share which results in a total dividend payment of 8.3 pence for the
year,inline with our dividend policy of 50% of profit after tax.

Board

The Board was delighted to approve the appointment of Albert Soleiman as
CFOin September 2023 following the resignation of Euan Marshall. Prior to
his appointment as CFO, Albert led the launch of our CMC Invest businessin
the UK whichis akey part of our diversification strategy and enables clients to
generate long-term wealth through our investing platforms. Albert's extensive
knowledge of the business made him the ideal choice as CFO.

Susanne Chishti has advised that she is not putting herself up for re-election
atthe 2024 AGM. | would like to thank Susanne for her hard work and the
insight she has provided to the Board, particularly in relation to workforce
engagement matters, during her time as a Non-Executive Director. We wish
her wellin her future endeavours.

People and stakeholders

Our workforce remains the bedrock for our business and the efforts of our
people enable us to deliver on our strategic goals and provide outstanding
service for our clients. The Board also considers our wider stakeholders

and the communities in which we operate, and during the year approved our
Community Impact 121 strategy, committing to making donations to charitable
causes and enabling staff volunteering.

We recognise, with the restructuring reviews and the resulting reductionin
roles, that this was a more difficult period for our people, and this is discussed
further inthe Our Tomorrow section of the 2024 Annual Report and Financial
Statements.

The Board continues to place priority on developing and investing in our
people with Susanne Chishtihaving acted as our designated Non-Executive
Director responsible for workforce engagement. The scope of the work
undertaken by Susannein thisroleis set outin the 2024 Annual Reportand
Financial Statements.

Financial statements Shareholder information

The Board would like to expressiits gratitude to al CMC's employees for
their significant contributions throughout the year and particularly during the
period of heightened change.

Sustainable-based growth

The Boardis committed to putting in place the tools and capabilities for our
customers and employees to invest for a better future. Further informationis
set outin the Our Tomorrow section of the 2024 Annual Report and Financial
Statements.

Outlook

The outlook for the Group remains positive as we continue toinvestin the
business, develop the platforms and technologies that our clients want and
furtherimprove our operational efficiency. We will continue to build on the
work undertaken to date to diversify the business to positionit for future
opportunities and challenges. While there will continue to be potential for
uncertainty in the financial markets due to ongoing geopolitical events, the
Board will maintain its focus on positioning the business to navigate through
this period of volatility to the benefit of all our stakeholders.

%wﬁ\u ﬁ. Ao

James Richards
Chairman
20 June 2024

CMC Markets plc-9
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Market overview

Leading the
market through
technology ana
diversification

Whilst the Group currently generates the majority
of its revenue from retail trading products, our
strategy to diversify has accelerated during the
year with a range of new product offerings within
both our investing and trading businesses. Group
revenues are split between our three regions, the
UK, Europe and APAC & Canada.

10-CMC Markets plc
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Group

Key market driver

Global interest rate
environment

Interest rates have remained high across the Group's primary
markets after the aggressive hikes seenin the previous
financial year.

Ourresponse

Despite higher rates, revenue from our core business has
remained strong, coupled with a significantincrease ininterest
income as the Group continues to benefit from arobust cash
position that is actively optimised to enhance returns.

The Group pays interest to clients on cash balances heldin
GlAs and ISAs and continues to invest inits offerings to help
clients navigate the marketsin allenvironments.

Key market driver
Inflation

The period saw areductionininflation to the lowest levels since
February 2022; however, prices for our inputs remain elevated.

Our response

As outlined previously, the firm has implemented a company
wide cost review programme. As part of this program we are
reviewing all supplier relationships and purchasing practices to
find efficiencies and deliver sustainable costs savings.

Suppliers are also passing on inflationary costs but we remain
diligentin challenging and driving efficiencies within the Group.

Key market driver
Scale

Operating at scale has significant benefits to the Group,
providing further opportunities for risk management
enhancements in the trading business and improved
operational leverage across our business.

Ourresponse

Along with continued investment in our core infrastructure, the
diversification strategy ensures the group can obtain greater
share of wallet, by broadening the product range offered to our
clients. Our ability to leverage our existing technology platforms
and operational strength allows us to introduce new products
and services to our client base efficiently thereby enhancing our
return oninvestments made.
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Investing

Key market driver
Volatility

Unfavourable equity markets and the high cost of living
dampened demand for our Invest business in the first half of the
the year, however the turnaround in equity marketsin H2 saw a
corresponding pick upinour Invest business.

Our response

Thematic investing continues to be a key interest for our clients
and with the growthin Al stocks and strong gains seenin the US
markets, clients were able to utilise our platform, products and
features to manage their portfolio. We continue to enrich the
tools and contents within our Invest offering to empower clients
to build wealth through all types of markets.

Key market driver
Market size and share

Anindependent reportin Australia showed 1.2 million individuals
placed atrade online in the 12 months to November 2023
(previously 1.5 million). Singapore had 264,000 active online
investorsin the 12 months to September 2023 and the
addressable market within the UK is attractive with 3.9 million
Stocks and Shares ISA holders.

Our response

During the year, we enabled cash crypto trading for

our customersin Australia, coinciding with the wider

investing community’s growing interest in this asset class. This
enhancement within both our platform and award-winning
mobile apphas further elevated our product offering and differentiated
usfromour peers. Additionally, by deploying strategies toboost brand
awareness, we have consolidated our position as Australia’s
second-largest retail broker, holding 16% market share.

We launched our Invest offering in Singapore earlier this year,
agateway into the Southeast Asia markets where we aimto
replicate our Australian success in the retail and white label
space. Inthe UK Invest business, we continued to add new
assets to the platform, which included mutual funds and SIPPs.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Trading

Key market driver
Regulatory environment

In2024 we have seen restrictions on the marketing of CFDs
in Spain and the first year of consumer duty in the UK.

Ourresponse

The groupmaintains anopenand transparent dialogue with
regulators tomeettheir expectationsand thatissuesarising
aredealt with promptly. We consistently strive to ensure our
approach meets those regulatory expectations, whilst also
allowing the Group to be involved in shaping future regulations
within the sector.

The Group continues to be supportive of regulatory change
that strengthens a globally consistent regulatory environment.

Key market driver
Volatility

The year saw volatility continue to decline, reaching the lowest
level since 2019. However, the directional bias in the equities
market, bullionand commodity markets attracted interest
fromclients.

Ourresponse

Higher volatility results inincreased trading activity from both
existing clients trading more frequently and new or previously
inactive clients starting to trade. The inverse s true in periods
of lower volatility, which can lead to a reductionin client trading
activity. However, short bursts of market activity which resultin
high velocity movements in the products that we offer are not
necessarily beneficial to our clients or the Group. Aside from
notifying clients of changing levels of market activity inatimely
manner through a flexible marketing strategy, the Group can
have little influence on capitalising more or less than competitors
during short-term periods of raised market volatility.

CMGC Markets plc —11
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Business model

The best trading and investing experience

12 - CMC Markets plc
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™y | Who our clients are: What we offer them:
- _ .
4 T - Sophisticated — Cutting-edge technology
/ > — Highvalue — Competitive pricing
- ¥ — Experienced — Excellent client services
X074 & — Diverse product suite
/
B How we make money
o . . .
Trading net revenue Financing |
¥ Positions held by clients overnight may be
» subject to financing costs, which can be positive
£259 1 I | I or negative depending on the direction of their
- holding and the applicable financing rate.
\ Spreads Rebates and levies
% Revenue earned through maintaininga Volume-based rebates paid to professional,
K transactional spread (the difference between high value retail and institutional clients and
k the buy and sell price) on CFD and spread introducing brokers on selected asset classes.
bet products. . .
i Risk management gains/(losses)
B Commissions Revenue or losses from management of client
These are charged on both CFD equity trades positions that the Group inherits. This consists
X and institutional DMA trades. Clients are of gains or losses which accrue to the Group
\ either charged a minimum commission ora through client positions and, secondly, the gains
A t » percentage based on the value of the trade. orlosses which accrue to the Group through

the hedge positions entered into by the Group,
including hedge transaction costs.

Investing

£34.0m

Net revenue in Australia predominantly earned through
brokerage charged for the execution of exchange
traded products, options, warrants, ETFs, managed
funds, interest rate securities and bonds. Further, we
earn feesincluding FX revenue oninternational shares
and equity capital markets (‘ECM”) income.

Interestincome

£35.0m

Interestincome from the Group’s own funds and
income onclientfunds.

Otherincome

£4./m

CMC Markets plc-13
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Chief Executive Officer’s
statement

Witnessing our
long-term
Investments
come to fruitition

14-CMC Markets plc
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Over the past year, CMC Markets has experienced exceptional growth,
marked by a strong financial performance, and continued technology
advancements. Our financial results, in particular our net operating income
of £332.8 million represents a record for the Group when excluding the
COVID-19impacted 2021. Our profit before tax of £63.3 million was up

21%, reflecting the success of our institutional first approach by leveraging
our technology to partner with major financial institutions. The recent
announcement of our partnership with Revolut, where our best-in-class
technology will support their rapidly expanding customers'’investing needs, is
notonly atestament to the success of this strategy but also opens significant
opportunities for further collaboration ona global scale.

This strategy has transformed and diversified the businessinto a provider
of financial technology solutions, facilitating platforms, multiple connectivity,
liquidity, trade execution and clearing across multiple venues as we partner
with major financial institutions. We have very little competitionin this
institutional space. We are certainly not in competition with peers fromthe
retail CFD sector, and, because of our technology and offering, we have a
clear andlong-standing competitive advantage that separates us fromour
traditional peersin the retailmarket.

Thisis not something that has happened by accident, it has been part of

our business for over twenty years, but itis only recently that investors and
analysts have started to understand the diversity of our business model and
the scaleit brings. As we gravitate further towards the fintech sector, thisis
driving CMC towards a higher valuation multiple as we are increasingly moving
away from valuations associated with the retail CFD sector. A retail CFD only
platformis where CMC started, but that is not where we are today, anditis
notour future, and public markets are gradually beginning to reflect this in our
higher valuation

A central focus for the
management team and me
over 2024 has been cost
management as we look
to better optimise our
performance and grow
profit margins.”

Lord Cruddas
Chief Executive Officer
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We are already the second largest on-exchange stockbroker in Australia with
over $70 billionin AUA and over one million customer accounts and we are
regularly the number one options clearer on the Australian exchange. CMC
Group currently serves more than 400 institutions with marquee partnerships
inall our major geographies and a strong pipeline in our target countries. Our
focusis not only to seek out new partnerships but to also help our existing
partners realise the full potential of their businesses through new products and
access to various liquidity pools, thereby maximising returns for CMC and our
partners. We have the infrastructure and experience to continue our growthin
this huge market.

It has been an exciting year and I look forward to working with my superb team
over the coming years to add more value and growth to an already exciting
business.

Treasury Management and Capital Markets

Over the last couple of years, we have been building a Treasury Management
and Capital Markets Division; an area | have extensive experience in due
tomy banking background. The development of this division has become
necessary as the Group continues to expand and diversify.

Today, we are managing substantial cash and currency balances, trade
settlements and multiple venue clearing. Our annual trade turnover is more
than US$4 trillion and growing, driven by our institutional business and new
product additions. We are managing a number of prime brokers, banking
relationships, exchanges, and partnerships all around the world. With
officesin12 countries, alarge stockbroking business, cash settlements, and
expanding B2B and institutional partnerships, we have become a technology-
based, multi-currency global organisation, which requires not just afocus on
technology but also on treasury management functionality.

As part of our Treasury Management Division, we have linked all our overseas
offices to a Treasury Management System (“TMS”) to centralise all foreign
exchange (“FX”) transactions and cash balances onto one real-time platform.
All currency and cash movements are centrally managed by the treasury
team, who then lock in FX profits, whilst also managing our cash with prime
brokers, banks, exchanges, and partners, to optimise capital market returns.
This ensures our cash and trade settlements are as efficient as possible,
thereby freeing up capital to invest. Itis an amazing value add to the business
and generates additionalincome through optimisation and efficiency.

Tobeclear, thisis not arisk book of business; it is capital markets and interest
rate optimisation. It is cash deployed effectively inthe right venues to earn
the maximum returnin the capital markets. Via the TMS platform we can also
centralise all cash foreign exchange exposures and settlements, locking in
currency exchange rates and optimising foreign exchange profits.

The treasury management teamis there to optimise liquidity, settle trades
and optimise our cash flows. This has added great scale to the business and
additionalincremental profits. In our financial accounts for FY24 we have a
record £39.7 million as otherincome. This includes interestincome from the
higher interest rate environment but within that figure there are the efficiencies
of our TMS and the additional value this brings.

Inthe coming years we will provide a more granular breakdown as this side of
the business expands and matures. Treasury management isimportant and
necessary as we expand our B2B and institutional business, as well as our
cashproductrange. It will help us win more business and will help us to remain
competitive.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Financial performance

Financial performance inthe year has been strong. Net operatingincome

of £332.8 million (FY23: £288.4 million) was up 15% with continued good
momentum across our B2B segment, and profit before tax for the year was
£63.3million, up 21% on FY23. Other income continued to benefit from higher
globalinterestrates, as well as our new centralised TMS.

Whilst operating expenses, excluding variable remuneration, are higher in the
year, much of this was driven by anon-recurring impairment charge and an
increase in net staff costs relating to the annualisation of higher headcount
levels formuch of the year, as well as the higher termination costs resulting
from the reductionin global headcount.

Driving efficient performance throughout the business has been a central
focus over the course of FY24, and this includes the introduction of the
aforementioned TMS, but also extends to our disciplined focus on costs.

As announced at the half year, the business has reached the peak of its
currentinvestment cycle and H2 saw us complete a cost review designed to
rationalise our cost base and drive synergies through our global operations.
Thisincludes the merging of support functions, streamlining of reporting lines
and greater focus on our capital allocation, which will generate sustainable
cost savings from FY25 onwards.

We remain firmly committed to continued investment in our business and
technology platforms to maintain our competitive advantage. However,
following years of strong investment, we are now in a position to leverage our
operational strength to grow efficiently. We continue to see opportunities
torationalise the cost base as we maintain our ongoing focus on delivering
sustainable cost savings.

Our financial performance in FY24 leaves the Group in a strong position and
has laid the foundation for another successful year ahead.

Delivering growth through diversification

Underpinning our growth agenda s our diversification strategy, which has
opened many opportunities for the business around the world. This strategy
is predicated onarigorous programme of continuous product upgrades, a
sustained commitment to providing world-leading technology for our clients
across all business lines and further expansion of our reach across both new
geographies and markets.

CMC Markets plc-15
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement continued

Continuous product development

FY24 has seen CMC continue to diversify its product offering. Our approach,
whichis on the focused expansion of asset classes to strengthen our levels

of engagement is critical in enabling us to continue to support our clients. This
includes the rollout of OTC options, with futures and exchange traded options
settobe deliveredinH1FY25. The addition of cash equities to our institutional
offering has allowed us to expand the services available to this valuable
segment. On UK Invest, we have added mutual fundsin FY24,and SIPPs post-
financial year-end, as well as continued updates designed to enhance the user
experience. Invest Australia also expanded to offer cash cryptocurrencies.

Sustained commitment to world-leading technology

Underpinning our continued product developmentis our unwavering commitment
tobeingaworld-leaderinfinancial markets technology. Our CMC Markets Connect
brandand APlecosystemis the foundation for our growthand expansionand

the power of this technology has proven criticalin securinganumber of large
B2Bpartners, suchasRevolut. This builds on the already extensive network of
partnerships that we have in place and our ability to provide larger institutions with
complex,bespokebuilds,cements us further as the partner of choice andreinforces
our deep understanding of the financial sector and technical superiority. Elsewhere,
we have launched our CMC Invest Singapore platform,and we continue toenhance
our connectivity tomore execution venues, ECNs,and client types across this vast
electronic marketplace. Looking to the future, we remain committed toadisciplined
level of continuedinvestment over the medium-term, leveraging technology todrive
innovationandgrowth.

Expansion across new geographies and markets

A core aspect of our diversification strategy is expansion across new regions
and markets. In addition to the launch of Invest Singapore, we have also
expanded our operationsin the Middle East with our subsidiary in Dubai's
International Financial Centre and we have placed arenewed emphasis on
our European operations, with a focus on strengthening the governance and
capability of this region as a lever for growth. Meanwhile, our content and
thematic investing tool, Opto, achieved significant milestones, notably the
completion of equities trading functionality, which is set to launch imminently.
Through continued and targeted regional expansion across the world, CMC
continues to unlock new opportunities, delivering sustained value creation for
shareholders.

Regulatory change

As we outlined as part of our half year results, updated regulations governing
Consumer Duty in the UK were enforced for financial services companies
from 31July 2023. These regulations are designed to establish arigorous
level of consumer safeguarding in financial dealings. The integration of
these obligations within the Group has proven effective,and CMC remains
committed to refining its procedures post-implementation, while monitoring
client outcomesto try to ensure their ongoing financial goals are met.

CMC alsointends to comply with the European Union’s Digital Operational
Resilience Act, applicable from January 2025, which seeks to promote cyber
resilience by enhancing ICT risk management and cyber risk management
across financial services. Requirements include the reporting of major ICT-
related incidents, digital operational resilience testing, information sharing, and
measures and requirements related to the use of ICT third-party services.
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People and sustainability

As the emphasis on sustainability continues to influence financial markets,
our goalisto empower both our clients and employees with the tools and
expertise needed to make informed and ethical choices, both in their
investments andin the workplace. We acknowledge and embrace the finance
industry’s deep responsibility to support global sustainability initiatives and
appreciate the belief that integrating sustainable practices can yield tangible
advantages for our business.

Dividend

The Board has proposed a final dividend payment of £20.4 million, which
equatesto 7.3 pence per share, resulting in a total dividend payment of 8.3
pence per share for the year. Thisis inline with the dividend policy of 50% of
profit after tax.

Outlook

With the launch of new product initiatives, further technological advancements,
and the expanding opportunities created by our diversification strategy,
combined with our programme to rationalise costs, we are confidentin the
business’ability to generate robust levels of income on aleaner cost base. This
will drive an enhancement in profit marginsin the year ahead. Management

is anticipating achieving net operating income of between £320-360 million
inFY25,onacost base, excluding variable remuneration and non-recurring
charges, of around £225 million.

Ilook forward to continued exciting profitable growthin the years tocome.

o=,

Lord Cruddas
Chief Executive Officer
20 June 2024
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Underpinning our continued product
development is our unwavering commitment
to being a world leader in financial
markets technology. Our APl ecosystem
is the foundation for our growth and
expansion and the power of our technology
has proven critical in securing a number of
large B2B partnership wins in the year.”

Lord Cruddas
Chief Executive Officer
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Our fcous
for2025

Over the preceding year, we have made considerable
progress inimplementing our strategic vision. 2024
saw-CMC Markets achieve record levels of net .
operating income outside of the COVID-19 impacted
2021 financial year as our diversification strategy
opened.up new opportunities around the world.

.Going forward, our strategy is predicated on our
- | Minstitutional first”approach and the delivery of
. .sustalned proflt margin expansion.

Havnng reached the peak of our investment cycle,

| CMC is. committed to driving efficiencies through
~disciplined cost management and leveraging the
Group’s scalability to deliver enhanced profitability.

Asaleaderintechnology, we also remain committed
toa dlscrpllned level'of continued investment to
supportgrowth opportunltles and maintain our
competitive advantage, however, following years
of strong investment, we are now in aposition to
Ieverage our’ operatlonal strength andgrowina
more eff|0|ent manner. .

Underprnnlng this. eﬁlorent growth and expansion

is our institutionalfocus. Our FY25 roadmap will

seek to continue to drive the business forward to its
diversification goals across products, technology and
geographies, but with a particular focus on our B2B
and institutional offering. The foundation of this is our
CMC Markets Connect platform, which provides white
labeland API connectivity andis already proving a
powerful tool in our B2B and institutional growth

This strategy for future growth is founded upon three

core prlnolples that include: ) \,;“
— trading platform product diversification; e
. i-

— investment in B2B technology oapablhty, an

We have made great progress against these
throughout the course of FY24 and will continue » * ’,

— expansion oflnvest platforms and institutional offe h}\

Trading platform
product diversification

We continue to diversify our product offerings, by establishing
amulti-asset interface within our core trading platform. This
approach aims to expand the range of assets available for

our clients to trade, thereby enriching their experience and
strengthening our engagement, enabling us to secure alarger
portion of their trading activity. Our commitment and approach
toinnovating and leveraging our products has led to the
development of our cutting-edge customer offering, enabling
us to be the one-stop financial trading and investment services
platform for the future.

Achievements in 2024

— Expanded our product range across our platforms to
enhance our support for our clients’ investment portfolios
andincrease our share of their wallet. These include cash
equities, index options, cryptocurrencies and a wider range
of money market investment products.

In Asia Pacific, the enablement of cash crypto trading for
Australian clients has further consolidated the Group's
positionas Australia’s second largest retail stockbroker,
holding a2 16% market share.

Continued development of our broader technology platform
with transformation of the APl layer through the use of cloud
and the latest “DevOps” practices to facilitate the faster
introduction of new products across our trading front ends.

High platform availability, continued improvementsin
platform performance and the addition of new services that
better equip our clients by facilitating learning, helping them
to take advantage of market opportunities.

to prioritise these objectives going forward, with a _“',um
particular focus on our B2B offering the delivery of - = %
ehhanced profit margins. ; * sg e

1 Platforum, February 2023.
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Investment in B2B
technology capability

We continue to drive growth through the expansion of our B2B
partnerships. Our technology is our competitive advantage, and
the introduction of our comprehensive Open APl ecosystem
facilitates collaboration across the Group, enabling CMC and
our B2B partners torealise cost efficiencies and enhance
operational effectiveness. By directly engaging with our

clients, we offer them access to our broad range of liquidity,
products, and technological resources, fostering long-lasting
relationships.

Achievementsin 2024

— The power of our technology platform has been central to
our ability to expand our offering and provide new products
and capabilities for our clients. We have continued to
evolve our existing product offering to cater to even larger
institutions, resulting in greater revenue returns.

The power of our technology and APl ecosystemiis critical
insecuring a number of large partnership wins, such as
that recently announced with Revolut, and building on the
extensive network of B2B partnerships we already have.

Continued to optimise our FX product and technology
connecting to more execution venues, ECNs and client
types toaccess avast electronic market, strengthening
our position as the go-to non-bank liquidity provider in the
B2B market.

Delivery of new services and technological upgrades that
better equip our clients to manage their performance and
take advantage of market opportunities.

Expansion of Invest
platforms and
institutional offering

At the core of what we do is empowering our clients to

build long-term wealth using our investment platforms. The
self-directed investment platform sector presents significant
growth opportunities, and we see additional opportunity within
our institutional segment as we continuously boost our volumes
as anon-bank liquidity provider and cultivate new trading
partnerships worldwide.

Achievementsin 2024

— Successful launch of CMC Invest Singapore, demonstrating
the transferability of the Invest platform and further
diversifying geographic reach.

Expansion of the Dubai subsidiary in the DIFC, providing
us with a strong foothold in the Middle East with focus on
targeting institutional clients.

Institutional grade cash equities platform and APl launched
for UK clients, with LumeF X connectivity platform driving
scalability of pricingand execution.

Partnered with global financial institutions to deliver complex
bespoke builds, cementing us further as the partner of
choice and cementing our deep understanding of the
financial sector and technical superiority.
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Key performance indicators

Tracking our progress

Group KPIs

Net operatingincome

£332.8m

’23 ) £288.4m
’22 ) £281.9m

Statutory profit before tax

£63.3m

£562.2m

£63.3m

N
w

[\
N

) £91.5m

Profit after tax

£46.9m

£41.4m

£46.9m

]
[}

N
N

) £71.5m

Basic earnings per share

16.7p

16.7p

N
w

14.7p

[\
N

) 24.6p

Ordinary dividend per share relating
to the financial year

8.30p

8.30p

N
w

7.40p

[\
N

) 12.38p

20-CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024

Our Group KPIs monitor the delivery of
long-term value through a focus on client

quality and operating effectiveness.

KPI definition

Thisis a statutory measure, which represents
total revenue net of introducing partner/client
commissions and spread betting levies.

KPI definition

Thisis a statutory measure, which comprises net
operatingincome less operating expenses and
interest expense.

KPI definition
Thisis a statutory measure, which comprises
statutory profit before tax less tax expense.

KPI definition

Thisis astatutory measure, whichis calculated
as earnings attributed to Ordinary Shareholders
divided by weighted average number of shares.

KPI definition
Any dividend declared, proposed or paid relating
tothe financial year.

Why we measure
Key operating metric.

Link to strategy

Why we measure
Key operating metric.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

Largest driver of shareholder equity and
Board-approved metric for calculating
dividend payable.

Link to strategy

Why we measure
Key shareholder value metric.

Link to strategy

Why we measure
Key shareholder value metric.

Link to strategy
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Trading business KPls

Trading net revenue

£2591m

’ 23 ) £233.1m
’ 22 ) £229.6m

Trading revenue per active client

£4,685

]23 ) £3,968

]22 ) £3,575
Platform uptime
99.95%

]23 ) 99.97%
]22 ) 99.95%

Key to strategy:

Financial statements

KPI definition

Spread, financing and commission fees charged
to CFD and spread bet clients, plus/minus

risk management revenue generated by the
management of client and hedge positions.

Areconciliation of trading net revenue to the
primary statementsis provided on page 180.

KPI definition

Net revenue generated from CFD and spread
bet active clients, divided by the number of active
clients during the year.

KPI definition

The percentage of trading hours that clients
are able to trade onthe Next Generation
CFDplatform.

Shareholder information

Why we measure
Used to measure the total revenue generated
from Trading segment.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

Highvalue clients are central to the Group’s
strategy and the growthin this figure isindicative
of the successin attracting and retaining

these clients.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

The platformis at the core of our business —if
clients are unable to trade, the Group will be
unable to earnrevenue. Maintaining a very
high uptime is key to the continued success of
the Group.

Link to strategy

0 Trading platform product diversification e Investment in B2B technology capability e Expansion of Invest platforms and institutional offering

See more on pages 18 and 19
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Key performance indicators continued

Investing business KPls

Net revenue

£34.0m

’23 ) £37.9m
’22 ) £48.0m
Platform uptime

99.95%

’23 ) 99.93%
’22 ) 99.91%
Key to strategy:

KPI definition
Income received from brokerage and FX spread
onclient trades, less rebates.

KPI definition

The percentage of trading hours that
clients are able to trade onthe CMC Invest
Australia platform.

Why we measure

Revenue diversification and high value clients
are central to the Group's strategy and the
growthinthis figureisindicative of the successin
growing the Invest business and attracting and
retaining high value clients.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

The CMC Invest platforms are at the core of
our business —if clients are unable to trade, the
Group willbe unable to earnrevenue.
Maintaining a very high uptime is key to the
continued success of the Group.

Link to strategy

a Trading platform product diversification e Investment in B2B technology capability e Expansion of invest platforms and institutional offering

See more on pages 18 and 19
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Section 172 statement

Financial statements

Relationships with stakeholders

At CMC we understand our responsibilities
towards all of our stakeholders. The Board
continues to take account of the interests of
these stakeholders when taking key decisions,
recognising the impact of its decisions on
different groups.

More information on our engagement with stakeholders and the outcomes
over the financial year under review isincluded on pages 25 to 27.

The Directors are mindful of their duty under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 (“Section 172”) to act ina way which they consider, in good faith,
is most likely to promote the success of the Company and its members

as awhole and, in doing so, consider the matters set out in Section 172 at
each meeting. Thisincludes, amongst other things, having regard to wider
stakeholder interests when making decisions and considering the interests
of the various stakeholders.

Decision making by the Board

Our stakeholders:

Shareholders

iz

o
o
o

People

Local community/charities

Environment

Suppliers

@O0 0O¢

Regulators

Clients

Shareholder information

Section 172 considerations:

Likely long-term
consequences

. Employee interests

Relationships with customers,
suppliers and others

’ Theimpact on the community
and the environment

Maintaining reputation
. for high standards of
business conduct

Acting fairly between
members of the Group

Board information medl Board strategic discussion —>

T

J

4 N ( N 4 7
Review key commercial financial Define the Group: strategy, Approve materialinvestments, financial
performanceinformationand forecasts. structure, operational objectives plans and budgets, capitalexpenditure,
Assess and discuss andlong-termgoals. sGt;zth?;ct rlzgﬂ\éisrir;i f;i)nr?e8|nthe
operational metrics and key Consider growth strategies including
performance indicatorsrelating expanding the business into new Review and agree changesto
tobusiness outcomes and jurisdictionsand commercial areas or corporate policies, governance
stakeholder measures. developing new strategic partnerships. arrangements and risk and
Evaluate management’s risk Allocate Groupresourcestoachieve the controlstructures.
assessments against the Enterprise designated Group strategic outcomes. Oversee Group successionplans, key
Risk I\/.Ianaggmenlt.Fra.mework aljd Consider the objectives and desired Boardand management fappomtments
associated risk mitigation strategies. and Executive remuneration.

outcomes of stakeholder groups.
Analyse the customer, market ) Determine dividend payments
andregulatory trendsand the Assesls technqloglcal developments and other mechanismstoreturn
competitor landscape. thatarise bothintemally andexternally value to shareholders.

and how these developments
Receive updates onregulatory, canbe leveraged to the benefit Approve external financial reporting
compliance andlegal matters. of stakeholders. andkey announcements to

the markets.
J
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Section 172 statement continued

Key decisions

The key matters, and theirimpact on stakeholder interests, considered by the Board and/or management during the year are set out below:

Investmentin
new business
opportunities

Review of the
Enterprise Risk
Management
(“ERM”) framework

Business to business

Dividend

Sustainability
strategy and targets

Consumer Duty

The Board continued to oversee and supportinvestment in new business
opportunities. During the period the Invest product was launched in Singapore
and the Board approved the continued expansion and development of the
Opto productinthe US. Inearly 2024 we launched the Options platform to

Our stakeholders:

0006

Section 172 considerations:

clients providing access to a fast growing market which will benefit from CMC's 000
technology investment. In April 2024 the Invest SIPP product was launched

inthe UK.

The Group Risk Committee and the Board reviewed and agreed enhancementsto  Our stakeholders:

the ERM that followed the review of our risk management systems by Independent
Audit Limited. The ERM framework was reviewed and a series of updates agreed
during the year to further strengthen our risk management systems. Further
information can be foundin the Risk Management section on page 59.

600

Section 172 considerations:

During the period the Board reviewed anew business-to-business opportunity
and the development required to support the new partnership. Accordingly, it was
announced on 18 June 2024 that CMC had launched a new fintech partnership
with Revolut. Thisannouncement supports the strategy of growing our business-

Our stakeholders:

@6

Section 172 considerations:

to-business offering and provides Revolut customers withaccess to CMC's 'Y TX )
proprietary technology and cutting-edge customer offering.
The Board considered appropriateness of the current dividend policy and no Our stakeholders:

changes were recommended to the existing policy. The Board therefore proposed
the final dividend for the year, subject to approval by shareholders, of 7.3 pence per
Ordinary share.

Section 172 considerations:

The Board continues to support management'’s evolving approach to sustainable
business. During the year the Board reviewed developments in the Our Tomorrow
sustainability strategy and approved the approach to charitable donations and
employee volunteering through our Community Impact 121 strategy.

Our stakeholders:

600000

Section 172 considerations:

The Board approved the approach to the new Consumer Duty regime and the
work toembed Consumer Duty in the UK business. Oversight of the Consumer
Duty workstream was led by Clare Francis, Consumer Duty Champion and Chair
of the Group Risk Committee.

Our stakeholders:

6e0O0

Section 172 considerations:

Please also refer to the Group's strategy and business model which are described throughout our Strategic report, our Risk management section (pages 59 to
68), our Sustainability section (pages 32 to 41) and our Corporate governance report (pages 70 and 71and 75 to 82) for further information.
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Stakeholder engagement

I8 Clients
Why we engage

Meeting our clients' needsis crucial for our business. Understanding what our
clients needs are, be they institutional or individual clients, continues to drive
ourinvestmentinand development of new products and services.

How we engage

CMC actively engages with clients to seek feedback across arange of
channels, including our client service, sales and product teams. The focus
onclients has further increased with the introduction in the UK of the new
Consumer Duty regime.

Appropriate marketing and the provision of educational material continues to
be akey feature, particularly in relation to leveraged products, to allow clients
to understand which products align best with their individual risk appetite.

Board oversight

The Board receives regular updates from management on client feedback.
Key issues are discussed with the Executives with a view seeking toimprove
customer outcomes. Clare Francisis the Group’s Consumer Duty Champion.

Outcomes

With the support and oversight from the Board during the year, CMC Invest
in Singapore launchedin September 2023, further expanding our invest
business. Launchedin April 2024, the new UK SIPP product supports our
customersto achieve their long-term savings goal.

Ourengagement with clients allowed us to continue to develop our Invest app.

Financial statements Shareholder information

People

Why we engage

Ouremployees define our culture and values. Having an engaged workforce
is central to our strategy and delivering great outcomes for our clients and
supporting our other stakeholders.

During the year we moved to a policy of full-time office working as this
strengthens collaboration and innovation to the benefit of our clients. We also
announced two restructuring programmes that resulted in some reductionsin
roles across the Group. During these times of change it is even more important
toengage with our people.

How we engage

Our employee engagement is driven through numerous channels.
Thisincludes team meetings or one on ones and more formally through
the designated Non-Executive Director with responsibility for workforce
engagement. We undertake a global employee engagement survey with
follow-up focus groups to better understand the results and hold “town
hall” style forums to enable communication and engagement between
management and employees.

Furtherinformation on how we engage with our people is described withinthe
Our Tomorrow section onpages 32to 39.

Board oversight

The Nomination Committee (‘“NomCo”) receives regular updates from the
Group Head of HR on various people metrics and employee issues and the
outcome of employee surveys. The designated Non-Executive Director with
responsibility for workforce engagement joins sessions with employees and
reports back to the NomCo with the feedback from these sessions. More
information onthe key focus of the engagement via this route isincluded
onpage 80.

The NomCo continues to monitor risks relating to employee and people
matters and their potentialimpact on the business.

Outcomes

The NomCo discusses the feedback fromall the engagement channels and
provides input to senior management. Further information on our current HR
initiatives is described in the Our Tomorrow section on pages 32 to 39.
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Stakeholder engagement continued

Regulators

Why we engage

Engagement with regulators is key to ensuring that we have in place
appropriate frameworks and controls to meet their expectations and
requirements in each jurisdictionin which we operate. As we expand our
operational footprint into new jurisdictions this continues to be an area of focus
forthe Board.

How we engage

We engage in open and active dialogue with regulators, to assist their understanding
of our business and how we protect our clients and deliver good customer
outcomes. We seek to meet the expectations of our regulators through
upholding high standards of regulatory compliance and aligning our interests
with those of our clients. Our intentionis to establish strong relationships with
our regulators as aresponsible participant in the markets in which we operate.

Board oversight

The Board and/or the relevant Board Committee receives regular updates
frommanagement on the Group's compliance with its regulatory obligations
and certain communications with the regulators in each regionin which we
operate. As reported on page 86, anumber of structural governance and audit
issues were identified inan operating subsidiary during the year that required
engagement with the local regulator to agree the appropriate resolution.

Outcomes

During the year, we have monitored the progress of a number of regulatory
consultations and guidance documents and put in place project teams to
update or adapt our procedures and practices where appropriate in response.
The Board agreed the additional resources to resolve the matters identified in
the operating subsidiary, will provide oversight of the communication with the
local regulator and willmonitor the closure of the auditissues.
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Why we engage

We expectallour suppliers to demonstrate the same integrity and accountability
aswe dotoour clients. Engagement with suppliers which performany critical or
material outsourced service also ensures that we remain compliant with European
Banking Authority (‘EBA) requirements. We take a zero tolerance approach to
modern slavery and human trafficking, as reflected in our Modern Slavery
Statement (available at www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance),
and are committed to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business
relationships. A working group of relevant individuals from across the business
reviews controls and procedures and assesses their effectiveness.

How we engage

Allbusiness partners follow a mandatory procurement process to review the
external market and complete a robust evaluation of all available options. Once a
supplieris appointed, regular direct engagement between the business owner
and supplier is maintained through our Supplier Management Programme
(which sets out how we interact with our suppliers and vendor management).
As part of the procurement process, all suppliers are categorised within our
OneTrust tool, according to how critical the service or goods provided are to
the Group’s ability to serviceits clients. This categorisation determines the
frequency of interaction and level of engagement between CMC relationship
owners and the suppliers. We are continually enhancing this framework to
ensure we are always abreast of all relevant supplier issues or concerns and
over the next year there will be a focus on aroadmap to determine the scope
and frequency of our risk assessments and monitoring activities for suppliers.

Board oversight

The Boardrelies on the Executives to manage the relationship with suppliers
onaday-to-day basis. Any significant new relationships will be approved

by the Board, which will also receive information on any issues with current
material outsourced services suppliers.

Outcomes

Ourrobust governance process allows the Group to select the best supplier
for the business and ultimately our clients. Our considered approach also
allows us to treat vendors with respect and prioritise collaboration and value
generation to mutually benefit all parties, whilst remaining compliant with
allrelevant regulations. Our average time to pay invoices is in line with our
standard supplier payment terms of 30 days. This ensures that all suppliers
are treated fairly and receive payment for services or goods provided ina
timely manner.
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Shareholders

Why we engage
Our shareholders provide long-term support to our business and have
expectations on how the business performs.

How we engage

Engagement with current and prospective shareholders continues
throughout the year. Our Executive Board members communicate the
Group's strategy and performance and receive feedback on both these
and other matters. We provide regular trading updates, half and full-year
presentations, the Annual Report and Financial Statements, our Annual
General Meeting and investor-related content on our website. The Chairs
of the Board and its Committees are also available to meet with major
shareholders.

Board oversight

Shareholder feedback and details of any major movementsin our
shareholders are embedded within our regular Board meetings and are
integral to our decision-making process.

Outcomes

The Board takes into account feedback from shareholders that is obtained
after major announcements. The Chair of the Remuneration Committee
wrote to anumber of our shareholders to set out the proposals for the updates
to our Remuneration Policy to be presented at the 2024 Annual General
Meeting and spoke with a shareholder that requested direct engagement.
More information is set out in the Governance section of this report on pages
94to114.

@ Local community/charities
Why we engage

We recognise the importance of supporting our communities through
initiatives with our charity partners.

How we engage
We maintain relationships through both financial and volunteering support
with charity partners that we have committed to support.

Board oversight
The Board promotes the support of local charities in all our global offices.

Outcomes

The Group and its staff have beeninvolved in various charitable initiatives,
examples of which are provided in the Our Tomorrow section on pages
321t039.
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@ Environment

Why we engage

CMC recognises that the Group has a duty to support the environmentin
the areas that we operate. Our approach to our sustainability strategy can be
foundinthe Our Tomorrow section on pages 32 to 39.

How we engage

We continue to review the Group's Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions and how we will
seek to reduce ourimpact on the environment. More informationis includedin
the Our Tomorrow section.

Board oversight

The Board has considered the appropriate sustainability targets during
the year under review and emissions data in order to better understand the
Group's carbon footprint. The Our Tomorrow section sets out details of the
dataonour greenhouse gas emissions.

Outcomes

We have reported against the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures requirements and have provided further information in the Our
Tomorrow section of this report.
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Technology and innovation

New product
development and
operational efficiency
continue to be
underpinned by
CMC's digital
transformation and
technology strategy

0%

reduction in 99th percentile
executiontime

99.95%

consistent uptime — Group wide
above 99.95%

X

increase in trade execution at
our low latency colocation site
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As CMC continues on its digital transformation
journey the ongoing investment in technology;,
underpinned by a global technology strategy,

is accelerating new product development and
ensuring CMC’s technology remains cutting edge
and able to deliver innovative and robust trading
technology to its retail and institutional customers.

Global teams, global standards

CMC delivers financial technology solutions to the consistently high standard
CMC andits customers expect based on a set of foundational technology
principles that underpin every new area of development. These principles
ensure that allindividuals are aligned and can work unhindered towards
CMC's overarching Group strategy. Our principles ensure alignment but
foster autonomy, never stifling innovation. Quality, security, and reliability are
paramountin every output.

Continued expansion of cloud technology

This year the technology teams have again further expanded CMC's

cloud technology footprint. The platform components for both CMC's new
Options product and its Cash Equities product have all been built fully cloud
native within CMC's Open APl architecture. Ongoing cloud adoption and
modern cloud engineering practices continue to underpin CMC'’s product
development roadmap across all business areas. CMC fully commits to its
hybrid-cloud model, recognising the value in on-premises self-managed
systems augmented with cloud-native technology solutions. Thisis a powerful
and strongly favoured model, rather than a pure and sometimes headline
grabbing “race to the cloud” approach.

Operational efficiency through technology

While CMC's investment in product diversification and innovationis very
visible toits clients and shareholders, what is far less visible from the outside is
CMC's continued commitment to using technology to strive for the highest level
of operational efficiency. Through continuously investing in the automation of
internal processes and procedures CMC reduces operational costs as well as
manual error. CMC technology allows its operational staff to focus on the thing
that matters: servicingits clients.

Talented, focused people

Great technology is nothing without talented and committed people to
continually evolve and operate it. The most sought-after technology staff
want to work on fast-moving and progressive technology platforms. CMC's
proprietary systems, exciting change programme and strong underpinning
technology strategy have allowed CMC to attract and retain some of the most
talented tech staff in the industry. A model of smaller, highly talented teams
brings continuous innovation to CMC's platforms.
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CMC'’s new Options product

CMC'’s new Options product has been seamlessly integrated
into its proprietary desktop and mobile trading platforms, all built
ontop of CMC's strategic cloud-native “Open API" architecture
runningin the AWS cloud.

Options products, pricing and execution are fully integrated into
CMC's proprietary core systems, and powered by a third-party
pricingand matching engine.

The world of options trading brings many challenges froma
technology perspective, with a vast universe of underlying
options contracts having the potential to flood existing systems
with data.

Coupled with this, the complex mechanics of an Options product
cantake ahuge amount of time and investment to bring a
product tomarket.

CMC's use of cloud technology, investing in existing proprietary
systems, and integrating third-party vendor platforms are key
pillars of CMC's technology strategy and all helped greatly
accelerate CMC's Options product delivery and reduce time
tomarket.

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com

Financial statements Shareholder information

Technological and business teams working as one
Whileit's interesting for technology teams to deliver innovative technology
solutions and then present them to the commercial and operational teams, true
value has been unlocked through CMC's digital transformation programme
where the technology, product development and operational teams now work
hand in hand throughout the software development process. Thisis CMC's
approach. IT staff canleverage the expertise of business teams at every stage
of abuild to ensure technology deliverables meet product objectives and
embed themselves smoothly into the operational running of our business.

Operational excellence supporting

leading-edge innovation

We have continued to maintain the high levels of resilience expected by clients,
regulators and investors in the financial services industry. The Group'’s focus
on theimportance of operational resilience is reflected in the consistently high
uptimes for each of the core platforms. The trading platform saw uptime inline
with previous years at 99.96%, Invest UK continued its strong performance at
99.98% while Invest Australia saw improved uptime at 99.95%, and the new
institutional offering under CMC Connect saw uptime at 99.94%.

Inaddition, execution performance improved with a further 11% reduction
inthe 99th percentile execution times, showing the continual improvement
and also consistently fast execution clients demand. CMC Connect and
our low latency connectivity are continuing to grow at pace with four times
as many trades executed through that site when compared to the previous
year. As always we continue to invest in core infrastructure and technology
to support the business ambition and technology strategy.

Options

CMC continues toinvest in products and technology, with the launchin
early 2024 of our new Options platforms. We will continue to invest and
expand our offering over the coming months when we plan to launch further
Options products.

In due course the Options platform will be available to our full suite of clients,
including CMC Invest clients, institutional clients and our B2B business
platforms, through white/grey label and APl connectivity. We will also roll
the platform out to our offices globally over the coming months.

Options are one of the fastest growing financial instruments globally and
the most requested by our clients and we see Options as amajor growth
opportunity for the Group.
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Technology and innovation continued

APAC CMC Invest —

technology

We designed Invest to be
“radical” —radically customer
focused, radically transparent
pricing, and radically simple to
use. But don't let simplicity fool
you. After all, some of the best
investing in the world is as
simple as consistent regular
investing that compounds over
time. It helps to have alow cost,
transparent partner on your
growth journey. That's why we
built Invest. Your compounding
friend.”

Chris Forbes
Head of CMC Invest Singapore
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Cryptocurrencies (AU only)

CMC Invest Australia partnered with blockchain infrastructure and custody
provider Paxos to power our new digital asset offering. Launching in late 2023,
clients can trade eight well-known cryptocurrencies, 24/7,on our award-
winning platforms fromaslittle as $25. There is no need to pre-load a virtual
wallet with foreign currency as all trades are placed directly from their available
AUD account balance.

New trading features

Inaddition to platform redesign and enhanced UX, we unveiled an array

of exciting trading features throughout the year, benefiting all CMC Invest
clients. These included sought-after TradingView charts, thematic stock and
ETF watchlists, ESG risk ratings, mobile push notifications, new international
order types (market to limit, GTC and GTD), Salesforce Chat integration,and
the introduction of cryptocurrencies to our Australian clientele.

Global expansion

CMC Markets' strategic initiative to expand its Invest business globally
prompted a comprehensive overhaul of both the back and front ends of

our trading platforms in FY24. Collaborating with top industry vendors, we
seamlessly integrated new electronic ID and KYC services to streamline

our onboarding process. Teaming up with Forgerock bolstered identity
management and security through multi-factor authentication (‘MFA”). We
also upgraded our back office systems to support multiple trade currencies
andintegrated a JPMorgan Wallet for convenientlocal payments all powered
by our cloud-first strategy on AWS.

Singapore launch

CMC Invest Singapore provides access to 15 markets without any minimum
order size and offers commission-free trading in five key markets, including
Singapore, the UK, the US, Canada, and Hong Kong, spanning shares, ETFs,
and REITs. Investors can explore over 40,000 listed securities accompanied
by fundamental screening tools, TradingView charts for in-depth technical
analysis,and ESGrisk ratings. Crucially, there are no platform, settlement,
custody, or withdrawal fees. With access to our analysts, conferences, brokerage
rebates, acomprehensive trading toolkit,and a dedicated 24/5 client service
team, the Invest platform serves as a one-stop super app to fulfil all our
clients'needs.
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Pricing model

Constructed onafoundation of three tiers (with a fourth slated for launch
soon), our pricing model revolves around a monthly subscription that
incorporates zero brokerage fees, with additional considerations for tiered
FX settlement and AUM per customer pricing: the more assets with CMC,
the better value for your savings and investments —we grow with you. This
approach s detailed on our website and offers clients transparency on fees
and offers flexibility depending on a client’s trading frequency and strategy.
Visit www.cmcinvest.com/en-sg/ for more information.

Clientengagement

Thus far, CMC has hosted three roadshows, organised five conferences,

and delivered over 162 research pieces tailored for retail customers, aiding
inthe digestion of information, generating trade ideas, and enhancing their
awareness of opportunities —all of this in four months since launch. Paired
with our active presence on various social media platforms such as Instagram,
Facebook, Telegram, LinkedIn, and TikTok, we are empowering investors

to engage with others in fostering a more informed and inclusive investment
community.

Brand ambassador

Our brand ambassador, Shanti Pereira, serves as an exemplary model of
success, bothin her athletic achievements and beyond. Holdinga CMC
Invest account herself, she maintains a diversified portfolio comprising
single securities and ETFs across various sectors, including yield (bonds),
semiconductor ETFs, S&P ETF, emerging markets ETF, and exposure to
Alvia Microsoft, and sports apparel companies.

Looking to the future

Invest is looking to offer options and wealth management servicesin

the future, featuring a Robo Advisory solution and aregular savings plan
tailored for investors aiming to achieve diverse financial goals, ranging from
purchasing a car to funding education, retirement, or even a family wedding.

Options represent on the largest and most rapidly expanding markets globally.

OTC Options offer unparalleled customisation in terms of size and expiry to
align withindividual preferences. Unlike Exchange Options, which are dictated
by contract size or multiplier, OTC Options maintain a one-to-one relationship,
empowering users to determine both size and premium according to their
needs. This unparalleled flexibility will position our product at the forefront of
theindustry.

Investing in the user experience

Central to this transformation was prioritising user experience (*UX”).
Adopting a UX/Ul-first approach, we developed a robust design system
tailored for our new web platform. This scalable solution, ingrained into

our codebase, ensures long-term efficiency gains in feature development,
prioritises accessibility, and effortlessly accommodates our extensive white
label offerings, facilitating swift expansion into new markets in the future.
Leveraging this design system, we launched our inaugural cloud-based
trading platform for the Singapore market in August 2023 and expect toroll
this out to Australian clients in mid-2024.

Financial statements Shareholder information
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Redesigned platform

The revamped web platformintroduced a user-friendly dashboard summarising
client positions, a streamlined main menu for intuitive navigation, and aresponsive
design optimised for mobile devices. Simultaneously, our highly rated native
mobile apps were updated to seamlessly integrate with Singaporean functionalities,
including robust MFA support and SGD account currency compatibility.
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Sustainability

Our Tomorrow:
taking a positive
POSItIoN

Our commitment to
responsible practices
and values ensures that
we are aligned with the
worldwide shift towards
a sustainable future
within capital markets.”

Our five
sustainability
pillars

Plattorm positve
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Last year we introduced the
Group’s Our Tomorrow
sustainability strategy and its
five core pillars structured to
focus delivery on our material
environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) risks.

We remain focused on equipping both our clients
and employees with the necessary tools to invest
in a better future and strive to achieve this by
offering cutting-edge technological solutions
that protect, educate, and motivate our clients
and employees to invest in a way that has positive
impacts now and for the future. Our commitment
to responsible practices and values ensures that
we are aligned with the worldwide shift towards a
sustainable future within capital markets. We have
updated the work we completed in FY23 on the
materiality of the ESG risks across our business.
Through FY24 we have continued to follow the
five sustainability pillar approach to sustainability
detailedin last year’s report.
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Client Positive &

The Group acknowledges the presence of risks
and potential financial losses associated with our
products and their potential impact on our clients.
We always aim to enhance client experience while
ensuring that the Group maintains alignment

with global regulatory bodies. We continue to
monitor our overall commitment to our client

base experience.

Akey indicator of client experience are satisfaction metrics such as Qualtrics
and Net Promoter scores. In FY23 we had an upper quartile Net Promoter
Score (“NPS’) for the UK and Singapore. In FY24 we are pleased to confirm
we have maintained that position.

In2023 we confirmed we were fully committed to understanding how to best
cater to the needs of these diverse and less experienced investors, witha
central focus on education. To support this commitment, we established a
freely accessible Learning Hub on our website for all investors. This resource
aimed toassist new clientsinnavigating the distinctions between our product suite
and FXtrading, as well as providing insights into key thematic trends in the
market. Through thisinitiative, we aim to empower investors with knowledge
and help them make informed decisions.

Consumer Duty

The FCA's Consumer Duty Regulation gave CMC the chance to analyse and
review the retail client journey to determine whether our clients are receiving
good outcomes. Thisinvolves providing evidence that we are acting in good
faith, avoiding causing foreseeable harm and enabling clients to pursue their
financial objectives. CMC'’s Consumer Duty programme is anchored across
the culture of the organisation. The programme implemented and embedded
at CMC received a positive report when audited by Grant Thornton our
internal auditors, in FY24.

Shareholder information

Financial statements

Change Positive J

We have always held ourselves to the highest
standards when conducting our business
and strive to be industry leaders through

our commitment to business ethics and
professional integrity.

Delivery of sustainable outcomes should be embedded as part of our
everyday business practices, so we have made all functions responsible
for deliveringin the sustainable way. To further embed sustainability

into the everyday management of our business we have changed the
terms of reference for our Sustainability Committee to be a senior level
oversight function responsible for ensuring sustainability is deliveredin
acommercially appropriate way. In FY23 we were compliant with 9 of 11
of the recommendations of TCFD's 2021 guidance in accordance with
Listing Rule 9.8.6.11.In addition:

— InFY23allExecutive Directors were set objectives relating to DEl across
the business. For FY24 this has been broadened to include wider ESG
measures with adirect link to annual reward.

— Female representation onour Board remains at 33% and for our
Non-Executive Directors 66%. Furthermore, in FY24 we appointed
anew CFO whois of North African heritage.

— Tosupportgender growthin senior roles we now track the diversity of
succession candidates through our succession planning processes.

— TheBoardtraining plan for FY25 includes sustainability themes where relevant.

— Through our Modern Slavery Steering Committee, we have now improved
the monitoring of modern slavery practices in our supply chain through a
risk-based questionnaire in the tendering process.

Whilst we acknowledge that we do not comply with the diversity targets set
out by the Listing Rules at present, as disclosed in the Nomination Committee
report on page 93, we will continue to ensure that fulland proper consideration
is given to gender and ethnic diversity as part of the process for making
appointments to the Board and keep our position in relation to appropriate
targets under review.

CMC Markets plc-33
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Sustainability continued

Platform Positive <

During FY24 we have continued to actively
explore opportunities in sustainable investment
and expanding our range of investment products
and platforms to provide our clients with more
options to direct their investment capital to assets
that prioritise ESG and sustainability.

We are committed to offering our clients aninvestment product suite that
enables themto invest responsibly and understand the growing trends
towards sustainable investments. Last year we integrated Sustainalytics data
into our CMC Invest UK platform. This enables clients to obtain sustainability
dataonassets they are considering making investmentsin. We have also

integrated tools for clients to set preferences and screen assets according to
their own sustainability preferences and values.

INnFY2389% of assets on the CMC Invest platform were supported by ESG
data from Sustainalytics which hasincreased to 90% in FY24. In addition:

— ESGrisk ratings have been available on both our web and mobile
platforms since early 2023 and cover over 3,000 domestic and
international instruments.

— Wereleased Opto thematic watchlists onto the mobile apps in late 2023.
These group instruments into 44 themes including “Clean Energy”,
“Recycling’,“Solar”, "Wind", “Biotechnology” and “Carbon Transition”.
Approximately 60% of the Opto themes offered on the Invest app currently
have an ESG exposure.

— Wereleased our ESG preferences feature which allows users to select their
ESG preferences. When the user views an asset on the app they are then
informed that it does or does not meet those preferences. This feature was
awarded the “best ESG feature” award by finder.com.

— We continued to strive to ensure the products we provide and the platforms
onwhich we provide them are accessible to all. InF Y24 our platforms were
actively used by 13% females compared to 10%in FY23.

We are committed to offering

our clients an investment product
suite that enables them to invest
responsibly and understand

the growing trends towards
sustainable investments.”
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Case study: Platform Positive
Empowering sustainable
investing: Opto’s
commitment to ESG

Optois revolutionising thematic investing with a strong focus
onenvironmental, social,and governance (‘ESG") principles.
Our app offers adiverse range of investment themes, including
wind energy, clean energy, solar power, hydrogen, uranium,
and electric vehicles. Each theme is designed to provide
investors with opportunities that align with their commitment
to sustainability and positive impact.

In addition to these investment options, Opto provides exclusive
content that offersin-depth analyses of each theme. Thisincludes
market trends, emerging technologies, and detailed Company
insights, enabling users to make informed investment decisions.
By highlighting the leaders ininnovation and sustainability, Opto
empowers investors to build portfolios that support both their
financial goals and their ethical values.
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People Positive &2

People remain core to all that CMC achieves

and ensuring we attract, develop, and motivate .

the best in our industry remains critical to our Case StUd}/: People POS.I’[IVG i

future success. Improving our Diversity Data

FY24 has, however, proved a challenging year for the firm and its employees Our“CountMe In” campaign reviewed our processes for
and we have had to take difficult steps to ensure we have a profitable long- collecting diversity data and took proactive measures to build
term future and adapt to an ever-changing business landscape. employee trust. This has resulted in CMC more than doubling

the amount of employees entrusting the business with their
diversity-related data. We are now able to better reflect that
datainthe way we do business, so ensuring we continue to
hire, retain and motivate the best talent in our industry.

As our investment cycle moves into another phase, underwent two
significant restructures resulting in redundancies for approximately 15% of
our employees. Inaddition, in July we took the decisionto move froma hybrid
working organisation to one that was office based five days per week. Whilst
voluntary turnover has only been partially impacted at 23% (20% in FY23) the
uncertainty this created hasimpacted our fullengagement score which has F
reduced from 72% to 37% globally. The firm remains committed to providing ol
anenvironment where employees can grow their careers and prosper
economically and looking to take action toimprove engagement in the coming
financial year.

Whilst overall we have reduced our headcount, we continue to hire inall
markets to ensure we have skill sets that reflect the diverse business we are
now developing. The majority of our hires are delivered through our internal
talent team and employee referral program, significantly reducing cost
whilstimproving the quality of the candidates we hire. We continue to focus
on providing quality career development for our employees with 75 being
promoted internally or making a developmental role change.

Our diverse workforce brings together individuals with different backgrounds,
experiences, and perspectives. By working to improve our data collection
processes and trust from our employees we have improved the reporting of
diversity-related data across the business. For example in FY24 47% of our
employees provided ethnicity data compared to 17%in FY23. CMCis proud
tohave employees of may different ethnicities acrossits 14 offices. Our global
gender balance has remained at 29% female this year, with Females in senior
management roles (using the FTSE 250 Women Leadership Framework) at
19% in March 2024 (20% in March 2023). We also delivered inclusivity training
toall our global senior managers and plan to deliver this to allemployeesin
FY25. We actively support colleagues and applicants with disabilities through
our Equal Opportunities and Flexible Working Policies and our training,
developmentand career paths are accessible to all.

We have continued toinvestin early careers, delivering paid internships,
apprenticeships and graduate trainees through arange of channels, ensuring
we provide opportunities to those whose access to financial services careers
would be limited. We have maintained our long-term partnership with Making
the Leap, sponsoringits careers fair and providing mentors for its young
people and permanent roles where appropriate.
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Sustainability continued

People Positive continued 22

In talent development we have continued our commitment toemployees’
professional growth and advancement and giving employees opportunities
tolearn new skills, acquire knowledge, and develop their talents. Despite the
market challenges faced by the organisation we maintained our investmentin
learning at FY23 levels and we enhanced our ability to support employees’
developmentby recruiting Learning Managersin our Londonand Sydney offices.

Community engagement remains a core commitment for CMC with regionally
led programmes of activity supporting arange of causes:

— Our European offices initiated their inaugural charity programme this year,
with charity partners that closely align with our sustainability goals. We
identified a team of “Charity Champions” to support the delivery of the
programme, led by our Head of Europe.

— Our UK offices completed their three-year partnership with three charity
partners focused on social mobility from school age to young adults making
their first stepsinto the professional world. We have continued to support
our employees’ charity fundraising through pound for pound matching and
other fundraising initiatives. Looking forward, we have renewed our long-term
commitment to support Making the Leap, aleading charity driving social
economic change for young people from all backgrounds. We are also
realigning our charitable programme to support teams of employees looking
totake partin group-based fundraising challenges and introduce charitable
grants to supportemployees’ own work in the community.

— Our APAC & Canada offices have a dedicated team of “Charity Champions”
that develop and implement a yearly plan of initiatives which include many
volunteering opportunities such as providing a food service for women who
have experienced domestic abuse and supporting theirindependence
and economic empowerment. Our partners also provide support with
numeracy through education andlearning of young children.

Our UK offices completed
their three-year partnership
with three charity partners
focused on social mobility
from school age to young
adults making their first steps
into the professional world.”
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Case study: People Positive
Charitable giving
and volunteering

Below: In April 2023, CMC Markets hosted animpactful networking
eventin collaboration with our charity partner, Making the Leap. The
event featured mock interviews and career guidance for 22 young
participants, who had the opportunity to engage with various CMC
Markets staff members working in the fields they aspire to pursue. This
initiative aimed to equip these young individuals with valuable insights
and practical experience to help themadvance in their career journeys.

y
v

22

young participants took partinan
impactful networking event
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Left: In September 2023, we held araffle
and bake sale to raise funds for our Boycott
Your Bed event, supporting CMC's Dream
Team as they braved the cold and slept out
in Paternoster Square.

The sleep out, supporting activities and
CMC matched funding raised £21,037
for Action for Children.

£21,037

raised for Action for Children

Right: 30 employees from our Sydney office
took partinthe Balmoral Runin aid of the Humpty
Dumpty Foundation which provides support for
sick childrenin hospitals. CMC was also the main
sponsor of the event.
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Sustainability continued

Planet Positive €

Throughout 2024 we continued to improve
our understanding of our impacts on the
environment within the context of being an
office-based service provider.

We have continued toimprove our office spaces throughout 2024 including
amajor refurbishment of our London head office at 133 Houndsditch and the
relocation of our main data centre to a third-party venue. In specifying these
developments, we have emphasised on the need for green credentials and
utilised data provided by BREEAM ratings, or local equivalents. The data
centre relocationand works toimprove the heating and lighting in the London
office are already delivering electrical energy savings. Allour energy supplies
to our buildings where CMC has direct control over the supplier relationship
are now sourced from renewable sources with the exception of one location
where the supply is 80% renewable.

We have worked with suppliers, contractors, and partners to encourage
sustainable practices, reduce emissions, and promote responsible sourcing.
We have now adopted arisk-based approach to assessing potential suppliers
for their sustainable practices.

We continue to work with Normative to support our climate strategy and
helps us to calculate our carbon emissions. Normative uses the Greenhouse
Gas ("GHG") Protocol and a database of emissions factors to bring scientific
accuracy to emissions accounting.

We also successfully launched electric vehicle leasing schemesin London
and Australia as a benefit to our employees.

The table below defines the three scopes of corporate emissions according
to the GHG Protocol as adopted by CMC.

CO, CH, N,O HFC
~ A
Sco:pe 2 Sco.pe 3

Indirect emissions

45 Purchased

Indirect emissions

Purchasedgoods 7 Wastegenerated

SF, NF, PFC
A A
Sco.pe 1 Sco;;e 3

Direct emissions

Indirect emissions

electricity, and services inoperations
steam, heating

and cooling @ Capital goods < Businesstravel
forownuse

M9 Fuelandenergy- R Employee
related activities commuting

& Transportation @ Leasedassets
anddistribution

Company & Transportaton / End-of-life
facilities and distribution treatment of
sold products
&> Company ) Processing of
vehicles sold products 2 Leasedassets

/o)
O Use of sold

products Q Franchises

nall Investments

Upstream activities Reporting company } Downstream activities

Source: Normative Emissions Calculation Methodology Version 11—Jan 2023: The three scopes of corporate emissions according to the GHG Protocol.

Our FY24 emissions performance
— Scope1emissions at CMC only relate to the cars provided to employees

throughthe salary sacrifice car benefitarrangement in the UK and Australia.

These schemes only provide electric vehicles with zero emissions. As
we have no operational control of energy consumptionin our buildings
emissions relating to premises are included under Scope 2.

- Scope 2decreased from 281.2tCO,ein 202310 168.3tCO, e due to
improved data quality and reduced consumption primarily in the UK due
to the relocation of the data centre.
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— Scope 3decreased slightly from12,219.7tCO,ein2023t012,153.4
tCO,ein2024.

- Emissionintensity ratio decreased from 43.3tCO,e/£min 2023 to
37.0tCO,e/£min2024.
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Our calculation methodology:

GHG emissions are calculated in alignment with records used to produce the
consolidated Financial Statements for the relevant accounting period. CMC's
GHG footprint follows the operational control approach and if we operate
and controlan area, the associated emissions will fallinto Scope 1& 2 and

all other emissions fallinto Scope 3. Our gas consumptionis categorised as
Scope 2 due to the fact we do not have operational control over the boilersin
our multi-tenanted buildings, for example, we do have a contract with the gas
supplier for our London office and the energy is paid for though the service
feesto the landlord.

Our approach for any errors, updates or restatements involves applying
athreshold of 5%. In the event of an error or update identified in the prior
period or the baseline, we will restate our GHG emissions if the error exceeds
this threshold. Furthermore, we recognise the significance of acquisitions,
disposals, and changes withing the Group from both a size and operating
perspective. The figures below include emissions data from all our global
offices where datais available. In some cases, estimates or extrapolation
methods are used to calculate emissions where actual consumption figures
arenotavailable.

For Scope 2 to determine the carbonimpacts for the electricity use we used
emissions factors from the Association of Issuing Bodies ("AlIB”). Cooling is
regional/district-specific and is otherwise covered by electricity databases.
Gasemissions areincluded onanet CV basis.

For Scope 3 we used emission factors from the Department of Business and
Trade (“DBT"), for fuel and energy related activities, business travel and waste
generated, coupled with the Exiobase, whichis an environmentally- extended
input-output model (“EEIO"), for capital goods, purchased goods and
services, and upstream transportation.

Financial statements

Shareholder information

Case study: Planet Positive
Refurbishment of our
London head office space
and the relocation of our
data centres

During FY24 CMC extended the lease for its head office at

133 Houndsditchin the City of London until 2029. This also
included a significant refurbishment of the space to provide
amore modern environment better suited to office-based
workingin 2024. As part of the refurbishment all aspects of
sustainability were considered including upgrading all the
office lighting to LED and improvements to the heating and air
conditioning systems. Our technology production teamalso
completed the relocation of the majority of our data centre from
133 Houndsditchto a specialist third-party provider. Despite
these projects only completing during the year we are already
seeing tangible netreductionsin our Scope 2 energy use inthe
United Kingdom.
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Greenhouse gas emissions by scope

Year ended
Year ended Yearended 31March2015
Unit 31March 2024 31March 2023 (base year)
Scope 1: direct greenhouse emissions that occur from sources that are controlled or tCO,e 0.0 0.0 -
owned by an organisation kWh 0.0 0.0 —
Scope 2: indirect market-based emissions from utility companies, such as electricity, tCOe 168.3 281.2 3,560.4
heat, cooling and suppliers of steam? kWh = 3,531,068.0 4,051,055.5 5,940,440.0
Scope 3indirect value chain greenhouse gas emissions except Scope 2 categories,
upstream and downstream tCOe 12,153.5 12,219.7 —
Total global emissions: sum of emissions of various gases tCOe 12,321.8 12,500.9 3,560.4
kWh = 3,531,068.0 4,051,055.5 5,940,440.0
Net operatingincome £m 332.8 288.4 143.6
Headcount number 1,175.0 1,087.0 473.0
Intensity ratio (total global emissions/net operating income) tCO,e/£m 37.0 43.3 24.8
Intensity ratio (total global emissions/employee) tCO,e/HC 104 1.5 75
Renewable % for electricity 95% 95% —
Global energy consumption by locationin kWh
Year ended Yearended
Year ended 31March2024 Yearended 31March2023
31March 2024 (%) 31March 2023 (%)
UK 2,990,245.0 85% 3,406,794.0 86%
Rest of the World 540,823.0 15% 644,2615 14%
Total 3,531,068.0 100% 4,051,055.5 100%
Global energy emissions by location in tCO,e
Year ended
Year ended 31March 2024 Yearended Yearended
31March 2024 (%) 31March2023  31March2023 (%)
UK 4,714.9 38% 4,901.6 36%
Rest of the World 7,606.9 62% 7599.3 64%
Total 12,321.8 100% 12,500.9 100%

Global energy
emissions
(tCO.e)
by scope

A — Scope 1/0%

B — Scope 2/1%
C - Scope 3/99%
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Governance Financial statements

Group non-financial information and sustainability statement

Shareholder information

Set out below is the information required by Sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) necessary for an understanding
of the Group’s development, performance and positionin relation to the matters set out in the table below. Group policies can also be found at
www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance/policies-and-documents.

Reporting requirement

Group policies and statements

Commentary, outcomes and KPIs

Environmental matters

Our Tomorrow and Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures section pages 32 to 51

Employees

— Equal Opportunity Policy

— Anti-Harassment and Bullying Policy

— Diversity and Inclusion Statement and Policy
— BoardDiversity Policy

— Group Healthand Safety Policy

— Group Grievance Procedure

— Whistleblowing Policy

Our Tomorrow section pages 32t0 39
Nomination Committee section pages 90 to 93

Social matters

— Equal Opportunity Policy
— Accessibility Statement
— Diversity and Inclusion Statement and Policy

— BoardDiversity Policy

Our Tomorrow section pages 32t0 39
Nomination Committee section pages 90to0 93

Humanrights

— Group Anti-Slavery Policy

— Modern Slavery Statement

Our Tomorrow section pages 32t0 39
Nomination Committee section pages 90 to 93

Anti-corruption and
anti-bribery matters

— Group Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
— Group AML Policy
— Group Financial Sanctions Policy

— Group Poalitically Exposed Persons Policy

Principalrisks section pages 61to 68

Principal risks

Principalrisks section pages 61to 68

Business model

Our business model section pages 12 and 13

Non-financial key
performance indicators

Key performance indicators section pages 20 to 22
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TCFD

Task Force on
Climate-Related

Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD)

CMC acknowledges the systemic challenges posed by
the climate crisis to business and society. We also know
that we have arole to play in mitigating our own impacts
on the climate whilst ensuring the resilience of its
business. CMC reported against the recommendations
of the TCFD for the first time inits 2022 Annual Report
and Financial Statements and built on that with the launch
of the “Our Tomorrow” strategy in 2023.

In 2024 we have consolidated our approach to
delivering sustainability at CMC, rationalising the
governance structure to ensure delivery is embedded
in the relevant functions and the Executives are closely
involved to a level that reflects the nature and size of
the business.

Inaccordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6 R, the
climate-related financial disclosures are consistent with
8 out of 11 of the TCFD recommended disclosures.
Where we are not yet compliant (recommendations

9 and 11 relating to metrics and targets and 4 relating

to climate strategy), we explain our positionand
forward-looking planin the relevant sections. Our TCFD
disclosures are also in accordance with the climate-
related financial disclosure requirements contained in
section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 (referred
to as ‘UK CFD’) We will continue to refine our approach
to build resilience against the potential physical and
transition risks of climate change whilst also identifying
ways to reduce the Group’s impacts on the planet. We
have not applied requirements g & h of the UK CFD this
year due to the lack of availability of suitable Metrics
and Targets (See section on Page 48).
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Governance

The Board oversees the Group's Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy, which
encompasses oversight of the risks and opportunities of the climate crisis.
The Board receives updates on the Our Tomorrow strategy at least three
times each year and approves relevant KPIs and targets, including those
related to climate change.

In2024 the Board considered sustainability matters at five meetings, receiving
updates on the Group's progress to implement its sustainability strategy

and establish the Sustainability Committee and discussing or approving the
KPIs against which progress of the strategy will be measured and reported.
Specific climate risk and opportunity metrics and targets have not been
established.

Following areview of the structure of the business the opportunity was
taken to review the governance and delivery approach underpinning the
“Our Tomorrow” strategy. As aresult, the newly appointed Chief Financial
Officer now has overall responsibility for sustainability. The Group Head
of HR will chair the Sustainability Committee for which climate-related risk
management is a key component.

The Sustainability Committee reports up to the Board at least three times
annually inaccordance withits terms of reference. The Sustainability Committee
includes three Board members, the Chief Financial Officer, the Deputy CEO
and the Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, who represent the Board's position
onclimate-related topics andin turn act as advocates for the priorities of the
Committee at the Board level. In addition, key senior managers sit on the
Committee including the Group Head of HR, whose responsibility not only
includes our people agenda but also covers our facilities footprint, and the
Head of Technology Development, whois also responsible for procurement.
Akey focus for the sub-committee during F Y25 is to consider risk metrics and
targets, the potentialimpact of chronic climate-related risks on the business
and to develop plans to transition CMC to a lower carbon businessin line with
the UK's Net Zero 2050 target.

The Committee not only provides a process through which climate-related
matters are governed but also a forum through which senior managementis
able to debate climate-related change that willimpact CMC in the medium and
long term. It willalso oversee the review and updating of the climate-related
risk register and scenario analysis which willhappen at least every three years
or earlier if there is a fundamental change in the nature, strategy or physical
footprint of the Group. To provide subject matter expertise and input to the
assessment of future climate and sustainability centred risks the Committee

is supported by retained consultants who are considered subject matter
expertsinthefield.

Given the business had made no material changes to its strategy and
geographic footprintin FY24 no changes were considered necessary to
the climate risk assessment exercise completed in FY23. A full review of the
assessment will be undertakenin FY25.

The Board and relevant Committees consider climate-related issues when
considering its decisions and guiding major plans of action that could affect
our climate impact aspirations in the Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy.
It also considers the risks and opportunities that climate change impacts
have onits operations.
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CMC’s governance of climate risks and opportunities

The Board

Provides oversight of the Group’s Our Tomorrow sustainability
strategy, which encompasses monitoring KPIs and targets

for climate-related risks and opportunities and approving the
contents of this TCFD statement.

Management

Sustainability Committee

The Committee ensures robust governance of the Our Tomorrow
strategy and provides the Board with updates on sustainability
considerations and developments focused on the alignment to
regulatory requirements, and managing risk including identifying
climate-related risks and opportunities and overseeing the
mitigation of and resilience to those risks.

Group Audit Committee

The Committee ensures anindependent review of reporting on
climate change risks within this TCFD statement as part of its
consideration of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Group Risk Committee

The Committee receives reports from the Executives on the
principal risks to the business and reviews the TCFD statement
inorder to make arecommendation onits approval to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Committee considers the balance of skills on the Board
and ensures that any gaps are identified and considered when
new Board members are appointed and when any training needs
for existing Non-Executive Directors are discussed. This will
include consideration of the knowledge required by the Boardin
relation to sustainability matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Committee considers the performance of the Executive
Directors against performance objectives which are linked to
remuneration packages. including a sustainability objective.

Please see the Group governance structure diagram
onpage 79.

.-.M“‘wﬁ_l W I
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TCFD continued

Risk management
Onpages 46 to 49 inour summarised risk register, we provide further detailon
how we manage each identified risk.

Risk identification and assessment

In2023 the Group conducted areview of our register of identified climate
risks and the Group’s approach to climate risk assessment. This review
was conducted at a Group level. The review was supported by external
consultants from Ever Sustainable, and the exercise included:

— research to enhance existing intelligence onindustry and
geographical considerations;

— mapping climate risks to our identified principal risks to better understand
the interplay with our core business risks; and

— conductinginternalinterviews with stakeholders from departments and
subsidiaries across the business.

Additionally, we defined time horizons to assess climate-related risks and
identified potential metrics to support the monitoring of risks in accordance
with the TCFD's guidance on cross-sector metrics. We undertook this
exercise inorder to:

— enhance our understanding of the climate risks facing our business;

— determine whether any changes to the materiality of identified risks
had occurred;

— uncover whether new climate-related risks had been identified;
— devise stronger monitoring capabilities for the identified risks;

— review and enhance our approach to integrating climate-related risks
into the Group’s enterprise risk management systems; and

— enhance our understanding of the key risks to be assessed in climate
scenario analysis.
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Therisk review led to several changes to our climate risk assessment
methodology. We streamlined the overarching risk identification taxonomy
used to assess CMC's climate-related risks from four categories (physical,
transition, liability and transboundary) to two (physical and transition),

which achieves greater consistency with the climate disclosure standards
adopted by ourindustry. We also elected to consolidate our twelve identified
risks to nine risks, which further supports alignment to recognised climate
risksimpacting our industry and improves consistency with CMC's internal
risk language. We disclose these risks and their potentialimpacts on

pages 46to049.

Giventhere are no material changes to the business that would impact the
risk assessment, along with no developmentsin the climate science, we are
comfortable that the approach is appropriate for this reporting period. We
have, however recategorised the risks to align to the UK CFD requirements.

Risk assessment and prioritisation

Therisk assessment criteria align closely to the Group's risk evaluation
matrices in order to enhance integration with the Group's overarching risk
management systems and the judgements and estimates applied in our
Financial Statements. The likelihood assessment reflects the probability

of therisk crystallising over the assessed time period, taking into account
industry and geographical considerations. The impact assessment reflects
the potential financial losses incurred if the risk were to be realised.

We acknowledged the novelty of climate-related risks, which makesit challenging
to define precise financialimpacts for the business and continue to iterate its
assessment criteria as greater understanding of financial implications at the
entity level become known. For FY24 we have continued to use the threshold
defined for a critical financial impact as greater than £5 million, which aligns
approximately to Group risk appetite as at year end.

At that time, the Group deemed that the potentialimpacts of climate-related
risks did not surpass this threshold and are not expected to over the next
three years, the period over which we provide a viability statement. We have
therefore determined that no action currently needs be taken to adjust our
Financial Statements and regard these disclosures to be consistent with the
information contained herein. Additionally, we have determined that climate
change willremain categorised as an emerging risk rather than a principal
risk due to the result of the current assessment which concluded that critical
thresholds are not expected to be breached.

We will continue to monitor this designation closely as we enhance the
Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM”) framework. See page 59 for more
details on emergingrisks. Should climate risk assessed as nolonger an
emerging risk additional resources will be allocated as required.
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Impact
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Strategy

The Group identified and assessed climate risks and opportunities to
understand their potentialimpact on different areas of our business and the
Group's strategy over the short, medium and long term. These time horizons
align with our business and financial planning timelines, including our viability
assessment period as noted above, as well as the timelines defined by others
inourindustry. These time horizons are defined as short term (2024-2025),
medium term (2026-2035) and long term (2036+).

Different areas of the business including HR, facilities, technology, procurement,
finance and operations were all considered as part of the risk assessment
process. Our assessment of the potential consequences to different business
unitsis captured through our mapping of each climate risk to the Group’s
principal risks. Over the short, medium and long term, the Group’s technology
department represents the portion of the business with the greatest exposure to
both physical and transition risks. The Group's HR and facilities departments
are limited in their exposure in the short term, although in the medium to long
term, physicalrisk exposure s likely toincrease.

Additionally, the Group monitors variations in the potential climate risks across
the geographic locations of the Group’s operations and markets, including
the UK, Europe, and APAC & Canada. The Group has determined that its
exposure to physical risk is most critical in the APAC & Canada region over the
medium and long term. We will continue to monitor our exposure carefully and
consider more granular assessment of our business units and geographical
exposure as appropriate. The results of our assessment of the potential
impact and likelihood of our identified climate risks across three climate
scenarios are disclosed in the tables on pages 50 and 51.
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TCFD continued

Strategy continued
Summary of CMC’s climate risk and opportunity register

Physical risks — Acute - Floods and storms

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of floods, storms, and other extreme weather events causing damage to premises/other physical assets
and/or wider infrastructure on which we are reliant and disrupting operations. Time horizon - long term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Business continuity and disaster recovery risk — Revenue losses linked to outages or loss of technical services that

ffect client relationshi dtrustin CMC's platf dproducts.
— Information technology andinfrastructure risk afiectclentrelationshipsandtrustin Spatiorms and products

— Increased costs through damage repair, asset replacement or data
service provision if providers are forced to invest more in adaptationand
resilience measures.

— Procurement and outsourcing risk

CMC’sresponse: we will continue to monitor the exposure of its assets and geographies to extreme weather events. As new facilities and data
service providers are introduced to the business, climate considerations will be increasingly embedded into decision-making processes.

Physical risks — Acute - Heatwaves

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of extreme heat disrupting operations through damage to premises/other physical assets and/or wider
infrastructure on which we are reliant, or affecting the physical safety and security of our people. Time horizon - medium to long term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Business continuity and disaster recovery risk — Revenuelosses linked to outages or loss of technical services that

. ) ) affect client relationships and trustin our platforms and products.
- Information technology and infrastructure risk P P P

- Increased costs for energy (including outsourced services) to
keep key equipment and premises cool and employee absences or
— Procurement and outsourcing risk productivity losses.

— Peoplerisk

CMC’sresponse: the Group will continue to monitor the exposure of its assets and geographies to heat stress. In particular, we will look to embed
consideration of the exposure of our digital infrastructure and location of data centres as we make procurement decisions in the mediumto long term.

Transition risks — Technology - Energy price and supply

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of rising energy prices and unstable energy supplies increasing our costs and disrupting our services.
Time horizon - short to medium term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Information technology and infrastructure risk — Revenuelosses linked to disruption to energy supply could resultin the
loss of technical services affecting client relationships and trustin CMC'’s

— Procurementand outsourcing risk platforms and products.

— Increased costs for running business operations and outsourced
dataservices.

CMC’sresponse: the business continuity team held an incident response exercise to prepare for a real-life major incident, in response to the energy
crisis. These learnings will inform our ongoing approach to preparing for potential energy insecurity.
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Transition risks — Policy - Regulatory and compliance

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that climate-related policy may affect business expansion, current product or service offerings and
business operations. Time horizon - short to long term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Preparedness for regulatory change Increased costs and/or reduced revenues through:

— Regulatory and compliance risk additional resources to meet new regulatory requirements or disclosures;
— Taxandfinancial reporting — finesinthe event of non-compliance;

restrictions to product offerings; and

— taxesto fund national climate policies.

CMC’sresponse: we continue to monitor the evolving regulatory environment closely.

Transition risks — Legal and Reputational -

Reputational damage

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that stakeholders perceive that our response to climate change is insufficient or inaccurate, leading to
reputational damage. Time horizon - short to medium term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Reputational risk — Decreasing revenues as customers leave for more climate-friendly
competitors.

— Peoplerisk P

— Increased costs and/or reduced access to capital through damaged

= FIORLIEMEIEE QUSRI relationships with investors and banks.

— Increased costs through heightened employee recruitment and
retention challenges.

CMC’sresponse: through the Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy, we are increasing our engagement with key stakeholders to better understand
their priorities and ensure we are addressing any concerns.

Transition risks — Market

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that product/service offerings don't align with evolving customer preferences or that climate-related

factors negatively affect the value of assets on our platform, impacting revenues and profits. Time horizon - short to medium term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Strategic/business model risk — Reduced revenues and profitability linked to declining customer
demand for products and services.

— Increased costs of R&D into products or services that support the low
carbon transition.

CMC’s response: ongoing diversification of our product offering and client base helps to de-risk our exposure. The Group is investing in the
integration of ESG considerations into its products and platforms to ensure our offering is aligned with the trajectory of consumer demand.
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TCFD continued

Strategy continued
Summary of CMC’s climate risk register continued

Transition risks —Legal and Reputational - Litigation

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that a perceived failure on behalf of the Group to consider, mitigate or adapt to the risks associated with
climate change results inlitigation. Time horizon - medium term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Legalrisk - Increased costs through legal fees and settlements to cover the costs
of litigation.

— Reputational risk
— Reduced revenues as reputation and brand equity are damaged.

CMC’sresponse: we monitor our regulatory requirements closely to ensure our exposure tolitigation remains minimal.

Transition risks — Market - Investment

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that our business becomes less attractive to investors as a result of our approach to managing climate
risks or that climate risks affect the value of our investments. Time horizon - medium term.

Mapping to principalrisks Potential financialimpacts
— Marketrisk — Reduced capitalinflows asaresult ofimpacts oninvestment attractiveness.

— Reduced investmentreturns as climate factorsimpact the value
of investments.

CMC’sresponse: the Group has a holistic strategy for addressing sustainability topics including climate change to better address the concerns of
investors and to bolster our risk management systems to account for climate risk.

Transition risks — Market - Cost of capital

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of rising costs to the business as aresult of increasing borrowing rates and/or insurance premiums due to
climate-related factors. Time horizon - medium tolong term.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Insurancerisk — Increased cost of borrowing affecting investment in the business and
its development.

— Rising cost of insurance premiums and/or losses resulting from
unpaid insurance claims willincrease the running costs of operations.

CMC’sresponse: we are alow debt business and regularly engage with banking counterparties to understand their expectations and
forward-looking plans.

Opportunities — Climate-related products and services

Risk/opportunity description: the opportunity to provide financial products that help our client base to investin the energy transitionand
climate-friendly investments.

Mapping to principalrisks Potential financialimpacts

— Reputational risk — Increased revenue fromnew clients that are attracted to the platform

— Strategic/business model risk elitelisEs el il oo

CMC’sresponse: we have introduced ESG filters within our investment platforms that allow clients to access climate-friendly investments.
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Opportunities —Enhanced stakeholder relationships
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Risk/opportunity description: through proactive action on climate-related issues, we can enjoy reputational benefits with our employees,

customers and investors as leaders on climate action in the financial services sector.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Reputationalrisk — Enhanced access to capital through positive investor relationships.
— Strategic/business model risk - Increased revenue throughimproved productivity and innovation

through engagement withemployees.

— Increased revenue fromnew clients attracted to the platform for its
positive climate reputation.

CMC’sresponse: we are taking proactive action toimprove our climate-related credentials and we proactively engage with employees, investors

and other stakeholders.

Evaluating resilience with climate scenario analysis
To enhance the Group's understanding of our exposure to identified climate risks and to assess our strategic resilience, we conducted a climate scenario analysis
exercise facilitated by external consultants for three distinct scenarios. The parameters used to define the scenarios are summarisedin the table.

Parameter Selection Rationale
Scenario source Network for Greening the Financial System (‘“NGFS”) — The NGFS has the most comprehensive coverage of
Climate Scenarios for centralbanks and supervisors risks and opportunities for the financial sector.
Phase Ill) 2022 . )

( ) — Itbrings together the complex dynamics of the energy,
economy and climate systems —including a strong
focus on policy and technology variables —and so has
strong alignment with CMC's driving forces.

— Phaselll scenarios were publishedinlate 2022 and take
account of the latest trends, data and developments.
Base scenarios 1.5°C —Net Zero 2050 Scenario (‘NZ”) —transition risk — The NZ Scenariois the most ambitious scenario and

closely aligned with the Paris Agreement.

1.6°C—Delayed Transition Scenario (‘DTS") —transitionrisk

DTS provides a middle ground to test higher transition
and physicalrisks than NZ.

3°C+-Current Policies (*CP”) — physical risk

CPisthe least ambitious scenario, assuming warmingin
line with current policy measures, giving a sense of what
“business as usual” would mean for CMC.

Timeframe Short term: 2024-2025
Medium term: 2026-2035
Long term: 2036-2050

The world needs to halve emissions by 2030 in order
toreach net zero by 2050 and therefore limit the global
riseintemperature by 1.5°C above pre-industrial

levels by 2100.

Geographies Global with basic focus on Australasia and Europe/UK
as benchmark markets

As this was the first time the Group has conducted a
rigorous scenario analysis exercise, the focus has been
kept broad to identify significant areas of risk and inform
whether more tailored geographical focus is necessary
moving forward.
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TCFD continued

Strategy continued

Evaluating resilience with climate scenario analysis continued

These dimensions were mapped in 2023 to our climate risk register to help
focus the content of the scenarios to risks with higher ongoing risk ratings;
however, the focus of this exercise was kept broad to encompass the full
register of risks. Given there have been no significant changes to our locations
and products we are comfortable the mapping remains accurate.

Indoing so, we aimed to further enhance our understanding of the identified
risks. Using the revised climate risk assessment criteriaand as part of the
climate scenario exercise, we assessed each of our identified climate risks
across the short, medium and long term for each of the assessed scenarios,
as shownin the tables below.

Net Zero 2050

Key characteristics
Temperature: below 2°C

GDP:-3% by 2030 and -4% by 2050

Risk level: physical risks are relatively low, but transition risks
are higher

Policy implementation level:immediate and stringent but orderly
with low regional variation

Strategicimpact

Considering higher carbon prices, clientsinthe APAC & Canadaregion
may reduce trading on our investment platformas the economy adjusts
giventheregion'semphasis on heavy industry. Highinflation may also lead
toincreased staff overheads,and high interest rates may initially reduce
trading activitiesif cashis preferred as amore stable alternative tomarkets
initially. Initial periods of high volatility and market instability would likely have
apositiveimpact onthe Group's trading business.

Floods and storms
Physical risk
Heatwaves
Technology risk (energy)
Reputationrisk

Market risk
Litigation risk

Transitional risk

Investmentrisk

Cost of capital risk

Delayed Transition

e

Key characteristics

Temperature: below 2°C
— GDP:-2% by 2030 and -6% by 2050

Risk level: higher physical and transition risks over the medium
andlongterm

— Policy implementation level: delayed until 2030, then sudden, with
high regional variation

Strategicimpact

We would expect toincrease our need for liquidity in the medium term for
ourinstitutional businesses in anticipation of customers sittingoncash to
ride out a period of market volatility and uncertainty. Our trading business
would likely benefit fromincreased volatility in the marketplace.

Floods and storms
Physical risk
Heatwaves
Technology risk (energy)
Regulatory and compliance risk
Reputationrisk

Market risk
Litigation risk

Transitional risk

Investment risk
Cost of capital risk
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Key characteristics
— Temperature: +3°C

— GDP:-3% by 2030 and -8% by 2050 (up to-20% by 2100)
— Risklevel: substantial physical risks over the mediumand long term

— Policyimplementation level: low; assumes that only currently
implemented policies are preserved

Strategicimpact

Short-termimpact s likely to be limited. As physical climate stress
increases in the medium and longer term, the Group's technology
infrastructure could be increasingly exposed to heat-related stressin
particular. The Australian market would likely be exposed as dampening
GDP prospects decrease the appeal of the Group's investing platform.

Floods and storms

Physical risk
Heatwaves

Technology risk (energy)
Regulatory and compliance risk
Reputationrisk

Market risk

Litigation risk

Transitional risk

Investmentrisk

Cost of capital risk

Aworkshop was held comprised of the TCFD working group, a cross-functional
group of individuals representing senior team members. Each scenario was
presented and interrogated to assess the potential impacts on the Group’s
strategic resilience. Based on the resulting risk heat map, additional exercises
were devised for each of the three scenarios and tailored to the time periods
where our climate risk exposure was greatest for each scenario.

The Group’s trading business is unlikely to be negatively impacted and may
infact benefit from periods of volatility across the different scenarios. The
investing platform may experience more duress if sluggish markets and real
economy growthtranslate into less disposable income among our client base
ingeographies that are hitharder by physical and transition risks. APAC & Canada
has beenidentified as the region most likely to be impacted, according to

our desktop assessment of core geographies, and future scenario analysis
exercises will be tailored to this region to explore how these challenges may
unfold. Diversification of geographical exposure and client base was identified
as the fundamental mitigating action that can be taken to increase climate
resilience, a strategy already in place. Overall, we believe our strategy remains
resilientin all three scenarios, withimpacts likely to be negligible.

ey

Metrics and targets

We have made progress toimprove our data capabilities when it comes to
climate change and itsimpact on the environment. This year, we beganto
define our Scope 3 emissions working towards setting net zero goals and
willbe reviewing our options to align with the Science Based Targets initiative
("SBTi") in2024. Our first step to setting goals has been to obtain a better
understanding of the Group’s carbon profile. Information on our Scope 1,2 and
3datadefinition, our carbon accounting methodology and current carbon
profile can be found on page 40.

While we have made progress this year in assessing our climate risks through
the updates to our climate risk register and scenario analysis, we are not yet
ready to disclose metrics and targets related to these risks. We are quickly
progressing our understanding of the nature of these risks and their potential
impacts to our business; however, this process remains ongoing. Our focus
over FY25is toimprove the processesin place to collect dataand so provide
ameaningful basis for setting targets aligned to the level of risk this poses to
our business.
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Driving efficiencies
by leveraging our
scale to deliver
growth and margin
expansion
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The significant investment made across our
platforms over recent years, along with our
institutional first approach and focus on high
value retail clients, has resulted in strong
financial performance across our businesses.
Having reached the peak of our investment
cycle, our cost efficiency programme and
continued robust levels of growth will support an
expansion in profit margins in the years ahead.

| am delighted to announce
another year of strong financial
performance for CMC Markets.
Our net operating income has
reached arecord level for the
Group, excluding the exceptional
circumstances of the COVID-19
affected 2021, and this
achievement is a testament to
the dedication and hard work

of our team, as well as the
successful execution of our
strategic vision, which continue
to drive our progress. We are
very enthusiastic about the
future prospects of our
business as we gointo 2025.”

Albert Soleiman
Chief Financial Officer
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Summary
Net operatingincome of £332.8 million increased by £44.4 million (15%) compared to 2023. This performance was driven by a strong performance in our trading
businessinH2,and a 152% increase ininterestincome, largely as a result of higher global interest rates on client and own cash balances.

Adjusted operating expenses, including variable remuneration, of £267.2 million increased by £33.3 million (14%), primarily due to higher staff costs and an
impairment of £12.3 million mainly relating to internally developed platforms for the UK Invest and cash equities offerings. Adjusted operating expensesis an
alternative performance measure that includes impairment of intangible assets, areconciliation to the primary statements is provided on page 180.

Thisresulted in a statutory profit before tax of £63.3 million (2023: £52.2 million) and PBT margin of 19.0%, up from 18.1%in the prior year.

Summary income statement

2024 2023 Change Change
£m £m £m %
Net operatingincome 332.8 2884 44.4 15%
Adjusted operating expenses (267.2) (233.9) (33.3) (14%)
Operating profit 65.6 545 111 20%
Loss on share of associates (0.3) — (0.3) —
Finance costs (2.0) (2.3) 0.3 16%
Profit before taxation 63.3 522 111 21%
PBT margin' 19.0% 18.1% 0.9%pts =
Profit after tax 46.9 414 515 13%
2024 2023 Change Change
Pence Pence Pence %
Basic EPS 16.7 147 20 14%
Ordinary dividend per share? 8.3 74 0.9 12%
1 Statutory profit before tax as a percentage of net operating income.
2 Ordinary dividends paid/proposed relating to the financial year, based on issued share capital as at 31 March of each financial year.
Net operating income overview
2024 2023 Change
£m £m %
Trading netrevenue 259.1 2331 1%
Investing net revenue (excl. interestincome) 34.0 379 (10%)
Netrevenue' 293.1 271.0 8%
Interestincome 35.0 13.9 152%
Other operatingincome 4.7 815 34%
Net operatingincome 332.8 288.4 15%

1 CFDand spread bet revenue net of rebates and levies, and stockbroking revenue net of rebates.

The components of the presentation above are alternative performance measures, areconciliation to the primary statements is provided on page 180.
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Trading performance overview

2024 2023 Change

£m £m %

Trading net revenue (£m) 259.1 2331 11%
Trading revenue per active client (£) £4,685 £3,968 18%

Trading net revenue increased by £26.0 million, representing an 11% increase against the prior year due to a strong second half performance, driving anincrease
inrevenue per active client of £717 (18%) to £4,685. Revenue per active client was arecord high level, reflecting the growing proportion of trading volumes
generated by high-value, institutional clients.

Investing performance overview

2024 2023 Change %
Net Net Net
revenue Active revenue Active revenue Active
£m clients’ £m clients' £m clients
B2C 244 168,760 14.6 125,326 67% 35%
B2B 9.6 42,816 233 92,984 (59%) (54%)
Total 340 211,576 379 218,310 (10%) (3%)

1 ANZcustomers are classified as B2B prior to integration in March 2023. Post-integration, they are managed as CMC Retail customers and classified as B2C.

Investing net revenue was 10% lower at £34.0 million (FY23: £37.9 million), primarily driven by a £2.9 million unfavourable FX movement from a weaker
Australian dollar. Underlying performance on a constant currency basis was 3% lower than the prior year, as weaker domestic trading was largely offset by
stronger international trading and the introduction of cash crypto trading for retail customers, with the second half of the year seeing stronger trading activities,
particularly in Q4.

Interestincome

Interestincome increased by £21.1 million, representing a 152% increase, to £35.0 million driven by elevated base rates and higher cash balances for both own
funds and clien funds.

The majority of the Group’s interest income is earned through our segregated client deposits in our UK, Australia and New Zealand business. Our investing
business generated 31% of the Group's interest income, with 69% being generated in our trading business. The Group continually monitors its returns on both
own and segregated client deposits to ensure optimal returns.

Expenses
Total costsincreased by £33.3 million (14%) to £269.5 million.
2024 2023 Change
£m £m %
Net staff costs —fixed (excluding variable remuneration) 100.8 84.9 (19%)
IT costs 39.7 337 (18%)
Marketing costs 311 323 4%
Sales-related costs 4.5 6.0 25%
Premises costs 6.7 57 (17%)
Legal and professional fees 13.9 8.6 (62%)
Regulatory fees 4.3 94 54%
Depreciation and amortisation’ 27.4 15.6 (75%)
Irrecoverable sales tax 5.5 3.0 (97%)
Other 15.6 18.0 14%
Adjusted operating expenses excluding variable remuneration 249.5 217.2 (15%)
Variable remuneration 17.7 16.7 (6%)
Adjusted operating expenses including variable remuneration 267.2 2339 (14%)
Losson share of associates 0.3 — —
Interest 2.0 258 16%
Total costs 269.5 236.2 (14%)

1 Includingimpairment of intangible assets
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Net staff costs

Net staff costs, including variable remuneration, increased £16.9 million (17%) to £118.5 million. This was driven by the annualisation of higher headcount levels for
much of the year, along with increases in gross pay within certain areas of the business to ensure the Group continues to remunerate staff in line with market rates
toassist talent retention within the organisation, as well as the higher termination benefits resulting from the reduction in global headcount.

Variable remunerationincreased in light of the strong financial performance in the year.

2024 2023 Change
£m £m %
Gross staff costs, excluding variable remuneration 110.7 929 (19%)
Performance-related pay 14.9 14.5 (3%)
Share-based payments 2.8 2.2 (24%)
Total employee costs 128.4 109.6 (17%)
Contract staff costs 17 31 45%
Net capitalisation (11.6) (11.9) 5%
Net staff costs 118.5 101.6 (17%)

Depreciation and amortisation costs
Depreciation and amortisation have increased by £11.8 million (75%) to £27.4 million, primarily due to the impairment of internally developed trading platforms for
the UK Invest platform and cash equities offerings.

Sales-related costs
Sales-related costs decreased by £1.5 million (25%) to £4.5 million driven by lower transactional costs in Invest Australia as a result of the lower volumes traded by
clients,and lower levels of promotional and compensation payments.

Marketing costs
Marketing costs reduced to £31.1 million, down 4%, reflective of the more targeted approach we have taken with regard to marketing spendin the last year as we
have focused our attention on product development and expansion across our platforms.

IT costs
IT costsincreased by £6.0 million (18%) to £39.7 million, primarily as a result of our expanded product offering, higher software costs and anincrease in market
data costs. Inflationary pressures in light of the wider global environment also contributed significantly to these costincreases.

Legal & Professional fees
Legal and professional fees increased by £5.3 million (62%), primarily driven by anincrease in project related consultancy fees, along with smaller increasesin
legaland audit fees.

Regulatory fees
Regulatory fees decreased by £5.1 million (54%) primarily as aresult of alower FSCS levy.

Premises costs
Premises costsincreased £1.0 million (17%) due to higher utility costs, service charges and additional rent costs driven by the new office in Dubai, partially offset by
lower rates.

Irrecoverable Sales Tax
Irrecoverable sales tax increased by £2.5 million (97%) mainly due to anon-recurring VAT refund received in the prior year.

Other expenses
Other expenses decreased by £2.4 million (14%) mainly due to lower recruitment fees as a result of the high level of new hires in the prior year.

Taxation
The effective tax rate for 2024 was 26.0%, up from the 2023 effective tax rate, which was 20.6%. This increase in the effective tax rate was mainly due to the
increase inthe UK corporate tax rate.

Profit after tax for the year
Theincrease in profit after tax for the year of £5.5 million (13%) was due to higher levels of net operating income being partially offset by anincrease in expenses,
including the one-off impairment charge and non-recurring costs relating to the global headcount reduction.
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Dividend

Dividends of £13.7 million were paid during the year (2023: £35.0 million), with
£10.9 million relating to a final dividend for the prior year paidin August 2023,
and £2.8 millionrelating to aninterim dividend paid in January 2024 relating to
currentyear performance. The Group has proposed a final ordinary dividend
of 7.30 pence per share (2023: 3.90 pence per share).

Non-statutory summary Group balance sheet

2024 2023
£m £m
Intangible assets 28.9 35.3
Property, plant and equipment 15.3 141
Net lease liability (3.0) (2.7)
Fixed assets 41.2 467
Cashandcashequivalents 160.3 146.2
Netamounts due from brokers 221.9 179.2
Financial investments 50.9 30.6
Other assets 12.3 20
Net derivative financial instruments - 11
Title transfer funds (119.6) (49.4)
Own funds 325.8 309.7
Working capital 31.4 8.2
Net tax receivable / (payable) (0.2) 8.6
Investment inassociates 24 —
Deferredtax net asset 2.9 0.8
Net assets 403.5 374.0

The table above is a non-statutory view of the Group Balance Sheet and line names do not necessarily
have their statutory meanings. For the relevant line names, a reconciliation to the primary statements can
be found on page 180 in the 2024 Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Fixed assets
Intangible assets decreased by £6.4 million to £28.9 million (2023: £35.3 million)
whichis predominantly aresult of the impairment charges.

Own funds

Net amounts due from brokers relate to cash held at brokers either for initial
margin or balances in excess of this for cash management purposes. The
increase in client trading exposures throughout the year, particularly in equities
and bullion, resulted inincreases in holdings at brokers for hedging purposes.

Cashand cash equivalents have increased during the year primarily as a
result of anincrease in non-segregated balances and operating cash inflow.
Financialinvestments mainly relate to UK government securities and short-
termfinancial investments.

Title transfer funds increased by £70.2 million, which reflects high levels of
account funding by a small population of mainly institutional clients.
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Working capital

The £28.2 millionincrease in working capital requirements year on year is
primarily the result of movements in stockbroking receivable and payables
arising fromclients trading yet to settle at the period end.

Net tax receivable
Taxmoved to abroadly flat position due to the utilisation of receivables
during the year.

Deferred tax net asset
Deferred net tax assetsincreased to £2.9 million over the period, due toa true
up of deferred taxin the UK.

Impact of climate risk

We have assessed the impact of climate risk on our balance sheet and have
concluded that there is no materialimpact on the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2024.

Regulatory capital resources

The Group andits UK regulated subsidiaries fallinto scope of the FCA's
Investment Firms Prudential Regime (“IFPR”), with the Group’s German
subsidiary, CMC Markets Germany GmbH, subject to the provisions of the
Investment Firms Regulation and Directive ("IFR/IFD”).

The Group's total capital resources increased to £340.1 million (2023: £326.8
million) withincreases in retained earnings for the year being partly offset

by the proposed final dividend distribution. In accordance with the IFPR all
deferred tax assets must now be fully deducted from common equity tier 1
capital (‘CET1capital”).

At 31March 2024 the Group had a total OFR ratio of 312%, down from 369%in
2023. Thisisaresult of anincrease in own fund requirements to £109.0 million
(2023:£88.6 million).

The following table summarises the Group’s capital adequacy position at the
year end. The Group's approach to capital management is described in note
30inthe 2024 Annual Report and Financial Statements.

2024 2023

£m £m

CET1capital' 383.1 3631
Less:intangibles and net deferred tax assets? (43.0) (36.3)

Total capital resources after relevant deductions 340.1 326.8

Own funds requirements (‘OFR”)? 109.0 88.6

Total OFR ratio (%)* 312%  369%

1 Totalaudited capital resources as at the end of the financial year of £403.5 million, less proposed dividends.

2 Inaccordance with the IFPR, all deferred tax assets must be fully deducted from CET1 capital.
Deferred tax assets are the net of assets and liabilities shown in note 14 of the 2024 Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

3 Theminimum capital requirement in accordance with MIFIDPRU 4.3.

4 The OFRratio represents CET1capital as a percentage of OFR.
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Liquidity
The Group has access to the following sources of liquidity that make up total
available liquidity:

— Own funds: The primary source of liquidity for the Group. It represents
the funds that the business has generated historically, including any
unrealised gains/losses on open hedging positions. Allcash held on
behalf of segregated clientsis excluded. Own funds consist mainly of cash
and cash equivalents. They alsoinclude investments in UK government
securities, short-term financial investments, amounts due from brokers
and amounts receivable/payable on the Group’s derivative financial
instruments. For more details refer to note 30 of the 2024 Annual Report
and Financial Statements.

— Title transfer funds (“TTFs”): This represents funds received from
professional clients and eligible counterparties (as defined in the FCA
Handbook) that are held under aftitle transfer collateral agreement
("“TTCA"),ameans by which a professional client or eligible counterparty
may agree that full ownership of such funds is unconditionally transferred
to the Group. The Group does not require clients to signa TTCAin order
tobe treated as a professional client and as a result their funds remain
segregated. The Group considers these funds as anancillary source
of liquidity.

The Group also has access to acommitted facility of up to £55.0 million which
is available to fund margins required to be posted at brokers to support the
trading business. The facility consists of a one-year term facility of £27.5
million (2023: £27.5 million) and a three-year term facility of £27.5 million (2023:
£27.5million). The maximum amount of the facility available at any one time

is dependent upon the initial margin requirements at brokers and margin
received from clients. There was no drawdown on the facility as at 31 March
2024 (2023: £nil).

The Group's use of total available liquidity resources consists of:

— Blocked cash: Amounts held for operational purposes to meet the
requirements of local regulators and exchanges, in addition to liquidity in
subsidiaries inexcess of local segregated client requirements to meet
potential future client requirements.

— Initial margin requirement at broker: The total GBP equivalent initial
margin required by prime brokers to cover the Group's hedge derivative and
cryptocurrency positions.

Ownfunds haveincreased by £16.1million to £325.8 million (2023:£309.7 million).

2024 2023
£m £m
Own funds 325.8 309.7
Title transfer funds 119.6 494
Total available liquidity 4454 3591
Less:blocked cash (68.5) (68.8)
Less:initial margin requirement at broker (184.7) (106.)
Net available liquidity 192.2 184.2

Financial statements Shareholder information

Client money

Total segregated client money held by the Group for trading clients was £517.6
million at 31 March 2024 (2023: £549.4 million). Client money represents

the capacity for our clients to trade and offers an underlying indication of the
health of our clientbase.

Client money governance

The Group segregates allmoney and assets held by it on behalf of clients
excluding a small number of clients which have entered a TTCA with the firm.
Thisisinaccordance with, applicable client money regulations in countries
inwhichit operates. The majority of client money requirements fall under

the Client Assets Sourcebook (‘CASS”) rules of the FCA inthe UK, BaFinin
Germany and ASICin Australia. All segregated client funds are held in client
money bank accounts with major banks that meet strict internal criteriaand
are held separately from the Group’s own money.

The Group has comprehensive client money processes and proceduresin
place to ensure client money is identified and protected at the earliest possible
point after receipt as wellas governance structures which ensure such
activities are effective in protecting client money. The Group’s governance
structure is explained further on pages 75 to 82 of the 2024 Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

Viability statement

The Directors of the Company have considered the Group’s current financial
positionand future prospects and are confident that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and meetits liabilities as they fall due over the period of
the assessment. Inreaching this conclusion, both the prospects and viability
considerations have been assessed.

Long-term prospects

The Group has invested significantly inrecent years in product development
todeliver future revenue diversification. This investment has culminated in
strong progress being made on strategic initiatives during the year with the
release of the Invest Singapore platform, as well as cash equities and Options
products being launched on the Next Generation platform, all of which are
expected to support the growth and revenue diversification in upcoming
years along with the ongoing growth and improvement in monetisation of our
institutional offering. These releases represent the peak of this investment
cycle, with the Group taking action to reduce the cost base as announcedin
February 2024 which will support profit margin expansionin the medium term.
On this basis, the Group maintains its belief that it will continue to generate
sufficient cash to support operations.
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Viability statement continued

Long-term prospects continued

Conservative expectations of future business prospects through delivery
ofthe Group strategy (see pages 18 and 19 of the 2024 Annual Report and

Financial Statements) are presented to the Board through the budget process.

The annual budget process consists of a detailed bottom-up process witha
12-month outlook whichinvolves input from all relevant functional and regional
heads. Thisincludes a collection of resource assumptions required to deliver
the Group strategy and associated revenue impacts with consideration of
key risks. Thisis used in conjunction with external assumptions suchas a
region-by-region review of the regulatory environment and incorporation

of any anticipated regulatory changes, revenue modelling, market volatility,
interest rates and industry growth that could materially impact the business.
The process also covers liquidity and capital planning and, in addition to

the granular budget, a three-year outlook is prepared using assumptions
onindustry growth, the effects of regulatory change, revenue growth from
strategic initiatives and investment required to support growth. The budget
was reviewed and approved by the Board at the March 2024 Board meeting.
The process for ongoing review and monitoring of risks is outlined in the Risk
Management section of the 2024 Annual Report and Financial Statements
(pages 59 to 68). The Board approved budget is then used to set targets
across the Group.

The Directors concluded that three years is an appropriate period over which
to provide a viability statement as this is the longest period over which the
Board reviews the success of Group strategic projections and this timeline is
also aligned with the period over which internal stress testing occurs.
Viability

The Group performs regular stress testing scenarios. Available liquidity

and capital adequacy are central to understanding the Group’s viability and
stress scenarios, such as adverse market conditions and adverse regulatory
change, and are considered in the Group’s Internal Capital Adequacy and
Risk Assessment (ICARA") document, which is shared with the FCA on
request. The results of the stress testing showed that, due to the robustness
of the business, the Group would be able to withstand scenarios, including
combined scenarios across multiple principal risks, over the financial planning
period by taking management actions that have been identified within the
scenario stress tests.
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The Group's revenue, whichis driven by client transaction fees and interest
income on both own and client funds, has seenincreases resulting from the
monetisation of client trading activity and the annualised impact of increases
inglobal interest rates during the prior year, despite lower overall active

client numbers. Projections of the Group's revenue have included revenue
benefits from new product releases over the three-year period, which will
serve to reduce risks to the Group’s viability as aresult of increased revenue
diversity. Inaddition, conservative estimates of market volatility were assumed
for the current businesses over the three-year period. Projections also
include assumptions oninterest rates that are derived from central bank rate
forecasts, where available. No significant changes to regulatory capitaland
liquidity requirements have been assumed over the forecasting period.

Inaddition to considering the above, the Group also monitors performance
against pre-defined budget expectations and risk indicator, which provide
early warning to the Board, allowing management action to be taken where
required including the assessment of new opportunities.

The Directors have noreason to believe that the Group willnot be viable over a
longer period, given existing and known future changes to relevant regulations.

Going concern

The Group satisfies its ongoing working capital requirements throughiits
available liquid assets. The Group's liquid assets exclude any funds held in
segregated client money accounts. In assessing whether itis appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements,
the Directors considered the resilience of the Group, taking account of its
liquidity positionand cash generation, the adequacy of capital resources,
the availability of external credit facilities and the associated financial
covenants, stress testing of liquidity and capital adequacy that take into
account the principal risks faced by the business. Further details of these
principal risks and how they are mitigated and managed are documentedin
the Risk Management section on page 59 of the 2024 Annual Reportand
Financial Statements.

Having given due consideration to the nature of the Group's business, and
risks emerging or becoming more prominent, the Directors consider that the
Company and the Group are going concerns and the Financial Statements
are prepared onthat basis.

i

Albert Soleiman
Chief Financial Officer
20 June 2024
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Risk management

Our Risk Management Framework enables
a consistent approach to the identification,
mitigation and management of risks, which is Board

. . . . . Ultimately responsible for defining risk appetite,
essential to achieve our strategic objectives. risk strategy and the evaluation of the adequacy

The Group's business activities naturally exposeit to strategic, financial and ofour riskframewgrk. Achieved through
operational risks which are inherent in the nature of the businessit undertakes Board sub-committees.

and the financial, market and regulatory environments in which it operates.

The Group recognises the importance of understanding and managing Executive Committees

these risks and that it cannot place a cap or limit on all of the risks to which
itis exposed. However, effective risk management ensures that risks are
managed to an acceptable level.

Responsible for execution of Board's risk strategy
including risk appetite and management of our
key risks.

Toassist the Board in discharging its responsibilities, it hasin place an
Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM”) framework to support identification,

mitigation and management of risk exposures in line with the Group's risk Second line and

appetite. The Group regularly reviews the ERM framework, risk tooling control functions

and resources to ensure they remain effective to support the achievement The second lineis responsible, with support
of the Group’s strategic objectives andin line with market practices and from certain control functions, for oversight
regulatory expectations. and advice. The second line comprises the

risk management function (including financial,
liquidity and operational risk), compliance and
financial crime. Legal, finance, data privacy and
security functions are also considered to provide
control function activities within the Group.

There have beenanumber of improvements to the ERM framework during
the year including enhancements to risk monitoring and reporting, and

the consequent risk mitigation strategies. There have also been some
organisational changes, to better align our people to the needs of the Group.

The Board, throughits Group Risk Committee, is ultimately responsible for
the implementation of an appropriate risk strategy and the main areas whichiit
encompassesare:

Firstline business functions
Responsible for identification, assessment

- ideptifying, evalugting and monitoring the principal and emerging risks to and management of risks. Includes the design,
whichthe Groupis exposed; implementation and monitoring of suitable

— implementing the risk appetite of the Board in order to achieve its strategic controls, issue management, KRIs and risk
objectives;and appetite reporting.

— establishingand maintaining governance, policies, systems and controls
toensure the Group is operating within the stated risk appetite.

Risk management is acknowledged to be a core responsibility of all
colleagues at CMC and the oversight of risk and controls management is
provided by Management and Board Committees as well as the Group risk
and compliance functions.

The Group's ERM framework is designed to manage rather than eliminate
risk, inline with risk appetite, and follows the “three lines” model to ensure clear
risk ownership and accountability. Risk management and the implementation
of controls are the responsibility of the business teams which constitute the
firstline. Oversight and guidance are provided primarily by the Group’s risk
and compliance functions which constitute the secondline, and third line
independent assurance is provided by the Group’s internal audit function.

The Board hasimplemented a governance structure whichis appropriate

for the operations of an online financial services group andis aligned to the
delivery of the Group's strategic objectives and product offering. The structure
isregularly reviewed and monitored, and any changes are subject to Board
approval. Furthermore, management considers root cause analysis to drive
resilientimprovements to processes and procedures and to embed good
corporate governance throughout the Group.

The Board undertakes arobust assessment of the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal controls and reviews principal risks, emerging risks
andrisk appetite on at least anannual basis.
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The Group's risk appetite is an articulation of the nature and type of risks that
the Groupis willing to accept, or wants to avoid, in order to achieve its business
objectives and strategy. This processis assessed as part of the Board's review
of the Group's Risk Appetite Statement (‘RAS”), which is a unified view of

the Group's risk appetites and tolerances. It isimportant that the integrated
risk appetite remains in line with business strategy to support the Group’s
strategic objectives. Risk appetite plays a key partin the Group’s risk, capital
and liquidity management, with the setting of risk appetites being an essential
element in achieving effective risk control across the Group and achieving
positive client outcomes.

The Board has carried out an assessment of the emerging and principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency, or liquidity. In FY23 we determined that climate
change was anemerging risk based on a climate risk assessment which
concluded that critical thresholds are not likely to be breached. Given the
criteria supporting that assessment have remained unchangedin FY24 we
are comfortable that climate change risk remains an emerging risk. More
informationis available within the TCFD report on pages 42 to 51.

The principal risks reported here are those attracting the greatest focus, and
towhich the Group has the largest exposure. The principal risks are linked to
risk appetite and key risk indicator (“KRI”) measures for reporting. In assessing
allrisks, CMC considers the reputational impacts of risks materialising and
theimpacts onits clients of negative publicity, and risks to the achievement of
business objectives. The following top principal risks were considered; their
managementis set outin the principal risks, and they are:

— Regulatory and compliance risk: the Group is exposed to a significant
number of different regulations and legislation, which continues to expand
inline with our global footprint. During the year the most significant change
was the successfulimplementation of the FCA Consumer Duty. Looking
forward the key changes on the horizon include the introduction of new
Digital Operational Resilience Act (‘DORA"). Enhancements within our
business change governance processes mean that regulatory projects
within the Group are appropriately prioritised to ensure compliance and
ongoing process improvement. We are actively managing a number of
audit findings in our German subsidiary.
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— Information and data security risk: cyber-criminal activity continues to
increase in sophistication, severity and frequency and attacks in the form
of ransomware and Distributed Denial of Service (‘DDoS") are particularly
relevant for the Group given the online nature of the business. Dedicated
specialistin house IT security resource, strong partnerships with leading
security vendors and continued improvement ininternal controls and
governance help to mitigate the risk for CMC and its clients.

— Business changerisk: as we continue to grow the business and implement
strategic change, project delivery risk naturally becomes heightened.
During the year a number of projects, including the launch ofanew OTC
Options product, have concluded, reducing the pressure on the business.
Prioritisation of projects and the establishment of delivery pillars with
ring-fenced resources have helped maintain dedicated resource pools
and allocations to strategic projects.

— Peoplerisk: our people are the key to delivering on our purpose and
strategy. Failure in our ability to attract and retain key talent puts at risk
our strategic delivery and slows our velocity and our ability to maintain
our high service standards. There have been organisational changes
during the year to align our resource needs to the scale and priorities of
the Group, resulting in areduction of the globalheadcount. This has been
primarily achieved by merging support functions across multiple business
lines, streamlining reporting lines and automating processes. Key people
metrics continue to be closely monitored as we still face anumber of
market headwinds.

Further information on the structure and workings of the Board and
Management Committeesis included in the Corporate governance report.
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Principal risks

Business and strategic risks

Financial statements Shareholder information

Strategic Risk

Key risk description

Strategicrisk is the potential threat the Group

could face that could affect its ability to perform and
executeits business strategy. Itincludes risks that
canresult from decisions made by the Board of
Directors concerning the products or the services
the Group provides.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMCis exposedto, and has appetite for, strategic
risk through the definition or execution of our
strategic initiatives where there is the risk of failing to
successfully deliver what we set out to achieve.

As part of our strategic risk, CMC is exposed to
potential damage to our brand and reputation with
the market, clients and regulators. Failure to manage
reputational risks will have a significantimpact on our
ability toimplement our strategic plan.

During the year, enhanced focus on our key strategic
priorities has strengthened how we deliver on our
strategic goals.

Financial risks

Market Risk

Key mitigations and controls
We remain within our appetite by taking the following actions:

Robust governance, challenge and oversight from independent Non-Executive Directors
Ensuring significant new initiatives align to the corporate strategy
Assessing the risks associated with strategic initiatives

Establishing accountable owners to ensure successful delivery of initiatives and appropriate risk
mitigations are in place

Ensuring all material products and strategic initiatives go through the product governance
process with approval by the Board

Key risk description

Therisk that the value of our residual portfolio will
decrease due to changesinmarket risk factors. The
three standard market risk factors are price moves,
interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC is exposed to financial risks due to the nature

of our business as an online trading provider for
various products. We act as a principal to our clients,
predominantly across CFD and spread bet trades,
exposing us to a substantial amount of market risk and
liquidity risk.

We have appetite to retain some market risk, balanced
with low appetite for liquidity and capital risk.

Key mitigations and controls
We remain within our appetite by taking the following actions:

Trading risk management monitors and manages the exposures it inherits from clients on areal-
time basis and in accordance with Board-approved appetite

The Group predominantly acts as a market maker in linear, highly liquid financial instruments in
whichit can easily reduce market risk exposure throughits prime broker arrangements. This
significantly reduces the Group's revenue sensitivity to individual asset classes and instruments

Financial risk management runs stress scenarios on the residual portfolio, comprising a number
of single and combined Company-specific and market-wide events in order to assess potential
financial and capital adequacy impacts to ensure the Group can withstand severe moves inthe
risk drivers to whichitis exposed

Implementation of aggregate stop loss level at global and asset class level to mitigate the impact
of extreme market shocks

Monitoring the cost of funding requirements from a liquidity perspective where we are actively
managing market risk
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Principal risks continued

Financial risks continued

Liquidity Risk

Key risk description

Therisk that there is insufficient liquidity available to
meet the liabilities of the Group as they fall due or can
only secure required liquidity at excessive cost.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMCis exposed to Liquidity Risk through our
principal business, in particular our payments (margin
calls) to prime brokers to effect our hedging strategies,
and when there are unfunded commitmentsin the
matched principal business (e.g. failed settlements) or
obligations to lodge margins with central counterparty
clearing house to cover client cash and derivative
trading obligations.

We have low appetite for liquidity risk and during the
year we have continued to develop our framework,
whichincludes the implementation of arevised stress
testing model.

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to and impacts of liquidity risk by:

Principal:

— Modelling our liquidity requirements on a forward-looking basis both under normal conditions as
wellas under stress conditions to ensure the Group can meet its obligations

Maintaining adequate amounts of unencumbered, high quality liquid assets and diversified
funding sources

Establishing a liquidity facility to draw on if needed with appropriate analysis and modelling

Arranging contingency funding levers in certain scenarios up to and including orderly wind down

Monitoring market conditions to ensure the liquidity impact of significant market moves aligned to
client positionsis able to be met

Matched Principal and Exchange traded:
— Weonly offer assets that are liquid as determined by our asset suitability assessment

— Producing daily cash position reports that show surplus liquidity, unencumbered liquidity and
short-term forecasts

— Perform stress testing to ensure the Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its ongoing business
requirements under normal conditions as well as periods of stress (forecast for 15 months)

Credit and Counterparty Risk

Key risk description
Therisk of losses arising from a counterparty failing to
meetits obligations as they fall due.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMCis exposedto creditand counterparty risk from
its clients as well as from the financial institutions with
whichit operates.

We have limited appetite for credit and counterparty
risk, which we manage through our mitigants
and controls.

2023 saw a banking crisis in the US with the collapse
of several regional banks. Although CMC was not
impacted by these events, credit risk exposure
management continues to be a focus, and over the
year we have made significantimprovements to our
stress testing modelling.

62 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024

Key mitigations and controls
We manage our exposure to credit risk by:

— Applying sufficient margins, including a tiered margin structure, to manage positions that are
deemed riskier

— Utilising our liquidation feature to reduce exposure when the client total equity falls below a pre-
defined percentage of the required margin for the portfolio held

— Guaranteed stop loss orders allow clients to remove their chance of debt from their position(s)

— Settinglimits and utilising our potential credit risk exposure models to stress and quantify
counterparty client credit risk exposure across CFDs and Spreadbet

— Reviewing credit worthiness of the counterparties at least annually

— Managing our exposure to concentration risk with external hedge counterparties such as PBs,
where we have at least two per asset class

— Seeking to work with counterparties that hold investment grade credit rating, setting limits and
monitoring exposures daily

— Establishing intermediary limits and monitoring them daily to report and escalate
large exposures
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Insurance Risk

Key mitigations and controls
We mitigate our exposure by:

Key risk description

Risk of failure ininsurance for risks and perils that
theinsurance company has agreed to provide
indemnity for.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC s exposed toinsurance risk where we have
aninsurable risk event thatis either notincludedin
Group insurance or where the insurance provider has
justifiable reason to not pay out on the event.

We have limited appetite for insurance risk. Due to
uncertainties associated with cryptoinsurance that
affects the cost of insurance, the Group does not
include crypto within our insurance.

Operational risks

Use of areputable insurance broker which ensures cover is placed with financially
secureinsurers

Adhering to rigorous claim management procedures with our brokers
Operating arisk-based approach to identify insurable risks across relevant departments

Fullengagement with relevant business areas regarding risk and coverage requirements and
related disclosure to brokers and insurers

Operational Risk is an expected consequence of normal business operations. Itis not possible, or effective, to eliminate all risks that are inherent in our activities,
S0 we minimise our exposure to these risks through implementation of robust controls. We strive to always comply with applicable regulations and legislation.

Business Disruption and Resilience

Key risk description
Risk of inability to maintain and restore essential
functions of the business.

Risk exposure and appetite

Our extensive use of a wide range of technology,
people and third-party providers, as well as our
physical presence across the globe, exposes us toa
variety of internal and external events that can cause
business disruption. This ranges from cyber attacks
and technology failures to human errors and physical
damage to our facilities that canimpact on our ability
to deliverimportant business services to clients.

We have low appetite for business disruption and
resilience and implement strong monitoring and
controls to ensure we continue to deliver services
toour clients. During the year we have faced both
voluntary and involuntary staff turnover whichis now
stable following management action. This has been
noted as akey risk inthe Risk Management Report;
ongoing process developments will further reduce
the potentialimpact of underlying drivers.

Key mitigations and controls
We limit our exposure to business disruption by:

Multiple data centres and systems to ensure core business activities and processes are resilient
toindividual failures

Periodic testing of business continuity processes and disaster recovery

Clear identification of our critical business services with defined impact tolerances for each
critical business service

Ensuring an effective contingency planisin place, including where we have key person
dependencies for critical business activities and functions

Implementing a consistent and Group-wide approach to the reporting and management of
incidents, in line with our Incident Management Policy and Group Crisis Communication Manual

Developing overarching strategies to recover fromincidents and ensuring senior management is
sufficiently knowledgeable and prepared in case of anincident
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Principal risks continued

Operational risks continued

Internal Fraud

Key risk description

Therisk of fraud attempted or perpetrated by an
internal party (or parties) against our organisation, our
customers or our suppliers, including instances where
anemployeeis acting in collusion with external parties.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC is exposed tointernal fraud risks where
employees have access to systems and physical/
electronic assets belonging to CMC or access to
client dataand assets.

We have no appetite for fraud and will take prompt
actionifit does occur.

External Fraud

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to internal fraud risk by:

— Establishing a stringent screening processes and background checks when on boarding new
employees as well as adhering to local screening requirements within the geographies we
operatein

— Detecting unauthorised trading through trade surveillance reports to preventinternal trade
manipulation

— Segregating payment system administration, payment creation and payment authorisation to
preventinternal payment fraud

— Promptidentification and investigation of fraud cases such that any harm done to clients can be
effectively remediated

Key risk description

Therisk of fraud attempted or perpetrated against our
organisation or our customers, by an external party
(i.e.aparty without a direct relationship to the Group)
without the involvement of an employee or affiliate of
the organisation.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMCis exposedto fraudsters due to our large
online presence as afinancial organisation. Our
engagement with multiple third parties also exposes
us to external fraud risk where third parties could
potentially engage in fraudulent activity.

We have no appetite for fraud and will take prompt
actionifitdoes occur.

Physical Security and Safety

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to external fraud risk by:

— Timely reporting and escalation of fraud cases to internal and external stakeholders to support
therecovery of losses

— Ensuring we only do business with suitable third parties that can operate appropriate controls
against the risk of fraud

— Promptidentification and investigation of fraud cases such that any harm done to clients can be
effectively remediated

Key risk description

Therisk of damage or theft to the Group’s physical
assets, clientassets, or public assets, for which the
Groupis liable, andinjury to the Group's employees
or affiliates.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC is exposed to physical security and safety risk
inall locations where we have a physical presence,
where either our employees, physical assets, or data
assetsreside.

We have low appetite for material loss or damage to any
firmor client assets, including employees or affiliates.
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Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to physical security and safety risks by:

— Implementing layers of security including physical access controls across our office locations to
prohibit unauthorised access

Implementing additional authorisation controls for buildings with more sensitive assets, suchasa
two-factor security measure for access to our data centres

Implementing health and safety assessments, including regulatory risk assessments,
occupational health assessments and fire drills

— Regular mandatory employee health and safety online training
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Financial Crime

Key risk description

Therisk of money laundering, terrorist financing,
sanctions violations, bribery and corruption, and
KYC failure.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC is exposed to financial crimerisk as we are
afinancial institution holding and processing a
significant volume of client confidential information
including client money and client assets. We are
exposed to the risk of money laundering as we
deal with abroad range of clients and some of

our relationships with clients are short term.

We have low appetite for instances of Financial Crime
andimplement preventative and detective controls
tomitigate any potential exposure. To ensure we

stay within our risk appetite, we are improving some
monitoring processes and investingin people and
systemenhancements.

Key mitigations and controls
We mitigate our exposure to financial crime risk by:

Establishing and maintaining risk- based Know Your Customer (‘KYC”) procedures, including
Enhanced Due Diligence (‘EDD”) for those customers presenting higher risk, such as Politically
Exposed Persons (‘PEPSs”)

Establishing and maintaining risk-based systems for surveillance and procedures to monitor
ongoing customer activity

Improving procedures for reporting suspicious activity internally and to the relevant law
enforcement authorities or regulators as appropriate

Improving procedures relating to mitigation of risk derived from clients that are repeat offenders
of marketabuse

Maintaining a restricted list of individuals andlegal entities for which an account should not be opened

Risk classifying customers or entities during onboarding, allowing us to evaluate the risks
associated with each new account

Implementing appropriate systems and controls for transaction monitoring to identify and block
transactions that breach regulatory guidelines and violate applicable sanctions laws

Training and awareness for allemployees

Information Security and Data Privacy

Key risk description

Therisk of information security incidents, including
theloss, theft, misuse of or unauthorised access to
data/ information; this covers all types of data, e.g.,
client data, employee data, and the organisation’'s
proprietary data, and can include the failure to comply
with rules concerning information security.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC is exposed to information security and data
privacy risk where we hold large amounts of data
electronically and in paper form that is confidential,
highly confidential or sensitive, including personally
identifiable information (“PII”).

We have low appetite for loss or misuse of client,
employee or firm confidential information and minimise
exposure through robust preventative controls.

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to information security and data privacy risks by:

Only storing data that is necessary and only for the purpose that is needed

Access controls based around least privileged access to ensure everyone can only access
information that they require

Information classification to ensure datais accurately classified and appropriately controlled
Physical security controls to prevent unauthorised access to buildings and sensitive area

Implementing regular system access reviews across the business

Technology Risk

Key risk description
Therisk associated with the failure or outage of
systems, including hardware, software and networks.

Risk exposure and appetite
CMCis exposedto extensive technology risk as a
result of being a fintech company.

We have low appetite for failure or outage in our
systems and minimise exposure through robust
preventative and detective controls.

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise exposure to technology risk by:

Investing inour technology stack to ensure we provide resilient platforms that our customers canrely on

— Utilising systemic monitoring tools for identification of system downtime or performance issues

Ensuringadequate resources are available across I T production, with coverage acrossregions
tomonitor functionality of our systems and provide support to prevent and remediate any
systemdowntime

Planning and provision of sufficient system and infrastructure capacity to allow for growth or
spikesin clientand market activity

The provision of contingent capacity by the IT production team 24 hours a day, 5 days a week to
supportand remediate issues

CMC Markets plc-65
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Principal risks continued

Operational risks continued

Legal Risk
Key risk description Key mitigations and controls
Therisk of errorsinlegal procedures and processes We minimise our exposure to legal risk by:

and breaches of CMC's legal obligations. ) ) : ) T
9 9 — Timely involvement of the legal and compliance departments in all strategic initiatives, new

Risk exposure and appetite products, and onboarding of suppliers and partners (i.e. third-party intermediaries such as
CMCis exposed tolegal risk through contracting with introducing brokers)

clients, third parties, and employees, where we may be
exposed tolegalliabilities, including litigation, resulting
fromnon-performance of obligations or breaches of
applicable law. — Ensuring allamendments to legal terms (including terms with clients, partners and suppliers) are
reviewed and approved by the legal department and relevant stakeholders

— Avoiding and appropriately handling disputes that could potentially escalate to legal disputes or
litigation cases, including the timely involvement of the legal department

We have low appetite for failures in our legal processes
orobligations.

Third-Party Risk

Key risk description Key mitigations and controls
Risk of failure toimplement effective oversight over We maintain inventories of all third-party relationships with vendor classification that informs the
outsourced arrangements and other third-party level of controland oversight required, and for our critical third parties, we will:

relationships.
b — Implement robust onboarding and due diligence processes for third parties with SLAs in place

Risk exposure and appetite for all critical outsourcing and vendor provisions
CMCis exposedto third-party risk as we contract
with external third parties for the provision of goods
and services. CMC is also exposed to third-party
outsourced providers and tointernal outsourcing — Perform annual due diligence on critical vendors
arrangements where our UK entity provides
operational services to different legal entities.

— Perform quarterly service review meetings and Mlto monitor the critical relationships with
relevant external vendors

Where we outsource processes, we willdo this in line with the outsourcing policy, We ensure that
internal outsourcing arrangements deliver on the needs of the affected legal entities through:
We have low appetite for failure by our third parties.
The Group makes extensive use of intra-group

outsourcing, whichisanareainwhichweareinvesting  _ Adequate oversight arrangements, including monitoring and reporting against service levels
inprocesses to drive consistency and clarity.

— Documented intra- group agreements with appropriate service level agreements

People
Key risk description Key mitigations and controls
Therisk of breaching employment legislation, We are proactive inlimiting our exposure to people risk by:

mismanaging employee relations, and failing to

P S S — Recruiting and retaining the best skilled staff for the job regardless of gender, ethnicity,

religion, etc.
Risk exposure and appetite
At CMC, we align our people plan to our business
strategy which results in expansion and contractionin
line with delivery of strategic initiatives. — Establishing diversity and inclusion targets within our people plan to strive towards

— Aligning our recruitment process globally where possible, whilst abiding by local market
practices, regulatory requirements and legislation

66 —CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Strategic report Governance

Financial statements Shareholder information

Transaction processing and execution

Key risk description

Failure to process, manage and execute transactions
and/or processes (such as change programme)
correctly and/ or appropriately.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMCis exposed to transaction processing and
execution risk throughout the lifecycle of our client
service provisionand our hedging transactions.

Operational errors occur in the normal course of
business and itis not possible or desirable to eliminate
them all. However, we have low appetite toincur
material loss as a result of failures in our processes
and manage our exposure through robust processes
and controls.

Key mitigations and controls
We limit our exposure to transaction processing and execution risk by:

— Ahighdegree of straight through processing

— Implementing operational process controls (manual processes and manual intervention)
suchas four-eyed checks

— Training our people onour processes and providing procedural documentation
— Immediately rectifying any transaction processing issues as and when they do occur
— Implementing arange of reconciliation controls to ensure timely detection of errors

— Balancing the requirements of BAU activities and strategic initiatives to maintain the timely
delivery of projects

— Performing root cause analysis on any incidents for continuous improvement

Compliance with Regulation and Legislation

Key risk description
Failure to manage and comply with any legal or
regulatory obligations.

Risk exposure and appetite

The complex regulatory landscape that CMC
operates across exposes CMC toregulatory and
compliancerisk.

We have no appetite for failure to meet our regulatory
and legislative obligations and always strive to comply
with applicable laws and regulation. To reflect our
growing diversified business we are investing in our
European compliance and governance structures.
Insome instances remediation has been identified
and we are making appropriate investment to ensure
we maintain effective relationships and deliver on
regulatory expectations.

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to compliance risk by:

— Taking a proportionate risk-based approach interpreting regulatory requirements by considering
the financial and legalimpact of our decisions

— Ensuring adequate resources that are appropriately trained and supervised

— Performing regular horizon scanning on new regulations/ legislation, including the assessment
of theimpact to our business

— Performing clear analysis of regulation and legislation across regions, particularly in evaluation of
new initiatives

— Effective compliance oversight and advisory/technical guidance provided to the business

— Comprehensive monitoring and surveillance programmes, policies and procedures designed
by compliance.

— Strongregulatory relations and regulatory horizon scanning, planning and implementation

Conduct and Improper business practices

Key risk description

Failure to actinaccordance with customers’ best
interests, fair market practices, and codes of conduct
todeliver good outcomes.

Risk exposure and appetite
We are exposed to conduct risk where staff do not
adhere to our Group code of conduct policy.

CMC seek to conduct our business to deliver
suitable, fairand clear outcomes for our customers
and support the integrity of the markets in which
we operate.

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to conduct risk and improper business practices by:

— Setting standards of appropriate behaviour and business practice in our Group code of conduct
that staff must adhere to

— Monitoring the use of business systems, where permissible by law, for the detectionand
prevention of crime or breaches of our code of conduct

— Implementing stringent monitoring over the outcomes of Consumer Duty, including Products and
Services, Consumer Support, Price and Value and Consumer Understanding, the standards for
which are documented in our Consumer Duty Policy and Best Execution Policy

— Establishing policies such as Whistleblowing, Anti-Harassment and Grievance Policies to
ensure allemployees are treated with dignity and respect and are encouraged to raise concerns
wherever they witness unethical behaviours
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Principal risks continued

Operational risks continued

Statutory Reporting and Tax

Key risk description
Risk of failing to meet statutory and regulatory
reporting and tax payments/ filing requirements.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC s exposed to the statutory reporting and
tax laws requirements of the geographies we
operate within.

We have low appetite for failures to meet our statutory

and tax reporting requirements. We ensure that
where we have financial exposures they are fully
accounted for and disclosed in our annual report
and accounts.

Data Management

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to statutory reporting and tax risks by:

— Performing horizon scanning to establish applicable local taxation laws and accounting rules for
allthe jurisdictions we operate

— Maintaining constructive relationships with regulators and tax authorities

— Establishing robust processes for accurate and transparent statutory reporting

Key risk description

Therisk of failing to appropriately manage and
maintain accurate data, as well as retaining and
disposing of datain line with our internal policy and
regulatory requirement (data includes client data,
employee dataand the Group’s proprietary data).

Risk exposure and appetite

CMC is exposed to data management risk across
the data lifecycle through the creation, consumption
and recording of extensive data within our platforms,
systemsand accountingledgers.

We have low appetite of losses resulting from poor
datamanagement.

Model Risk

Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to data management risks by:

— Implementing controls on market data, including pricing checks

— Ensuring that data s of sufficient quality to meet business, legal and regulatory requirements by
deploying data validation technigues, such as accuracy, formatting and consistency checks, e.g.
defining what our key datais, the source and data quality characteristics

— Establishing documented procedures for the appropriate storing, management and
disposing of data

Key risk description

Therisk of incorrect model design, improper
implementation of a correct model, or inappropriate
application of acorrect model.

Risk exposure and appetite

CMCis exposed to modelrisks through the use
of models to facilitate our financial risk processes,
including liquidity projections, stress testingand
capital calculations. Models are also used in our
platforms to calculate prices and spreads.

We seek to minimise errors resulting from models by
implementing strong governance over model design
and change.
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Key mitigations and controls
We minimise our exposure to model risk by:

— Maintaining a modelinventory for all models that captures modellimitations, model lifecycle, key
stakeholders, model classification (tiering based on complexity), and validation mark

— Validating tier 1risk models at least annually to evaluate their conceptual soundness and quality
of outputs. The validation report is then reviewed by either the Executive Risk Committee or the
entity board of directors

— Assessing our modelrisk as part of the yearly risk identification and assessment (‘RIA?) as
required by the modelrisk policy
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Chairman’s governance
overview

The Board has remained
focused on delivery of the
Group’s strategy and long-term
sustainable success
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Dear shareholder,

Onbehalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s Governance
report for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Inmy Chairman'’s statement on page 8, | refer to some of the key strategic
decisions and challenges for the Group during the year. In an uncertain
economic and geopolitical environment, the Board has remained focused
ondelivery of the Group's strategy andlong-term sustainable success andin
ensuring value for our shareholders and stakeholders. The Board continues
torecognise that effective governance is key to the Group's success and

our governance framework enables decisions to be taken which are most
appropriate for the business. During the year the Board has overseen,
supported and challenged management to execute our strategy for the
benefit of all our stakeholders.

During the year the Group continued to enhance its Enterprise Risk Management
("ERM”) framework and governance practices to monitor risk in response to

recommendations arising from the recent governance review undertaken by
Independent Audit Ltd, and last year's external review of our ERM framework.

The Board, supported by the Group Risk Committee, assessed and approved
plans for ourimplementation of the FCA's Consumer Duty and the embedding
of processes to ensure we deliver good outcomes for our retail customers.

We have also continued our programme of internal controls improvements,
bothinrelation to areas previously identified and to ensure we are well placed
to comply with new reporting requirements being introduced.

During the year, the Board
has continued to review its
own composition to ensure
it remains appropriate to
oversee the delivery of the
Group’s strategy.”

James Richards
Chairman
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UK Corporate Governance Code

As acompany listed on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange,
CMC Markets plcis subject to the Principles and Provisions of the

UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the “Code”) published by the
Financial Reporting Council (‘FRC”) and available at www.frc.org.uk.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Board considers that the
Company complied with the Principles and Provisions of the Code throughout
the period. Details of our corporate governance framework are available
onpage79.

The Governance report and individual Committee reports on pages 75 to 114
each set out the ways in which the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with the Provisions of the Code and describe the activities of the
Board andits Committees and the matters they have considered during the
financial year.

The 2024 UK Corporate Governance Code (the “2024 Code”) was published by
the FRCinJanuary 2024. The 2024 Code willbegin to apply to CMC Markets
from1April 2025. We are already considering the changes introduced in the
2024 Code and willreport on progress at the appropriate time.

Leadership

Itis critical that the Board has the right composition so it can provide balanced
leadership for the Group and the independent discharge of its duties to
shareholders. Thisrelies on the Board having the right balance of skills,
experience and objectivity, as wellas agood working knowledge of the
Group's business.

During the year, the Board has continued to review its own composition
toensureitremains appropriate to oversee the delivery of the Group’s
strategy. Further details of the Board's skills and experience are available on
pages72to74.

The Board andits Committees have continued to perform effectively during
the year, as confirmed by our Board performance review. Further details of the
review are set outonpage 92.

During the year the Board was pleased to approve the appointment of Albert
Soleiman as Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director with effect from
1September 2023, following the resignation of Euan Marshall. Euanretired
from the Board on the same date but remained with the Group for the next
few months to support the orderly transition of the CFO role. Albert first joined
CMCin 2005, having qualified as a chartered accountant with KPMG. He
has extensive knowledge of the Group and prior to his appointment as CFO,
he led the launch of our CMC Invest UK business, whichis a key part of our
diversification strategy and enables our clients to generate long-term wealth
through its investing platforms.

His appointment has added to the diversity of the Board in terms of experience
and viewpoint and also means that at least one member of the Board is from a
minority ethnic background. 60% of the Non-Executive Directors are female.

Susanne Chishti has advised she is not putting herself up for re-election at
this year's AGM. | would like to thank Susanne for her dedication to the role
asaNon-Executive Director at CMC and the insights she brought to Board
discussions particularly inrelation to people matters. We wish her wellin her
future endeavours.

Boardbiographies can be found on pages 72 to 74. More details on Board
changes, our assessment of the balance of leadership skills and experience,
and our talent and succession planning processes can be foundinthe
Nomination Committee report on pages 90 to 93.
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The balance of skills, experience and independence of the Board and
individual Directorsis subject to ongoing review by the Nomination Committee.

ESG and sustainability

The Board continues to support the Group’s focus on sustainable business.
Last year the Group introduced the Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy
withits five core pillars, focused on the delivery of our material environmental,
socialand governance (“ESG”) risks. This year, we have continued to follow
the five sustainability pillar approach. More informationis included in the Our
Tomorrow sectionon pages 32t0 39.

Stakeholder engagement

Our stakeholders are essential to the success of the Group and the Board
recognises the importance of engagement with them. The Section 172
statement, our summary of engagement with stakeholders on pages 23

to 27 and the statements on pages 81and 83 of the Governance report
provide more details in relation to how the Group has managed stakeholder
engagement inthe year under review.

As Chairman, lam responsible for the effective communication between
shareholders and the Company and for ensuring the Board understands
the views of major shareholders and | will also always make myself available
tomeet any of our shareholders who wish to discuss matters regarding the
Company. To that end I have, with the Senior Independent Director, met with
anumber of shareholders over the course of the last 12 months. The principal
communication with private shareholders is through our full-year and interim
results announcements, ad hoc updates, the Annual Report and our Annual
General Meeting (‘AGM”). We are holding our AGM on Thursday 25 July
2024 and hope that our shareholders will attend. My fellow Directorsand |
willbe available to answer any questions that shareholders may have about
the Company.

Priorities for the year ahead

Inthe year ahead, the Group will continue its strategy of growth and of product
and geographical diversification, with a particular focus oninstitutional clients
andthe business-to-business sector. The Board will remain focused on
delivering for our stakeholders and ensuring that the Group’s governance
framework supports the requirements of the Group as it develops. This will
include consideration of Board succession and my succession as Chairman
astheyear progresses.

/Sm )
N

James Richards
Chairman
20 June 2024
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Board of Directors

James Richards

Independent Chairman
Appointment
1April 2015

Committee membership

oG

Lord Peter Cruddas

Chief Executive Officer
Appointment
3June 2004

Committee membership

Paul Wainscott
Senior Independent

Director
Appointment
19 October 2017

Committee membership
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Skills and experience
Jamesjoinedthe Groupasa
Non-Executive Director in April 2015
and was appointed as Chairman
with effect from 1January 2018 and
Chair of the Nomination Committee
from 31January 2018.

He has previously held positions
as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and interim Chair of the
Group Risk Committee and Audit
Committee, and beenamember
of the Nomination Committee and
Group Audit Committee. James
was admitted to the roll of solicitors
inEngland and Walesin 1984 and

Skills and experience

Peter founded the Group and
became its Chief Executive Officer
in1989. Peter held this role until
October 2007 and again between
July 2009 and June 2010. Between
2003 and March 2013, he also
served as the Group's Executive
Chairman.InMarch 2013, he

once again became the Group's
Chief Executive Officer andis
responsible for running the Group
onaday-to-day basis. Prior to
founding the Group, Peter was chief
dealer and global group treasury
adviser at S.C.F. Equity Services,

Skills and experience
Pauljoined the Group asan
independent Non-Executive
Directorin October 2017 and acts
as the Group’s Senior Independent
Director. Paul served as finance
director at the Peel Group for 27
years until March 2018. During his
time at the Peel Group, Paul gained
wide experience at board leveland

Committee membership

Group Audit Committee

Executive Risk Committee Nomination Committee

. Chairman

inthe Republic of Ireland in 2012.
James was a partner at Dillon
Eustace, alaw firm specialisingin
financial servicesin Ireland (2012 to
2016). Prior to this he was a finance
partner at Travers Smith LLP for

14 years. Having occupied various
senior positions within leading

law firms, James has extensive
experience inderivatives, debt
capital markets and structured
finance and his leadership skills are
key to the long-term sustainability
of the Group.

Current external appointments
None

where he was responsible for all the
activities of adealing room whose
principal activities were tradingin
futures and options in currencies,
precious metals, commodities

and spot forwards on foreign
exchange and bullion. His continued
entrepreneurial leadershipis
important to the long-term growth
and sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
— The Peter Cruddas Foundation
—director

— FinadaLimited -director

— UKHouse of Lords —member

inseveral different business sectors,
including real estate, transport,
media and utilities. Paul's financial
experience, gained viaa variety of
sectors, is key to his contributions
and to the long-term sustainability
of the Group.

Current external appointments
None

ﬂRemuneration Committee Group Risk Committee

Executive Committee
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SarahIng
Independent
Non-Executive

Director
Appointment
14 September 2017

Committee membership

(Alc]R]N]

Clare Francis
Independent
Non-Executive

Director
Appointment
19 December 2022

Committee membership
(Afa]a]n]

Other responsibilities:
Consumer Duty Champion

Susanne Chishti
Independent
Non-Executive

Director
Appointment
1June 2022

Committee membership
[A]clR]N]
Other responsibilities:

Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement

Financial statements

Skills and experience
Sarahjoinedthe Groupasa
Non-Executive Directorin
September 2017. She has over

30 years’experience inaccountancy,
investment banking and fund
management, including time with
HSBC and UBS. Sheis achartered
accountantand was a top-rated
equity research analyst covering
the general financials sector. Sarah
also founded andran ahedge fund
investment management business.

Sarah’sinvestment and financial
knowledge and the experience
she brings from her other plc
appointments add value to the
ongoing sustainability of the Group.

Skills and experience
Clarejoinedthe Groupasa
Non-Executive Director in December
2022.Having started her career
atNatWest, she has over 25 years'
experience operating at board levelin
large companiesinthe UK and overseas
and has spent over 25 yearsin banking
and markets. She has experiencein
drivingemerging markets across Asia,
Africaand the Americas. Sheisan
honorary fellow of the Association of
Corporate Treasurers and has sat on the
boards of AFME and BAB.

Clare was most recently the global
banking head of Europe, chief executive
of Standard Chartered Bank UK and
global head of investors and insurance at
Standard Chartered Bank. Clare has also
heldroles as head of global corporates/
international and global head of financial
market sales at Lloyds Banking Group

Skills and experience
Susannejoinedthe Groupasa
Non-Executive Director in June 2022.

She started her career working for
afinancial technology (“fintech”)
company in Silicon Valley. She has
25 years' experience in fintech,
banking, investment management
and consulting, including time with
Deutsche Bank, Lloyds Banking
Group, Morgan Stanley Investment
Management and Accenture.

Susanneis the co-author of
seven fintech books published
by Wiley. She is ofteninvited

Shareholder information

Current external appointments

— Marex Group plc—non-executive
director, chair of the audit and
compliance committee and
member of the remuneration,
nomination and risk committees

— XPS Pensions Group plc—
non-executive director, chair of
the sustainability committee and
audit and risk committees and
member of the remuneration and
nomination committees

— City of London Investment Group
PLC - non-executive director,
member of the audit,nomination
and remuneration committees

and was head of European financial
marketadvisory atHSBC. Sheisalsoa
senior adviser to Provenance Blockchain,
which providesinsightinto fintechand
the disruption of financial services,and
anon-voting member of the investment
management company, Baillie Gifford.
Clareis alsoanon-executive at Bank of
America (MLI). Clare's extensive global
experience and her inputinto the ongoing
improvements to the Group's risk and
internal controls management are key to
the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
— Department of International Trade
TAG—board member

— Infrastructure Exports: UK —
board member

— Baillie Gifford—voting member of the
risk committee

— Bankof America (MLI)—non-executive

to share her fintech thought
leadership at international fintech
conferences andas ajudge at
fintech competitions. Her extensive
knowledge of the fintech sector

and experience of advising on
leadership and engagement matters
are invaluable to the long-term
sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
— FINTECH Circle —chair

— Crown Agents Bank Limited -
non-executive director

— CABPayments Holdings PLC -
non-executive director
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Board of Directors continued

Albert Soleiman

Chief Financial Officer
Appointment
1September 2023

Committee membership

Matthew Lewis
Head of Asia Pacific
& Canada

Appointment
1November 2019

Committee membership

David Fineberg
Deputy Chief
Executive Officer

Appointment
1January 2014

Committee membership
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Skills and experience
Albertjoined the Groupin 2005
and became Group Head of Taxin
2008. After a short period working
with a fintech company, Albert
became CEO of our CMC Invest
UK business, where he builta deep
understanding of the strategic fit for
the business within the CMC Group
andits positioninthe market. Albert
was appointed Group CFO on 1
September 2023, with responsibility
for the management of all finance
functions globally and investor
relations. Albert has extensive tax
and commercial experience, having

Skills and experience

Matthew joined the Groupin
September 2005 and has helda
variety of roles including Senior
Dealer, Head of Eastern Equities,
Head of Sales Trading ANZ, Head of
Trading Eastern Region and Director
of Asia. Inhis current role as the
Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, he
isresponsible forimplementing the
Group's business strategies across
the APAC & Canada region for both
the retailand wholesale CFD and
foreign exchange business. He is
alsoresponsible for the Group's
Invest Australia business. Prior to
joining the Group, Matthew worked
for Commonwealth Securities,

Skills and experience

David joined the Group in November
1997, working on the trading desk
and developing the Group's multi-
asset CFD and spread bet dealing
desk. Asa Senior Dealer he was
responsible for managing the UK
and US equity books. Between

April 2007 and September 2012, he
was the Group's Western Head of
Trading, covering all asset classes
for the westernregion. In September
2012 David was appointed to the
role of Group Head of Trading and
inJanuary 2014 was appointed as
the Group Director of Trading, with
overallresponsibility for the trading

Committee membership

Group Audit Committee

. Chairman

operatedintax consultancy roles
with KPMG and William Buck (an
Australian accounting firm) before
joining CMC. Albert holds a Bachelor
of Business (Accountancy) from

the Royal Melbourne Institute of
Technology and completed the
Chartered Accountant programme
with the Institute of Chartered
Accountantsin Australia.

Albert’s extensive knowledge of the
Group will support the execution of
its diversification strategy.

Current external appointments
None

Australia’s largest provider of
financial services, dealingin equities
before movinginto derivatives as
anoptions trader and warrants
representative. Matthew has over
20 years' experience in financial
services and holds a Bachelor of
Economics from the University

of Sydney.

Matthew's understanding of the
APAC business and its growth
and development isimportant
to the long-term sustainability
of the Group.

Current external appointments
None

and pricing strategies and activities
across the Group.

InJune 2017 his role further
expanded when he became Group
Commercial Director,and then

in April 2019 he was promoted

to the position of Deputy Chief
Executive Officer.

David'sin-depth knowledge of the
business and the opportunities
for growth and evolving strategy
isimportant to the long-term
sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
None

ﬂRemuneration Committee Group Risk Committee
Executive Risk Committee Nomination Committee

Executive Committee
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Corporate governance

The Board

The role of the Board

The Board provides entrepreneurial leadership and strategic oversightin
relation to the long-term, sustainable success of the Company.

The Board, taking account of relevant stakeholder interests, is responsible
for the establishment of the Group’s purpose, values and strategy and has
oversight ofimplementation within necessary financial, humanresources
and cultural frameworks.

The Board has ultimate responsibility to prepare the Annual Report and Financial
Statements and to ensure that appropriate internal controls and risk management
systemsarein place in order to assess, manage and mitigate risk.

The Board delegates the in-depth review and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management to the Group Audit Committee and Group Risk
Committee respectively.

The terms of reference of these Board Committees (and the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees) are available onthe CMC Markets plc Group
website (www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance/committees).

Board leadership and purpose

The Board provides entrepreneurial leadership and oversight of the delivery
of strategic objectives and the long-term, sustainable success of the
Company, taking into account different stakeholder priorities and employee
engagement feedback.

The Board considers any material diversification of the Company’s product
offerings to ensure arobust range of products designed to be successful
withina changing regulatory environment and appeal to changing stakeholder
requirements, with the objective of preserving long-term value.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Stakeholder and employee-related matters form part of the Board's
decision-making processes, facilitated by the investment inemployee
engagement surveys, the work of the designated Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement, ongoing shareholder dialogue and market feedback.

Our Section 172 statement on pages 23 and 24 and the separate reports of
the various Board Committees provide more detail on how the Board and its
Committees have discharged their duties during the year. The Our Tomorrow
section onpages 3210 39 sets out the work being done by the Group in
relation to sustainability matters and the Strategic report on pages 1to 68
provides more detail on some of the activities to continue the investment

and diversification of the business. The Board's leadership recognises the
importance of a working culture which promotes inclusion and acceptance of
differing approaches to facilitate the successful delivery of strategic projects
and initiatives. We have a culture that is focused on providing a superior
technology experience for our clients which is aligned to our purpose, values
and strategy. To support this itisimportant that our people are engaged with
this goal and have the knowledge to ensure they are motivated to provide a
good client experience. Our Section 172 statement, Stakeholder engagement
sectionand Our Tomorrow section provide information on some of the
initiatives undertaken throughout the year to engage with employees.

The Group has an established process in relation to the reporting and
processing of employee-related issues. Within a structure ultimately
overseen by the Board, any employee canraise amatter of concernatany
time through day-to-day management reports or whistleblower channels as
appropriate. The Boardreceives a whistleblowing report annually which will
highlight matters raised and any updates to the whistleblowing procedures
and Group policy.

TheBoard recognises theimportance of understanding employee engagement
and the prevailing Group culture to enable alignment with delivery on strategy
inaway that ensures acommitment to the Group’s values.

Board composition
The Directors who held office during the financial year, and their attendance at scheduled meetings, is shown below.

Board Group Audit Group Risk Nomination Remuneration
Name Position meetings Committee Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings 7 7 7 7 8
James Richards' Chairman 7(7) — 6(7) 6(7) 7(8)
Paul Wainscott? Senior Independent Director 7(7) 7(7) 6(7) 6(7) 8(8)
Sarahing Independent Non-Executive Director 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) 8(8)
Clare Francis Independent Non-Executive Director 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) 8(8)
Susanne Chishti Independent Non-Executive Director 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) 8(8)
Lord Cruddas Chief Executive Officer 7(7) — — — —
David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer 7(7) — — — —
Matthew Lewis® Head of Asia Pacific & Canada 6(7) — — — —
Albert Soleiman* Chief Financial Officer 4(4) — — — —
EuanMarshall® Chief Financial Officer 2(2) — — — —

The figures in brackets denote the number of meetings the Director was eligible to attend.
1 James Richards missed three Committee meetings due toillness.

2 Paul Wainscott missed two Committee meetings due toillness.

3 Matthew Lewis sent his apologies for one Board meeting which had been called at short notice and took place in the evening in the UK, making it impractical for him to attend due to the time difference.

4 Albert Soleiman was appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 1September 2023.

5 EuanMarshall retired from his position as Chief Financial Officer on 1 September 2023.
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Corporate governance continued

The Board continued

Board composition continued

The Board also met on various occasions onanad hoc basis throughout the
year to discuss matters such as potentialinvestments, finaland interim results,
dividends and the appointment of the new CFO.

Activities of the Board

The Board has a comprehensive meeting planner that ensures all matters for
Board consideration are presented and reviewed in atimely manner.

Key areas of focus during this financial year were:

— consideration and approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements,

half-year results and interim dividend approvals;
— selection and appointment of the Group CFO;

— review of the efficiency and cost reduction proposals for the Group
and the impact on employees and of the subsequent employee
engagement surveys;

— approval of Group property management issues;
— ongoing review of CMC Markets plc governance arrangements;
— consideration of intra-group outsourcing and service arrangements;

— thedevelopment and launch of new products and expansion of our
businessinto new regions;

— riskmanagement and risk appetite including adoption of the Enterprise
Risk Management Framework and associated Risk Appetite Statements;

— thereviewandapproval of ICARA and other regulatory documents;
— oversight of CASS reporting and compliance;

— approval of Board policies, e.g. whistleblowing;

— consideration of the sustainability strategy, targets and KPls;

— assessment of the impact on the Group of the FCA's Consumer Duty
regulations;and

— insurance renewal arrangements and approvals.

Some of the key decisions made by the Board impacting stakeholders during
the year are described in the Section 172 statement on pages 23 and 24.
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Board balance

Provision 10 of the Code considers that a Director may not be regarded as
independent after serving for more than nine years on the Board. As noted
onpage 80, the Chairman joined the Board on 1 April 2015, and after 1 April
2024 had served on the Board for more than nine years. During the year
ended 31 March 2024 the Chairman was considered to be independent under
the criteria of Provision 10 of the Code but was no longer considered to be
independent from1April 2024. Inline with the Code, over half of the Board
members, excluding the Chair, are independent non-executive directors.
Thereisaclear division of responsibilities between the executive leadership
and the Board as noted onpage 78.

Board support

The Board operates inaccordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association and established processes and approved policies, as
appropriate, and has access to relevant resources as required.

Each Director has access to the Company Secretary, who is responsible

for advising the Board on governance matters and supporting the efficient
functioning of the Board and its Committees. The Company Secretary provides
meeting papersto Directors in a timely manner to allow for conducive and
effective Board and Board Committee meetings and attends all Board and
Committee meetings in order to provide appropriate advice on corporate
governance and matters of procedure. The appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary are matters for the Board.

As stated in each of the Board Committees' terms of reference, the Directors
may take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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Matters reserved for
the Board

Itis recognised that certain matters cannot, or should not, be
delegated and the Board has adopted a schedule of matters
reserved for Board consideration and approval. The matters
reserved for the Board fallinto the following areas:

— strategy and management;
— structure and capital;

— financial reporting and controls;

— internal controls and risk management;

— contracts;

— communications;

— Boardmembership and other appointments;

— remuneration;

— delegation of authority;

— corporate governance matters;

— policies;

— politicaland charitable donations;

— appointment of principal professional advisers;

— materiallitigation;

— whistleblowing;

— Modern Slavery Statement;
— pensionschemes;and

— insurance.

The schedule of matters reserved for the Board is
available onthe CMC Markets plc Group website,
www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance.
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Corporate governance continued

Division of responsibllities

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (‘CEQ”) are separate,
clearly defined in writing and agreed by the Board.

Chairman CEO

Responsibilities of the Chairman include: Responsibilities of the CEO include:

— leadership of the Board, with responsibility for its overall — day-to-day management of the Group's business and
effectiveness in directing the Company, and ensuring open and implementation of the Board-approved strategy;
effective communication between the Executive and Non-

. ) — actingas Chair of the Executive Committee and leading the senior
Executive Directors;

management teamin devising and reviewing Group development
— ensuring Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information for consideration by the Board;
and that Board meetings are effective by setting appropriate
andrelevant agenda items, creating an atmosphere whereby
all Directors are engaged and free to enter healthy and — promoting the Group's values, culture and standards.
constructive debate;

— responsibility for the operations and results of the Group; and

— ensuring effective communication between major shareholders
and the Board;

— overseeing each Director’s induction and ongoing training; and

— leadership of the Board effectiveness process through his role as
Chair of the Nomination Committee.

Senior Independent Director
Responsibilities of the Senior Independent Director include:

- actingasasounding board for the Chairmanand servingasan
intermediary for the other Directors asnecessary;
— actingasleadindependent Non-Executive Director;

— leading the Non-Executive Directors in the performance evaluation
of the Chairman, withinput from the Executive Directors;and

— beingavailable to shareholdersin the event that the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer or other Executive Directors are unavailable.

78 - CMC Markets plc
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Non-Executive Directors
Responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors include:

— providing strategic guidance and constructively challenging
management proposals and providing advice in line with their
respective skills and experience;

— helping to develop proposals on strategy;

— reviewing the performance of management and individual
Executive Directors against agreed performance objectives;

— havingaprimerole inappointing and, where necessary;,
removing Executive Directors; and

— having anintegral role in succession planning.
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Governance structure as at 31 March 2024

Group Board

Independent
assurance

Group Audit Group Risk | Nomination Remuneration Regulated
Committee Committee Committee Committee subsidiaries

Executive
Committee

Executive Risk
Committee

External auditor

Bl Board/Board Committee Hl Subsidiaries — Directreportingline
El Senior Management Committee Internal assurance - - - Reporting line for certain matters
Management Committee Hl Independentassurance
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Corporate governance continued

Accountabllity

Election and re-election of Directors

The 2024 Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) will be held at 10:00 a.m.on
25 July 2024 at 133 Houndsditch, London EC3A 7BX.

Directors newly appointed to the Board are required to submit themselves

for election by shareholders at the AGM following their appointment. In
accordance with the Code all other current Directors, other than Susanne
Chishtiwhois stepping down from the Board at the AGM, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Following recommendations from the Nomination Committee and review by
the Chairman, the Board considers that all Directors continue to be effective,
remain committed to their roles and have sufficient time available to perform
their duties. Biographies for each Director, which set out the reasons why the
Board believes each Director’s contribution is, and continues to be, important
tothe Group'slong-term, sustainable success, are available on pages 72 to 74.

Chairman’s tenure

James Richards was appointed to the Board on 1 April 2015 and had therefore
served on the Board for nine years with effect from 1 April 2024. Out of these
nine years, he served for two years and nine months as a Non-Executive
Director and will have served six years and three months as Chairman.

Having regard to the Provisions of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code, the Nomination Committee, led by the Senior Independent Director,
met without James presentin May 2023 and February and March 2024 to
discuss the Chairman’s succession.

Inline witharecommendation from our major shareholder and CEO, the
Committee considered and agreed to recommend to the Board that James'
appointment to the Board and as Group Chairman be extended until the
close of the AGMin 2025 in order to provide continuity while we navigate
through our diversification strategy, increase our product range and expand
our institutional business. This proposal was approved by the Board and
aresolutioninrelation to James're-election will therefore be presented to
shareholders for approval at the 2024 AGM.

From1April 2024 James was no longer considered to be independent. Inline
with Provision 11 of the Code, excluding the Chairman, at least half of the Board
comprises independent Non-Executive Directors who are considered to

be independent.

The Committee will continue to consider succession plans for the Chairman.

After 1April 2024, James stood down as a member of the Risk and
Remuneration Committees but remained a standing invitee of both
Committees. James remained the Chair and amember of the Nomination
Committee but will not participate in the process to select a successor as
Chairman of the Board.
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Independence of Non-Executive Directors

and time commitment

The Board carries out areview of the independence of its Non-Executive
Directors onanannual basis and considers each of the Non-Executive
Directors, including the Chairman, to be independent in character and
judgement. Each Director is aware of the need to allocate sufficient time

to the Company in order to fulfil their responsibilities and is notified of all
scheduled Board and Board Committee meetings. Non-Executive Directors
are expected to obtain the agreement of the Chairman before accepting
additional commitments that might affect the time they are able to devote to
their role in the Company.

Directors’ induction, training and evaluation

Onappointment, new Directors receive acomprehensive and formal
induction, whichis facilitated by the Company Secretary in consultation with
the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee ensures that an annual evaluation of the Board,
Board Committees and individual Directors is undertaken. More informationis
provided in the Nomination Committee report on page 92.

The Board undertook a skills assessment of the Directors which, together
with any observations made as part of the Board evaluation process, is used
by the Company to tailor induction meetings and training requirements for
each Director. One-to-one meetings are arranged between the Director

and the management teams inrelevant areas of the business as part of the
induction. This allows anincoming Director to familiarise themselves with

the management team and their respective roles and responsibilities and to
gainagreater understanding and awareness of the firm's business and the
industry in which it operates. These meetings also provide an opportunity for
new Directors to discuss the business strategy and model, risk management,
governance and controls, the requirements of the regulatory framework and
the culture of the Group. These meetings and training arrangements forma
key part of the learning and development plan for any new Director appointed
tothe Board.

Non-Executive Directors attend internally and externally facilitated training
sessions and have access to online and digital platform-based training and
information resources including onrelevant financial services matters with
emphasis onresponsibilities with regard to regulation and compliance. They
also have access to other knowledge resources and education programmes
offered by third-party service providers with which the Group has established
relevantlinks.
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Board responsibilities in relation to the Annual
Report and Financial Statements

The Board has ultimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the Annual
Reportand Financial Statements and it has considered and endorsed the
arrangements enabling it to confirm that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and

that it provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess

the Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.
With the assistance of the Group Audit Committee, the Board ensured that
sufficient time and resources were available to encompass the disclosure
requirements to which the Group is subject and that the Annual Report and
Financial Statements met all relevant disclosure requirements.

The Board believes in the governance principles of being open, transparent
and compliant with the Principles of the Code. Following review by the Group
Audit Committee, which considered the processes and controlsin place for the
preparation and verification of the Annual Report and Financial Statements, the
Board concluded that the Annual Report and Financial Statements contained
the necessary information for shareholdersto assess the Company’s performance,
strategy and overall business model.

Group Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee has been delegated responsibility for the
monitoring and oversight of the external and internal audit and financial
internal controls. The Committee’s responsibilities, main activities and

priorities for the next reporting cycle are set out on pages 83 to 86.

Group Risk Committee

The Group Risk Committee has been delegated responsibility for the
monitoring and oversight of risk management, mitigation and recommendation
forandapproval of the risk appetite to the Board. The Committee’'sresponsibilities,
main activities and priorities for the coming year are set out on pages 87 to 89.

Shareholder engagement

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with shareholders.

Board membersregularly meet with a cross-section of the Company’s
shareholders to ensure that the Group strategy takes due consideration of
shareholder views.

During the year the Board was regularly apprised of shareholder sentiment
and shareholder correspondence was also shared with the Board as appropriate.
Investor relations reports are distributed to the Board and considered at each
Board meeting.

Inaddition to meetings held between our Executive Directors during the year
we offered major shareholders the opportunity to meet with our Chairman and
other Non-Executive Directors. Two shareholders expressed aninterest to
meetin May 2023 and the feedback from these meetings was discussed with
the wider Board.

The principal communication method with private investors is through

our final results, half-year report, any ad hoc market announcements and
the AGM. At the AGM, separate resolutions are proposed for each item of
business presented to shareholders for approval, with voting conducted

by apoll. All valid proxy appointment forms are recorded and counted and
information regarding votes is published onthe Company's website. The
notice is posted to shareholders at least 21 days before the date of the AGM.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Scheduled 2024/25 key shareholder events

June 2024
2024 full-year results

July 2024
Q12025 trading update and Annual General Meeting 2024

November 2024
H12025 interim results

April 2025
Pre-close trading update

Should a significant proportion of the votes cast be against any resolution, the
Company is required to explain when announcing the results what action it
will take to understand why this has been the result. There were no significant
votes against any of the resolutions put to shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

Inaccordance with the Companies Act 2006, members representing at least
5% of the voting rights, or at least 100 members having aright to vote, can
requisition the Board to circulate a resolution or statement in relation to the
AGM tomembers.

Our Stakeholder engagement report on pages 25 to 27 sets out some other
engagement methods with shareholders and how their views impact Board
discussions and decisions.

Stakeholder engagement

The Boardrecognisesiits various legal, fiduciary, statutory and governance
obligations and duties in relation to stakeholder engagement, including those
specifiedin the Principles and Provisions of the Code and its duty to promote
the success of the Company under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.
The Boardreceives updates on stakeholder engagement, including inthe
Board papers provided to facilitate Board decision making. Please also see
the Stakeholder engagement section on pages 25 to 27 for asummary of
the Group's stakeholders, the engagement that has taken place during the
year and itsimpact on decision making. The Our Tomorrow section on pages
321039 provides further details of engagement with our key stakeholders
regarding responding to stakeholders' needs.
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Corporate governance continued

Accountability continued

Employee engagement

Susanne Chishtiis our designated Non-Executive Director for workforce
engagement with responsibility for engaging with (and overseeing engagement
with) the Group's employees to discern the views of the workforce and report
back to the Nomination Committee regularly. Susanne also plays an active
role in ensuring the views of the workforce are, within the matters reserved for
the Board and the Nomination Committee terms of reference, considered as
part of Board and Committee discussions and decision making. She brings
over 25 years of industry expertise, including at Board level, with a strong focus
ongovernance. As noted earlier in this Report, Susanne is stepping down
from the Board at the forthcoming AGM, and an announcement inrelation to
asuccessor as the designated Non-Executive for workforce engagement will
be providedindue course.

During the year, the workforce engagement activities focused on by Susanne
for the Group included:

— beinginvolvedin Women@CMC initiatives;

— meeting withemployees to seek further feedback onresponses to the
annual staff engagement survey;

— meeting with new joiners as part of the “Meet the Exec Team” initiative;

— celebrating the success of employees and key initiatives both in private and
inpublic;and

— continuing the “"Ask the NED" channel, an anonymous way of engaging with
her onany employee matters.

Initiatives to reflect feedback from the workforce engagement processes
include a Group-wide mentoring scheme which has beenintroduced across
allregions.

The Board believes this engagement mechanism has worked well during
the year and that it continues to be an effective way of ensuring direct and
independent Board understanding of the views of the workforce.

The Nomination Committee reviews and considers the results of the various
employee engagement and pulse surveys undertaken throughout the year
andreports to the Board accordingly.

The Board has considered a number of employee-related initiatives during
the year as set outin the Our Tomorrow section on pages 32 to 39.
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Internal control and risk management systems

over financial reporting

The Boardis responsible for the Company'’s risk management, internal
control systems and their effectiveness. Itis also involved in the process for
identifying, evaluating and managing those principal risks and reviews these
systems regularly. The Group has aninternal control framework and risk
management systems, as set out below, in place to ensure that the financial
information produced is accurate, reliable and timely such that it can be used
by all stakeholders to monitor performance and aid effective decision making.
This framework has beenin place during the year and up to date the date of
approval of the Report.

— Expertise: The utilisation of appropriately qualified and experienced
colleagues and regular knowledge sharing within the team.

— Forecasting and budgeting: The Group has a detailed forecasting and
budgeting processin place that is wellembedded across the Group.

— Financial accounting and reporting: The finance team produces Group
consolidated accounts onamonthly basis. There are full reconciliation
and reporting processes in place to ensure that any issues are identified
andresolvedin a timely manner. Detailed reconciliations are completed
betweenthe trading systems and the general ledger to ensure completeness.

— Management reporting: The Group has a detailed suite of management
information (“MI1”) that is prepared daily, weekly, monthly and quarterly. This
Mlwas prepared and improved throughout the year to reflect appropriate
measurements as the business has changed.

— Tax: The Group has a formal tax strategy, reviewed and approved annually
by the Group Audit Committee, in addition to monthly tax compliance
monitoring, quarterly attestations with items raised within the Group’s Tax
Risk Committee.

— Segregation of duties: Appropriate segregation of duties to ensure that no
individual controls the end-to-end process.

— ITenvironment: The Groupis heavily reliant onits IT systems and
has procedures and controls to ensure that they are operational and
accessible at all times. There have beenno significant IT issuesin the year
without appropriate mitigation that could impact the financial reporting of
the Group.

Information on the Group's risk management systems and how the Board
oversees risk management is detailed in the Risk management sectionon
pages59to68.

)Smu bdoy
<

James Richards
Chairman
20 June 2024
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Dear shareholder,

As Chair of the Group Audit Committee (the “Committee”), |am pleased to
present the Group Audit Committee report for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Therole of the Committee is to assist the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for monitoring the integrity of the Financial Statements of
the Company, and monitor the effectiveness of the management systems
and internal controls relating to financial reporting and the performance and
objectivity of the internal and external auditors. This report summarises the
activities, key responsibilities and future focus of the Committee.

Principal responsibilities of the Group

Audit Committee

The Committee operates within agreed terms of reference, which outline its
key responsibilities.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Group’s website:
www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance/committees.

Inaccordance withits terms of reference, the Committee is required to
evaluate its own performance. In the year under review this was done as part
of the wider Board and Committee evaluation, as described on page 92.

Areas of focus in 2023/24

The Committee’s main responsibilities, in compliance with the requirements
ofthe Code, are as follows:

— tomonitor the integrity of the Financial Statements of the Group;

— toconsider any material information presented within the Financial
Statementsinsofar as it relates to audit and to review the final and half-year
results before making recommendations to the Board on their contents and
whether they are fair, balanced and understandable;

— toreview andreport to the Board on significant financial reporting issues
andjudgements;

— toassessthe adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems and identify, assess, manage and monitor financial reporting risks
andreport to the Board onany key findings;

— toreview onanannual basis the procedures for detecting fraud and
financial crime;

— toreview the tax strategy of the Group;
— toreview andapprove the internal audit charter and annual internal audit plan;

— toreview the findings of allinternal audit reports, make recommendations
as appropriate and monitor resolution plans;

— toreview the performance of the internal audit function and consider the
structure of the function;

— toreview the effectiveness and independence of the Company’s
external auditor including the appointment, reappointment, removal and
remuneration of the external auditor;

— toreview and approve the policy on the provision of non-audit services by
the auditor;and

— toreview the findings of the external auditor and how any challenges made
to management, and responses to such challenges, have been dealt with,
including inrelation to key judgements.
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Group Audit Committee report continued

Composition and advisers

The Committee is chaired by Paul Wainscott with Susanne Chishti,
Clare Francis and Sarah Ing as members. The Committee is considered
independent of management and the members are allindependent
Non-Executive Directors.

The Code requires the inclusion on the Committee of at least one member
determined by the Board as having recent and relevant financial experience.
The Committee Chair is considered to continue to fulfil this requirement. The
Committee as a whole has competence inrelation to the trading, investing and
institutional business sectors in which the Company operates.

The Committee held six meetings during the financial year. The key activities
and discussion points are outlinedin the relevant section of this Committee
report. Committee attendance is presented on page 83.

The Group Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, Group Head

of Finance, Company Secretary and Head of Investment Operations & CASS
attend Committee meetings by invitation. Representatives of Deloitte LLP
(“Deloitte”), the external auditor,and Grant Thornton LLP, the internal auditor,
also attend the Committee meetings by standing invitation.

Internal audit

The Group'sinternal audit functionis externally facilitated by Grant Thornton
LLP. Theinternal audit function has a reporting line to the Committee and has
directaccess to the Committee Chair and each Committee member. The
Committee reviews allinternal audit reports, follows up verification reports on
any findings identified by internal audit together with management's response,
and reviews progress of remediation by management to address audit
findings. The Committee annually reviews and approves the internal audit
planandcharter.

Representatives of the internal auditor attend each meeting where internal
audit reports are presented. The Committee regularly discusses with them
progress against the internal audit plan and any open audit actions. This allows
the Committee to review the effectiveness of the internal audit function on
acontinual basis over the course of the year and provides an indication of

the maturity of the Group's control framework. The lead internal auditor has
confirmed that the necessary resources, skillset and budget are in place to
deliver the internal audit plan, including having contingency to ensure that

the internal audit function can accommodate adding or bringing forward any
specific areas of focus.

External auditor

The Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's relationship with
the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process. It considers
the reappointment of the external auditor annually and such consideration
includes review of the independence of the external auditor and assessment
of the auditor’s performance.

Deloitte was appointed as the Group's statutory auditor following a formal
tender process, commencing with the reporting period ended 31 March 2023.
Fiona Walker is the lead audit partner at Deloitte.

The Group confirms that it has complied with the provisions of the CMA
Orderinrespect of The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies
Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 for the financial year ended
31March2024.

The Committee, in line with Financial Reporting Council (‘FRC”) guidance,
continues to review the qualification, expertise, resources, effectiveness and
independence of the external auditor.
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The Committee received reports during the year on the preparations made
by Deloitte to complete the half-year review and full-year audit in relation to the
year ended 31March 2024. Deloitte challenged management ona number

of accounting judgements which were then discussed with the Committee
and the accounting judgements were subsequently approved. Following
discussion of the final audit report for the year, the level of appropriate
challenge, and the interactions with management and the Board, the
Committee believes that the audit has been effective for the year under review
and has recommended the reappointment of Deloitte as statutory auditor by
shareholders at the AGM to be held in July 2024.

During the period, areview was conducted of the effectiveness of the external
auditor following the 2023 audit cycle, and the results were presented to the
Committee. The views of key stakeholders were sought using a questionnaire,
with questions similar to those used in the prior year. The results concluded
that Deloitte’s performance was satisfactory, with an effective service for the
Group overalland a small number of focus areas identified.

The Committee continues to believe that Deloitte isindependent by virtue of
the level of non-audit fees, procedures in place in relation to the employment
of ex-employees of the auditor, the internal processes and policies in place
at Deloitte to avoid conflicts and the nature of discussions held between the
Committee and Deloitte without representatives of management present.

Non-audit services policy
The Group has anumber of relationships with independent advisory and
assurance firms which provide alternatives to using the external auditor.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Deloitte provided non-audit services
to the Group. However, all services provided fall under categories explicitly
permitted under the FRC 2019 Ethical Standard.

The Group's audit and other audit-related fees are disclosed in note 8 of the
Financial Statements. Other audit-related fees include the controls opinion
relating to the Group’s processes and controls over client money segregation,
compliance with The Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country Reporting)
Regulations 2013 and the mandatory regulatory audit of the Group’s

German subsidiary. The fees were well below the 70% non-audit fees cap.

Inorder to ensure compliance with the Ethical Standard issued by the FRC
regarding the requirement for safeguarding independence of the external
auditor, the Committee has in place a formal policy governing the engagement
of the auditor to provide non-audit services, which was reviewed and
reapproved in March 2024. The Committee approves any significant non-
audit services and fees and receives details of any other non-audit spend
approved by the Chief Financial Officer and/or Committee Chair by way of
delegated authority by the Committee.

Priorities for financial year 2025

The Committee will continue to ensure that all relevant accounting practices
and disclosures are adhered to and that the work being done toimprove
controls around these obligations promotes a strong culture of disclosure
and transparency.

The Committee will oversee the work being done to ensure the Group can
comply with the Provisions of the new 2024 UK Corporate Governance Code
(the "2024 Code”") inrespect of the role of the Group Audit Committee and the
additional disclosures relating to the monitoring and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control framework. A number of the new Provisions
will take effect from the reporting period starting 1 April 2025 with the updated
Provision 29 relating to the risk management and control framework taking
effect for the reporting period starting 1 April 2026.

The Group has commenced a project based on the 2024 Code changes,
supported by dedicated resource to manage and oversee the project.

The Committee approved changes toits terms of reference in March 2024
toreflect some of the revised 2024 Code elements, for example toincorporate
key elements of the Audit Committee Minimum Standards which will be
further embedded intoits activitiesin FY 2025.
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Main activities during the financial year

Agendas for scheduled Committee meetings are based on a pre-agreed annual meeting planner to ensure that the Committee fulfils its responsibilities in line with
its terms of reference and regulatory obligations.

At each scheduled meeting, the Committee:

— Receivesareport from the Chief Financial Officer on
the year-to-date financial performance of the Group.

May 2023

— Consideredthe year-end audit report presented by
the external auditor and discussed the audit with the
lead audit partner, including relevant significant audit
and accounting matters. Inline with the Committee
terms of reference, the Committee met with the
Group auditor without management or the Executive
Directors being present.

Reviewed the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, including the specific disclosures
suchas going concern, viability, risk management

July 2023

— Consideredthe draft Q1 trading update and
recommended to the Board for approval.

— Receiveda CASS audit update.

September 2023

— Considered and approved the tax strategy.

— Metwith theinternal auditor without management or
the Executive Directors being present.

November 2023

— Consideredthe half-year planning report presented
by the external auditor and discussed the report with
the lead audit partner.

— Reviewed the half-year report, including
consideration of significantaccountingissues/
judgements, going concern, risk managementand

January 2024

— Received updates from the external auditor
regarding the FY24 audit plan and audit fees.

— Receiveda CASS update.

March 2024

— Receivedanupdate on pre-close trading.
— Received an Annual Report status update.
— Receiveda CASS update.

— Considered anupdate on the progress of the
year-end audit presented by the external auditor.

— Receives anupdate on currentand plannedinternal
audits and any internal auditissues highlightedin
completed auditreports.

disclosures, the fair, balanced and understandable
assessment, and internal controls reporting, for
recommendation to the Board. The Committee also
reviewed and discussed the application of the group
accounting policies.

Reviewed the draft final results announcement.
Reviewed the proposed final dividend.
Discussed non-audit services fees.

Discussed with the auditor the accounting

Approved the internal audit plan.

Discussed the annual evaluation of external
auditor effectiveness.

Received an update on the F Y23 control point
remediation and H1FY24 judgement areas including
commentary from the external auditor.

Received the annual report on whistleblowing.

internal controls reporting, for recommendation to
the Board.

Reviewed the interim results and recommended to
the Board.

Considered the management representation letter
and recommended to the Board for approval.

Received an update on control observations relating
tokey subsidiaries.

Discussed the audit and control reporting with the
external auditor.

Received an update on the DBT (BEIS) consultation
andinternal controls project.

Reviewed the non-audit services policy.

Receives a Group tax update.

Receives anupdate on significant
accountingjudgements.

treatment of anumber of client trading and hedging
positions and the impairment analysis of certain
development costs.

Recommended the reappointment of Deloitte as
Group auditor.

Considered the effectiveness of the internal
controlframework.

Received an update on the DBT (BEIS) consultation
andinternal controls project.

Reviewed the annual report from the Money
Laundering Reporting Officer (‘MLRO”).

Received an update on the DBT (BEIS) consultation
andinternal controls project.

Considered 2023 audit scope changes.

Received an update on the DBT (BEIS) consultation
andinternal controls project.

Reviewed and recommended the proposed interim
dividend to the Board.

Reviewed the draft half-year analyst presentation.

Approved the FY24 auditengagement letter
and reviewed the remuneration and non-audit
services fees.

Received an update onthe DBT (BEIS) consultation
and internal controls project.

Approved the internal audit charter.
Reviewed the Committee annual calendar.

Approved the Committee terms of reference.
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Group Audit Committee report continued

Significant Matters Considered During the Year

Role of the Committee

Going concern and long-term viability

Itisrequired that the Directors make statements
inthe Annual Report as to the going concern and
longer-term viability of the Group.

Controlimprovements and remediation

The Group continued its work to further enhance
its internal controls and considered the additional
requirements to be imposed on the Group arising
fromthe 2024 Code.

Responsibilities discharged

The Committee reviewed reports from
management that assessed the impact of various
stress tests and longer-term business risks to
determine how the Group would be able to remain
viable through periods of liquidity or capital stress.

The Committee requested detailed and regular
progress updates from management in relation to
enhancements to the internal control framework.

Review of audit and control matters in key subsidiaries

Anumber of structural governance and audit
issues were identified inan operational subsidiary
that required engagement with the local regulator
and provision of additional resource to address
andresolve.

Oversight of CASS reporting

The appointment of anew Head of Investment
Operationsand CASS, and the launch of the UK
Invest product, provided an opportunity to further
strengthen oversight of CASS matters.

The Committee reviewed the list of audit issues
and met with the relevant local external audit
partners to ensure appropriate oversight of the
auditissues and approach toresolution. The
Committee was briefed on the requirements of the
local regulator to close the governance structure
and audit points to its satisfaction.

The Committee now receives an update on CASS
matters at every meeting including developments
andimprovementsin client segregation
procedures.

Review of interim results and Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Committeeis responsible for considering
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
and providing challenge to management and
the external auditor on significant accounting
judgements and treatments.

(3
R —
Paul Wainscott
Senior Independent Director and

Chair of the Group Audit Committee
20 June 2024
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The Committee considered disclosures made in
the 2024 Annual Report and Financial Statements
and discussed significant areas with management
and the external auditor.

Conclusion or action taken

Following challenge of management on the
individual scenarios and impacts thereof, the
Committee agreed to recommend the going
concernand viability statement to the Board
forapproval.

The Committee requested to be kept informed on
the project to further improve internal controls and
continues to monitor progress on the proposed
implementation steps required.

The Committee Chair and CFO conducted a site
visit to meet with local management to provide
supportand agree the appropriate resource to
resolve the audit matters. The Committee received
updates relating to the local regulatory positionand
will continue to provide oversight of the closure of
the auditissues within the deadline specified.

The Committee has requested improvementsin
CASS procedures.

The main area of significant judgement considered
by the Committee was the capitalisation and
impairment assessment of the investment in

the cash equities business and investmentina
jointventure.
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Financial statements Shareholder information

Dear shareholder,

As the Chair of the Group Risk Committee (the “Committee”),|am pleased
to present the Committee report for the year ended 31 March 2024, which
describes our activities during the year.

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in its oversight of risk,
including reviewing and monitoring the risk framework and appetite for the
Group, and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
systems andinternal controls. The transition and diversification of the
business, both globally and through a product lens, is generating increased
risk whichisreflected inthe principal risks. These risks will continue to be
embedded within the course of the next financial year.

The responsibility for the Group’s Risk Management Framework and agreeing
the appropriate risk appetite sits with the Board. The Committee reviews and
advises the Board on changes to the Group's risk appetite, advises on risk
strategy and monitors the effectiveness of, and improvements being made

to, the Group's Risk Management Framework. The Committee ensures that
arobust risk culture continues to be embedded across the business and
actively monitors and discusses the latest risk and regulatory developments
affecting the Group.

The Group's approach to risk management and how it evaluates and
manages the principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces is set out
within the Risk management section of the Strategic report as detailed on
pages 5910 68.

During the year the Committee has considered the potentialimpacts of
continuing challenges arising from the external economic environment,
including inflationary pressures and higher interest rates and ongoing and
emerging geopolitical events. It has provided guidance, support and challenge
tomanagement on how risks are managed and mitigated.

Consumer Duty remained a focus for the Committee during the year,

while work continued to implement and embed the new duty in the Group’s
processes. The Committee received regular updates on the Group’s
Consumer Duty implementation plan and monitored the progress of the
project to deliver compliance with obligations.

The Committee has continued to consider the Group’s product diversification
andits geographical diversification in Dubai and Bermuda, including
regulatory requirements. The Committee also oversaw enhancements to

the Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite Statement during the
year, continued to review the Group's Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM”)
framework project, monitored changes in the regulatory landscape and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Boardin respect of the Group’s
Internal Capital and Risk Assessment (‘ICARA”), Internal Capital and Risk
Assessment (Liquidity) (ICARA(L)") and Contingency Funding Plan (‘*CFP”).

Principal responsibilities of the Group Risk Committee
The key responsibilities of the Committee include:
— monitoring the Group's risk appetite, tolerance and strategy;

— review and recommendation of the Risk Appetite Statement and Risk
Management Framework;

— provision of advice and recommendations to the Board to assist in Board
decision making inrelation to risk appetite and risk management;

— oversight of financial and liquidity risks including the responsibilities of the
risk management functions;

— review, challenge and recommendation to the Board withregard to the
Group ICARA, ICARA(L) and CFP;

— oversight of,and recommendations to the Board on, current risk exposures
and future risk strategy;
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Group Risk Committee report continued

Principal responsibilities of the Group Risk

Committee continued
— consideration of the Group's principal and emerging risks and related
disclosuresin the Annual Report and Financial Statements;

— review of the risks associated with proposed strategic initiatives;
— approval of the annualrisk plan;
— consideration of the Group’s compliance framework;

— review of risk taking by Directors and senior management as itimpacts
their remuneration incentives; and

— consideration of the Group's compliance with regulations and how
management acts onany new obligations.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be found onthe Group’s website
(www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance/committees).

Composition and attendance

The Committee is chaired by Clare Francis, whois also the Group's Consumer
Duty Champion, with James Richards, Susanne Chishti, Sarah Ing and Paul
Wainscott as members, all of whom were considered independent during the
year.James Richards ceased to be considered independent under the Code
from1April 2024 and accordingly he stepped down as a Committee member,
butremains an attendee, with effect from that date. Details of the skills and
experience of the Committee members can be found in their biographies on
pages72to74.

The Committee held six scheduled meetings during the year under review and
attendance for the members is shown onpage 87.

As part of the Board effectiveness review undertaken during the year, the Board
has assessed that the skills of the Committee members are appropriate in
providing oversight and challenge and that the Committee is operating effectively.

The Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer,Head of Asia Pacific & Canada and Company Secretary attend
Committee meetings by standing invitation. Representatives from other areas
of the business attend the Committee meetings by invitation as appropriate

to the matter under consideration. The Committee Chair also holds regular
individual meetings with the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and
other relevant members of the Executive and senior management teams.
During the year the Committee Chair also met with Grant Thornton UK LLP,

to which third-line internal audit services are outsourced, and the external
auditor, Deloitte LLP.

Operation of the Committee

Anannual Committee calendar is maintained, which is aligned with the
Committee’s terms of reference. The Chair of the Committee is supportedin
preparing meeting agendas by the Company Secretary.

Following each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair reports to the
Board onits proceedings and the matters withinits duties and responsibilities,
and makes recommendations to the Board and to other Board Committees,
as appropriate.

At management level, the Group has established an Executive Risk
Committee (‘ERC”) within the Group’s governance framework. Reporting to
the Executive Committee, the purpose of the ERC s to assist the Executive
Directors inmonitoring and assessing risk arising across the business and
externalrrisk factors, and discussing appropriate mitigation plans and actions
tobe takeninrelation to significant and emerging risks. The risks discussed at
the ERC and the Executive Committee by the Executive Directors, as the first
line of defence, are then presented by the SMF4 to the Group Risk Committee.
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Main activities during the financial year

During the year, the Committee’s key activities included:

May 2023

— Review of the ERM framework project.

— Robustassessment of the Group’s principal and emerging risks
and TCFDrisks and opportunities.

Annual review of effectiveness of the Group's risk management
andinternal control systems.

Review of the Annual Report and Accounts risk disclosures.
Review of the annual risk plan.
Annual planning for the Group ICARA and wind down plans.

Update on the Consumer Duty implementation programme.

July 2023

— Review and approval of the Consumer Duty implementation.
— Review of the ERM framework project.
— Review of the Options projectimplementation.

— Consideration of the compliance update.

September 2023

— Review and recommendation of Group ICARA and the Contingency
Funding Plan.

— Review of the ERM framework project.
— Review of the Consumer Duty implementation programme.

— Approval of the Committee terms of reference.

November 2023

Update on ERM framework project.

Review and recommendation of principal risks and uncertainties
forthe half year.

Review and recommendation of wind down plans.
Review of annual non-BAU position limit summary report.
Compliance update (including Consumer Duty).

Review and recommendation of wind down plans.

January 2024

— Compliance update (including Consumer Duty).
— Review of the ERM framework project.

— Review and recommendation of the Group ERM Palicy,
Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite Statement.

March 2024

— Review of Risk Appetite Statement metrics and escalation.

— Update on ERM framework project.

— Review of proposed Committee annual planner.
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During the year, the Chief Risk Officer left the Group and, while it was agreed
that she had performed a valuable role, in the context of the current Group-
wide restructuring and business simplification, it had been determined that
the Group CRO position would not be replaced. However, this would be kept
under regular review and monitored as business simplifications measures
were embedded. The CRO’s responsibilities have been reallocated amongst
the Executive team.

Risk Management Framework

During the year, the Committee reviewed enhancements to the Group's risk
management systems following recommendations (as reportedinthe 2023
Group Risk Committee report) arising from the Group governance review
undertaken by Independent Audit Limited in 2021, whichincluded areview
of the Group’s risk management systems, and a separately commissioned
external assessment of the Group’'s ERM framework.

Following the transition to the Investment Firm Prudential Regime, (“IFPR”),
the FCA undertook a Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (‘SREP”).
As part of this the Committee engaged with the regulator and introduced

an enhanced liquidity, credit risk, stress testing and wind-down planning. To
supportits oversight of the completion of the work, the Committee resourced
external consultancy support inaddition to the standing internal audit
resource. The SREP was completed within the specified timeline.

Further details of these changes and the Group's risk management systems
can be found in the Risk management section on pages 59to 68.

Risk appetite and exposure

As part of its oversight of current risk exposures and future risk appetite
and strategy, the Committee reviews the risks associated with proposed
strategic transactions and the effectiveness of risk mitigation and
monitoring processes.

Throughout the year the Committee has monitored the Group's top risks
and emerging risks. The Committee receives detailed management

reports throughout the year and routinely invites members of the senior
management team to present an overview of the risk management practice
andreceives updates on key issues. In the financial year ended 31March
2024 the Committee specifically discussed business resilience, people risk,
project delivery risk, IT security risk, financial performance and regulatory
risk. The Committee reviewed proposed changes to the Group Risk Appetite
Statement and Risk Management Framework and made recommendations
for Board approval of both documents. The Committee recommended the
Group'sICARA, ICARA(L) and CFP to the Board for approval.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Risk management and internal controls

The Group Risk Committee and Group Audit Committee review internal
controls on behalf of the Board and receive reports from management, the
external and internal auditor, and functions such as Finance. The Chairs of

the Group Risk Committee and Group Audit Committee regularly brief the
Board on key matters discussed at these Committees. Throughout the year
ended 31March 2024 and to date, the Group has operated a system of internal
controlto provide reasonable assurance of effective operations covering
allmaterial controls, including financial and operational controls. Processes
arein place to identify, evaluate and manage the principal risks facing the
Group. The Group Risk Committee received management’s assessment

of the effectiveness of internal controls, which included areas identified for
improvement, and concluded at its June 2024 meeting, acting as a Committee
of the Board, that, based on their assessment, the Group's risk management
systems and internal controls were appropriate. The Board also considered
and supported this assessment.

Regulatory compliance

The Committee receives regular reporting of second-line compliance
assurance activity, details of regulatory change both in the UK and in other
jurisdictions that will have a significantimpact on the Group, the assessment of
key financial crime controls and details of correspondence with our regulators.
Inthe year under review, this included the implementation of the FCA
Consumer Duty and engagement with local regulatorsin respect of alicence
applicationto establish an offshore entity, and meetings held with regard to
anumber of auditissues identified in an operational subsidiary that require
additional resource to address and close within agreed timescales.

Priorities for financial year 2024/25

Inthe year ahead it is anticipated that geopolitical risk will remain heightened
and the challenging economic environment volatility will continue. The
Committee will pay close regard to impacts of the external environment

for our business and customers, and focus on risks related to the Group’s
delivery of its strategic objectives.

The Committee will continue to constructively challenge management, will
ensure that arobust risk culture remainsin place across the business and will
undertake deep dives on any areas of specific risk to informits deliberations.

The Committee willmaintain its active role in advising the Board on risk
matters and monitoring the risks associated with regulatory change and
theimpact that any changes could have on the Group.

Clare Francis

Independent Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Group Risk Committee
20 June 2024
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Nomination Committee report

Dear shareholder,

James Richards |am pleased to present the Nomination Committee (the “Committee”)
Chairman and Chair S report, which summarises the work of the Committee during the year ended

. b 31March 2024,
of the Nomination are

Committee Throughout this period the Committee has continued its review of the

composition of the Board and succession planning at both Board and senior
management level, with changes made which will support the growth of the
business and strengthen our controls and risk processes.

Further information on our activities and our priorities for the next year is
provided on the following pages.

Principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
The Committeeis responsible for keeping under review the composition of
the Board and senior management, succession planning, appointments to the
Board, the Board evaluation process, and the Group's People Strategy.

(" N Key roles and responsibilities of the Committee include:

— evaluating andreviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
including the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of the

. Board, and keeping under review the leadership needs of the Company to

James Richards 000000 ensure its continued ability to compete effectively in the marketplace;

Committee Chair

Members and attendance

— ensuring plans are in place for both an orderly and emergency succession
inrelationto the Board and senior management and overseeing the
development of adiverse pipeline for succession, taking into account

Susanne Chishti 0000000 the challenges and opportunities facing the Company and the skillsand

Independent Non-Executive Director expertise neededinthe future;

— identifying and nominating suitable candidates for appointment to the
Board including evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and

C|are FranCIS 0000000 diversity on the Board and preparing a description of the role required for a

Independent Non-Executive Director particular appointment;

— overseeing the Board evaluation process and, in analysing the results of the
evaluation, identifying whether there are any skill gaps or opportunities to

SarahIng 0000000 strengthen the Board;
Independent Non-Executive Director — assessing the Board Directors’ conflicts of interest;

— assessing and keeping under review the independence, time commitment
and engagement of each of the Non-Executive Directors; and

Paul Wainscott YYXXX)

Independent Non-Executive Director — overseeing the Group's People Strategy including talent management,

diversity and inclusion and workforce engagement.

: The Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Group’s website:
® Attendedmeeting www.cmcmarkets.com/group/about-us/governance/committees.

Did not attend meeting held during tenure
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Composition and attendance

The Committee is chaired by James Richards with Susanne Chishti, Clare
Francis, Sarah Ing and Paul Wainscott as members. All of the Committee’s
members, including the Chairman, were considered independent Non-
Executive Directors during the financial year. As noted on page 80, from 1 April
2024, the Chairman ceased to be considered independent. The Chairman
continued to chair the Committee and remained a member after 1 April 2024
as permitted by the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

The Committee met seven times during the year under review and attendance
levels for the members are shown on page 90. In addition to the members of
the Committee, the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Group Head of Human
Resources attend by invitation whenitis considered appropriate.

Board appointments

The Committee leads the process to consider Board appointments and
makes recommendations to the Board once appropriate candidates have
been found. The Committee will review the process for recruitment, including
whether an external search agency will be used, the role specification and
capabilities required for the role (taking into account the current balance of
skills and experience on the Board) and potential candidates bothinside

and outside the organisation, ensuring a diverse pool of candidates are
considered. The Committee will also manage the structure of the interview
process, referencing requirements and engagement with the Board and other
Board Committees as appropriate.

During the year, the Committee recommended and the Board approved

the appointment of Albert Soleiman as Chief Financial Officer, following the
resignation of Euan Marshall. The Committee set out the skills, knowledge
and experience required for the CFO position. The Committee considered

the selection process for the CFO and, taking into account the business
transformation that the Group was expected to make, expressed a preference
foraninternal candidate already familiar with the business and organisational
structure. The Committee reviewed a number of internal candidates and, after
conducting aninterview process, identified Albert as the preferred candidate.

The Committee also discussed, without the Chairman present, the
successionarrangements for the Chairman once he reached nine-year
tenure on1April 2024. The Committee recommended to the Board, which
inturn has recommended to shareholders, that James be re-elected as
Chairmanand a Director at the 2024 AGM. As the Chairman would no longer
be considered to meet the criteria for independence under the UK Corporate
Governance Code, it was agreed that he would step down as amember of the
Remuneration and Group Risk Committees but would remain as a standing
attendee to ensure continuity of information as Chairman of the Board. While
no longer considered to be independent under the Code, the Committee
continues to view James as providing independent guidance and insightful
and valuable input to the Board debate. Further informationis provided
onpage 92.

Shareholders have the opportunity to annually vote on resolutions proposing
each Director for re-election (or election if they have joined the Board since
the last AGM) at the AGM. Details of the Directors standing for election/
re-election at the 2024 AGM are included in the Notice of AGM and
information on each Director’s contribution to the Groupis included in their
biography onpages 72 to 74 of this report. The Committee considers whether
torecommend Directors for election or re-election and has done soinrelation
toall Directors standing at the 2024 AGM, including the Chairman, who will
have served on the Board for more than nine years after April 2024 (see page
80 for more information).

Financial statements Shareholder information

Main activities during the financial year

Agendas for scheduled Committee meetings are based ona
pre-agreed annual meeting planner to ensure that the Committee
fulfilsits responsibilities in line with its terms of reference and
regulatory obligations.

May 2023

— Received an update from the designated NED for
workforce engagement.

Reviewed updates on people matters and employee engagement.
Determined Directors’ eligibility for re-election.

Discussed Chairman succession (without the Chairman present).

August 2023

— CFOselection process.

September 2023

— Approved appointment of new CFO.
— Boardevaluationupdate.

— Received an update from the designated NED for
workforce engagement.

November 2023

Received an update from the designated NED for workforce
engagement.

Received an update on diversity and inclusion, including the Group
Diversity and Inclusion Policies and the Board Diversity Policy.

Noted anupdate onregulatedroles.

February 2024

— Received an update fromthe designated NED for workforce
engagement.

— Considered the annual Board and Committee evaluation process.

— Reviewed the Board skills matrix.

March 2024

— Reviewed Board succession planning.

— Reviewed the employee engagement survey results.

— Approved an update to the Board Diversity Policy.

— Reviewed the Board.
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Board evaluation

The Committee is responsible for agreeing the annual Board and Committee
performance evaluation process, reviewingits results and reporting on the
conclusions and recommendations to the Board.

The Committee reviewed the outcomes and associated action plans for the
internally facilitated 2023 Board and Committee effectiveness evaluation.

The 2023 evaluation was conducted internally and led by the Chairman,
supported by the Company Secretary. The format of the process was a
questionnaire completed by all Non-Executive Board members seeking
narrative answers on a number of specific questions relating to the operation
of the Board and its Committees. This was supplemented by amore targeted
set of questions answered by the Executive members of the Board.

Based on the responses received, the Company Secretary prepared a
report which was discussed with the Chairman before being presented to
the Committee. The responses received were insightful and provided useful
feedback on the operation of the Board and its Committees, the topics

that should be a future focus and how the Board receives information from
management. A number of recommendations were made by the Committee
which willbe taken forward over the remainder of 2024. Notwithstanding
these recommendations, it was agreed that the Board and its Committees
were operating effectively.

The Committee discussed the performance and time commitment of each
Non-Executive Director and agreed that they all continued to make the
expected contribution to the Board and its Committees and no concerns
were raised in relation to their other commitments.

The Senior Independent Director led the Non-Executive Directorsin
evaluating the performance of the Chairman at a meeting of the Nomination
Committee without James Richards present. The Nomination Committee
recommended, and the Board approved, the conclusion that the Chairman
continued to provide strong leadership to the Board. This conclusion
incorporated the position that James Richards ceased to be considered
independent under the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code from 1

April 2024.

The next externally facilitated evaluation was due to be carried out in 2024.
Under Provision 210of the Code, the annual evaluation exercise should

be externally evaluated at least every three years. During the year CMC
ceased to be aconstituent of the FTSE 350. The Committee will reassess
the requirement for the 2024 Board evaluation onrejoining the FTSE 350
andreport on this Board evaluation in the next Annual Report. In the interim,
the Committee assessed that the outcomes of the 2023 Board evaluation
remained relevant and appropriate, and would continue toimplement the
findings of the 2023 evaluation.

People Strategy

The Committee has worked closely with the Executives to consider the
Group’s People Strategy, which is designed to align with the Group’s overall
strategy, purpose and values, and also has due regard to the environmental,
socialand governance initiatives being undertaken by the Group and matters
raised by employees.

The Committee regularly receives updates from Susanne Chishtiregarding
her activities as the NED for workforce engagement, and discusses the results
and key themes arising from the employee engagement survey conducted
during the year. The main areas of focus highlighted as aresult of employee
engagement activities that have taken place across the business are included
inthe Our Tomorrow section onpages 35to 37.

The Committee continues to believe that the engagement methods used
toensure that the Board is aware of the views of the wider workforce are
effective but does keep these under review and will seek to adapt them and
include additional engagement methodsiif it feels appropriate.
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Succession planning

The Board considers succession planning at least annually, including the
tenure of Non-Executive Directors, the developing needs of the business and
any skills gaps to be filled in both the short and long term The Committee also
considers the senior management team succession plan periodically, taking
into account the opportunities and challenges facing the Group and the skills,
experience and knowledge that will be needed in the future.

Succession planning will continue to be afocus over the course of the
remainder of 2024, with an emphasis onimproving diversity in our pipeline.

The Committee metin May 2023 and February and March 2024 without
James Richardsin attendance to discuss the succession of the Chairman,
who has served nine years on the Boardin April 2024. Out of those nine

years, he served two years and nine months as a Non-Executive Director and
willhave served six years and three months as Chairman. The Committee
recommended to the Board, whichin turn has recommended to shareholders,
the re-election of James at the 2024 AGM, notwithstanding that his nine-year
tenure expires ahead of the 2024 AGM. As disclosed inlast year's Annual
Report, itis anticipated that James will stand down from the Board at the 2025
AGM.More information onthe Company'’s plans beyond this is included in the
Governance section on page 80.

Susanne Chishtiannounced that she would be stepping down from the
Board atthe 2024 AGM. The process to identify a successor to Susanne,
and the nomination of a new Non-Executive for workforce engagement has
commenced, and will be a priority for the Committee in the coming months.

Diversity, equity and inclusion

The Committee recognises the benefits of diversity, equity and inclusion
("DE&I"). The CMC Markets plc Board Diversity Policy recognises the benefits
of having a diverse senior management team and sees increasing diversity
atasenior level as an essential element in maintaining an effective Board. Our
policy is to ensure that there is broad experience and diversity on the Board
and the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees. We consider
diversity toinclude age, ethnicity, disability, gender, sexual orientation and
socio-economic and geographic backgrounds. Appointments to the Board
are made on meritin the context of complementing and expanding the skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole.

The Committee reviews and assesses Board composition on behalf
of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors.
The Nomination Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual
review of Board effectiveness.

Inorder to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills, experience and
background on the Board, the Nomination Committee considers the benefits
of allaspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described above

Inidentifying suitable candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates against objective criteria with due regard
for the benefits of the herein mentioned attributes and diversity on the Board.

As part of the annual performance evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board, Committees and individual Directors, the Nomination Committee
considers the balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of
the CMC Group on the Board, and the diversity representation on the Board.

The Committee regularly discusses Board, senior management and
workforce diversity and how the Group’s position can be improved. More
information on our DE&l strategy and initiatives is included in the Our
Tomorrow sectionon page 33.

Our disclosures and statement on the diversity of our Board, senior Board
positions and executive management in compliance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R
(9) and Listing Rule 14.3.33R (1) are set out on page 93.
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The Listing Rules set the following targets:
— atleast40% of the Board are women;

— atleastone of the senior Board positions (Chair, Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ"), Senior Independent Director (“SID") or Chief Financial Officer
("CFQ”)) isawoman;and

— atleastone member of the Board is fromaminority ethnic background
(whichis defined by reference to the categories recommended by the
Office for National Statistics (*ONS”) as coming from a non-white ethnic
background).

The tables below show the data required to be presented by the Listing Rules.
This data shows that progress has been made fromlast year, reflecting that
Albert Soleimanidentifies as “Other — Arabic”. We continue to recognise the
importance of diversity and, whilst ensuring that appointments continue to

be based on merit, give fulland proper consideration to gender and racial
diversity as part of the appointments we make to the Board. In terms of gender
diversity, 60% of the Non-Executive representation on the Board is female.

Diversity data
Diversity databased on sex

Financial statements Shareholder information

Our overall Board diversity is negatively impacted by the fact that we have
four male Executive Directors. We feel we currently have the right people
fulfilling these Executive roles and have to accept the impact on our diversity
statistics of having a larger Executive team than some of our peers when
making comparisons on our progress. Whilst we do not feel it appropriate

to set ourselves goals to comply with these targets at present, as Board
composition should be driven by the specific needs of the Group and any
skillgaps, we continually review our position on this. The Board is committed
to seeking toimprove diversity and will continue to have regard to these
matters as part of our Board and senior management succession planning
and recruitment processes.

Asreferenced in the Our Tomorrow section, we have committed to setting
measurable targets to increase the diversity of the wider workforce which will
help create a pipeline to improve senior Executive diversity over time. As at
31March 2024, 321(29%) of our workforce of 1,071, excluding contractors,
were female.

Number of senior

positionsonthe Numberin Percentage of

Number of Percentageof  Board (CEO, CFO, executive executive

Boardmembers Board SIDand Chair) management management

Men 6 66.67 4 32 78.00

Women 8 33.33 — 9 22.00

Not specified/prefer not to say — — — — —
Diversity data based on ethnic background

Number of senior

positionsonthe Numberin Percentage of

Number of Board Percentageof  Board (CEO, CFO, executive executive

members Board SID and Chair) management management

White British or other white (including minority white groups) 8 88.9 3 14 34.00

Mixed/multiple ethnic groups — — — 2 4.87

Asian/Asian British — — — 2 4.87

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British — — — — —

Other ethnic group, including Arab 1 1141 1 — —

Not specified/prefer not to say — — — 23 56.26

Notes:

1 Alldataisat31March2024.

2 Executive managementis represented by all direct reports of the Executive Directors in non-administrative roles.

3 Datais collected via self-reporting from employees on joining the Group by the completion of a questionnaire asking them to identify against various gender and ethnicity categories.

Priorities for financial year 2024/25

Inthe year ahead the Committee will focus on senior management succession and diversity, the People Strategy, ensuring actions arising from the Board
evaluation are appropriately implemented and considering the succession of the Chairman and the appointment of a new Non-Executive Director.

)SoM )
\

James Richards
Chairman and Chair of the Nomination Committee
20 June 2024

CMC Markets plc-93
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Remuneration Committee report

SarahIng
Independent
Non-Executive
Director and
Chair of the
Remuneration
Committee

Members and attendance

SarahIng 0000000
Committee Chair
James Richards e0000 00

Independent Non-Executive Director

Paul Wainscott (XYY Y YY)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Susanne Chishti (XYY Y YY)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Clare Francis (XYY YY)
Independent Non-Executive Director

® Attended meeting

Did not attend meeting held during tenure

Note: Since the year end a further meeting was held on 2 May 2024 and
allfive members attended.
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Dear shareholder,

As Chair of the Remuneration Committee, | am pleased to present the
Directors' remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2024. This

report comprises three sections: first, my annual statement as Chair of the
Remuneration Committee; second, the proposed Remuneration Policy which
willbe put for approval by shareholders at this year’s Annual General Meeting
("AGM"); and third, the Annual report on remuneration which sets out how the
current Policy was implemented for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Remuneration in context

The Committee’s approach to governing Executive pay at CMC Marketsis
toensure a clear andrigorous focus on aligning pay with performance, but
equally to give due consideration to all our key stakeholders. The Committee
considers both corporate performance from a strategic and financial
perspective coupled with stakeholder experience.

Corporate performance

Strategic priorities

During the year the Group took important steps to enhance operational
efficiency with global headcount reduction and cost review programme
driving synergies across product and businesslines.

Our APl ecosystem and world-leading financial markets technology was
criticalin securing large B2B partnership winsin the year, and the trading
product suite with the rollout of options and addition of cash equities to our
institutional offering. The investing platform saw further development with
Invest UK rolling out mutual funds and SIPPs and launch of cryptocurrencies
onInvest Australiaand continued expansion across new geographies and
markets with launch of CMC Invest Singapore, a growing footprintin the
Middle East with DIFC hub and renewed focus on European operations as a
lever for growth.

Financial performance

Net operating income of £332.8 million, up 15%, marks a new record high
outside the COVID-19 pandemic period with profit before tax of £63.3 million
(2023: £52.2 million) and earnings per share up 13.6% t0 16.7 pence.

Stakeholder experience

Our shareholders

As described below, the Committee reviewed the Remuneration Policy during
the year and carried out a shareholder engagement exercise inrelation to this,
receiving broadly supportive feedback on the proposals.

Ouremployees
The Committeeis responsible for reviewing the Group’s wider employee
remuneration policies and how reward aligns to the culture of the Group.

During the year, the Committee discussed the bonus allocation and salary
reviews for the wider workforce, reviewed and agreed the Group’s approach
tolong-termincentives beyond the Executive Directors, reviewed the Group’s
gender pay gap data and the steps that could be taken to close the existing
gap, and discussed the operation of and participationin the Group's all-
employee share plan.
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During the year, allemployees have been given the opportunity to participate
inour twice-yearly engagement surveys and provide feedback on all topics,
including remuneration. Inaddition, the Committee has received an update
ontheinitiatives we have undertaken to support and develop employees and
managers throughout the year. Susanne Chishtiis the designated Non-
Executive Director with responsibility to engage and oversee engagement
with our employees and more detail on her activities is included in the
Nomination Committee report on page 92.

Remunerationin relation to the year ended
31March 2024

Throughout the year, the Committee has given careful consideration to
remuneration in the context of the external environment and the Group’s
performance. The outcomes for the specific reward elements are as follows:

Base salary — The salaries of David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis were
increased by 4.5% with effect from 1June 2023, with these increases just
below the average increase of the wider workforce of 4.7%. No adjustment
was made to the salary of Peter Cruddas.

A one-off adjustment was made to the base salary of Euan Marshall from
£250,000t0 £300,000 toreflect his significant development in the role
and contribution.

Combined Incentive Plan (“CIP”) awards — The financial year ended 31 March
2023 was the fourth year of the implementation of the CIP and the plan was
assessed against Group financial, strategic and individual performance
targets, as approved by the Committee as follows:

— 60% based on financial performance;
— 30% based on strategic performance; and
— 10% based on achievement of personal and mandatory risk objectives.

For the financial performance element, the Group’s EPS of 16.7 pence which
was above the Target level of performance of 15.4 pence, resultinginan
outcome of 58.6% of maximum for this element. The full detail of the financial
targetsis set outon page 97.

Todetermine the overall outcomes under the CIP, the Committee also
reviewed individual Executive Directors’ performance against their strategic
and personal objectives, which were set at the beginning of the year. The
Committee assessed each Executive Director against their strategic
objectives and determined whether these had been partially met, significantly
met, materially met or met. Further details of the objectives and performance
against them are set out on page 97.

Thisresulted in the Committee awarding 67.3% of potential award to the Chief
Executive Officer, 65.9% to the Deputy CEO, 67.4% to the Chief Financial
Officer and 67.5% to the Head of Asia Pacific & Canada.

The 2024 awards comprise a 40% cash award and a 60% share awardin line
with the MIFIDPRU Remuneration Code. Share awards will be granted post
the release of the Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2024. The share
awards willbe assessed against a performance underpin after a further three-
year period ending 31March 2027 and, if the underpinis achieved, continue to
vest until 2029.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Changein Directors

As announced on 7 July 2023, Euan Marshall resigned as Chief Financial
Officer and stepped down from the Board with effect from 1September 2023.
Albert Soleiman was appointed as Chief Financial Officer from this date.

The Committee applied the Directors’ Remuneration Policy in determining
EuanMarshall'sremuneration arrangements. Inline with the Policy, his
unvested CIP awards lapsed in full on leaving employment.

Remuneration arrangements for Albert Soleiman on appointment were inline
with the Remuneration Policy and consistent with those of Euan Marshall.

Review of the Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy was approved by a shareholder vote of 99.65%
atthe AGMin 2021. Under the relevant legislation, we are required to put a
revised Policy to shareholders every three years.

The Remuneration Committee has carefully considered the current Policy
and believes that it remains fit for purpose and sois proposing that the
revised Policy to be put to shareholders at the 2024 AGM willinclude only
minor tweaks.

The fullproposed Policy is set out on pages 96 to 103 but comments on
specific points are included below:

— Combined Incentive Plan (“CIP”): The Committee is aware that the
structure of the CIP is not market typical. When firstintroduced, the rationale
behind this structure was that market volatility meant that the Committee
was not able to set three-year performance targets with sufficient certainty
that they would remain appropriately stretching yet achievable for the
full period. Although still challenging, setting annual performance targets
was more achievable and the structure of the CIP aimed to combine the
achievement of stretching annual performance with substantial long-term
deferral subject to a performance underpin to provide alignment with the
long-term experience of shareholders.

Given current market uncertainty, the Committee believes that this
structure continues to provide strong alignment between pay and short
andlong-term performance and remains the right approach for the
Remuneration Policy.

Itis proposed that the maximum opportunity level under the Policy for
Executive Directors other thanthe CEO will be increased from 300% to
350%.No change is proposed to the maximum opportunity level for the
CEQ. The change will allow the Committee appropriate flexibility over the
course of the next Policy period to ensure that Executives are appropriately
and competitively incentivised to deliver successful performance
outcomesin the coming years. The Committee will decide onan annual
basis the opportunity level within the Policy maximum that will be operated
inagiven financial year. The Committee will continue to ensure that
performance targets are set so that they are stretching and the opportunity
under the plan will only be realised where significant performance is
achieved, aligned with the creation of value for shareholders.

— ESGand Consumer Duty: The proposed Policy will allow the Committee
flexibility in terms of implementation each year for CIP measures,
weightings and targets based on evolving strategic priorities, potentially
including a focus on ESG metric(s) aligned to our sustainability strategy.
The FCA's Consumer Duty requirements will be incorporated with a formal
consideration of this after the one-year performance period and as part of
the long-term performance underpin assessment.
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Review of the Remuneration Policy continued

— Management Equity Plan (“MEP”): The 2015 MEP willcometo the
end of its ten-year life in 2025 and the Committee believes that it would be
prudent to seek shareholder approval of a new plan under broadly similar
terms at the same time as the new Policy. For Executive Directors under
the current Policy, MEP awards may only be granted by the Committee to
facilitate external recruitment. The replacement plan will similarly only be
available for recruitment purposes under the proposed new Policy.

The Committee carried out a consultation exercise with our largest
shareholders to seek feedback on the proposed Policy. Investors consulted
were broadly supportive of the proposals.

Remunerationin relation to 2025
The Committee has decided not to make salary adjustments for the Executive
Directors with effect from1June 2024.

The Committee proposes to continue to use Group financial, strategic and
individual performance against targets for the 2024 financial year as the
basis on which the combined incentive will be awarded. The performance
measures applied to the CIP will be:

— 60% financial performance;
— 30% strategic performance; and

— 10% personal objectives.

Inrelation to the financial target, the Committee has ensured that a sufficiently
stretching range has been set by taking account of a number of internal and
external reference points and the impact of regulatory change. The target
range is considered commercially sensitive and so will be disclosed in next
year's Annual Report. With regard to the strategic and personal objectives,
these willbe evaluated based on quantitative measurable objectivesin the
significant majority of cases. Again, these are considered commercially
sensitive so detailed disclosure of these quantitative performance measures
and associated outcomes will be included in the 2025 Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

Inorder to comply with the MIFIDPRU Remuneration Code, CIP awards wil be
made 40% in cashand 60% inshares.

I'hope you find this report provides a clear understanding of the Committee’s
approachto remuneration and that you willbe supportive of the resolutions
relating to remuneration at the 2024 AGM.

S

Sarahing

Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee

20 June 2024

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Committee has undertaken areview of the Remuneration Policy that was approved by shareholders at the AGM held on 29 July 2021and concluded
it remains aligned with CMC Markets' strategy. The new Policy set out below will be put to shareholders for approval at the 2024 AGM, therefore, remains
substantially the same as the 2021 Policy. The changes primarily reflect incorporation of the FCA's Consumer Duty requirements and anincrease in the
Maximum Award to 350% of salary. Further details are available in the Committee Chairs letter on page 95.

Policy table

The below table summarises the key components of the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors.

Purpose andlink to strategy Operation

Maximum opportunity Performance measures

The Policy is for base salary to be competitive.
In making this assessment the Committee has
regard for:

Base salary

Toreflect the market value
of the role andindividual's

experience, responsibility

Business performanceis
consideredinany adjustment to
base salary.

Executive Director salary increases
willnormally be inline with those
awarded to the wider employee
population.

— theindividual'srole, responsibilities and experience;

and contribution. )
) Increases may be above this level
— business performance and the external e . . .
economic environment if: (i) thereis anincreasein sggle,
’ scope or market comparability of
— salary levels for similar roles at relevant therole; and/or (i) an Executive
comparators;and Director has been promoted or has
) ) had a changeinresponsibilities.
— salaryincreasesacross the Group payablein cash.
i ) o Where increases are awarded
Salarles are rewewedlon anannual basis, with any -
increase normally taking effect from1June. employee population, the
Committee will provide an
explanationintherelevant year's
Remuneration report.
Pension Executive Directors participate in a defined Aligned to the all-employee Not applicable.
To provide competitive contribution pension scheme or may receive maximum employer contribution
retirement benefits. acashallowanceinlieu. level, whichis currently 7%in the

UKand11.5%in Australia. Thisisin
alignment with Provision 38 of the
UK Corporate Governance Code.
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Purpose andlink to strategy

Governance

Operation

Financial statements

Maximum opportunity

Shareholder information

Performance measures

Share Incentive Plan (“SIP”)
Toencourage broad
employee share ownership.

Inline with HMRC rules, Executive Directors are
entitled to participate in the SIP on the same terms
as other employees.

Inline with HMRC permitted limits.

Notapplicable.

Benefits
To provide market
competitive benefits.

Benefits include life insurance, permanent health
insurance, private medical insurance, dental
insurance, health screening/assessment, critical
illnessinsurance, interest-free season ticket loans,
gymmembership, eye tests, cycle to work, childcare
vouchers, dining card, travel insurance and club
membership.

Where appropriate, other benefits may be offered
including, but not limited to, allowances for relocation
and other expatriate benefits to performtheirrole.

Benefits may vary by role and
individual circumstances and are
reviewed periodically to ensure they
remain competitive.

The maximum value of the benefits
is unlikely to exceed 10% of salary.

Not applicable.

Combined Incentive Plan
(“CIP”)
Toensurethatincentives
are fully aligned to the
Group's strategy.

The value of an award will be determined based on
performance achieved in the previous financial year
against defined financial and strategic targets.

Performance conditions andtargets are reviewed
prior to the start of the year to ensure they are
appropriate and stretching andreinforce the business
strategy. At the end of the year the Committee
determines the extent to which these were achieved.

The award willbe delivered as follows:

Cashaward: 40% of the award will be settled in cash
as soon as practicable following the financial year.

Deferred Shares: 60% of the award will be deferred
into shares for up to five years following the financial
year. This portion of the award will vest subject to the
achievement of a three-year performance underpin
to ensure the deferred portion of the awardis
warranted based on sustained success.

Subject to the achievement of the performance
underpinand continued service, the Deferred Share
portion of the award will vest over a period of at least
five years. For 2024/25, itis anticipated this willbe
as follows, although the Committee will continue to
monitor both market and regulatory developments
inrespect of vesting and holding periods and may
for future awards adjust the vesting schedule:

— 40% after three years',
— 30%after four years';and
— 30%afterfive years'.

The combined incentive awards are discretionary.
Dividend equivalents may accrue on the Deferred
Share portion of the award and be paid on those
shares that vest.

Awards under the CIP are non-pensionable and
are subject to malus and clawback for a seven-year
period from grant in the event of a material financial
misstatement, gross misconduct, calculation error,
failure of risk management, material reputational
damage or any other circumstance the Committee
considers appropriate.

1 Four, five and six yearsin total respectively allowing for the one-year
performance period to determine the deferred award amount.

Participantsinthe CIP willinclude
the Executive Directors.

Executive Directors
(excluding CEQ):

Awards may be up to 350% of
salary, delivered as follows:

— cashaward: 140% of salary
(120% of salary from 2023); and

— Deferred Shares: 210% of salary
(180% of salary from 2023).

Current CEO:

Inrespect of the current CEO, Peter
Cruddas, awards may be made only
up to 135% of salary. From 2023
40% of the award has beenmade in
cashand 60% deferredinto shares.

Performanceis assessed against
Group andindividual performance
measures as considered
appropriate by the Committee.

Financial performance willaccount
for atleast 60% of anaward. For
this portion, 25% of the maximum
would be payable for performance
at thresholdlevel and 50% for
target performance.

Itis anticipated that the
performance measures appliedin
2024/25 will be:

- 60% financial:based on
achievement of absolute
earnings per share targets;

— 30% strategic: based onthe
achievement of measurable
objectives against targets
relating to strategic business
development milestones; and

— 10% personal objectives.

The Deferred Share portion will
vest subject to a performance
underpin measured over a period
of atleast three years starting

from the end of the year used
todetermine the amount of the
award. The Committee will review
Group performance over the
relevant period, taking into account
factors suchas: a) the Company’s
TSR performance; b) aggregate
profit levels; and ¢) any regulatory
breaches during the period or

any other such factor that the
Committee considers appropriate,
which may include personal
performance of the relevant
Executive Director.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued
Policy table continued

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

2024 Management

Equity Plan (“MEP”)
Toreinforce delivery of
sustained long-term success
and align the interests of
participants with those

of shareholders.

Inrespect of Executive Directors, LTIP awards may
only be granted by the Remuneration Committee to
facilitate external recruitment, i.e. tobe used as the
vehicle for buying out incentive awards forfeited on
leaving a previous employer as per the recruitment
policy set out below. Awards may consist of
performance shares (nil cost options or conditional
rights to receive shares) or market value options or a
combination of the two.

125% of salary innormal circumstances
and up to 200% of salary in exceptional
circumstances or an equivalent
economic value whereanawardis a
combination of shares and options.

Vesting for threshold performance
inrespect of any performance share
awards is up to 25% of maximum.

LTIP awards normally vest after three years.

The Committee may extend the LTIP time horizon by
introducing a holding period of up totwo years or by
extending the vesting period, e.g.if regulations require.

The number of performance shares and/or options
vestingis dependent on the degree to which any
performance conditions attached to the LTIP award
have been met over the performance period.

Dividend equivalents may accrue on performance
shares and be paid on those shares which vest.

The award levels and performance conditions
arereviewed in advance of grant to ensure they
are appropriate.

Awards under the LTIP are non-pensionable and
are subject to malus and clawback provisions for a
seven-year period fromgrantinthe event of amaterial
financial misstatement, gross misconduct, calculation
error, failure of risk management or inany other
circumstance the Committee considers appropriate.

Awards will generally vest
subject to the Company's
performance and continued
employment.

The Committee has flexibility
toadjustany performance
measures and weightings
inadvance of each future
award cycle toensure

they continue to support
delivery of the Company’s
strategy. Over the term of this
policy, performance will be
predominantly dependent
onfinancialand/or share
price-related measures.

The Committee has flexibility
to adjust downwards the
formulaic outcome based on
its assessment of underlying
performance, and results
being achieved within the
Company'srisk appetite,
over the performance period.

Notes to the Policy table
In addition to the elements of remuneration detailed in the Policy table, any historical awards or commitments described in this report which were made prior to,
but due to be fulfilled after the approval and implementation of, the Remuneration Policy detailed in this report will be honoured.

Shareholding guidelines
Executive Directors are required to build up a holding of 200% of base annual salary. Executive Directors will be required to build up to this level over a period

of five years, starting from the date of our listing in 2016 for the Executive Directors who were inrole at the time the 2018 Remuneration Policy was approved
and from the date of appointment for any recruits since that time or in future. Executive Directors will be expected to retain at least 50% of shares vesting (net of
tax) until the guideline levelis achieved. For the purposes of satisfying the shareholding requirement, shares held by a connected person (e.g. a spouse) will be

considered to beincluded.

A post-employment shareholding requirement will apply of 200% of base annual salary (or the actual shareholding at date of exit if lower) for a period of two years
after leaving employment.

Dividend equivalents
Dividend equivalents are payable on the Deferred Share portion of the combined incentive.

Clawback and malus provisions

Awards under the CIP and LTIP will be subject to provisions that allow the Committee to withhold, reduce or require the repayment of awards after vesting if there
is foundto have been: (a) material misstatement of the Company’s financial results; (b) gross misconduct on the part of the award holder; or (c) any other material
event as the Committee considers appropriate.
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Risk considerations

The Remuneration Policy is also designed to promote sound and effective risk management. The Remuneration Committee reviews and approves the
Remuneration Policy for allemployees, including for Material Risk Takers and senior risk and compliance employees, to help ensure pay arrangements
encourage appropriate behaviour and compliance with the Company’s risk appetite. For example, allemployees receive a salary which reflects their market
value, responsibilities and experience. Anindividual may only receive an annualincentive award if they operate within the risk appetite of the Company and
have demonstrated appropriate behaviour. Key senior managers are eligible for consideration of LTIP awards, with any vesting based on performance over at
least two years. The Committee has flexibility to adjust the formulaic outcome if the Company's recorded performance is not a genuine reflection of underlying
business performance or if results were not achieved within the Company's risk appetite. CIP awards are subject to malus and clawback for all participantsin
various circumstances, including a failure of risk management. The Chief Financial Officer is closely involved in the remuneration process to ensure that both
Remuneration Policy and outcomes reinforce compliance with the Company's risk appetite, including reporting independently to the Committee at least annually
oncompliance with the risk appetite, on any notable risk events and on the behaviour of the Material Risk Takers.

Incentive plan discretions

The Committee will operate the Company’sincentive plans according to their respective rules and the Policy set out above, and in accordance with relevant
financial services regulations, the Listing Rules and HMRC rules where relevant.

Following amendments in 2019 the CIP specifically includes relevant clauses to ensure the Remuneration Committee is able to use its discretion to reduce the
value of a cash award or the number of shares to a share award or the extent to which a share award will vest, to avoid an otherwise formulaic outcome.

Inline withcommon market practice, the Committee retains discretion as to the operation and administration of these incentive plans, including:

— whoparticipates;

— thetiming of grant and/or payment;

— thesize of anaward and/or payment (within the plan limits approved by shareholders);

— themannerinwhich awards are settled;

— the choice of (and adjustment of) performance measures and targets in accordance with the Remuneration Policy set out above and the rules of each plan;

— inexceptional circumstances, amendment of any performance conditions applying to an award, provided the new performance conditions are considered fair
andreasonable, and are neither materially more nor materially less challenging than the original performance targets when set;

— discretionrelating to the measurement of performance in the event of a variation of share capital, change of control, special dividend, distribution or any other
corporate event which may affect the current or future value of an award;

— determination of agood leaver (in addition to any specified categories) for incentive plan purposes, based on the rules of each plan and the appropriate
treatment under the planrules; and

— adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g. rights issues, share buybacks, special dividends, other corporate events, etc.).

Any use of the above discretions would, where relevant, be explainedin the Annual report on remuneration. As appropriate, it might also be the subject of
consultation with the Company’s major shareholders.

Performance measurement selection

The Company’sincentive plans are designed to incentivise the achievement of demanding financial and business-related objectives, using a balance of
measures which could include absolute and relative performance measures, as appropriate, selected to support the Group's key strategic priorities.

The CIPis designed to align the interests of our participants with the longer-term interests of the Company’s shareholders by rewarding them for delivering
sustained increases in shareholder value within the Group's risk appetite. CIP performance measures selected reinforce the Group’s strategy over the medium
tolong term, and provide a balance of internal and external perspectives. The Committee has selected EPS as the primary measure as thisis a widely accepted
measure of bottom-line financial performance and is well aligned with shareholder interests. Performance measures and targets are reviewed by the Committee
ahead of each performance period to ensure they are appropriately stretching and achievable over the performance period.

The CIP strengthens the alignment of pay with the measures of performance that are important in creating value for shareholders and also forms a strong
retention and motivation mechanism for Executives. The performance measures selected are acombination of financial performance, strategic performance
andindividual objectives. The achievement of these performance measures will be reviewed by the Committee ahead of any award and the vesting of share
awards will be subject to the achievement of a performance underpin over the vesting period.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Executive Directors’ remuneration scenarios

The charts below provide estimates of the potential future reward opportunity for each of the four Executive Directors and the implied split between the different
elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios: “Minimum’, “Ontarget” and “Maximum’.

Peter Cruddas David Fineberg
2,500 2500
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1,928.5 ’
2,000+ 2,000+
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3 1500 3 1,500}
8 S 1,005.80
“1,000 “1,000
500 500
0 0
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price growth price growth
.s00. AlbertSoleiman 500, Matthew Lewis
2,000+ 2,000+
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o 1500 o 1500
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] S
“1,000 “1000}
500 500(~ 313.5
100%
0 0 00%
Minimum Ontarget Maximum Maximum +50% Minimum Ontarget Maximum Maximum +50%
withshare with share
price growth price growth
W Fixedremuneration B CIPcashelement HCIPshare element
Assumptions underlying each element of remuneration are provided in the table below.
Maximum with
Component Minimum Ontarget Maximum share price growth
Fixed Base salary Latestsalary n/a n/a n/a
Pension Contribution applies to n/a n/a n/a
latest salary
Other benefits Aspresentedasasingle n/a n/a n/a
figure onpage 106
Combined incentive No payment 50% of maximum 100% of maximum 100% of maximum with

50% growthin share price

The column headed “Maximum with share price growth” is the maximum figure but includes share price growth of 50% for any part of the CIP paid in shares.
Otherwise, the projected value of the deferred element of the combined incentive excludes the impact of share price growth and any potential dividend accrual.
Actual remuneration delivered, however, will be influenced by these factors. Deferred awards are subject to continuing employment.
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Remuneration Policy for new hires
Inthe case of hiring or appointing a new Executive Director, the Committee may make use of all the existing components of remuneration.

The salaries of new appointees will be determined by reference to their role and responsibilities, experience and skills, relevant market data, internal relativities
and their current salaries. New appointees will be eligible to receive a pension contribution or allowance and benefits and participate in the Company’'s HMRC
approved all-employee Share Incentive Plan, in line with the Remuneration Policy.

New appointees will be entitled to participate in the CIP, as described in the Policy table, with the relevant maximum being pro-rated to reflect the period served.
The Deferred Share portion of anew appointee’'s combined incentive award will normally vest on the same terms as other Executive Directors, as described in the
Policy table. Individual objectives will be tailored to the individual's role.

In determining appropriate remuneration for anew Executive Director, the Committee will take into consideration all relevant factors (including quantum, nature
of remuneration and the jurisdiction from which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that the remuneration arrangements are appropriate andinthe interests
of the Company andits shareholders. The Committee may consider it appropriate to “buy out” incentive arrangements forfeited by an Executive onleaving a
previous employer and may exercise the discretion available under Listing Rule 9.4.2 if necessary. In doing so, the Committee will ensure that the value of any
buyout will as closely as possible mirror the expected value of awards forgone (taking into account progress against any performance conditions attached), and
take into consideration the timeframe, performance conditions attached and type of award forgone when constructing a buyout award. Buyout awards willbe
subject to continued employment over the performance period.

Incases of appointing anew Executive Director by way of internal promotion, the Remuneration Committee will be consistent with the Policy for external
appointees detailed above. Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their promotion to Executive Director level, the Company will
continue to honour these arrangements.

Inthe case of hiring or appointing a new Non-Executive Director, the Committee will follow the Policy as set out in the table on page 103.

Service contracts

The Executive Directors are employed under contracts of employment with CMC Markets UK plc. The principal terms of the Executive Directors’ service
contracts are as follows:

Notice period from
Executive Director Position Effective date of contract Company Notice period from Director
Peter Cruddas Chief Executive Officer 1February 2016 12 months 12 months
Albert Soleiman Chief Financial Officer 1September 2023 6 months 6 months
David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer 1February 2016 6 months 6 months
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada 1November 2019 6months 6 months

The terms shownin the table above are inline with the Company policy of operating notice periods of up to nine monthsin the case of Executive Directors, except
for the CEQ service contract which can have a notice period of up to 12 months. Allemployees including Executive Directors are subject to a six-month probation
period. The contracts have no fixed duration.

Executive Directors’ contracts are available to view at the Company’s registered office.

Letters of appointment are provided to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment, which means that
they retire at each AGM and are put up for re-election at the AGM. Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are available to view at the Company’s
registered office.

Non-Executive Directors are all on a three-month notice period. Details of the effective date of Non-Executive Directors' letters of appointment are set out below:

Non-Executive Director Date of initial letter Date of latest letter Date of appointment
James Richards 20 October 2014 16 February 2018 1April 2015
SarahIng 7 July 2017 7 July 2017 14 September 2017
Paul Wainscott 11July 2017 11July 2017 19 October 2017
Susanne Chishti 1June 2022 1June 2022 1June 2022

Clare Francis 14 December 2022 14 December 2022 19 December 2022
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued
Exit payment policy

The Company considers termination payments on a case-by-case basis, taking into account relevant contractual terms, the circumstances of the termination
and any applicable duty to mitigate. In such an event, the remuneration commitments in respect of Executive Directors’ contracts could amount to salary, benefits
inkind and pension rights during the notice period, together with payment in lieu of any accrued but untaken holiday leave, if applicable.

The Committee would apply general principles of mitigation to any payment made to a departing Executive Director and would honour previous commitments as
appropriate, considering each case on anindividual basis.

The table below summarises how the awards under the Combined Incentive Plan and LTIP are typically treated in different leaver scenarios and on a change of
control. The Committee retains discretion on determining “good leaver” status, but it typically defines a “good leaver” in circumstances such as retirement with
agreement of the Board, ill health, injury or disability, death, statutory redundancy, or part of the business in which the individual is employed or engaged ceases to
be amember of the Group. Final treatment is subject to the Committee’s discretion.

Event Timing of vesting/award Calculation of vesting/payment
CiP “Good leaver” Onnormal vesting date (or earlier at the Unvested awards vest to the extent that any performance conditions
Committee’s discretion). have been satisfied and are pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the
vesting period served.
“Badleaver” Unvested awards lapse. Unvested awards lapse on cessation of employment.
Change of control' Onthe date of the event. The Committee will determine the level of vesting, taking account of

the extent to which performance conditions have been or are likely
to be satisfied and, unless the Committee decides otherwise, the
proportion of the vesting period served.

LTIP “Good leaver” Onnormal vesting date (or earlier Unvested awards vest to the extent that any performance conditions
atthe Committee’s discretion). have been satisfied and are pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the
vesting period served.

“‘Badleaver” Unvested awards lapse. Unvested awards lapse on cessation of employment.

Change of control' Onthe date of the event. The Committee will determine the level of vesting, taking account of
the extent to which performance conditions have been or are likely
tobe satisfied and, unless the Committee decides otherwise, the
proportion of the vesting period served.

1 Incertain circumstances, the Committee may determine that any Deferred Share awards under the annual incentive and both unvested and any deferred awards under the LTIP and CIP will not vest on a change of
controland instead be replaced by an equivalent grant of a new award, as determined by the Committee, in the new company.

Upon exit or change of control, SIP awards will be treated in line with the approved planrules.

If employment s terminated by the Company, the departing Executive Director may have a legal entitiement (under statute or otherwise) to additional amounts,
which would need to be met. In addition, the Committee retains discretion to settle other amounts reasonably due to the Executive Director, for example to
meet the legal fees incurred by the Executive Director in connection with the termination of employment, where the Company wishes to enter into a settliement
agreement (as provided for below) and, in which case, the individual is required to seek independent legal advice.

In certain circumstances, the Committee may approve new contractual arrangements with departing Executive Directors including (but not limited to) settlement,
confidentiality, restrictive covenants and/or consultancy arrangements. These will be used sparingly and only entered into where the Committee believes that itis
inthe bestinterests of the Company and its shareholders to do so.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group

In making remuneration decisions, the Committee takes into account the pay and employment conditions of employees across the Group. In particular, the
Committee considers the range of base pay increases across the Company as a factor in determining the base salary increases for Executive Directors. The
Committee does not consult with employees on the Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy nor does it use any remuneration comparison measurements.

Remuneration Policy for other employees

CMC Markets' approach to annual salary reviews is consistent across the Group. Allemployees are eligible to participate in the annual incentive award scheme
oranequivalent scheme, with targets appropriate to their organisational level and business area. Key senior managers are also eligible for LTIP awards to further
supportlong-term alignment with shareholder interests.
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Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee is committed to an ongoing dialogue on Directors’ remuneration. It is the Remuneration Committee’s intention to consult with major shareholders
prior to any major changes to its Remuneration Policy. As part of the renewal process we correspond with all significant shareholders to seek their views on
proposed changes.

Group’s Remuneration Policy for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Board determines the Remuneration Policy and level of fees for the Non-Executive Directors, within the limits set out in the Articles of Association.

The Remuneration Committee recommends the Remuneration Policy and level of fees for the Chairman of the Board. Full details of the current fees paid canbe
found on Page 113. The Group'’s policy is:

Purpose andlink to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures
Feesaresettoattract Annual base fee for the Chairman. Feeincreases are appliedinline with the Not applicable.
suitable individuals witha outcome of the review.
broadrange of experience  Annual base fee for the Non-Executive Directors. Aqareqate fees will not exceed the limit
and skills to oversee Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors agg coa deb eeﬁa h c|> de cieth Ae ticles of
shareholders'interestsand  for additional services such as chairinga Board pproye . vS lre .O ersinthe Aricies

. ) . Association, whichis currently £750,000.
Company strategy. Committee, performing the role of Senior Independent

Furthermorefeesaresetto  Director,etc.
reflect market value of the

role and the individual's time
commitment, responsibility,

Fees are reviewed from time to time taking into
account time commitment, responsibilities and fees
paid by companies of a similar size and complexity. Fee

erformance and ; o .
2 T increases are then applied in line with the outcome of
) the review.
Expenses

The Company may reimburse NEDs in cash for
reasonable expenses (including any tax due thereon)
incurredin carrying out their role.

Minor changes
The Committee may make minor amendments to the Policy set out above (for regulatory, exchange control, tax or administrative purposes or to take account
of achange in legislation) without requiring prior shareholder approval for that amendment.

Annual report on remuneration

Principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee is responsible for determining the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors and ensuring that incentive payments are aligned to the
Company's purpose, values and strategy in order to promote long-term sustainable success. The Committee is also responsible for setting the remuneration
of the Chairman of the Board and members of the senior leadership team, including the Company Secretary, and overseeing the remuneration framework and
practices for the wider workforce.

The mainrole and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:
— reviewing and agreeing appropriate Remuneration Policies which comply with all relevant regulations;

— reviewing and determining the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the senior management team, having regard to remuneration of the wider
CMC workforce;

— reviewing and ensuring thatincentive payments to Executive Directors are linked to the achievement of stretching financial performance and both strategic
andindividual agreed objectives;

— ensuring that remuneration incentivises and aims to retains key employees including the Executive Directors and senior management;
— ensuring that Executive remunerationis linked to the delivery of the long-term success of the Company;

— having oversight of the operation of remuneration arrangements across the CMC Group through regular review of “management” informationincluding
gender-related data;

— reviewing any major changes to employee benefit structures, including new share schemes, and ensuring that shareholders are consulted and the required
approval processes are followed;

— reviewing the appropriateness of remuneration against the risk management strategy following advice from the Group Risk Committee; and

— oversees the adherence of all relevant regulations relating to Executive Director remuneration.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Committee composition, attendance and advisers

The Committee is chaired by Sarah Ing with James Richards, Paul Wainscott, Susanne Chishti (from 1June 2022) and Clare Francis (from 19 December 2022)

as members, all of whom are considered independent.

The Committee held seven scheduled meetings in the financial year, and attendance by Committee members is shown on page 94.

During the year, the Committee was advised by independent remuneration consultants Willis Towers Watson (“WTW'") on various remuneration matters
including providing advice on all elements of remuneration for the Executive Directors, the Remuneration Policy and best-practice and market updates.
WTW isamember of the Remuneration Consultants Group (‘RCG”) andis a signatory to the RCG's Code of Conduct. It was confirmed that none of the
Committee members had any connection or conflicts of interest in regard to this appointment. Additional legal advice was sought from Tapestry Compliance

Limitedinrespect of the Group’s share-based plans.

The Chief Executive Officer, Deputy CEO, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Asia Pacific & Canada attend Committee meetings by invitation but do not attend to
take partin any discussions relating to their own remuneration. The Head of HR attends Committee meetings where appropriate to the matters being considered
including both Executive and wider workforce remuneration. No Director or employee is involved in discussions regarding their own pay.

Main activities during the financial year

May 2023

— Overview of corporate salary review and bonus allocation for 2023.
Consideration of CIP and MEP performance conditions.
Senior management performance and consideration of LTIP awards.
Reviewing the draft Directors' remunerationreport.
Consideration of Executive Director performance and CIP awards.
Indicative vesting of 2021 MEP awards.

Confirmation of the appointment of the Company Secretary.

January 2024

Discussion onthe FCA letter to RemCo chairs and the EU Pay
Transparency Directive.

Update onrenewal of Executive Remuneration Policy and agreement to
the letter to shareholders.

Consideration of the CIP performance underpin.

Consideration of remuneration matters arising from senior hires and exits.

March 2024

— Consideration of fair pay analysis and gender pay reporting 2023/24.

— Discussion of the proposed bonus pool for 2024 and corporate
salary review.

— Discussion on Executive Director performance.
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July 2023

— Approving the grantand vesting of incentive schemes.

— Approving 2024/25 Executive Director performance objectives.

November 2023

— Initial discussions regarding the review of the Executive Directors’
Remuneration Policy.

Considering diversity andinclusion targets.
Approving 2023/24 performance objectives for the newly appointed CFO.
ReceivingH12024 performance management update for Executive Directors.

Approving the reappointment of remuneration consultants.

February 2024

— Discussingindicative performance review ratings for business teams/
senior staff.
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Compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
The Committee considers the Remuneration Policy and current practices to address the requirements contained within Provision 40 of the Code. Asnotedinthe
Committee Chair's statement, Susanne Chishtiis the designated Non-Executive Director for engaging with the workforce on a variety of topics including remuneration.

Provision

How addressed

Clarity —remuneration arrangements should be transparent and
promote effective engagement with shareholders and the
workforce.

The Remuneration Policy is clearly disclosed in this report and the Committee has proactively
engaged with key institutional shareholders as part of the renewal process. The Committee
receives regular updates on market practice and has received updates on pay within the
wider workforce.

Simplicity —remuneration structures should avoid complexity
and their rationale and operation should be easy to understand.

The Committee aims for our arrangements to be as simple as possible by, for example,
operating asingle combined incentive arrangement. Our aimis for disclosure in this report to
be easy to understand for our stakeholders.

Risk —remuneration arrangements should ensure reputational
and other risks from excessive rewards, and behavioural risks that
canarise from target-based incentive plans, are identified and
mitigated.

The Company’s discretionary incentive plans ensure the Committee has discretion to reduce
the size of awards and awards are subject to malus and clawback provisions. The Committee
has discretion to adjust formulaic outcomesif it does not consider them appropriate (see
Policy pages 960 103).

Predictability — the range of possible reward values to individual
Directors and any other limits or discretions should be identified
and explained at the time of approving the Policy.

Scenario charts for all Executive Directors are included in the Remuneration Policy and show
estimates of potential future reward opportunity and the implied split between the different
elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios. The Policy includes
an explanation of the discretions that can be exercised by the Committee.

Proportionality — the range of possible reward outcomes, the
delivery of strategy and the long-term performance of the
Company should be clear. Outcomes should not reward poor
performance.

Asignificant part of an Executive’'s rewardis linked to performance with a clear line of sight
between business performance and the delivery of shareholder value.

Alignment to culture —incentive schemes should drive
behaviours consistent with Company purpose, values and
strategy.

The incentive arrangements and the performance measures used are strongly aligned to
those that the Board considers when determining the success of the implementation of the
Company’s strategy. Please see pages 18 to 22 of this report for more information onthe
Company’s strategy and key performance indicators.

The Remuneration Policy operated as intended in the year ended 31 March 2024 and the following section sets out the remuneration arrangements and
outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2024, and how the Committee intends the Remuneration Policy to apply during the year ending 31 March 2025.

The following pages have been prepared in accordance with Part 3 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended) and Rules 9.8.6 and 9.8.8 of the Listing Rules. The Directors’ remuneration report, including the Remuneration Policy, will be put
toashareholder vote at the Annual General Meeting on 25 July 2024. The revised Remuneration Policy will also be put to the shareholders for approval at the

Annual General Meeting.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Single total figure of Executive Director remuneration (audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of the remuneration received by each Executive Director who served during the years ended 31 March 2023

and 31March2024.
Total fixed Annual Long-term  Totalvariable
Year ended Salary Benefits' Pension* Other®  remuneration incentives? incentives®  remuneration Total

Name 31March £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2024 700.0 3.0 - - 703.0 254.2 - 254.2 957.2
Peter Cruddas

2023 700.0 30 — — 703.0 137.6 — 137.6 840.6

2024 363.1 15 25.4 1.8 391.8 276.8 143.8 420.6 8124
David Fineberg

2023 350.0 17 30.8 1.8 384.3 148.2 110.0 258.2 6425

2024 216.7 11 18.4 0.6 236.8 — — — 236.8
Euan Marshall”

2023 250.0 1.7 23.2 1.8 276.7 725 — 725 349.2

2024 288.6 0.4 32.0 — 321.0 2431 89.4 332.4 653.4
Matthew Lewis®

2023 288.2 04 1313 — 301.9 1314 34.6 166.0 467.9

2024 175.0 0.8 (0] 11 176.9 141.6 (0] 141.6 318.4
Albert Soleimané

2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

8

Benefits: taxable value of benefits received in the year by Executive Directors comprises private health insurance and club membership for Peter Cruddas, healthinsurance for David Fineberg, Albert Soleiman and
Euan Marshall and life assurance for Matthew Lewis.

The total cash element of the CIP award earned in respect of performance during the relevant financial year.

Thelong-termincentive paymentsin 2023 to David Fineberg, Euan Marshall and Matthew Lewis relate to the vesting of the first tranche of the CIP award granted in 2020. The Remuneration Committee agreed there
were no factors prompting the application of the performance underpin; therefore, the first tranche will vest in full. Dividend equivalents are included in the figures. The value of the award was calculated using the
average closing share price on the date of vest of £154. The value attributable to share price growthis -£116,106, and -£43,126 for David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis respectively. This was calculated using the grant
price of £3.49 and the vesting price (share price as at date of award vest) of £1.54.

Thelong-termincentive payment in 2024 to David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis relates to the vesting of the first tranche of the CIP award granted in 2021 and the second tranche of the CIP award grantedin 2020.
Inrelation to the 2020 CIP award the Remuneration Committee agreed there were no factors prompting the application of the performance underpin; therefore, the second tranche will vest in full. Dividend equivalents
are not included in the figures. The value of the award was calculated using the average closing share price in the last three months of 2024 of £1.55. The value attributable to share price growthis -£86,275 and
-£32,046 for David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis respectively. This was calculated using the grant price of £3.49 and the vesting price (share price as at date of award vest) of £1.55.

Inrelation to the 2021 CIP award the Remuneration Committee agreed there were no factors prompting the application of the performance underpin; therefore, the tranche will vest in full. Dividend equivalents are not
includedin the figures. The value of the award was calculated using the average closing share price in the last three months of 2024 of £1.55. The value attributable to share price growth is -£134,710 and -£118,227 for
David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis respectively. This was calculated using the grant price of £4.45 and the vesting price (share price as at date of award vest) of £1.55. Euan Marshall received an award in 2021 but this
was forfeited upon his resignation from the Board.

Neither Peter Cruddas nor Albert Soleiman received payments relating to the vesting of CIP awardsin FY24.

Pension: during the year ended 31 March 2024, David Fineberg, Albert Soleiman and Euan Marshall were eligible to receive a Company pension contribution of up to 7% of salary in line with the maximum contribution
received by employees across the Group. Matthew Lewis received contributions to the Superannuation planin Australia. Peter Cruddas opted out of the plan and no compensation was provided. No current or past
Executive Directors have a prospective right to a final salary pension or cash balanced benefits by reference to years of qualifying service.

Share Incentive Plan: employees, including the Executive Directors, are entitled to participate in the SIP throughout the year; it allows employees and Directors to receive one matching share for every partnership share
purchased under the SIP up to the limits defined by HMRC. In 2024, 1,402 matching shares were allocated to David Fineberg, 466 matching shares were allocated to Euan Marshall and 935 matching shares were
allocated to Albert Soleiman calculated on the dates of purchase. The free and matching shares will be forfeited if, within three years from the date of grant, the individual leaves employment in certain circumstances.
Peter Cruddas and Matthew Lewis do not participate in the plan.

The decrease in salary for Matthew Lewis reflects prevailing exchange rates.

Figures for Euan Marshall reflect the period 1 April 2023 to 31 December 2023 following his resignation from the Board. Euan Marshall received CIP awards in 2020 and 2021 but these were forfeited upon his
resignation from the Board. He only received his contractual six-month notice and no compensation for loss of office.

Figures for Albert Soleiman reflect the period from 1 September 2023 to 31 March 2024 following his appointment to the Board.

CIP for the year ended 31 March 2024 (audited)

During the year ended 31 March 2024 the Executive Directors participated in the Combined Incentive Plan with a maximum opportunity of up to 135% of salary
for Peter Cruddas, CEO, and up to 300% of salary for David Fineberg, Deputy CEO, Albert Soleiman, CFO, and Matthew Lewis, Head of Asia Pacific & Canada.

In considering the combined incentive cash award and share award, together comprising the award, due to the Executive Directors for the year ended
31March 2024, the Committee reviewed Group earnings per share (‘EPS”) against targets over the period.

Financial performance measures account for 60% of the total award.

Measure Threshold Target Maximum Actual

Group earnings per share (‘EPS”) 9.3 pence (25%) 15.4 pence (50%) 23.0 pence (100%) 16.7 pence (58.6%)

The Group successfully delivered a diluted EPS of 16.7 pence against a target of 15.4 pence, resulting in a 58.6% award from this element of the Plan.
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Group strategic and personal performance measures
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Shareholder information

Strategic performance measures account for 30% of the total award and personal measures account for 10% of the total award.

Chief Executive Officer strategic objectives (30%) Score Assessment

Continue to evolve CMC's strategy to broaden its product range and geographical reach 90%  Strong progress has been made with the delivery of cash equities, initial

inline with the financial, commercial and risk metrics agreed with the Board. rollout of options, opening of the Bermuda office and growth of the Middle
Easternbusiness.

Provide strategic oversight to the delivery of the options and equities project to Connect 90%  Peterhasbeenkey to the structure and delivery of this product whichis key

and Prime clients. for CMC's future growth.

Drive CMC's leveraged business to ensure levels of client retention and overall 90% CMCremains amarketleader across anumber of measures for the quality of

satisfaction are improved and notimpacted by the diversification of the business. platformand productsit provides.

Continue to evolve and develop the senior leadership team to reflect the increasing 90%  Theappointment of the new CFO has provided an opportunity toimprove

complexity and strategic ambition of CMC. the diversity of the senior team and has brought a different perspective to the
Executive Committee.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team the development and delivery of a strategy to 75%  Good progress continues to be made with the exception of the declinein

improve diversity and inclusionand ESG across CMC. employee engagement.

Award for strategic objectives 26%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership skills 60% Peterhas continuedtolead by example to deliver to the Company’s values,

fully aligned with CMC values, ways of working and conduct code. ways of working and code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 6%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 32%

Deputy CEO strategic objectives (30%) Score Assessment

Deliver and embed an effective Risk Management Framework. 75%  Good progress has been made inimplementing the recommendations of
ERM framework review.

Lead the creation of new entities and partnerships to offer trading to US customers. 90%  Strong progress has been made in developing the app and preparing for a
Qftlaunch.

Lead the dynamic hedging project to tackle concentrated exposures and better 90% Enhancementstoindex and FX strategies now in place and producing

withstand market volatilities. positive results.

Deliver aviable offering to migrate futures flow to CMC. 75%  Good progress has been made with vendor selection complete and due to
be fully operationalin H1 FY25.

Implement and embed the Board approved consumer duty plan. 90%  Consumer Duty is now implemented within CMC with some minor areas of
enhancement required to ensure itis fully embedded.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team the development and delivery of a strategy to 75%  Good progress continues to be made with the exception of the declinein

improve diversity and inclusionand ESG across CMC. employee engagement.

Award for strategic objectives 25%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership skills 60%  David has continuedto lead by example to deliver to the Company’s values,

fully aligned with CMC values, ways of working and conduct code. ways of working and code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 6%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 31%
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Annual report on remuneration continued

CIP for the year ended 31 March 2024 (audited) continued

Group strategic and personal performance measures continued

Based on the outcomes against the performance targets, the Committee recommended the following awards under the Combined Incentive Plan:

Chief Financial Officer strategic objectives (30%) Score  Assessment

Implement the requirements of the UK BEIS consultation. 100%  Strong progress has been made in understanding the impact of these changes on
CMC and we are well positioned toimplement to time and budget.

Project delivery tracking — Ongoing evolution of business line P&L reporting to 75%  Good progress has been made inimplementing a more robust approach to project

include revenue and cost tracking at a material project level and engendering prioritisation.

greater accountability in senior management objectives and remuneration.

ERM framework implementation—Support the delivery of the project, with 100%  Projectis nearing completion and has been delivered to a high standard.

particular focus on the capital and liquidity considerations resulting from the

ongoing diversification of the business.

ICARA review — Lead the delivery of FCA requirements resulting from the 75%  Good progress has been made with the finalimplementation of audit findings

ICARA review. nearing completion.

Cost control—Implement a cost-conscious culture through disciplined spend, 100%  Alberthasdelivered asignificant review of business costsin FY24. This has been

robust challenge and deeper cost review. Lead the cost reduction programme supplemented with a drive to build amore cost-conscious culture.

covering headcount, supplier reviews and efficiency initiatives.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team the development and delivery of a strategy 75%  Good progress continues to be made with the exception of the declinein

toimprove diversity and inclusionand ESG across CMC. employee engagement.

Award for strategic objectives 26%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership 60%  Alberthascontinued to lead by example to deliver the Company’s values, ways of

skills fully aligned with CMC values, ways of working and conduct code. working and code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 6%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 32%

Head of Asia Pacific & Canada strategic objectives (30%) Score  Assessment

Singapore Invest launch—Lead the successful phased public launch. 90%  Singapore Invest was successfully launched to the publicin September 2023 with
revenues slightly under budget.

Bermuda - Lead the successful licence application to establish an offshore entity. 75%  Good progress has been made with the licence application made and the
office opened.

MT4 —Lead the commercial improvements including premium offering, 100%  MT4 hasbeen delivered to time and budget for all milestones.

enhancements to MT4 active and MT4 spread bet.

NZ Invest - Lead the successful build and launch of the CMC Invest product for 75%  Good progress has been made with the product launch planned for Q1FY25.

New Zealand.

Automation anywhere — Lead the automation rollout of robotics across agreed 100%  Projectprogresses to time with several business efficiencies delivered and

teams and tasks. more identified.

Crypto-Lead the successful public launch of Project Digital Assets across 100%  Cryptohasexceeded all expectations and, subject to licence approvals, we expect

Australia, NZand SG. tosee further progressiononin FY25.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team the development and delivery of a strategy 75%  Good progress continues to be made with the exception of the decline in

toimprove diversity andinclusionand ESG across CMC. employee engagement.

Award for strategic objectives 26%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership 60%  Matthew has continued to lead by example to deliver the Company’s values, ways

skills fully aligned with CMC values, ways of working and conduct code. of working and code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 6%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 32%
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Executive Directors’ combined incentive outcomes

Maxaward ~ Overalloutcome (% Award  Totalaward Cashaward Shareaward

Role %salary  of maxopportunity) % salary £000 £000 % salary £'000 % salary
Peter Cruddas  Chief Executive Officer 135% 67.3% 91% 635.6 254.2 36% 3814 54%
David Fineberg Deputy Chief 300% 65.9% 198% 6921 276.8 76% 415.2 114%

Executive Officer
Albert Soleiman' Chief Financial Officer 300% 67.4% 202% 3539 1416 47% 212.3 71%
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific 300% 67.5% 203% 607.7 2431 78% 364.6 116%

& Canada

1 Theaward for Albert Soleimanis pro-rated to reflect his appointment to the role of Chief Financial Officer with effect from 1September 2023. Euan Marshall forfeited a combined incentive award for 2024 upon
resignation from the Board in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

The share element of the 2024 awards will be granted as conditional shares after the announcement of the year-end results. The award share price willbe
calculated using the three-day average share price prior to the date of grant of the award.

Awards vest at 40%, 30% and 30% after three, four and five years respectively and are subject to a performance underpin assessed at the end of three financial
years following the one-year performance period. The performance underpin will consist of a broad review of the performance of the business and will take into
account the Company’s three-year TSR performance, three-year aggregate profit levels and any regulatory breaches during the period. The Committee has
discretion to apply other factors.

Vesting of awards under the CIP in the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (audited)

Thefirst tranche of the 2020 CIP award vested to the following Executive Directors on 20 July 2023:
Totaldividend

Director Totalgrantinshares equivalent shares Total shares vested
David Fineberg 59,542 11,904 71,446
Matthew Lewis 22,116 4,419 26,535
Notes:

Euan Marshall forfeited the deferred element of the 2020 CIP award upon his resignation from the Board.

Share awards granted in year (audited)
The table below provides details of the deferred element of the 2023 CIP.

Director Face value of award (£'000) No. of shares awarded
Peter Cruddas 206.3 138,144
David Fineberg 222.3 148,795
Matthew Lewis 197.0 131,927
Notes:

The awards were granted as conditional shares. The award share price was £1.495 calculated using the three-day average share price prior to the date of grant of
theaward.

Awards vest at 40%, 30% and 30% after three, four and five years respectively and are subject to a performance underpin assessed at the end of three financial
years following the one-year performance period. The performance underpin will consist of a broad review of the performance of the business and will take into
account the Company’s three-year TSR performance, three-year aggregate profit levels and any regulatory breaches during the period. The Committee has
discretion to apply other factors. For further details please refer to the notes for the single figure table on page 106.

Euan Marshall forfeited the deferred element of the 2023 CIP award upon his resignation from the Board.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Implementationin 2024/25

Salar
The Ezecutive Directors willnot receive a pay rise with effect from 1June 2024. The table below summarises these changes:

Percentage
Name Role Previous salary Adjusted salary change
Peter Cruddas Chief Executive Officer £700,000 £700,000 0%
David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer £365,750 £365,750 0%
Albert Soleiman Chief Financial Officer £300,000 £300,000 0%
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada £287,498 £287,498 0%

Combined Incentive Plan

The Committee also proposes to continue to use Group financial, strategic and individual performance against targets for the 2024/25 financial year as the basis
on which the combined incentive willbe awarded. The performance measures applied to the combined incentive will be:

— 60%financial;
— 30% strategic performance; and

— 10% personal objectives.

Inrelation to the financial target, the Committee has ensured that a sufficiently stretching range has been set by taking account of anumber of internal and
external reference points and the impact of regulatory change. The target range will be disclosed in next year's Annual Report and Financial Statements.
With regard to the strategic and personal objectives, these will be evaluated based on quantitative measurable objectives in the significant majority of cases.

The Directors believe that these performance measures are commercially sensitive; therefore, detailed disclosure of these outcomes will be included in the 2025
Annual Report and Financial Statements. The maximum awards achievable under the CIP for 2025 willbe 350% of salary for the CFO, Deputy CEO and Head of

APAC & Canada. For the CEO the maximum award achievable is 135% of salary.

Pension

With the exception of the CEO, who does not currently participate in the scheme, the Executive Directors based in the UK can receive a pension contribution of
7% of salary or cash in lieu of pension (net employer costs). The Head of Asia Pacific & Canada receives Superannuationin Australia.

Share ownership and share interests (audited)

The Committee has adopted guidelines for Executive Directors and other senior Executives to encourage substantial long-term share ownership. Executive
Directors are expected to build and hold shares of at least 200% of salary and to retain at least 50% of shares vesting (net of tax) until the guideline is achieved.

The table below shows the interests of the Directors and connected personsin shares and the extent to which CMC Markets' shareholding guidelines

areachieved.
Unvested Unvested
Total share Total share awards awards
interests at interests at not subjectto subjectto
31March 2024 31March 2024 Requirement performance performance
Number % salary met conditions' conditions?
Executive Directors
Peter Cruddas (including shares held by spouse) 174,149,738 54 111% Yes — 205,612
David Fineberd'(including shares held by spouse) 384,319 229% Yes 3,665 335,011
Albert Soleiman (including shares held by spouse) 53,704 39% No 6,514 —
Matthew Lewis' (including shares held by spouse) 304,290 230% Yes 1,437 273,479
Euan Marshall® (including shares held by spouse) 38,852 28% No - —

1 David Fineberg and Albert Soleiman have interests under the Share Incentive Plan subject to forfeiture for three years. Matthew Lewis has interests in the International Share Incentive Plan.

2 Unvested Deferred Share awards under the CIP are included as unvested awards subject to performance conditions and do not count towards the total share interests.

3 EuanMarshall's figure s the balance as at 1 September 2023.

David Fineberg and Albert Soleiman have continued to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, each acquiring 121 matching shares and 121 partnership shares

during Apriland May.
There are no other changes to shareholdings between 31 March 2024 and 30 May 2024.
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Total shareholder return (“TSR”) performance and CEO single figure

The below chart compares the total shareholder return (“TSR”) of the Company against the FTSE 250 index based on £100 invested at listing (5 February 2016).
The FTSE 250is used as the benchmark as CMC Markets is a constituent of thisindex.
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Source: DataStream.

CEOQO pay history

Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Year ended Year ended
Name 31March2016' 31March2017  31March2018  31March2019 31March2020  31March2021 31March2022 31March2023 31March2024
CEOsingle figure of
remuneration (£'000) 739.9 412.8 845.8 4344 1,048.5 1,459.4 858.2 840.6 957.2
Annualincentive payout
(as % of maximum) 100% 0% 83% 0% 100% 91% 37% 36% 67%
Long-termincentives
(as % of maximum) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

1 CMC Markets plc listed on the London Stock Exchange on 5 February 2016; however, the full-year single figure has been included here for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Percentage change in remuneration
The table below shows the annual percentage change in salary, taxable benefits and annual incentive for each Director with colleagues employed by the Group
who are also not Directors of the Group:

2021 2022 2023 2024

% changeinED and NED Salary/ Taxable Annual Salary/ Taxable Annual Salary/ Taxable Annual Salary/  Taxable Annual
remuneration fees benefits  incentive fees benefits  incentive fees benefits  incentive fees benefits incentive
Executive Directors

Peter Cruddas 34% 0% 43% 18% 0% -60% 0% 0% -11% 0% 0% 85%
David Fineberg 3% 7% 0% 0% 0% -61% 0% -3% -10% 4% -15% 87%
EuanMarshall’ 0% 0% 14% 0% 0% -64% 0% -3% 5% -13% -35% n/a
Matthew Lewis? 24% 0% 18% 7% 0% -60% -3% 0% -10% 0% 0% 85%
Albert Soleiman n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Non-Executive Directors

James Richards 18% n/a n/a 1% 4,692% n/a 0% 2% n/a 0% -48% n/a
Paul Wainscott 8% 0% n/a 5% 513% n/a 6%  448% n/a 15% 42% n/a
SarahIng 8% n/a n/a 5% n/a n/a 4% n/a n/a 8% n/a n/a
Susanne Chishti® n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 31% n/a n/a
Clare Francis* n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 258% 221% n/a
Clare Salmon® 8% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Allemployees® 5% 0% 15% 8% 0% -5% 9% 0% -9% 6.6% 0% 29%

1 EuanMarshallresigned as a Director on 6 July 2023 and left the Company on 31December 2023.Hedid 5 The employee figure relates to those “same store” employees, i.e. those employed on 1 April 2023, and
not receive an annual incentive award for FY24. compares their salary then to 31 March 2024. Annual incentive figure is based on the corporate bonus

. awards and does not reflect stock awarded to employees.
2 Thesalary decrease for Matthew Lewis is as a result of exchange rate movements. pioy:

3 Susanne Chishtiwas appointed on 1June 2022. 6 Clare Salmon resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 28 July 2022.

4 Clare Francis was appointed on 19 December 2022. 7 Theincrease in taxable benefits reflects the limited travel allowed in 2021 due to the pandemic.

CMC Markets plc —111
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Remuneration Committee report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Pay ratio reporting
The Company is required to publish information on the pay ratio of the Group Chief Executive to UK employees. The table below sets out the ratio of the pay and
benefits of the median UK employee (P50) and those at the 25th (P25) and 75th (P75) percentile to the remuneration received by the Group Chief Executive
Officer. We have used “method A’ as we believe it provides the most consistent and comparable outcomes. The ratios reflect all remuneration received by
anindividualinrespect of the relevant years, and includes salary, benefits, pension and value received fromincentive plans. Employee pay and benefits were
determined on 31 March 2024 using the same approach as used for the single total figure.

Totalremuneration

Financial year Methodology P25 (lower quartile) pay ratio P50 (median) pay ratio P75 (upper quartile) pay ratio
2024 A 19:1 124 8:6
2023 A 1741 111 81
2022 A 18:1 111 81
2021 A 331 211 151
2020 A 26:1 171 121

The slight changeinratio in 2023 and 2024 reflects the achievements against the financial objective under the CIP scheme in FY24. The change from 2022 to
2023 also reflects the reductionin the cash element of the award from 45% to 40%. Comparative employee reward elements are detailed below:

CEO P25 (lower quartile) P50 (median) P75 (upper quartile)

£000 £'000 £000 £000

Total salary 703.0 45.6 70.8 96.7
Totalremuneration 957.2 501 80.0 107

Our principles for pay setting and progression in our wider workforce are the same as for our Executives, with total reward being sufficiently competitive to
attract and retain high calibre individuals without over-paying and providing the opportunity for individual development and career progression. The pay ratios
reflect how remuneration arrangements differ as accountability increases for more senior roles within the organisation, and in particular the ratios reflect the
weighting towards long-term value creation and alignment with shareholder interests for the CEO. Our employees will receive a presentation on how Executive
remuneration aligns to that of the wider Company in March 2022. This presentation will be given againin July 2024 to reflect our 2024 reward outcomes.

We are satisfied that the median pay ratio reported this year is consistent with our wider pay, reward and progression policies for employees. The median
reference employee has the opportunity for annual pay increases, annual performance payments and career progression.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The chart below illustrates the Group’s actual expenditure on shareholder distributions (including dividends and share buybacks) and total employee pay
expenditure for the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024.
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Dilution

The Company’s share schemes are funded through a combination of shares purchased in the market and new issue shares, as appropriate. The Company
monitors the number of shares issued under these schemes compared to the relevant dilution limits set by the Investment Association in respect of all share plans
(10%inany rolling ten-year period) and Executive share plans (5% inany rolling ten-year period).
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Payments to past Directors and for loss of office (audited)

There were no payments to past Directors for loss of office during the year. Euan Marshall resigned as a Director on the 6 July 2023 and only received on his
contractual notice. By mutual agreement he left CMC Markets on 31 December 2023 without payment in lieu of notice for the remaining notice period.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

The table below sets out the remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2024. The fees for the Chairman have not changed this
year. The Non-Executive Director fee has increased from £70,000 to £75,000, the Committee Chair and SID fees increased from £10,000 to £15,000, and the

Workforce Engagement Non-Executive Director fee has increased from £7,500 to £10,000 to reflect the increased time commitment in fulfilling these roles for

CMC Markets. During the year an additional fee of £10,000 was approved for the new position of Non-Executive Director responsible for Consumer Duty.

Role £'000
Chairmanfee 210.0
Non-Executive Director fee 75.0
Committee Chair additional fee 15.0
Workforce Engagement Non-Executive Director fee 10.0
Consumer Duty Non-Executive Director fee 10.0
Senior Independent Director additional fee 15.0

The fees detailed above for 2024 will be unchanged for the year ending 31 March 2025.

External appointments

Itisthe Board's policy to allow Executive Directors to take up external non-executive positions, subject to the prior approval of the Board. Any fee earnedin
relation to outside appointmentsiis retained by the Executive Director. Peter Cruddas was a director of The Peter Cruddas Foundation, Finada Limited and Crudd
Investments Limited during the year ended 31 March 2024 and received no fees in relation to these appointments. No other Executive Director held any outside
appointments.

Single total figure of Non-Executive Director remuneration (audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of the remuneration received by each Non-Executive Director who served during the year ended 31 March 2024.
Thefees setoutin the table below reflect the actual amounts paid during the year. The Non-Executive Directors do not receive any variable remuneration.

Remuneration comprises an annual fee for acting as a Chairman or Non-Executive Director of the Company. Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive
Directorsinrespect of service as Chair of the Group Audit, Group Risk or Remuneration Committees, Senior Independent Director, Workforce Engagement
Non-Executive Director and Consumer Duty Non-Executive Director.

Stakeholder/client

Yearended Basefee Committee fee SiDfee NEDfee Benefits' Total?

Name 31March £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

2024 210.0 — — - 10.6 220.6
JamesRichards

2023 210.0 — — — 20.6 230.6

2024 75.0 15.0 15.0 - 1.9 116.9
Paul Wainscott

2023 mnr 17 8.3 — 84 1001

2024 75.0 15.0 - - - 90.0
SarahIng

2023 mnr 1.7 — — — 83.4

2024 75.0 — — 10.0 — 85.0
Susanne Chishti®

2023 60.0 — — 46 — 64.6

2024 75.0 15.0 — 10.0 1.8 101.8
Clare Francis*

2023 216 3.8 — 25 0.5 284

Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to benefits. Benefits (and any tax due thereon) relate to reimbursed travel expenses.
Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to receive share-based payments and no award of shares was granted to any NEDs during the period.

Susanne Chishti was appointed on 1June 2022.

A WN

Clare Francis was appointed on 19 December 2022.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Non-Executive Director share ownership and share interests (audited)
The table below shows the interests of the Non-Executive Directors and connected persons in shares.
Ordinary Shares = Ordinary Shares

heldat held at
Name 31March2023 31March 2024

James Richards — —
Paul Wainscott — —
SarahIng _ —
Susanne Chishti — —
Clare Francis — —

There are no other changes to shareholding between 31 March 2024 and 30 May 2024.

The Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Committee sought internal support from the Executive Directors, who attended Committee meetings by invitation from the Chair. Advice was
sought on specific questions raised by the Committee and on matters relating to the performance and remuneration of senior managers. No Director was present
for any discussions that related directly to their own remuneration. The Company Secretary, or their deputy, attends each meeting as Secretary to the Committee.

Advisers to the Remuneration Committee

Inundertaking its responsibilities, the Committee seeks independent external advice as necessary. Willis Towers Watson (“WTW”) has continued to

actas adviser to the Committee throughout the year. WTW was appointed in 2017 by the Committee following a review of advisers. WTW s a voluntary
signatory to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants, which assures clients of independence and objectivity. Details of the Code can be found at
www.remunerationconsultantsgroup.com. During the year, WTW provided independent advice on arange of remuneration matters including current market
practice, benchmarking of Executive pay and incentive design. The fees paid to WTW in respect of work carried out, on a time and expenses basis, for the
Committee for the year under review total £51,920. The Committee is comfortable that the advice it has received has been objective and independent. In addition
toadvising on Executive Director and senior management remuneration, WTW is also the principle provider of market data for the wider employee populationin
Londonand Sydney.

Statement of voting at the AGM

The Company AGM was held on 27 July 2023, where the Directors’ remuneration report was tabled. The result of the vote onthese resolutionsis set out below:

Remuneration Policy Remunerationreport
(at2021AGM) (at2023 AGM)

% of votes % of votes
(excluding Number (excluding Number
withheld) of votes withheld) of votes
For 97.25 249,427,646 93.55 239,033,843
Against 2.75 7,043,454 6.45 16,474,742
Total votes cast 256,471,100 255,508,585
Withheld' 8,310 17,822

1 Avote withheldis not a vote in law and so is not counted for the purposes of the calculation of the proportion of votes “for” and “against” a resolution.
Thisreport willbe submitted to shareholders for approval at the AGM to be held on 25 July 2024.
Approved by the Board on12 June 2024 and signed onits behalf by:

S S

SarahIng

Independent Non-Executive Director

and Chair of the Remuneration Committee
20 June 2024
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Strategic report Governance

Directors' report

CMC Markets plcis a public limited company incorporated in England and
Wales under the Companies Act 2006 with registered number 05145017.

The Directors present their report, together with the consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31March 2024. For the purpose of the FRC'’s
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (‘DTR”) 4.1.8R, the Strategic
reportis also the Management report for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Corporate governance sections that appear on pages 70 to 82, together
with this report of which they form part, fulfil the requirements of the Corporate
governance statement for the purpose of the DTRs.

Directors

With the exception of Albert Soleiman and Susanne Chishti, all Directors will
seek re-election at the 2024 Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) on Thursday
25 July 2024. Following recommendation by the Nomination Committee, a
Director may be appointed to the Board by the Board of Directors and will then
be put forward at the following AGM for election by the shareholders. The
Company's Articles of Association, available on the CMC Markets plc Group
website, detail the appointment and removal process for Directors. The Board
approved the appointment of Albert Soleiman with effect from 1September
2023 and Albert will seek election at the 2024 AGM. Euan Marshall retired
from the Board on 1September 2023. On 20 June 2024 it was announced
that Susanne Chishti will step down from the Board at the 2024 AGM. The
Company has not adopted any special rules regarding the appointment and
replacement of Directors other than as provided for under UK company law.

Details of Directors’ interests and conflicts

The Directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts of interest. The Board
has established a procedure to deal with any potential or actual conflicts

of interestand to ensure that all such interests are disclosed and, where
appropriate, authorised by the Board (with any limits or conditionsimposed as
applicable) inaccordance with the Articles of Association and the Companies
Act 2006. Details of all Directors’ conflicts of interest are recorded in aregister
of conflicts which is maintained by the Company Secretary and all approvals
are formally minuted. Upon appointment, new Directors are advised of the
procedure for managing conflicts, whichincludes the notification of any actual
or potential conflicts or changes to the circumstances of any such conflicts.

Any decision of the Board to authorise a conflict of interest is only effective

if it is agreed without the conflicted Director(s) voting or without their votes
being counted. In making such a decision, the Directors must actina way they
consider in good faith will be most likely to promote the success of the Group.
The management of potential conflicts has been operating inaccordance
with the procedure throughout the year in review and subsequently. Details

of the current Directors’interests in the Company’s shares and securities

can be found in the Directors' remuneration report on pages 103 and 114 and
their biographies, including details of other directorships, are disclosed on
pages72to74.

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the
date of signing the Financial Statements were:

JamesRichards ~ Chairman

Susanne Chishti  Non-Executive Director

Lord Cruddas Chief Executive Officer

David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Clare Francis Non-Executive Director

SarahIng Non-Executive Director

Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada

AlbertSoleiman  Chief Financial Officer (appointed 1 September 2023)

Paul Wainscott Senior Independent Director

Euan Marshallretired from the Board on 1September 2023.

Financial statements Shareholder information

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Company has granted
indemnities to each of its Directors and the Company Secretary to the extent
permitted by law.

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of

the Companies Act 2006 was in force throughout the last financial year and
remainsin place inrelation to certain losses and liabilities which the Directors
or Company Secretary may incur to third parties in connection with their
positioninthe Company or any associated company. The Company also
maintains appropriate insurance to cover Directors’and Officers'liability,
whichis assessed annually and approved by the Board. No amount was paid
under the Directors’and Officers' liability insurance during the year.

Branch offices
CMC Markets plc does not have any overseas branches. Various subsidiaries
inthe Group have overseas branches, as detailed on pages 178 to 179.

Strategic report

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Group to prepare a Strategic report,
which commences at the start of this Annual Report and Financial Statements
up to page 68. As permitted by Section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006,
some matters required to be included in the Directors’ report have instead
beenincluded in the Strategic report. These disclosures are incorporated by
reference inthe Directors'report. The Strategic reportincludes information
onthe Group's operations and business model, going concern and viability,
review of the business throughout the year, anticipated future developments,
key performance indicators, principal risks and uncertainties, information

on stakeholder and employee engagement and the Board's statementin
accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006. The use of financial
instrumentsisincludedinthe report and further covered under note 29 to the
consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group's visionis to be a global provider of online retail financial services
and to maintain its status as a pioneer of platformtechnology. Its strategic
objectiveis to provide long-term value to shareholders by ensuring superior
returns. This long-term successis generated through the consistent and
sustainable delivery of growthinrevenue and improvement to operating
margins through operational excellence including product innovation,
geographical diversification, technology and services. The strategic
objectivesto achieve this are also set out in the Strategic report on pages
18and19.

Dividends

0On19 June 2024, the Board recommended a final dividend of 7.3 pence per
Ordinary Share inrespect of the full financial year ended 31 March 2024,
subject to shareholder approval at the 2024 AGM. If approved, the dividend
willbe paid on 9 August 2024 to shareholders on the register of members

at the close of business on 12 July 2024. The shares will go ex-dividend on
11July 2024. Aninterim dividend of 1.0 pence per Ordinary Share was paid on
11January 2024, bringing the total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024
t0 8.3 pence per Ordinary Share.

Further information on dividends is shown in note 11 of the Financial
Statements andis incorporated into this report by reference.
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Directors’ report continued

Share capital

The Company’s share capital comprises Ordinary Shares of 25 pence
each and Deferred Shares of 25 pence each. At 31 March 2024, there were
279,815,463 Ordinary Shares (99.12% of the overall share capital) and
2,478,086 Deferred Shares (0.88% of the overall share capital) inissue.

Further information about share capital can be foundin note 25 of the Financial
Statements.

Ordinary Shares

The holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All Ordinary Shares inissue in the Company rank equally
and carry the same voting rights and the same rights to receive dividends and
other distributions declared or paid by the Company. Throughout the year, the
Ordinary Shares were publicly listed on the London Stock Exchange and they
remain so as at the date of this report. There are no specific restrictions on the
size of a shareholding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed
by the Articles of Association and prevailing law. The Directors are not aware
of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may
resultin restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voting rights. No person
has special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and allissued
shares are fully paid.

Shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust rank pari passu with the Ordinary
Shares and have no special rights. Voting rights and rights of acceptance of
any offer relating to the shares held in this trust rest with the trustees, who may
take account of any recommendation from the Company. Voting rights are not
exercisable by the employees on whose behalf the shares are held in trust.

Deferred Shares

The holders of Deferred Shares do not have the right to receive notice of any
general meeting of the Company nor the right to attend, speak or vote at any
such general meeting. The Deferred Shares have norights to dividends and,
onareturn of assetsinawinding-up, entitle the holder only to the repayment
of the amounts paid upon such shares. The Deferred Shares may be
purchased at nominal value at the option of the Company by notice in writing
served on the holder of the Deferred Shares. No application has beenmade
oriscurrently intended to be made for the Deferred Shares to be admitted
to the Official List or to trade on the London Stock Exchange or any other
investment exchange.
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Share capital and Directors’ powers

The powers of the Directors, including in relation to the issue or buyback
of the Company’s shares, are set out in the Companies Act 2006 and the
Company’s constitution.

Shareholders will be asked to renew these authorities inline with the latest
institutional shareholder guidelines at the 2024 AGM.

Controlling Shareholder disclosure

The Company entered into a Relationship Agreement with Lord Peter

and Fiona Cruddas (the “Controlling Shareholders”) on 26 January 2016,

the terms of which came into force on listing the Company to trade on the
Main Market of the London Stock Exchange. The principal purpose of the
Relationship Agreement is to ensure that the Company is capable at alltimes
of carrying onits business independently of the Controlling Shareholders

and their associates, that transactions and relationships with the Controlling
Shareholders and their associates are at arm's length and on normal
commercial terms (subject to the rules on related party transactionsin the
Listing Rules) and that the Controlling Shareholders do not take any action
that would prevent the Company from complying with or circumventing the
Listing Rules. The Relationship Agreement will stay in effect until the earlier

of: (i) the Controlling Shareholders ceasing to own in aggregate aninterestin
atleast 10% or more of the Ordinary Sharesinthe Company (or aninterest
which carries 10% or more of the aggregate voting rights in the Company from
time to time); or (ii) the Ordinary Shares ceasing to be listed on the premium
listing segment of the Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange’s Main Market for listed securities. The Company has complied with
the independence provisions included in the Relationship Agreement and, so
far as the Company is aware, such provisions have been complied with during
the period under review by the Controlling Shareholders and their associates.

Significant contracts and change of control

The Company has alarge number of contractual arrangements whichiit
believes are essential to the business of the Company. These can be split

into three main categories, which are a committed bank facility, prime broker
arrangements, and market data and technology contracts. The committed
bank facility includes provisions which may, on a change of control, require any
outstanding borrowings to be repaid or result in termination of the facilities.

The Group's share andincentive plans include usual provisions relating to
change of control. There are no agreements providing for compensation for
the Directors or employees on a change of control.
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Statutory information contained elsewhere in the report
Information required to be part of this Directors’ report can be found elsewhere in the Annual Report as indicated below. These sections are deemed to be
incorporated by reference into the Directors' report:

Information Locationin Annual Report
Section 172 statement and stakeholder engagement (including clients and suppliers) Pages 23to0 27
Employees (employment of disabled persons and employee engagement) Pages 35t0 38
Employee share schemes Note 31, pages 171t0 173
Financial risk management, objectives and policies Note 30, pages 16510 170
Future developments Page 16
Internal controls over financial reporting Page 82
Directors’interests in shares of the Company Pages110and 114
Related party transactions Note 33, page 173
Greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and energy efficiency action Page 40
TCFD/SECRdisclosures Pages 4210 51

Disclosure table pursuant to Listing Rule LR 9.8.4C

Listing Rule Information to be included Disclosure
9.8.4(1) Interest capitalised by Group. None.
9.8.4(2) Unaudited financial information (LR 9.2.18R). None.
9.8.4(4) Long-termincentive scheme information involving Board Directors  Details can be found on pages 106 to 110 of the Directors’
(LR9.4.3R). remunerationreport.
9.8.4(5) Waiver of emoluments by a Director. None.
9.8.4(6) Waiver of future emoluments by a Director. None.
9.8.4(7) Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash. None.
9.8.4(8) Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash in relation to major None.
subsidiary undertakings.
9.8.4(9) Listed company is a subsidiary of another company. Not applicable.
9.8.4(10) Contracts of significance involving a Director or a Controlling None, except for Lord Cruddas’ service contract.
Shareholder.
9.8.4(11) Contracts for the provision of services by a Controlling Shareholder.  None, except for Lord Cruddas’ service contract.
9.8.4(12) Shareholder waiver of dividends. The trustees of the CMC Markets plc Employee Share Trust have a dividend
waliver inplace inrespect of Ordinary Shares which are its beneficial property.
9.8.4(13) Shareholder waiver of future dividends. The trustees of the CMC Markets plc Employee Share Trust have a dividend
waiver in place inrespect of Ordinary Shares which are its beneficial property.
9.8.4(14) Agreement with Controlling Shareholder. See Controlling Shareholder disclosure on page 116 of the Directors'report.

Substantial shareholdings

Information provided to the Company by substantial shareholders pursuant
tothe DTRsis published via a Regulatory Information Service and onthe
Company's website. The table below sets out details of the shareholdings
of Lord Peter Andrew Cruddas and Mrs Fiona Cruddas and further provides
details of the interestsin the voting rights of the Company’s Ordinary issued
share capital as at 31 March 2024, notified to the Company under DTR 5.
Holdings may have changed since being notified to the Company as
notification of any change is not required until the next applicable threshold

iscrossed.

Shareholder Number of % of
Asat31March 2024 votingrights votingrights
Lord Peter Andrew Cruddas 165,155,374 59.02
Aberforth Partners LLP 14,741,475 5.27
Schroders plc 14,167,409 5.06
Mrs Fiona Cruddas 8,994,364 3.21

Between the year end and 13 June 2024 (being the latest practicable date)
there have been no changes notified to usinrespect of these holdings.

The shareholdings of CMC Markets plc Directors are listed within the
Directors' remunerationreport on pages 110.
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Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association may only be made
by passing a special resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders of

the Company.

Research and development

The Group continues to invest in the development of the trading and investing
platformsin addition to maintaining existing infrastructure, with considerable
effort applied by the technical and software development teams. In addition,
the Group has capitalised development costs relating to new product

and functionality development. During the year development expenditure
amounting to £11.7 million has been capitalised (2023: £11.3 million).

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information
to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’

report confirmthat, so far as they each are aware, there is no relevant audit
information (being information needed by the external auditor in connection
with preparing its audit report) of which the Company’s external auditor is
unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he or she is obliged
to take as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
auditinformation and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of
thatinformation. This confirmation is given pursuant to Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Independent auditor

Inaccordance with Section 489 and Section 492 of the Companies Act 2006,
resolutions to reappoint Deloitte LLP as the Company’s auditor and authorise
the Group Audit Committee to determine the auditor’'s remuneration will be put
tothe 2024 AGM.

Political donations

No political donations were made by the Company during the year.

Annual General Meeting
The 2024 AGMis to be held at 10:00 a.m.on Thursday 25 July 2024 at
133 Houndsditch, London EC3A 7BX.

Due to the Controlling Shareholder disclosure on page 116, the independent
shareholders' voting results on the re-election of independent Non-Executive
Directors (excluding the Chairman) will be disclosed when the voting

results are published. Should the required percentage of the independent
shareholders’ vote to approve re-election not be achieved, then a further vote
willbe held at a subsequent general meeting within the prescribed time period.

Events after the reporting period
Details of events occurring subsequent to the year end are made in note 36.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect

of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements inaccordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group and

the parent company Financial Statements in accordance with UK-adopted
International Accounting Standards.
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Under company law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements
unlessthey are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and parent company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

— selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

— state whether applicable UK-adopted International Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explainedinthe Financial Statements;

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;and

— prepare the Financial Statements onthe going concern basis unlessitis
inappropriate to presume that the Group and parent company will continue
inbusiness.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and parent company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records

that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and parent company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and parent company and enable them to ensure that the
Financial Statements and the Directors’ remuneration report comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
parentcompany'’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from
legislationin other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statements,
takenasawhole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and parent
company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.

Eachofthe Directors, whose names and functions are listed on pages 72 to 74,
confirmthat, to the best of their knowledge:

— the Group and parent company Financial Statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting
Standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial
position of the Group and parent company and of the profit of the
Group; and

— the Strategic reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group and parent
company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
thatitfaces.

The Annual Report and Financial Statements were approved by the Board on
20June2024.

By order of the Board

-

Roy Tooley
Company Secretary
20 June 2024

CMC Markets plc
Registered number: 05145017
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of CMC Markets plc

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
1. Opinion
Inour opinion:

— theFinancial Statements of CMC Markets plc (the “parent company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and
of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards;

the parent company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and
as appliedin accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the Financial Statements which comprise:

the Consolidated Income Statement;

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income;

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position;

the Parent Company Statement of Financial Position;

the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity;

the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows;

therelated notes 110 36.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements is applicable law and United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company Financial Statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
inthe UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the “FRC’s”) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethicalresponsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to the Group and parent company for the year are disclosedin
note 8 to the Financial Statements. We confirm that we have not provided any non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard to the Group or the
parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

3.Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the year ending 31 March 2024 (‘FY24") were:

— capitalisation and impairment of internally developed software; and
— IT access management and controls over service organisations.
Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

Newlyidentified @ lIncreasedlevelofrisk &) Similarlevelofrisk &) Decreased level of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group Financial Statements was £2.80 million (FY23: £2.6 million), which was
determined on the basis of 0.70% of Net Assets (F Y23:5.0% of Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations (‘PBT”)).

We revised the benchmark applied in our determination of materiality in FY24 due to the stability of Net Assets, relative to
PBT, whilst maintaining appropriate regard to the Financial Statements as a whole.

Scoping We have identified five entities which are subject to full-scope audit procedures and thirteen entities which are subject to
audit procedures on specified account balances.

Our Group audit achieved a coverage of 99.5% of Group Total Assets, 99.6% of Group Revenue, and 99.0% of Group PBT
across management’s business segments.

Significant changes in our Key audit mattersin F Y23 related to:
approach — ‘the carrying value of intangible assets under development relating to CMC Invest”;and
— ‘presentation of positions with hedging counterparties”.

We did not consider the “Presentation of positions with hedging counterparties”to continue as a key audit matter into F Y24,
due to enhancements in the control environment, and considerations previously made as regards the accountingand
presentation of these relationships.

The FY23key audit matter, “Carrying value of intangible assets under development relating to CMC Invest”, has been
expandedin FY24 to comprise a broader scope of internally developed software intangible assets capitalised, and
evaluated forimpairment, as of 31 March 2024. The key audit matter is revised in F Y24 as: “Capitalisation and development
of internally developed software”. This is predominantly due to the implementation of a number of strategic initiatives across
the Group, including new business lines, as well as the unobservability of revenue and cost projections in respect of these
projects, exacerbated by recent profitability challenges.

We have introduced a new key audit matter in FY24: “IT access management and controls over service organisations”,
due to the criticality of the IT infrastructure to the Group’s operations, IT deficiencies in these areas which were observedin
FY23 and which persistinto F Y24, as wellas management's ongoing programme of remediation which requires significant
validation work in support of our audit.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

Inauditing the Financial Statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Financial
Statementsis appropriate.

Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:
— obtaining an understanding of management’s process to arrive at their conclusion to prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis;

— with the involvement of our regulatory specialists, challenging the liquidity and capital stress testing assumptions used by management, including
consideration of regulatory enquiries/observations, management actions and whether applied stresses were reasonable in the context of the Group’s and
parent company’s operating environment;

— with theinvolvement of our regulatory specialists, where relevant, assessing emerging operational, regulatory and market risks facing entities within the Group,
and the parent company, including the impact of volatility in global financial markets and management's strategic initiatives;

— evaluated the underlying causes and impact of adverse trading updates issued by the Group throughout FY24, and considered the ongoing viability of the
Group, its business model and operations;

— assessing the key assumptions supporting the Group’s and parent company’s latest budget forecasts;
— assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management; and
— assessing the appropriateness of going concern disclosures made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have notidentified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months from when the Financial
Statements are authorised forissue.

Inrelation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or draw attention toinrelation to
the Directors’ statement in the Financial Statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of CMC Markets plc

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period
and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had
the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion onthese matters.

51. Capitalisation and impairment of internally developed software &)

Key audit
matter
description

The Group, as part of its strategic initiatives, is extending a number of product offerings and continues to capitalise costs associated with
internally developed software supporting these initiatives.

As of 31 March 2024, the Group has capitalised a total of £12.2 million of intangible assets, of which £11.7 million relates to internally generated
software. Further details are included in note 12 to the financial statements.

Capitalisation of expenditure oninternally generated intangible assets is subjective and involves judgement on the part of management in
respect of whether such expenditure qualifies for recognitioninaccordance with International Accounting Standard 38: Intangible Assets (IAS 38”).
Capitalised expenditure comprises the time spent on the development of the intangible asset, by bothinternal staff and external contractors.

A high degree of management judgement is required to assess capitalised expenditure forimpairment, particularly given management’s
focus on cost control. Thisis due to subjectivity in developing accurate forecasts to support value-in-use (“VIU") assessments, particularly
where the businessis at a nascent stage and where the operating environment is not easily predictable. Given the subjective nature of the key
assumptions underpinning these forecasts and their unobservability with reference to available, external market data; we have deemed this to
be akey audit matter.

Discount rates, useful economic life, nominal cash flows from other business lines, and business-to-business (‘B2B”) revenues represent
significant sources of estimation uncertainty, as disclosed in Note 1on page 137.

This matteris also discussed in the Group Audit Committee Report on pages 83 to 86.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

We obtained a detailed understanding of the relevant controls established by the Group over the capitalisation of expenses, as well as the
associated controls and financial reporting processes supporting the determination of CGUs and impairment. Our audit procedures in
respect of capitalisation and impairment included the following:

— anidentification of projects and the associated capitalised costs across the Group;

an evaluation of whether costs were eligible for capitalisation, inaccordance with IAS 38;
— anassessment of the appropriateness of the basis of measurement model supporting the VIU assessment;
— anevaluation of management's valuation methodologies with reference to standard valuation practices;

— thedevelopment of independent key valuation assumptions to the value-in-use calculation, which were compared against the inputs used
by management;

— involving our corporate finance specialists to apply specialist knowledge and audit procedures tailored for inherent valuation risk as
described above;

— obtaining an understanding of the methodology applied in management’s assessment of whether objective evidence of animpairment
loss exists; and

— anevaluation of the appropriateness of associated disclosures.

Key
observations

Through our procedures we concluded that the carrying value of the intangible assets are based on reasonable, supportable assumptions,
and that key assumptions, impairment charges recognised during the year and sensitivities have been appropriately disclosed in note 12.
However, there are anumber of control enhancements that Group management are in the process of implementing . These include key
controls over the capitalisation of staff costs, and the ongoing assessment of impairment triggers and conclusions on assets.
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

5. Key audit matters continued
5.2.1T access management and controls over service organisations@

Key audit The processing and recording of transactions across the Group, in particular revenue, cash and hedging transactions, is supported
matter by a complex information technology (‘IT") environment. Alongside its proprietary IT systems, the Group relies on a number of service
description organisations to facilitate key operational and financial reporting processes, including externally facing reconciliation controls.

As part of our FY23 audit, we identified control deficiencies in respect of logical access management (including privileged access and
segregation of duties), as well as controls over service organisations (the “Deficiencies”). Management continue to undertake a programme
of remediation of the Deficiencies, therefore a number of these persistedinto FY24.

Our IT audit scoping of relevant applications and underlying infrastructure is determined by the identification of significant accounts,
disclosures and relevant flows of transactions, which translates to system-generated information or automated controls on which we seek
torely. Our approachis further informed by arisk assessment of the IT environment; considering factors such as the existing Deficiencies,
system changes and implementations, data migrations, and operational or cyber incidents.

Our planned audit approach sought to place reliance on the effectiveness of internal controls, and therefore key IT controls, across relevant
transaction flows.

As mentioned above, management has been undertaking aremediation programme to address the Deficiencies, with the objective of
ensuring controls across the IT control environment operate consistently and effectively. However, anumber of elements of management's
remediation programme remained outstanding for most, or at the close, of the financial year, in particular those deficiencies pertaining to
logical access management. As aresult, this required increased audit effort to either identify mitigating controls, or to perform supplementary
substantive testing - including exploitation testing - inanumber of areas.

How the scope Weinvolved our IT specialists to test access management controls over key applications, operating systems and databases relied upon by

of our audit management for operational and financial reporting processes. We also involved our I T specialists to test controls over service organisations.
responded Specifically, the procedures included:
tothe key

. — obtaining anunderstanding, including through walkthrough meetings with application, infrastructure and key report owners, to support our

audit matter : . -
evaluation of General IT Controls (‘GITCs”) and, where relevant, key automated controls;

— evaluated the appropriateness of privileged access granted across the full year:

— whererelevant, testing key controls to determine whether these operated consistently and as designed across the full year; and

— evaluating management’s remedial activity throughout the audit period and, where relevant, evaluating risk mitigation procedures,
including through reviews of the management's risk and impact assessments.

Our audit proceduresin respect of accounts, classes of transactions and disclosures and where we planned, but were ultimately unable,
torely oninternal controls - including IT controls - were predominantly substantive in nature.

Key Although we observed animprovement in respect of privileged access and segregation of duties controls over systems determined as

observations  relevant to our FY24 audit,a number of planned remedial actions had not beenimplemented for the full year, or remained outstanding as
atyear-end. Thisled to increased audit effort to identify and test mitigating controls, where possible; or perform substantive procedures
throughout the year.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the Financial Statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of areasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole as follows:

Group Financial Statements Parent company Financial Statements
Materiality £2.80 million (FY23: £2.60 million) £1.69 million (FY23: £1.68 million)
Basis for 0.70% of Net Assets (FY23:5.00% of Profit before Tax) 1.00% of Net Assets (FY23:1.00% of Net Assets)
determining
materiality

Rationalefor  Werevised the benchmark appliedin our determination of materiality We have used 1% of Net Assets as the materiality benchmark as
the benchmark inFY24 due tothe stability of Net Assets, relative to PBT. We the parent company of the Group primarily holds investmentsin
applied maintained appropriate regard to the Financial Statements asa whole underlying subsidiaries.

by comparing our materiality to acceptable ranges derived using

other applicable benchmarks, including PBT. Net Assets is an appropriate basis for materiality as CMC Markets plc

is aholding company for the Group, therefore this measure would be
significant to the users of the Financial Statements.

Thisis consistent with the benchmark and threshold usedin the
prior year.
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

6. Our application of materiality continued
6.1. Materiality continued

—— Group materiality £2.80 million

Component materiality range
£1.30 millionto £2.50 million

Net Assets £403.93 million

B Netassets ) )
o Group Audit Committee
Group materiality reporting threshold
£0.14 million

6.2. Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed
the materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole.

Group Financial Statements Parent company Financial Statements
Performance materiality 65% (FY23:70%) of Group materiality 70% (FY23:70%) of parent company materiality
Basis and rationale for In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:
deterr.niljning perfotinance — the quality of the control environment and our ability to rely on controls;
materiality

control observationsidentified by Deloitte and internal audit;

high turnover of operational and accounting personnel; and

the nature, volume and size of misstatements identified in the prior year audit.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Group Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £140,000 (FY23: £130,000), as wellas
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Group Audit Committee on disclosure matters
that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

71.ldentification and scoping of components

The scope of our Group audit was determined by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls and our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement at the level of the Group Financial Statements. The Group comprises several entities globally and has
operations inover ten countries. As such, a portion of our audit planning effort was dedicated to ensuring that the scope of work performed s appropriate in order
toaddress the identified risks of material misstatement.

The factors that we considered when assessing the scope of the CMC Markets plc audit,and the level of work to be performed at the entities that are in scope for
Group reporting purposes, include the following:

the nature of the Group and the parent company, how entities are organised, and the significant extent of centralisation of the control environment and the
processing of transactions across the Group;

- thefinancial significance of an entity to the Group’s PBT, Revenue and Total Assets, including consideration of the financial significance of specific account
balances or transactions;

the effectiveness of the control environment and monitoring activities, including entity-level controls; and

- findings, observations and audit differences that we noted during the prior year audit.
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

7.An overview of the scope of our audit continued

71.1dentification and scoping of components continued

As aresult, we identified five entities which are significant to the Group (F Y23: three entities). Three of these entities are financially significant (FY23: three entities)
and two entities are significant due to their nature or specific circumstances. All five entities are subject to full scope audit procedures. Our audit procedures in
respect of these entities were performed to a materiality in the range of £1.3 million - £2.5 million (FY23: £1.3 million - £2.5 million).

Inaddition, audit procedures on specified account balances were performed across 13 entities (FY23: six entities) which were not considered to be
financially significant.

The remaining entities are not individually significant to the Group, andinclude a number of small, low risk entities and balances. On aggregate, these represent
1.0% of Group PBT (FY23: 2%), 0.4% of Group Revenue (FY23:1%) and 0.5% of Group Total Assets (FY23:1%). For these entities, we performed analytical
reviews and undertook additional risk assessment procedures. We also tested management’s Group-wide controls across these entities. We concluded that
through these additional procedures, we have reduced the audit risk of the detection of a material misstatement to a sufficiently low level.

Audit procedures were performed for entities subject to full-scope audit and audit of specified account balances by audit teams based in both the UK (Group
audit team) and Australia. The performance of certain specified procedures was requested of our audit team in Germany, in respect of regulatory matters and the
completeness of provisions and contingent liabilities.

The audit of the Group consolidationis performed by the Group audit team. In addition, the Group audit team performed audit procedures over the Group’s global
trading revenue (CFD),and the corresponding Trade Receivables.

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment

Our planned audit approach was to place reliance on management'’s relevant controls where we found the controls to be designed and operating effectively.

We scoped in certain controls — considered to be relevant controls —for further testing procedures. For each relevant control, our testing procedures comprised
gaining an understanding of the control and, where possible, the testing of a sample of control iterations across the year to determine the operating effectiveness.
These procedures consisted of a combination of enquiry, observation, inspection and reperformance. Specifically with regards to announced redundanciesin
force, our testing procedures considered whether the wider control environment was compromised.

Incertain situations, we were not able to rely on controls due to identified deficiencies in internal control, including IT controls, and where insufficient mitigating or
alternative controls could instead be relied upon. In such situations, we adopted a fully substantive approach. All control deficiencies which we considered to be
significant were communicated to the Group Audit Committee. Please refer to the Group Audit Committee Report on pages 83 to 86. All other deficiencies were
communicated to management. For all deficiencies identified, we considered the impact on our audit plan and the need to adjust our audit approach accordingly.
Please see our Key Audit Matters section on page 123 above for further considerations in respect of our work over the Group's IT environment.

7.3 Our consideration of climate-related risks
Inplanning our audit, we have considered the impact of climate change on the Group’s operations and subsequentimpact on its Financial Statements. The Group
sets outits assessment of the potentialimpact on pages 42 to 51 of the Strategic Report of the Annual Report.

We have held discussions with management to understand their:

— process foridentifying affected operations, including governance and controls over this process, and the subsequent effect on the Group’s financial
reporting; and

— long-term strategy to respond to climate change risks as they evolve, including the impact on the Group's forecasts.
Ouraudit workinvolved:
— obtaining an understanding of management’s analysis, used to inform the Group’s climate risk assessment; and

— assessing the sufficiency and extent of disclosures in the Annual Report and the consistency between the Financial Statements and the remainder of the
Annual Report.

Ouraudit procedures require us to read and consider these disclosures, and to evaluate whether they are materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
knowledge obtained in the performance of our audit. We did not identify any such materialinconsistencies as a result of these procedures.

7.4.Working with other auditors

The Group audit team are responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process, and provide direct oversight, review, and coordination of our global audit
teams. We interacted regularly with these teams during each stage of the audit and reviewed key working papers. We maintained continuous and open dialogue
with them, in addition to holding formal meetings, such that we were fully aware of their progress and the results of their procedures.

The Group audit team conducted in-person visits, in addition to remote communication, to exercise engagement and oversight with our audit teams based in
Australiaand Germany. These visits included discussions of the audit approach - including risk assessments —and of any issues arising from the audit team'’s
work, meetings with local management, and reviews of key audit documentation on higher and significant risk areas in the interests of driving a consistentand
high-quality audit.

Inaddition, a global planning meeting was held virtually in September 2023, led by the Group audit team, partners and staff from full-scope entity audit teams, as
well as a global audit teams responsible for testing in support of local, statutory audits.
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

8. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the Financial Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. The
Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.

QOur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Ourresponsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements
orour knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatementin
the Financial Statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required toreport that fact.

We have nothing toreportin thisregard.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully inthe Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error,and toissue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conductedin accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Financial Statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our Auditor's Report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above,
to detect material misstatements inrespect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectingirregularities, including
fraud is detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities
Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we
considered the following:

— thenature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance, including the design of the Group'’s remuneration policies, key drivers for
Directors' remunerationand bonus levels;

— the Group's own assessment of the risks that irregularities may occur either as aresult of fraud or error that was approved by the Board on 31 May 2023;

— results of our enquiries of management, internal audit, Directors, and the Group Audit Committee about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including those that are specific to the Group’s sector;

— any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
« detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and
- theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

— thematters discussed among the audit engagement team, including financially significant component audit teams, and relevant internal specialists, including
tax, IT, valuations (corporate finance) and regulatory specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the Financial Statements and any potential
indicators of fraud. These discussions also involved fraud specialists with whom the engagement team discussed fraud schemes that had arisenin similar
sectorsandindustries.

As aresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and identified the greatest
potential for fraud relating to Capitalisation and impairment of internally developed software.

Incommon with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

126 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Strategic report Governance Financial statements Shareholder information

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud continued

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities continued

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, focusing on provisions of those laws
and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. The key laws and regulations we
considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, as well as those laws and regulations prevailing in each country in which identified a full-scope entity,
including taxation legislation.

Inaddition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the Financial Statements but compliance with which may
be fundamental to the Group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the Group’s obligations under jurisdictional regulatory regimes,
including consumer duty, transaction reporting, and prudential regulation.

11.2. Audit response torisks identified

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the capitalisation and impairment of internally developed software as a key audit matter related to the potential
risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matter in more detail and also describes the specific procedures we performed inresponse
tothat key audit matter.

Inaddition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

— reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations
described as having adirect effect on the Financial Statements;

— enquiring of management, the Group Audit Committee, in-house and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;
— performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

— reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with relevant tax authorities
andregulatory bodies;

— inaddressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing
whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, including internal specialists and
global auditteams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Inour opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
Inour opinion, based on the work undertakenin the course of the audit:

— theinformation giveninthe Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with
the Financial Statements; and

— the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

13. Corporate Governance Statement
The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Group’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is materially
consistent with the Financial Statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

— the Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material uncertainties identified set
outonpage 58;

— the Directors’ explanation as toits assessment of the Group’s prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is appropriate set out on pages
57and58;

— the Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 81;
— the Board's confirmation that it has carried out arobust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on page 59;
— thesection of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set out on page 82; and

— the section describing the work of the Group Audit Committee set out on pages 83to 86.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements continued

14. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to youif, in our opinion:

— we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

— the parent company Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing toreportin respect of these matters.

15. Other matters which we are required to address

15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Group Audit Committee, we were appointed by the members on 28 July 2022 to audit the Financial Statements for the year
ending 31March 2023 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the
firmistwo years, covering the years ending 31 March 2023 to 31 March 2024.

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Group Audit Committee
Our audit opinionis consistent with the additional report to the Group Audit Committee we are required to provide inaccordance with ISAs (UK).

16. Use of our report

Thisreportis made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them inan auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’'s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Asrequired by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (‘DTR”) 4115R-DTR 4.1.18R, these Financial Statements
will form part of the Electronic Format Annual Financial Report filed on the National Storage Mechanism of the FCA in accordance with DTR 4115R-DTR 4.118R.
This Auditor’'s Report provides no assurance over whether the Electronic Format Annual Financial Report has been preparedin compliance with DTR 4.115R —
DTR4118R.

Fiona Walker, FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
20 June 2024
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP Note £°000 £000
Revenue 324,702 311,210
Interestincome onown funds 11,246 4,761
Income on client funds 23,797 9,166
Total revenue 4 359,745 325137
Introducing partner commissions and betting levies (26,962) (36,714)
Net operatingincome g 332,783 288,423
Operating expenses B (254,894) (233,513)
Impairment of intangible assets* (12,322) (432)
Operating profit 65,567 54,478
Share of results of associates and joint ventures (283) —
Finance costs 7 (1,951) (2,315)
Profit before taxation 8 63,333 52163
Taxation 9 (16,447) (10,724)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 46,886 41,439
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 10 16.7p 14.7p
Diluted earnings per share 10 16.7p 14.6p

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income statement or statement of comprehensive income.
The Company had no other comprehensive income.

* For the year ended 31 March 2023, impairment of intangible assets has been presented separately from Operating Expenses to align with the presentation for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31March 2024

Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March2023

GROUP Note £°000 £000
Profit for the year 46,886 41,439
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to income statement
Loss onnetinvestment hedges, net of tax 27 - (86)
Gainsrecycled from equity to the income statement 27 237 237
Currency translation differences 27 (5,285) (1,760)
Changesinthe fair value of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of tax 27 144 (210)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (4,904) (1,819)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent 41,982 39,620
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Consolidated statement of financial position

At31March 2024

31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP Note £°000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 28,906 35,342
Property, plantand equipment 13 28,546 22,771
Deferred tax assets 14 6,177 4,768
Financial investments 19 32 34
Trade and other receivables 16 2,753 2,666
Investmentsin associates 15 2,517 —
Total non-current assets 68,931 65,581
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 162,056 130,616
Derivative financial instruments 17 31,627 14,231
Current tax recoverable 1,917 9,066
Otherassets 18 12,258 1,984
Financialinvestments 19 50,889 30,572
Amounts due from brokers 228,882 188,154
Cashand cash equivalents 20 160,300 146,218
Total current assets 647,929 520,841
Total assets 716,860 586,422
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 272,811 182,284
Amounts due to brokers 6,982 8,927
Derivative financial instruments 17 7,074 2,033
Lease liabilities 23 4,915 5,590
Current tax payable 2,147 431
Provisions 24 3,937 815
Total current liabilities 297,866 200,080
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 23 12,000 6,228
Deferredtax liabilities 14 3,244 4,012
Provisions 24 257 2,087
Total non-current liabilities 15,501 12,327
Total liabilities 313,367 212,407
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 25 70,573 70,573
Share premium 25 46,236 46,236
Capitalredemption reserve 25 2,901 2,901
Ownshares heldin trust 26 (2,589) (1,509)
Otherreserves 27 (55,439) (50,535)
Retained earnings 341,811 306,349
Total equity 403,493 374,015
Total equity and liabilities 716,860 586,422

The Financial Statements on pages 129 to 173 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2024 and signed onits behalf by:

é , /&’/Mf’"‘“:::

Lord Cruddas Albert Soleiman

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Parent company statement of financial position

At31March 2024
Company registration number: 05145017

31March 2024 31March2023
COMPANY Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 15 168,448 167,090
Total non-current assets 168,448 167,090
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 5,547 1,932
Cashand cashequivalents 20 93 586
Total current assets 5,640 2,518
Total assets 174,088 169,608
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 4,643 122
Share buyback liability — _
Total current liabilities 4,643 122
Total liabilities 4,643 122
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 25 70,573 70,573
Share premium 25 46,236 46,236
Capital redemptionreserve 25 2,901 2,901
Share buyback reserve 27 — —
Ownshares heldin trust 26 (2,589) (1,509)
Retained earnings at 1 April 51,285 78,396
Profit for the year attributable to the owners 13,072 33,763
Other changesinretained earnings (12,033) (60,874)
Retained earnings at 31 March 52,324 51,285
Total equity 169,445 169,486
Total equity and liabilities 174,088 169,608

The Financial Statements on pages 129 to 173 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2024 and signed onits behalf by:

é ’/mé’f!“"in !

Lord Cruddas Albert Soleiman

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Capital

Share Share redemption Ownshares Other Retained Total

capital premium reserve heldintrust reserves earnings equity
GROUP Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2022 73,193 46,236 281 (1,094) (75,980) 326,242 368,878
Profit for the year — — — — — 41,439 41,439
Loss onnetinvestment hedges, net of tax — — — — (86) — (86)
Gainsrecycled fromequity to theincome statement — — — — 237 — 237
Currency translation differences — — — — (1,760) — (1,760)
Changes in the fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
netof tax — — — — (210) — (210)
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — (1,819) 41,439 39,620
Acquisition of own shares held in trust 26 — — — (1,106) — — (1,106)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — 691 — — 691
Share buyback 25 (2,620) — 2,620 — 27,264 (27,264) —
Share-based payments — — — — — 972 972
Dividends 1 = = — — — (35,040) (35,040)
At 31March 2023 70,573 46,236 2,901 (1,509) (50,535) 306,349 374,015
Profit for the year — — — — — 46,886 46,886
Gainsrecycledfromequity to theincome statement — — - — 237 - 237
Currency translation differences — — — — (5,285) - (5,285)
Changes inthe fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
netof tax — — — — 144 — 144
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — (4,904) 46,886 41,982
Acquisition of own shares held in trust 26 — — — (1,788) — - (1,788)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — 708 — — 708
Share-based payments — — — — — 1,388 1,388
Tax onshare-based payments - — — — — 876 876
Dividends 11 — — — — — (13,688) (13,688)
At 31March 2024 70,573 46,236 2,901 (2,589) (55,439) 341,811 403,493
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For the year ended 31March 2024

Capital
redemption  Share buyback Ownshares Retained

Sharecapital ~ Share premium reserve reserve heldintrust earnings Totalequity
COMPANY Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2022 73,193 46,236 281 (27,264) (1,094) 78,396 169,748
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — — — — 33,763 33,763
Acquisition of own shares held in trust 26 — — — — (1,1006) — (1,106)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — — 691 — 691
Share-based payments — — — — — 1430 1,430
Share buyback 25 (2,620) — 2,620 27,264 — (27,264) —
Dividends 11 — — — — — (35,040) (35,040)
At 31 March 2023 70,573 46,236 2,901 — (1,509) 51,285 169,486
Profit and total comprehensive income
forthe year —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 13,072 13,072
Acquisition of own shares held in trust 26 — — — — (1,788) — (1,788)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — — 708 — 708
Share-based payments — — — — - 1,656 1,656
Share buyback 25 - — - — — - —
Dividends 1 — — — — — (13,689) (13,689)
At 31 March 2024 70,573 46,236 2,901 — (2,589) 52,324 169,445

134 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Strategic report Governance Financial statements

Consolidated and parent company statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Shareholder information

GROUP COMPANY
Year ended Yearended Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023 31March 2024 31March 2023
Note £'000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 57,139 76,584 1,032 607
Interestincome 9,702 4,784 14 —
Income on client funds 23,797 9,166
Finance costs (1,951) (2,315) (42) (318)
Tax paid (8,602) (17,060) — —
Net cash generated from operating activities 80,085 71159 1,004 289
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,632) (7,091) —_ —
Investment inintangible assets (12,244) (21,130) — —
Purchase of financial investments (95,412) (17,345) - —
Proceeds from maturity and disposal of financial investments 76,516 14,415 - —
Outflow on netinvestment hedges — 8) — —
Investment in associates (2,800) — — —
Amounts contributed by subsidiaries in relation to share-based payments — — 281 1,001
Dividendsreceived — — 13,698 34,260
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (41,572) (31,159) 13,979 35,261
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings — (1,194) — —
Proceeds from borrowings — 1,000 — —
Principal elements of lease payments (5,531) (5,454) — —
Acquisition of own shares (1,788) (1,106) (1,788) (1,106)
Payments for share buyback — (27,264) - (27,264)
Dividends paid (13,688) (35,040) (13,688) (35,040)
Net cash used in financing activities (21,007) (69,058) (15,476) (63,410)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,506 (29,058) (493) (27,860)
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20 146,218 176,578 586 28,446
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (3,424) (1,302) - —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 160,300 146,218 93 586
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Notes to the consolidated and parent company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2024

1. General information and basis of preparation

Corporate information

CMC Markets plc (the “Company”) is a public company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom and domiciled in England and Wales under the
Companies Act 2006. The nature of the operations and principal activities of CMC Markets plc and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are set out in note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Financial Statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environmentin which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Group’s Financial Statements are presented in sterling (‘GBP”), whichis the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set outin note 2.

Going concern
The Directors have prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis, which requires the Directors to have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements.

The Group has considerable financial resources, a broad range of products and a geographically diversified business. Consequently, the Directors believe that
the Groupis well placed to manage its business risks in the context of the current economic outlook.

Accordingly, the Directors have reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources for that period of at least 12 months from the date of approval
of the Financial Statements and believe it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements. Further details are set outin the
viability statement on pages 57 and 58.

Basis of accounting
The consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, except in the case of “Financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")" and “Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”)". The financial
informationis rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The Company and Group's principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out in note 2 below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all years presented, except for the adoption of the new accounting policies relating to investment in associates and cryptocurrency
assets held asintangible assets and new and revised standards as set out below. The Financial Statements presented are at and for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 31March 2023. Financial annual years are referred to as 2024 and 2023 in the Financial Statements.

Application of new and revised accounting standards
The following standards and interpretations applied for the first time in the current financial year but do not have a significant impact on the Financial Statements
of the Company and the Group:

Amendments to IAS 1“Presentation of Financial Statements” and IFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” — Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” —Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” —International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” — Definition of Accounting Estimates
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (including the June 2020 and December 2021 Amendments to IFRS 17)

New accounting standards inissue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the Financial Statements, the following new standards and interpretations relevant to the Company and the Group were inissue but
not yet effective and have not been applied to the Financial Statements:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Application date yet to be confirmed)

Amendments to IAS 1- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Applicable from 1 January 2024, The Group will adopt this for the year ended 31
March 2025)

Amendments to IAS 1—Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Applicable from 1January 2024, The Group will adopt this for the year ended 31 March 2025)

Amendments toIAS 7 and IFRS 7 — Supplier Finance Arrangements (Applicable from 1January 2024, The Group will adopt this for the year ended 31
March 2025)

Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease Liability ina Sale and Leaseback (Applicable from 1 January 2024, The Group will adopt this for the year ended 31 March 2025)

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company and the
Groupin future periods.
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1. General information and basis of preparation continued

Basis of consolidation

The Financial Statements incorporate the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns fromits involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

CMC Markets plc became the ultimate holding company of the Group under a Group reorganisation in 2006. The pooling of interests method of accounting was
applied to the Group reorganisation as it fell outside the scope of IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. The Directors adopted the pooling of interests method as they
believed it best reflected the true nature of the Group. All other business combinations have been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured initially at their fair values
at the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in

the Consolidated Income Statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Acquisition-related costs are
expensedasincurred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial information of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those adopted by
the Group.

Allinter-company transactions and balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of animpairment of the asset transferred.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain significant accounting judgements. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated Financial Statements are:

Contingent liabilities
Judgement has been applied in evaluating the accounting treatment of the specific matters described in note 34 (Contingent Liabilities), notably the probability of
any obligation or future payments arising.

Accounting for cryptocurrencies

The Group has recognised £12,258,000 (31 March 2023: £1,984,000) of cryptocurrency assets and rights to cryptocurrency assets onits Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2024. These assets are used for hedging purposes and held for sale in the ordinary course of business. A
judgement has been made to apply the measurement principles of IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” in accounting for these assets. The assets are presented as
“‘other assets” onthe Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Please refer to note 2 for the other assets accounting policy.

Intangible assets

The Group has recognised £12,901,000 (31 March 2023: £13,550,000) of customer relationship intangible onits Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
asat 31 March 2024 relating to the transaction with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (‘ANZ”) to transition its portfolio of share investing clients
to CMC for AUD$25 million. A judgement has been made to apply the recognition and measurement principles of IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” in accounting for
these assets.

Key financial estimates

The Group has recognised £11,706,000 (31 March 2023: £11,316,000) of internally generated software in intangible assets onits Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2024, including costs relating to the development of platforms for CMC Invest UK and cash equity offerings (cash equities cash-generating

unit (CGU))). In performing the impairment assessment, which concluded that animpairment of £10,976,000 was required, it was determined that the
recoverable amount of the asset is a source of estimation uncertainty which is sensitive to the estimated future revenues from the cash equities CGU. We found
the recoverable amount of the intangible asset to have been based on reasonable, supportable assumptions. B2B revenue, discount rates, cost per funded
customer acquisition, customer retention rates, average portfolio sizes and client trading volumes represent significant source of estimation uncertainty. Relevant
disclosureisincludedinnote 12.

2. Material accounting policy information

Totalrevenue

Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received from the provision of online financial services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities,
net of client rebates. Revenue is shown net of value added tax after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group generates revenue principally from commissions, spreads and financing income associated with stockbroking and acting as a spread bet and
contracts for difference market maker toiits clients, and the transactions undertaken to hedge the resulting risks.

Trading - contracts for difference (‘CFD") and spread bet
Revenue from CFD and spread bet represents:

— feespaid by clients for commission and funding charges in respect of the opening, holding and closing of financial spread bets and contracts for difference,
together with the spread and fair value gains and losses for the Group arising on client trading activity; less

— fees paid by the Group in commissions and funding charges arising in respect of hedging the risk associated with the client trading activity and the Group’s
currency exposures, together with the spread and fair value gains and losses incurred by the Group arising on hedging activity.

Spread and fair value gains and losses, commission and funding charges are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and IFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement”. Commission income is earned and recognised when the trade is placed, and funding charges when an open positionis held by
acustomer at 5:00pm New York time. Open client and hedging positions are fair valued on a daily basis and the unrealised gains and losses arising on this
valuation are recognised in revenue, alongside realised gains and losses on positions that have closed.
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2. Material accounting policy information continued

Total revenue continued

Revenue continued

Investing - stockbroking revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from the provision of financial information and stockbroking services to third parties represents fee and commission income. These are accounted forin
accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The Group recognises this revenue when the amount for the service can be determined and
the performance obligation has been satisfied, which leads to the revenue being recognised on the date of the Group provides the service to the client.

Other revenue from contracts with customers
Other revenue from the provision of financial information, dormancy fees and balance conversions are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Interestincome

Total revenue also includes interest earned on the Group’s own funds, money market funds and net broker trading deposits. Interest income is accrued based on
the effective interest rate method, by reference to the principal outstanding/free cash held and at the interest rate applicable. In addition, the Group earns interest
income on UK government securities and corporate bonds held as financial investments, calculated using the effective interest method.

Income onclient funds
Income on client funds includes interestincome generated from segregated client funds net of interest paid to clients on their free cash balance.

Introducing partner commissions and betting levies

Commissions payable to introducing partners and spread betting levies are charged to the income statement when the associated revenue is recognised and
are disclosed as a deduction from total revenue in deriving net operating income. Betting levy is payable on net gains generated from clients on spread betting
and the Countdowns products.

Segmental reporting

The Group’s segmental informationis disclosed ina manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (‘CODM”).
The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the CMC Markets plc Board. Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8 are aggregated. The segments are subject
toannual review and the comparatives restated to reflect any reclassifications within the segmental reporting.

Share-based payment
The Groupissues equity settled and cash settled share-based payments to certain employees.

Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payment is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vestas a
result of the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the income statement such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the retained earnings.

The expected life usedin the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

Cash settled share-based payments are measured at expected value at vesting date at least once per year, along with the likelihood of meeting non-
market-based vesting conditions and the number of shares that are expected to vest. The cost is recognised in the income statement with a corresponding
liability recorded.

Retirement benefit costs

Adefined contribution planis a post-employment benefit planinto which the Group pays fixed contributions to a third-party pension provider and has nolegal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions are recognised as staff expenses in profit or loss in the years during which related employee
services are fulfilled.

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for its Directors and employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Groupinindependently administered funds.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Consolidated Income Statement
becauseit excludesitems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferredtaxis accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial information and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences may be utilised. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled.

Suchassets andliabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the goodwill or from the initial recognition (other thanin abusiness
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction which affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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2. Material accounting policy information continued

Taxation continued

Deferredtax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference andit is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carryingamounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferredtax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate toincome taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets andliabilities onanetbasis.

Currentand deferred taxis charged or credited in the Consolidated Income Statement, except whenit relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in
which case the taxis also dealt within equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in currencies, other than the functional currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At
each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in the income statement for the year, except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets
and liabilities where the changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity.

Onconsolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income
and expenseitems are translated at the average exchange rates applicable to the relevant year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s translation reserve.

Suchtranslation differences are recognised as income or expense in the year in which the operation is disposed of.
Goodwilland fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwillrepresents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's interest in the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of asubsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is included within “intangible assets” at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Goodwillis tested forimpairment annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement and is not subsequently reversed.
Ondisposal of a subsidiary, the attributed amount of goodwill, which has not been subject to impairment, is included in the determination of the profit or loss
ondisposal.

Goodwillis allocated to cash-generating units for purposes of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination, identified according to business segment.

Computer software (purchased and developed)

Purchased software is recognised as an intangible asset at cost when acquired. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised
asanexpense asincurred. Costs directly attributable to internally developed software are recognised as an intangible asset only if all of the following
conditions are met:

— itistechnically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;

— managementintends to complete the software and use it;

thereisan ability to use the software;

— itcanbe demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the software are available; and
— the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Where the above conditions are not met, costs are expensed as incurred. Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include contractor costs associated with
the development of software. Costs which have been recognised as an asset are amortised on a straight-line basis over the asset’s estimated useful life from the
pointat which the assetisready touse.

Trademarks and trading licences
Trademarks and trading licences that are separately acquired are capitalised at cost and those acquired from a business combination are capitalised at the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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2. Material accounting policy information continued

Intangible assets continued

Client relationships

The fair value attributable to client relationships acquired through a business combinationis included as an intangible asset and amortised over the estimated
usefullife onastraight-line basis. The fair value of client relationships is calculated at the date of acquisition on the basis of the expected future cash flows to
be generated from that asset. Separate values are not attributed to internally generated client relationships. Following initial recognition, computer software,
trademarks and trading licences and client relationships are carried at cost or initial fair value less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is provided on all
intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value based on prices prevailing at the balance sheet date, of each assetona
straight-line basis over its expected useful life as follows:

Item Amortisation policy
Computer software (purchased and developed) 3-10yearsor life of licence
Trademarks and trading licences 10-20years
Clientrelationships 1014 years

Usefullives are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made ona prospective basis. Assets under development are
transferred to the relevant intangible asset class and amortised over their useful life from the point at which the asset is ready to use. Assets under development
are tested forimpairment annually.

Cryptocurrency assets held asintangible assets

The Group holds cryptocurrency assets that are not held for sale in the ordinary course of business and therefore are measured in accordance with IAS 38
“Intangible Assets”. The assets are originally recognised at cost and are subsequently remeasured at cost under the cost method. These cryptocurrency assets,
subject to periodic review, are considered to have indefinite lives and as such are not subject to amortisation. The assets are tested forimpairment on a periodic
basis with any impairment being recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE”) is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes the original purchase
price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Depreciationis provided on all PPE at rates
calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value based on prices prevailing at the balance sheet date, of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life as follows:

Item Depreciation policy
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5years
Computer hardware Syears
Leaseholdimprovements Life of lease

The usefullives andresidual values of the assets are assessed annually and may be adjusted depending on a number of factors. Inreassessing asset lives, factors
suchas technological innovation, product lifecycles and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as

future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. Consideration is also given to the extent of current profits and losses on the
disposal of similar assets.

The gainorloss arising onthe disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
andis recognisedin the Consolidated Income Statement.

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Inthe Parent Company Statement of Financial Position, investment in subsidiary undertakings is stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

Investmentsinassociates

Anassociate is an undertaking in which the Group has along-term equity interest and over which it has the power to exercise significant influence. The Group’s
interestin the net assets of associates is reported in investments in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and its interest in their resultsis includedin
the Consolidated Income Statement. Investments in associates are initially recorded at cost. Investments in associates are reviewed forimpairment whenever

events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Further details are provided in note 15.

Impairment of assets

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed forimpairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Therecoverable amountis the higher of fair value less cost to selland value in use. Value in use is the estimated discounted future cash flows generated from the
asset's continued use, including those fromits ultimate disposal. Net realisable value is the estimated amount at which an asset can be disposed of, less any direct
selling costs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Anassessmentis made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated and previously recognised impairment losses are reversed only if there has
beenachangein the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the lastimpairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the assetisincreased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of animpairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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2. Material accounting policy information continued
Financial instruments

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- thosetobe measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss); and
— thosetobe measured atamortised cost.

Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset measured through other comprehensive income
oratamortised cost, transaction costs that are both incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Regular way transactions are
recognised on trade date.

The Group subsequently measures cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from brokers and trade and other receivables at amortised cost. The Group
subsequently measures derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, unless designated as an instrument in an effective hedge accounting
relationship, and financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Afinancial asset or liability is generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expired.

Cashand cash equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changesin value. Thisincludes money market funds.

Amounts due from/due to brokers

Amounts due from/due to brokers represent funds placed with hedging counterparties, a proportion of which are posted to meet broker margin requirements.
Allfinancialinstruments used as hedges held for trading are margin traded. Assets or liabilities resulting from profits or losses on open positions are recognised
separately as derivative financial instruments where IAS 32 offsetting criteria is not met.

Other assets
Otherassetsrepresent cryptocurrencies controlled by the Group. The Group offers CFDs on cryptocurrencies as a product that can be traded on its platform.
As part of a wider hedging strategy, the Group purchases and sells cryptocurrencies to hedge the clients’ positions.

The Group holds cryptocurrency assets for trading in the ordinary course of its business, effectively acting as a commodity broker-dealer in respect of the
underlying cryptocurrency asset. The assets are recognised on trade date and measured at fair value with changes in valuation being recorded in the income
statementinthe periodin which they arise. Cryptocurrency assets are not financial instruments and they are categorised as non-financial assets.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables primarily comprise amounts due from clients and stockbroking settlement balances. They are short termin nature and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for expected credit losses.

Trade receivables are short term and do not contain a significant financing element and therefore expected credit losses are measured using the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the receivables. Amounts are written off
whenthere is no reasonable expectation of recovery of the amount.

The expectedloss model for these trade receivables has been built based on the levels of loss experienced, with due consideration given to forward-looking information.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within
netimpairment gains/(losses) on financial assets. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against netimpairment gains/(losses) in the income statement.

Financialinvestments
Under IFRS 9, financial assets that are debt instruments held in a business model that is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling and that
contain contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) are measured at FVOCI.

Financialinvestments in UK government securities and Corporate bonds are non-derivative financial assets and are recognised on a trade date basis. These
financialinvestments are initially measured at fair value plus directly related transactions cost. They are remeasured at fair value. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income statement. All other net gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income untilthe
assets are sold or disposed of. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified to the income statement.

Financialinvestments in equity securities are non-derivative financial assets and are recognised on a trade date basis and are measured at FVPL.

The Group recognises a charge for expected credit losses in the income statement. As financial investments are measured at fair value, the charge does not
adjust the carrying value of the asset, and this is reflected in other comprehensive income.
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2. Material accounting policy information continued

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, comprising index, commodities, foreign exchange and treasury futures and forward foreign exchange contracts, are classified
as “fair value through profit or loss” under IFRS 9 unless designated as accounting hedges. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent toinitial
recognition, changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as accounting hedges, and gains or losses on their settlement, are recognised in the
income statement.

Foraccounting hedges, the Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well asiits risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inceptionand onan
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are usedin hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changesin fair values or cash flows of hedgeditems.

The Group categorises certain derivatives as either:

Heldfor trading

The Group uses derivative financial instruments in order to economically hedge derivative exposures arising from open client positions, which are classified
as held for trading. All derivatives held for trading are carried in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at fair value with gains or losses recognised in
revenue in theincome statement.

Economic hedges (held as hedges of monetary assets and liabilities, financial commitments or forecast transactions)

These are derivatives held to mitigate the foreign exchange risk on monetary assets and liabilities, financial commitments or forecast transactions. Where a
derivative financial instrument is used as an economic hedge of the foreign exchange exposure of arecognised monetary asset or liability, financial commitment
or forecast transaction but does not meet the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS, no hedge accounting is applied and any gain or loss resulting
fromchanges infair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in operating costs in the income statement.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently at amortised cost.

Leases
Under IFRS 16, when the Groupis the lessee, itis required to recognise both:

— aleaseliability, measured at the present value of remaining cash flows on the lease; and

— aright-of-use (‘ROU") asset, measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any lease payments made prior to commencement
date, initial direct costs, and estimated costs of restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the lease, less any lease incentives received.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

Subsequently, the lease liability willincrease for the accrual of interest, resulting in a constant rate of return throughout the life of the lease, and reduce when
the payments are made. The right-of-use asset willamortise to the income statement over the life of the lease. The lease liability is remeasured when thereis a
change in one of the following:

- futurelease payments arising fromachangeinanindexor rate;
— the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under aresidual value guarantee; or
— the Group's assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

Whenthe lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the ROU asset or is recorded in the income statement if the
carryingamount of the ROU asset has been reduced to £nil.

Onthe Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the ROU assets are included within property, plant and equipment.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Extensionand termination options are included inanumber of property leases in the Group. Management considers the facts and circumstances that may
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension or termination optionin order to determine whether the lease term should include or exclude such options.
Extension or termination options are only included within the lease term if they are reasonably certain to be exercised in the case of extension options and not
exercised inthe case of termination options.

The Group entersinto lease agreements as alessor with respect to some of its vehicles that it leases under head leases. When the Group is an intermediate
lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease of vehicles is classified as a finance lease. Amounts due from
the lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s netinvestment inthe leases. Finance lease incomeis allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group'’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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2. Material accounting policy information continued

Provisions

Aprovisionis a liability of uncertain timing or amount that is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event
whereitis probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. The increase in the provision due to the unwind of
the discount to present value over time is recognised as an interest expense.

Share capital
Ordinary and Deferred Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are showninequity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Own shares heldin trusts
Shares heldin trust by the Company for the purposes of employee share schemes are classified as a deduction from shareholders’ equity and are recognised at
cost. No gainorlossis recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares.

Capital redemptionreserve

The capital redemption reserve was created for capital maintenance purposes as a result of the share buyback programme. When shares are repurchased out of
the Company's profits, the amount by which the Company’s issued share capital is diminished must be transferred to the capital redemption reserve. This amount
is the nominal value of the shares bought back. See note 25.

Share buyback reserve

The share buyback reserve was created as aresult of the share buyback programme and on inception of the contract amounted to the full value of the share
buyback programme plus directly attributed costs. As shares are repurchased, the share buyback reserve amount is reduced by the consideration paid for the
repurchased shares with a corresponding transaction recorded within retained earnings to reflect the consumption of distributable profits. See note 27.

Employee benefit trusts
Assets held inemployee benefit trusts (‘EBT”) are recognised as assets of the Group until these vest unconditionally to identified employees. A full provision is
made inrespect of assets held by the trust as there is an obligation to distribute these assets to the beneficiaries of the employee benefit trust.

The employee benefit trusts own equity shares inthe Company. These investments in the Company's own shares are held at costand are included as
adeduction from equity attributable to the Company’s equity owners until such time as the shares are cancelled or transferred. Where such shares are
subsequently transferred, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included
inequity attributable to the Company’s equity owners.

Client money

The Group holds money on behalf of clients in accordance with the Client Asset ("CASS”) rules of the FCA and other financial markets regulators in the countries
inwhich the Group operates. Segregated client funds comprise individual client balances which are pooled in segregated client money bank accounts.
Segregated client money bank accounts hold statutory trust status restricting the Group's ability to use the monies and accordingly such amounts and are not
recognised on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position.

3.Segmental reporting

The Group's principal business is online trading, providing its clients with the ability to trade a variety of financial products for short-terminvestment and hedging
purposes. These products include contracts for difference (*CFD”) and financial spread betting on a range of underlying shares, indices, foreign currencies,
commodities and treasuries. The Group also makes these services available to institutional partners through white label and introducing broker arrangements.
The Group's CFDs are traded worldwide; spread bets only in the UK and Ireland.

Inadditionto this, the Group provides online stockbroking services to cater for its clients longer-term investment needs. These services are provided in Australia,
the UK and Singapore.

At the reporting date, management considered the appropriateness of the Group's existing operating segment disclosures and the information whichis
considered by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM”) in allocating resources and assessing performance. The Group’s CODM has been identified
asthe Board of Directors.

The Group's business is generally managed by product line, given the different economic characteristics and the different purposes for which they are used by
clients. As aresult, the Group is organised into two segments:

— Trading;and
— Investing.

This presentation is consistent with management information regularly provided to the CODM. Revenues and segment operating expenses are allocated to the
segments that originated the transaction, and the Group uses operating profit to assess the financial performance of each segment.
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3.Segmental reporting continued
Geographical splits of the Trading businessin the prior period have been aggregated into one segment but are not restated.

Year ended 31March 2024
Trading Investing Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000
Revenue 279,018 45,684 324,702
Interestincome on own funds 9,630 1,616 11,246
Income onclient funds 14,423 9,374 23,797
Totalrevenue 303,071 56,674 359,745
Introducing partner commissions and betting levies (15,233) (11,729) (26,962)
Net operatingincome 287,838 44,945 332,783
Operating costs (200,527) (54,367) (254,894)
Impairment of intangible assets (2,298) (10,024) (12,322)
Operating profit/(loss) 85,013 (19,446) 65,567
Share of results of associates (283) — (283)
Finance costs (1,947) (4) (1,951)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 82,783 (19,450) 63,333
Year ended 31 March 2023
Trading Investing Total
GROUP £°000 £°000 £°000
Revenue 255,528 55,682 311,210
Interestincome on own funds 4,129 632 4,761
Income onclient funds 3,262 5,904 9,166
Total revenue 262,919 62,218 325,137
Introducing partner commissions and betting levies (18,960) (17,754) (36,714)
Net operatingincome 243,959 44,464 288,423
Operating costs (188,164) (45,349) (233,513)
Impairment of intangible assets* (432) — (432)
Operating profit/(loss) 55,363 (885) 54,478
Finance costs (2,136) (179) (2,315)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 53,227 (1,064) 52,163
* Forthe year ended 31 March 2023, impairment of intangible assets has been presented separately from Operating Expenses to align with the presentation for the year ended 31 March 2024,
The measurement of net operating income for segmental analysis is consistent with that in the income statement and is broken down by geographic
location below.
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March2023
Net operatingincome by geography £°000 £'000
UK 92,332 94,943
Australia 109,425 91,314
Other countries 131,026 102,166
332,783 288,423

The Group does not derive more than 10% of revenue from any one single client.
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3. Segmental reporting continued

The measurement of segment assets for segmental analysis is consistent with that in the balance sheet. The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax
assets, broken down by location of the assets, is shown below:

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023

£000 £000

Total Total

UK 32,981 30,996

Australia 23,405 25,348

Other countries 6,368 4,469

Total non-current assets 62,754 60,813
4. Totalrevenue

Revenue

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP £000 £000

Trading 274,309 252,012

Investing 45,684 55,687

Other 4,709 3,511

Total 324,702 311,210

Trading revenue (previously presented as leveraged revenue) represents CFD and spread bet revenue (net of hedging costs) accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Investing revenue (previously presented as non-leveraged revenue) represents stockbroking revenue accounted for in

accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Interestincome on own funds

Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £000 £000
Bank and broker interest* 9,661 4,316
Interest on financial investments 1,556 440
Otherinterestincome 29 5
Total 11,246 4,761
*  Forbetter presentation, Income on client funds have been presented separately for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, as below.
Income onclient funds
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £000 £000
Income on client funds 23,797 9,166
Total 23,797 9,166
5. Operating expenses
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £000 £000
Net staff costs (note 6) 118,469 101,560
IT costs 39,697 33,723
Salesand marketing 35,583 38,304
Premises 6,657 5,706
Legaland professional fees 13,937 8,605
Regulatory fees 4,294 9,436
Depreciation and amortisation 15,101 15,205
Bank charges 5,055 7,362
Irrecoverable sales tax 5,546 2,972
Other 10,568 10,810
254,907 233,683
Capitalised internal software development costs (13) (170)
Operating expenses 254,894 233,513

The above presentation reflects the breakdown of operating expenses by nature of expense.
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6. Employee information
The aggregate employment costs of staff and Directors were:

Yearended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Wages and salaries 108,291 92,758
Social security costs 13,950 11,850
Other pension costs 3,439 2,743
Share-based payments 2,757 2,229
Total Director and employee costs 128,437 109,580
Contract staff costs 1,703 3,101
130,140 112,681
Capitalised internal software development costs (11,671) (11,121)
Net staff costs 118,469 101,560
Compensation of key management personnel s disclosed in note 33.
The monthly average number of Directors and employees of the Group during the year is set out below:
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP Number Number
By activity:
Key management 10 9
Client acquisition and maintenance 523 489
IT development and support 348 315
Global support functions 284 254
Total Directors and employees 1,165 1,067
Contract staff 16 20
Total staff 1,181 1,087
The Company had no employees during the current year or prior year.
7.Finance costs
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Interest and fees on bank borrowings 985 1,657
Interest on lease liabilities 966 658
Total 1,951 2,315
8. Profit before taxation
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Profit before tax is stated after charging:
Depreciation 9,658 9,962
Amortisation andimpairment of intangible assets 17,765 5675
Net foreign exchange gain 1,134 1,044
Auditor's remuneration for audit and other services (see below) 3,234 2,490
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8. Profit before taxation continued
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor, Deloitte LLP (year ended 31 March 2023: Deloitte LLP), were as follows:

Shareholder information

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £000 £000
Audit services
Audit of CMC Markets plc's Financial Statements 1,069 814
Audit of CMC Markets plc's subsidiaries 1,340 978
Total audit fees 2,409 1,792
Non-audit services
Audit-related services 825 698
Total non-audit fees 825 698
Total fees 3,234 2,490
9. Taxation

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Analysis of charge for the year
Current tax:
Current tax on profit for the year 18,839 9,873
Adjustmentsinrespect of previous years (991) (991)
Total current tax 17,848 8,882
Deferredtax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,878) 1180
Adjustmentsinrespect of previous years 477 200
Impact of changeintaxrate —_ 462
Total deferred tax (1,401) 1,842
Total tax 16,447 10,724

The standard rate of UK corporation tax charged was 25% with effect from 1 April 2023. Taxation outside the UK is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions. The effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2024 was 25.97% (year ended 31 March 2023: 20.56%) differs from the standard rate

of corporation tax of 25% (year ended 31 March 2023:19%). The differences are explained below:

Year ended Year ended
31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Profit before taxation 63,333 52163
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25% (year ended 31 March 2023: 19%) 15,833 9,91
Adjustmentinrespect of foreigntax rates 743 1,205
Adjustments inrespect of previous years (514) (791)
Impact of changeintax rate — 462
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 319 (104)
Unrecognised tax losses 66 4
Total tax 16,447 10,724
Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Tax onitems recognised directly in equity
Tax credit on share-based payments (876) —
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10. Earnings per share (‘EPS”)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to the equity owners of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares inissue
during each year excluding those held in employee share trusts which are treated as cancelled. For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number
of Ordinary Sharesinissue, excluding those held inemployee share trusts, is adjusted to assume conversion vesting of all dilutive potential weighted average

Ordinary Shares and that vesting is satisfied by the issue of new Ordinary Shares.

Yearended Yearended
GROUP 31March 2024 31March2023
Earnings attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (£'000) 46,886 41,439
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of basic EPS (000) 279,962 282,295
Dilutive effect of share options (000) — 1,598
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted EPS (000) 279,962 283,893
Basic EPS 16.7p 14.7p
Diluted EPS 16.7p 14.6p

Forthe year ended 31 March 2024, there are no (year ended 31 March 2023:1,598,000) potentially dilutive weighted average Ordinary Shares in respect of
share awards and optionsinissue, included in the calculation of diluted EPS, as the Group does not expect to issue any new shares to settle these share awards

and options.
11. Dividends
Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP AND COMPANY £000 £000
Declared and paidin each year
Final dividend for 2023 at 3.90p per share (2022: 8.88p) 10,893 25,250
Interim dividend for 2024 at 1.00p per share (2023: 3.50p) 2,795 9,790
Total 13,688 35,040

Thefinal dividend for 2024 of 7.30 pence per share, amounting to £20,427,000, was proposed by the Board on 19 June 2024 and has not beenincluded as a
liability at 31 March 2024. The dividend will be paid on 9 August 2024, following approval at the Company’s Annual General Meeting, to those members onthe

register at the close of business on 12 July 2024. The dividends paid or declared in relation to the financial year are set out below:

Yearended Yearended

31March 2024 31March2023

GROUP AND COMPANY Pence Pence
Declared per share

Interim dividend 1.00 3.50

Final dividend 7.30 3.90

Total dividend 8.30 740
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12. Intangible assets

Computer Trademarks and Client Cryptocurrency Assetsunder

Goodwill software tradinglicences relationships assets development Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At1April2022 11,500 132,187 1,052 3,095 — 23,608 171,442
Additions — 291 23 — — 11,316 11,630
Transfers — 12,803 — 14,103 — (26,906) —
Foreign currency translation — (1,290) (29) (703) — (811) (2,333)
At 31March 2023 11,500 143,991 1,046 16,495 — 7,707 180,739
Additions — 338 — — 200 11,706 12,244
Transfers — 9,671 - — — (9,671) —
Disposals — (1,730) — — — — (1,730)
Foreign currency translation — (1,222) (27) (790) — (235) (2,274)
At 31March 2024 11,500 151,048 1,019 15,705 200 9,507 188,979
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At1April2022 (11,500) (125,612) (907) (3,095) — — (141,114)
Charge for the year — (4,441 (34) (768) — — (5,243)
Impairment — (432) = — — — (432)
Foreign currency translation — 1,181 27 184 — — 1,392
At 31March 2023 (11,500) (129,304) (914) (3,679) — — (145,397)
Charge for the year — (3,953) (34) (1,456) — — (5,443)
Impairment — (9,161) - — — (3,161) (12,322)
Disposals - 1,730 - —_ — - 1,730
Foreign currency translation — 1,137 25 197 — - 1,359
At 31March 2024 (11,500) (139,551) (923) (4,938) — (3,161) (160,073)
Carrying amount
At1April 2022 — 6,575 145 — — 23,608 30,328
At 31March 2023 — 14,687 132 12,816 — 7,707 35,342
At 31March 2024 — 1,497 96 10,767 200 6,346 28,906

Computer software includes capitalised development costs of £26,487,000 relating to the Group’s Next Generation trading platform which has been fully
amortised. Estimated research and development expenditure recognised as expense during the year amounted to £886,532 (31 March 2023: £893,344). Client
relationshipsinclude the transaction with ANZ to transition its portfolio of Share Investing clients to CMC for AUD$25 million, which has a remaining amortisation
period of 7.5 years.

Impairment

Intangible assets are tested forimpairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Assets
under development are tested annually, with additional testing being carried out whenimpairment triggers for an asset or CGU could adversely impact the
valuation of the asset or CGU.

The Group has recognised impairment losses totalling £12,322,000 during the 12-month period ended 31 March 2024 through the profitand loss. These
charges have been recognised through the “Impairment of intangible assets’ line in the Financial Statements. Of the impairment losses, £2,298,000 relates
toassetsinthe Trading segment and £10,024,000 to assets in the Investing segment. No impairment losses have been recognised or reversed through other
comprehensive income.

The cash equities CGU includes assets developedin the UK that provide functionality for clients to buy and sell cash equities products. The CGU consists of
assetsrelating to the UK Invest platform, as well as assets developed to offer cash equities on the Next Generation platform. Due to the shared infrastructure used
across these assets it was deemed appropriate to assess themin aggregate as one CGU. Prior to the current assessment, the CGU was tested for impairment
during the six-month period ending 30 September 2023 which resulted in a £5,275,000 impairment to be recognised.

As aresult of the unfavourable equity market conditions and operational delays in development of products, management revised forecasts downwards for the
assets, triggering animpairment review.

Therecoverable amount of the CGUis measured by its value in use (“VIU"). The key assumptions used in the projections relate to B2B revenue, cost of acquisition
of D2C clients and average portfolio sizes of the UK Invest business, and client trading volumes and the number of relationships onboarded in the cash equities
offering through the Next Generation platform. The most recent five-year Board-approved forecast results were used in projecting the VIU of the CGU, witha
discount rate of 9.7% (2023: 9.3%) and along-term growth rate (beyond the forecasting period) of 0%. The resulting recoverable amount is £5,665,000. As this

is below the carrying value of the CGU of £11,367,000, an impairment loss of £5,701,000 was recognised during the six-month period ended 31 March 2024. This
resultedinacharge for the financial year of £10,976,000.
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12. Intangible assets continued

Impairment continued

Giventheinherent uncertainty in forecasting cashflows for new business lines, there is arisk that the expected levels of income from the new initiatives are not
achieved, and as aresult the recoverable amount of the CGU may reduce. A 12% reduction in projected revenues, or a 12% increase in projected costs, would
resultinthe fullimpairment of the assets.

The Opto brandis an existing content marketing channel for CMC, providing financial content to a worldwide user base via emails, articles, a podcast, magazine
andregular videointerviews. The Group plans to develop this content further, and have internally developed a mobile app to access this content and enable
clients to act on thisinformation by executing trades within the same app. This asset sits within the Group’s Investing segment.

Thisisthefirsttime the asset has been subject toimpairment assessment. As at 31 March 2024 the asset was not yet available for use and therefore is required
by IAS 36 paragraph 10(a) to be subject to animpairment assessment.

Therecoverable amount of the asset is measured by its value in use (“VIU"). The most recent three-year Board-approved forecast results were usedin
projecting the VIU of the asset, with a discount rate of 9.7% and along-term growth rate (beyond the forecasting period) of 0%. The resulting recoverable
amountis (£3,282,000). As this is below nil and therefore the carrying value of the asset of £941,000, animpairment loss of the full £941,000 was recognised
during the period ended 31 March 2024.

Given the significant deficit between the recoverable amount and £nil, there is no reasonable scenario in which the asset would not be fully impaired; as aresuilt,
no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

The Multi-Asset Platform (‘MAP”) asset was in early stages of development with the aim of creating a new platform to support existing and planned product
releases as well as delivering operational efficiencies. The project was discontinued and therefore resulted in the fullimpairment of asset, amounting toan
impairmentloss of £404,000. The asset sits within the Group’s Trading segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 the Group recorded animpairment of £432,000 relating to internally generated computer software assets. The carrying
value of the assetsimpaired at 1 April 2022 was £841,000, amortisation during the year ended 31 March 2023 was £409,000 until the date of decommissioning
the asset resulting inanimpairment of £432,000. The impaired asset provided an enhanced functionality to the clients but this functionality was removed from

the Next Generation platform.

13. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
Leasehold fixturesand Computer Right-of-use Constructionin

improvements equipment hardware asset progress Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At1April 2022 (Restated) 16,883 8,922 37,375 21,845 — 85,025
Additions 722 479 5,788 2,872 211 10,072
Reclassification 36 18 — — (54) —
Disposals (887) (72) (579) (1,813) = (3,351)
Foreign currency translation (189) (26) (164) (270) (5) (654)
At 31 March 2023 16,565 9,321 42,420 22,634 152 91,092
Additions 3,006 647 3,779 9,587 — 17,019
Reclassification — 89 61 — (150) —
Disposals (2,769) (117) (514) (1,306) — (4,706)
Foreign currency translation (260) (111) (244) (595) 2) (1,212)
At 31 March 2024 16,542 9,829 45,502 30,320 — 102,193
Accumulated depreciation
At 1April 2022 (Restated) (13,521) (8,280) (28,360) (11,694) — (61,855)
Charge for the year (1,585) (407) (3,749) (4,221) — (9,962)
Disposals 839 59 340 1,801 — 3,039
Foreign currency translation 175 22 108 152 — 457
At 31 March 2023 (14,092) (8,606) (31,661) (13,962) — (68,321)
Charge for the year (1,136) (293) (4,163) (4,066) — (9,658)
Disposals 2,549 116 256 601 — 3,522
Foreign currency translation 208 83 174 345 - 810
At 31March 2024 (12,471) (8,700) (35,394) (17,082) — (73,647)
Carrying amount
At 1April 2022 (Restated) 3,362 642 9,015 10,151 — 23,170
At 31 March 2023 2,473 715 10,759 8,672 152 22,771
At 31 March 2024 4,071 1,129 10,108 13,238 — 28,546

The carrying amount of recognised right-of-use assets relates to leasehold properties.

Refer to note 23 for further details on lease liabilities.
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14. Deferred tax

Deferredincome taxes are calculated on alltemporary differences under the liability method at the tax rate expected to apply when the deferred tax will crystallise.
The gross movement on deferred tax is as follows:

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP £000 £000
At1April 756 2,713
Charge toincome for the year 1,401 (1,380)

Charge to equity for the year 876 —
Changeintaxrate - (462)
Foreign currency translation (100) (115)
At 31March 2,933 756
The following table details the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year:
Accelerated Intangible
capital fixed Share based Accrualsand

Taxlosses allowances assets payments provisions Total

GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2022 93 (278) (1,728) 273 4,353 2,713
Charge toincome for the year 5 (1,590) (625) (52) 882 (1,380)
Changeintaxrate 7) (192) (182) (16) (65) (462)
Foreign currency translation 4 (22) — — 97) (115)

At 31March 2023 95 (2,082) (2,535) 205 5,073 756

Charge toincome for the year 79 (708) 451 19 1,460 1,401

Charge to equity for the year —_ —_ — 876 —_ 876
Foreign currency translation 3) 2) (106) — 1" (100)

At 31March 2024 171 (2,792) (2,190) 1,200 6,544 2,933

Therecognition of deferred tax assetsis based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future
against which the reversal of the temporary differences can be deducted. The recoverability of the Group’s deferred tax assetinrespect of carry forwardlossesis
based on anassessment of the future levels of taxable profit expected to arise that can be offset against these losses. The Group’s expectations as to the level of
future taxable profits take into account the Group's long-term financial and strategic plans and anticipated future tax adjusting items. In making this assessment,
accountis taken of business plans including the Board-approved Group budget. Key budget assumptions are discussed in the Directors' viability statement.

Deferredtax assets are recognised for taxlosses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
Asat 31March 2024, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £272,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £298,000) inrespect of losses amounting to
£1,416,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £1,540,000). £66,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £520,000) of the losses relates to the Group’s Information Internet
Limited subsidiary and £1,416,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £1,020,000) of the losses relates to CMC Markets Singapore Invest Pte Ltd subsidiary. Thereis no
time limit on their utilisation.

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset of £171,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £95,000) inrespect of losses of £813,000 (year ended 31 March 2023:
£428,000).£548,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £321,000) of the losses relates to the Group’s Information Internet Limited subsidiary, £265,000 (year ended
31March 2023: £0) of losses relates to CMC Markets Singapore Invest Pte Ltd and £0 (year ended 31 March 2023: £107,000) of the losses relates to the Polish
branch of the Group’s CMC Markets Germany GmbH subsidiary as at 31 March 2024.

Deferredtax balances are reported at the substantively enacted corporation tax rate of 25%, the substantively enacted tax rate at the balance sheet date.

15. Investment in associates and subsidiary undertakings

Investmentsinassociates

On6 June 2023, the Group acquired a 33% stake in Strike X Technologies (“Strike X”), a customer centric blockchain solutions business for a cost of £2,800,000.
CMC Markets Ventures Ltd holds 3,330,000 A ordinary shares of £0.0001each in StrikeX, representing 100% of the nominal value of the shares of that class.

Thisinvestment presents the Group with further opportunity for growth. The partnership will allow the Group access to the latest blockchain related products and
services with the opportunity to leverage these for our customers over the longer term.

The Group's share of loss in Strike X for the year ended 31 March 2024 was £283,000. The investment was adjusted accordingly to £2,517,000 as at 31 March 2024.

Suchinvestments are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. There was no
indication of impairment for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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15. Investment in associates and subsidiary undertakings continued
Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Yearended Yearended

31March 2024 31March2023

COMPANY £'000 £000

At1April (Restated) 167,090 167,722

Capital contribution relating to share-based payments 2,364 2,121
Amounts contributed by subsidiaries in relation to share-based payments (1,006) (2,753)

At31March 168,448 167,090

The Company’sinvestments inits subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost less accumulated provision for impairment. In determining the provision for
impairment, the carrying value of the investment is compared to the recoverable amount of the investment. The estimated recoverable amount of these
investments is determined based on an estimate of the fair value less costs to sell of the subsidiary undertaking or the value in use of the subsidiary undertaking,
whichever is higher. Investments in subsidiary undertakings are tested forimpairment annually. Total provision forimpairment recorded during the year ended

31March 2024 was £nil (year ended 31 March 2023: £nil).

Thelist below includes all of the Group's direct and indirect subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024:

Country of

incorporation Principal activities Held
CMC Markets Holdings Ltd England Holding company Directly
CMC Markets UK Holdings Ltd England Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Investments Limited England Onlineinvesting Indirectly
CMC Markets Investments Nominee Limited England Nominee entity Indirectly
CMC Markets UK plc England Online trading Indirectly
Information Internet Ltd England IT development Indirectly
CMC Spreadbet plc England Financial spread betting Indirectly
CMC Markets Overseas Holdings Ltd England Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets CFD Overseas Holdings Limited England Dormant Indirectly
CMC Markets Holdings Ventures Limited England Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Ventures Limited England Holding company Indirectly
Opto Markets Limited England Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Asia Pacific Pty Ltd Australia Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets Group Australia Pty Ltd Australia Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Ltd Australia Stockbroking Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Services Pty Lt Australia Employee services Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Nominees Pty Ltd Australia Nominee entity Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Nominees (No. 2 Account) Pty Ltd Australia Nominee entity Indirectly
CMC Markets Canadalnc Canada Online trading Indirectly
CMC Markets NZ Ltd New Zealand Online trading Indirectly
CMC Markets Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore Online trading Indirectly
CMC Markets Singapore Invest Pte Ltd Singapore Onlineinvesting Indirectly
CMC Business Services (Shanghai) Limited China Training and education Indirectly
CMC Markets Germany GmbH Germany Online trading Indirectly
CMC Markets Middle East Ltd UAE Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets Bermuda Holdings Ltd Bermuda Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Bermuda Ltd Bermuda Online trading Indirectly
OptoMarkets LLC USA Online trading Indirectly

Please refer to pages 178 and 179 for the registered office addresses of the subsidiaries above.

Allshareholdings are of Ordinary Shares. The issued share capital of all subsidiary undertakings is 100% owned, which also represents the proportion of
the voting rights in the subsidiary undertakings. The Group has taken advantage of the s394 A exemption from preparing individual accounts of its dormant

subsidiary CMC Markets CFD Overseas Holdings Limited (Company registration number: 14940138)

Thelist below includes all of the Group’s employee benefit trusts as at 31 March 2024:

Country of

incorporation

CMC Markets plc Employee Share Trust Jersey
CMC Markets plc UK Share Incentive Plan England
CMC Markets plc (Discretionary Schemes) Employee Share Trust England
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16. Trade and other receivables

GROUP COMPANY
31March 2024 31March 2023 31March 2024 31March2023
£°000 £000 £000 £000
Current

Grosstrade receivables 9,936 8,721 - —
Less:lossallowance (3,964) (4,247) - —
Tradereceivables 5,972 4474 — —
Amounts due from Group companies — — — 1,879
Prepayments 13,552 14,985 52 51
Accruedincome 3,778 2,335 — 2
Stockbroking debtors 126,339 105,103 — —
Other debtors and advances 12,415 3,719 5,495 —
162,056 130,616 5,547 1,932

Non-current
Other debtors 2,753 2,666 — —
Total 164,809 133,282 5,547 1932

Stockbroking debtors represent the amount receivable in respect of equity security transactions executed on behalf of clients with a corresponding balance
included within trade and other payables (note 21).

Allamounts due from Group companies in the Company Financial Statements are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.

At 31March 2024 the Group has lease receivables amounting to £548,000 (31March 2023: £384,000). The Groupis anintermediate lessor on these leases
and has recognised finance income of £29,000 during the year ended 31 March 2024 (year ended 31 March 2023: £5,000).

17. Derivative financial instruments

Assets
31March 2024 31March 2024 31March 2023 31March 2023
Notional Carrying Notional Carrying
amount amount amount amount
GROUP £m £000 £m £000
Held for trading
Client trading positions 394.0 31,627 120.9 13,125
Held for hedging
Forward foreign exchange contracts —economic hedges — — 73.6 1,106
Total 394.0 31,627 194.5 14,231
Liabilities
31March 2024 31March 2024 31March 2023 31March 2023
Notional Carrying Notional Carrying
amount amount amount amount
GROUP £m £°000 £m £000
Held for trading
Clienttrading positions 181.4 (7,074) 357 (2,033)
Held for hedging
Forward foreign exchange contracts —economic hedges - — — —
Total 181.4 (7,074) 357 (2,033)

The fair value of derivative contracts is based on the market price of comparable instruments at the balance sheet date. All derivative financial instruments have a
maturity date of less than one year.

Held for trading
Derivative financialinstruments relating to client trading positions refer to the fair value of open positions held by clients at the end of the year.
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17. Derivative financial instruments continued

Held for hedging
The Group's forward foreign exchange contracts are categorised as economic hedges.

Economic hedges are held for the purpose of mitigating currency risk relating to transactional currency flows arising from earnings in foreign currencies but
donotmeet the criteria for designationin a hedge accounting relationship. During the year ended 31 March 2024, £1,033,000 of net loss relating to economic

hedges was recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement (year ended 31 March 2023: loss of £845,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the derivative assets at the balance sheet date.

The Group's derivative positions are reported gross on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as required by IAS 32 where the criteria for offset are not met.

18. Other assets

31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Exchange 10,382 1178
Vaults 1,876 806
Total 12,258 1,984

Otherassets are cryptocurrencies, which are owned and controlled by the Group for the purpose of hedging the Group’s exposure to clients’ cryptocurrency

trading positions. The fair value of cryptocurrencies is based on the market price of these instruments as at the balance sheet date.

As presented above, the Group holds cryptocurrencies on exchange and in vault. Cryptocurrencies held on vaults are held in a wallet that has additional security

features. Other assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell.

19. Financial investments

Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £°000 £000
Investment in debt instruments classified at FVOCI
UK government securities 16,162 30,572
Corporate bonds 34,349 —
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL
Equity securities 410 34
Total 50,921 30,606

The effective interest rates of UK government securities held at the year-end range from 2.43% to 2.61% (31 March 2023: -1.72% to 4.05%). The effective interest

rates of Corporate bonds held at the year-end range from 0.76% t0 5.37%.

31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £000 £'000
Analysis of financial investments
Non-current 32 34
Current 50,889 30,572
Total 50,921 30,606

Financial investments are shown as current assets when they have a maturity of less than one year and as non-current when they have a maturity of more than
one year. The majority of these UK government securities are held to meet the Group's regulatory threshold requirements under IFPR. These UK government

securities are in Stage 1and ECL isimmaterial for the year ended 31 March 2024 (year ended 31 March 2023: £nil).
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

GROUP COMPANY
31March 2024 31March 2023 31March 2024 31March 2023
£°000 £000 £°000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 160,300 146,218 93 586
Analysed as:
Cashatbank 160,300 146,218 93 586

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changesin value. This includes money market funds. While cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the ECL isimmaterial for the year ended 31 March 2024 (year ended 31 March 2023: £nil).

Analysis of net cash
31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP £000 £000
Cashand cash equivalents 160,300 146,218
Borrowings — —
Share buyback liability — _
Lease liabilities (16,915) (11,818)
Net cash 143,385 134,400
Changesin
Lease Share buyback liabilities arising Cashandcash

Borrowings liabilities liability fromfinancing equivalents Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2022 (Restated) (194) (14,251) (27,264) (41,709) 176,578 134,869
Cash flows — — = = (29,058) (29,058)
Financing cash flows 194 5454 27,264 32912 — 32,912
Inception/modification of leases — (3,223) — (3,223) — (8,223)
Foreign exchange adjustments — 202 — 202 (1,302) (1,100)
At 31March 2023 — (11,818) — (11,818) 146,218 134,400
Cashflows — — — — 17,506 17,506
Financing cash flows — 5,531 — 5,531 - 5,531
Inception/modification of leases — (10,960) — (10,960) — (10,960)
Foreign exchange adjustments — 332 — 332 (3,424) (3,092)
At 31March 2024 — (16,915) — (16,915) 160,300 143,385

21. Trade and other payables

GROUP COMPANY

31March 2024 31March2023 31March 2024 31March2023

£000 £000 £000 £000

Client payables 119,591 49,409 - —
Tax and social security 759 1,272 — —
Stockbroking creditors 116,029 98,428 — —
Amount due to Group companies — — 4,426 —
Accruals and other creditors 36,432 33,175 217 122
Total 272,811 182,284 4,643 122

Stockbroking creditors represent the amount payable in respect of equity and securities transactions executed on behalf of clients with a corresponding balance
included within trade and other receivables (note 16).
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22.Borrowings

Bankloans

InMarch 2024, the syndicated revolving credit facility was renewed at a level of £55,000,000 (31 March 2023: £55,000,000) where £27,500,000 had a maturity
date of March 2025 and £27,500,000 had amaturity date of March 2027. This facility can only be used to meet broker margin requirements of the Group. Therate
of interest payable onany loansis the aggregate of the applicable margin and SONIA. Other fees such as commitment fees, legal fees and arrangement fees are
also payable on this facility (note 7).

No amount was outstanding on this facility at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £nil).
Allamounts due to Group companies in the Company Financial Statements are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.

23. Leases liabilities

The Group leases several assets including leasehold properties and computer hardware to meet its operational business requirements. The average lease term
is2.8years.

ROU asset balances relate to both leasehold properties and computer hardware. Refer to note 13 for a breakdown of the carrying amount of ROU assets.

The movements inlease liabilities during the year were as follows:

Year ended Yearended

31March2024 31March2023

GROUP £'000 £000

At1April 11,818 14,251

Additions/modifications of new leases during the year 10,960 3,223

Interest expense 966 658
Lease payments made during the year (6,497) (6,112)
Foreign currency translation (332) (202)

At31March 16,915 11,818

31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £°000 £'000

Analysis of lease liabilities

Non-current 12,000 6,228
Current 4,915 5,590
Total 16,915 11,818

Thelease payments for the year ended 31 March 2024 relating to short-term leases amounted to £732,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £402,000).

As at 31 March 2024 the potential future undiscounted cash outflows that have not beenincluded in the lease liability due to lack of reasonable certainty the lease
extension options might be exercised amounted to £nil (31 March 2023: £nil).

Refer to note 29 for maturity analysis of lease liabilities.

24.Provisions

Restructuring Property

costs related Other Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2022 — 2,416 70 2,486
Additional provision — 82 856 938
Utilisation of provision — (143) (870) (513)
Currency translation — 9) — 9)
At 31March 2023 — 2,346 556 2,902
Additional provision 2,186 16 1,646 3,848
Utilisation of provision — — (407) (407)
Unutilised provisions reversed — (1,955) (157) (2,112)
Currency translation —_ (21) (16) 37)
At 31March 2024 2,186 386 1,622 4,194

The restructuring provisionis for costs relating to redundancies announced within the year ended 31 March 2024.

The property-related provisions include dilapidation provisions. Dilapidation provisions have been capitalised as part of cost of ROU assets and are amortised
over the term of the lease. These dilapidation provisions are utilised as and when the Group vacates a property and expenditure is incurred to restore the property
toits original condition.

156 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Strategic report Governance

24. Provisions continued

Financial statements

Shareholder information

The other provisions balance as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 relates to provisions made for potential litigation associated with client complaints.

31March 2024 31March 2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Analysis of total provisions
Current 3,937 815
Non-current 257 2,087
Total 4,194 2,902
25. Share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve

Number £'000

GROUP AND COMPANY 31March 2024 31March2023 31March 2024 31March2023
Authorised
Ordinary Shares of 25p 400,000,000 400,000,000 100,000 100,000
Allotted, issued and fully paid
Ordinary Shares of 25p 279,815,463 279,815,463 69,953 69,953
Deferred Shares of 25p 2,478,086 2,478,086 620 620
Total 282,293,549 282,293,549 70,573 70,573

Share classrights

The Company has two classes of shares, Ordinary and Deferred, neither of which carries aright to fixed income. Deferred Shares have no voting or dividend
rights.Inthe event of a winding-up, Ordinary Shares shall be repaid at nominal value plus £500,000 each in priority to Deferred Shares.

Ordinary Shares Deferred Shares Total

GROUP AND COMPANY Number Number Number
At1April2022 290,293,919 2,478,086 292,772,005
New shares issued — — _
Shares cancelled (10,478,456) — (10,478,456)
At 31March 2023 279,815,463 2,478,086 282,293,549
New shares issued — — —
Shares cancelled — — —
At 31March 2024 279,815,463 2,478,086 282,293,549

Capital
redemption

Ordinary Shares Deferred Shares Share premium reserve Total

GROUP AND COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April2022 72,573 620 46,236 281 119,710
New shares issued — — — — _
Shares cancelled (2,620) — — 2,620 —
At 31March 2023 69,953 620 46,236 2,901 119,710
New shares issued — — — — —
Shares cancelled — — — — —
At 31March 2024 69,953 620 46,236 2,901 119,710

Movements in share capital and premium

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no (year ended 31 March 2023: nil) shares with nominal value of 25 pence were issued to employee benefit trusts (‘EBTS”).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no shares (year ended 31 March 2023:10,478,456) with nominal value of 25 pence were cancelled pursuant to the share

buyback programme.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no Ordinary Shares were converted to Deferred Shares in accordance with the terms of grant to employees who have now

left the Group (year ended 31 March 2023: nil).
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25. Share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve continued
Capital redemptionreserve
On14 March 2022, the Board approved a share buyback programme with up to £30.0 million to be returned to shareholders.

During the period starting 17 March 2022 and up to 19 October 2022, the Company repurchased and cancelled 11,602,010 Ordinary Shares with nominal value of
25 pence. The amount by which the Company’s share capital is diminished on the cancellation of the purchased shares is transferred to the capital redemption
reserve. Thisamounted to £2,619,614 for the year ended 31 March 2023. No shares were repurchased and cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2024.

26.Own shares held in trust

GROUP AND COMPANY Number £000

Ordinary Shares of 25p

At1April 2022 653,615 1,094

Acquisition 460,840 1,106

Utilisation (408,688) (691)
At 31March 2023 705,767 1,509

Acquisition 1,046,565 1,788

Utilisation (328,336) (708)
At 31March 2024 1,423,996 2,589

Atthe AGM held on 27 July 2023, the shareholders authorised the Company to purchase its own shares up to a maximum number of 27,981,546. The authority is
due to expire at the end of the next annual general meeting of the Company or at the close of business on 26 September 2024, whichever is the earlier.

The shares are held by various EBTs for the purpose of encouraging or facilitating the holding of shares in the Company for the benefit of employees and the
trustees willapply the whole or part of the trust’s funds to facilitate dealing in shares by such beneficiaries. The maximum number of own shares held at any time
by the Group was 1,423,996 (year ended 31 March 2023:705,767). At 31 March 2024, Ordinary Shares held in trust represent 0.51% (At 31 March 2023:0.25%) of
the called up share capital of the Company.

27.Otherreserves

Share
Translation Netinvestment FVOCI Merger buyback
reserve hedgingreserve reserve reserve reserve Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2022 7827 (8,662) (81) (47,800) (27,264) (75,980)
Currency translation differences (1,760) — — — — (1,760)
Share buyback — — — — 27,264 27,264
Gains recycled from equity toincome statement 237 — — — — 237
Losses onnetinvestment hedges — (86) — = = (86)
Losses onfinancialinvestments at FVOCI — — (210) — — (210)
At 31 March 2023 6,304 (8,748) (291) (47,800) — (50,535)
Currency translation differences (5,285) — — — — (5,285)
Share buyback — — — — — —
Gains recycled from equity toincome statement 237 — — - - 237
Lossesonnetinvestment hedges — — — - — —
Losses onfinancialinvestments at FVOCI — — 144 — — 144
At 31March 2024 1,256 (8,748) (147) (47,800) — (55,439)

Translationreserve
The translation reserve is comprised of translation differences on foreign currency net investments held by the Group.

Netinvestment hedging reserve

The netinvestment hedge programme closed at the end of April 2022. Overseas net investments are hedged using forward foreign exchange contracts. Gains
andlosses oninstruments used to hedge these overseas netinvestments are shown in the net investment hedging reserve. These instruments hedge balance
sheet translationrisk, which is the risk of changes in reserves due to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Allchanges in the fair value of these hedging
instruments were treated as being effective under IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

FVOClreserve
The Group holds certain UK government securities measured at FVOCI. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these financial
assets are recognisedinthe FVOCIreserve.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose following a corporate restructure in 2006 when a new holding company, CMC Markets plc, was created to bring all CMC companies
into the same corporate structure. The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the holding company’s share capital and that of
the acquired companies.
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27.Other reserves continued
Share buyback reserve

Shareholder information

On14 March 2022, the Board approved a share buyback programme with up to £30.0 million to be returned to shareholders. Oninception of the contract,
afinancialliability of £30,239,000 was established representing the financial liability for the full value of the share buyback programme plus directly

attributable costs.

The share buyback reserve amount is reduced by the consideration paid for the repurchased shares with a corresponding transaction recorded within retained
earnings to reflect the consumption of distributable profits. The share buyback reserve is presented in both the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of

Changes in Equity. No shares were purchased during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The shares purchased and the average price paid per share for the year ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

Year ended 31March Number of shares purchased Aggregate purchase amount Average price of shares purchased
2023 10,478,456 £27,236,000 £2.60
28. Cash generated from/(used in) operations
GROUP COMPANY
Year ended Yearended Year ended Yearended
31March 2024 31March 2023 31March 2024 31March 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 63,333 52,163 13,072 33,763
Adjustments for:
Interestincome (11,246) (4,761 (14) —
Income on client funds (23,797) (9,166) — —
Dividends received — — (13,698) (34,260)
Finance costs 1,951 2,315 42 318
Depreciation 9,658 9,962 - —
Amortisation andimpairment of intangible assets 17,765 5,675 —_ —
Research and development tax credit (497) (651) - —
Share of results of associate 283 — — —
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 479 (27) — —
Other non-cash movements including exchange rate movements (187) 980 — —
Share-based payment 2,092 1,651 — —
Changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease intrade and other receivables (31,181) 17,222 (2,891) 840
(Increase)/decrease inamounts due from/due to brokers (42,673) 17,261 — —
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (10,274) 11,459 — —
Increase/(decrease) intrade and other payables' 90,520 (20,792) 4,521 (54)
Increase in net derivative financial instrument liabilities (12,355) (7167) — —
Increase in provisions 3,268 460 — —
Cash generated from operations 57,139 76,584 1,032 607

1 Thischange in working capital for the year ended 31 March 2023 is stated after offsetting a payment amounting to £9,500,000 made to Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited in relation to the portfolio of

share investing clients acquired during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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29. Financial instruments
Analysis of financial instruments by category

The following tables analyse financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments on an IFRS 9 basis.

31March 2024
Assets Assets Assets at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £°000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashandcashequivalents — — 160,300 160,300
Financialinvestments 50,511 410 —_ 50,921
Amounts due from brokers — - 228,882 228,882
Derivative financial instruments — 31,627 — 31,627
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — - 150,709 150,709
50,511 32,037 539,891 622,439
31March 2024
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £°000 £°000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities — — (272,052) (272,052)
Amounts due to brokers — — (6,982) (6,982)
Derivative financial instruments — (7,074) — (7,074)
Lease liabilities — — (16,915) (16,915)
— (7,074) (295,949) (303,023)
31March2023
Assets Assets Assetsat
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents — — 146,218 146,218
Financial investments 30,572 34 — 30,606
Amounts due from brokers — — 188,154 188,154
Derivative financial instruments — 14,231 — 14,231
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — — 117,905 117,905
30,572 14,265 452,277 497114
31March 2023
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities — — (181,012) (181,012)
Amounts due to brokers — — (8,927) (8,927)
Derivative financial instruments — (2,033) — (2,033)
Lease liabilities — — (11,818) (11,818)
— (2,083) (201,757) (203,790)
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the financial assets at the balance sheet date.

31March 2024
Assets Assets Assets at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £°000 £000 £000 £°000
Financial assets
Cashand cash equivalents - — 93 93
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — — 5,495 5,495
— — 5,588 5,588
31March 2024
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £°000 £000 £000 £°000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities - — (4,643) (4,643)
— — (4,643) (4,643)
31March2023
Assets Assets Assetsat
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cash equivalents — — 586 586
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — — 1,879 1,879
— — 2,465 2,465
31March 2023
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities — — (122) (122)
— — (122) (122)
Maturity analysis
31March 2024
Lessthan Three months After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
GROUP £°000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000
Financial assets
Cashand cash equivalents 160,300 — — — 160,300
Financialinvestments 410 18,633 32,966 — 52,009
Amounts due from brokers 228,882 — — — 228,882
Derivative financial instruments 31,627 — - - 31,627
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 140,785 2,466 456 1,508 145,214
562,004 21,099 33,422 1,508 618,032
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (272,052) — — — (272,052)
Amounts due to brokers (6,982) — — — (6,982)
Derivative financial instruments (7,074) - - — (7,074)
Lease liabilities — (1,612) (4,162) (14,776) (20,550)
(286,108) (1,612) (4,162) (14,776) (306,658)
Net liquidity gap 275,896 19,487 29,260 (13,268) 311,374
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29. Financial instruments continued
Maturity analysis continued
31March2023

Lessthan Three months After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents 146,218 — — — 146,218
Financial investments 34 — 15,330 16,007 31,371
Amounts due from brokers 188,154 — — — 188,154
Derivative financial instruments 13,125 1,106 — — 14,231
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 113,283 2,465 495 1,662 117,905
460,814 3,571 15,825 17,669 497,879
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (181,012) — — — (181,012)
Amounts due to brokers (8,927) — — — (8,927)
Derivative financial instruments (2,033) — — — (2,033)
Lease liabilities — (1,525) (4,412) (8,041) (13,978)
(191,972) (1,525) (4,412) (8,041) (205,950)
Net liquidity gap 268,842 2,046 11,413 9,628 291,929

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including principal and interest payments; these amounts will not reconcile to the
amounts disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Giventhat 91% of the Group's financial assets are available on demand, there is no significant maturity risk as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 93%).

31March 2024
Lessthan Three months After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
COMPANY £000 £'000 £’000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents 93 — — — 93
93 — — — 93
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (4,643) — — — (4,643)
(4,643) — — — (4,643)
Net liquidity gap (4,550) — - - (4,550)

31March 2023

Lessthan Three months After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents 586 — — — 586
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 1,879 — — — 1,879
2,465 — — — 2,465
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (122) — — — (122)
(122) — — — (122)
Net liquidity gap 2,343 — — — 2,343
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29. Financial instruments continued

Offsetting financial instruments

The Group enters into various collateral arrangements with its counterparties. These agreements provide the Group with the right, in the ordinary course of
business and/or in the event of a counterparty default (such as bankruptcy or a counterparty’s failure to pay or perform), to net a counterparty’s rights and
obligations under such agreement and, in the event of counterparty default, set off collateral held by the Group against the net amount owed by the counterparty.

The following financial assets and liabilities have been offset and are subject to enforceable netting agreements:

31March 2024
Gross amounts
Gross amounts of recognised Net amounts
of recognised financial subjectto
financial instruments offsetting
instruments offset arrangements
GROUP Note £°000 £°000 £000
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 16 1,400 (337) 1,063
Amounts due from brokers 261,335 (32,453) 228,882
262,735 (82,790) 229,945
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 (303,296) 183,705 (119,591)
Amounts due to brokers (7.986) 1,004 (6,982)
(311,282) 184,709 (126,573)

31March 2023

Grossamounts
Grossamounts of recognised Netamounts
of recognised financial subjectto
financial instruments offsetting
instruments offset arrangements
GROUP Note £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Amounts due from brokers 193,558 (5,404) 188,154
193,558 (5,404) 188,154
Financial assets
Trade and other payables 21 (51,041) 1,632 (49,409)
Amounts due to brokers (8,931) 4 (8,927)
(69,972 1,636 (58,336)

Fair value estimation
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” requires the Group to classify its financial assets and liabilities according to a hierarchy that reflects the observability of
significant market inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined below:

— Level1-quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

— Level 2—inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(thatis, derived from prices); or

— Level 3—inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

— theuse of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments; and
— forforeign currency forwards — forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

There have been no changes to the fair value hierarchy or valuation techniques for any of the Group’s financial instruments held at fair value in the year
(31March 2023:none).
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29. Financial instruments continued

Valuation techniques continued
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost approximates their carrying amount.

31March 2024
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
GROUP £000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Financial investments 50,889 - 32 50,921
Derivative financial instruments (current assets) — 31,627 — 31,627
Derivative financial instruments (current liabilities) — (7,074) — (7,074)
50,889 24,553 32 75,474
31March2023
Levell Level2 Level3 Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial investments 30,572 — 34 30,606
Derivative financial instruments (current assets) — 14,231 — 14,231
Derivative financial instruments (current liabilities) — (2,083) — (2,033)
30,572 12,198 34 42,804

30. Financial risk management

The Group’s day-to-day business activities naturally expose it to strategic, financial (including credit, counterparty, market and liquidity) and operational risks.
The Board accepts that it cannot place a cap or limit on all of the risks to which the Group is exposed to; however, effective risk management ensures that risks
are managed to anacceptable level. The Board is ultimately responsible for the implementation of an appropriate risk strategy, defining and communicating
the Group's risk appetite, the establishment and maintenance of effective systems and controls, and continued monitoring of the adherence to Group policies.
The Group has adopted a standard risk process, through a five-step approach to risk management: risk identification; risk assessment; risk management;

risk reporting; and risk monitoring. The approach to managing risk within the business is governed by the Board-approved Risk Appetite Statement and Risk
Management Framework.

The Board sets the strategy and the policies for managing these risks and delegates the monitoring and management of these risks to various Committees
including the Executive Risk Committee, whichin turn reports to the Group Risk Committee.

The Group’'s ICARA review document is prepared in accordance with the Investment Firm Prudential Regime (“IFPR”) that is articulated in the Financial Conduct
Authority’s (“FCA”) MIFIDPRU Prudential sourcebook. The ICARA process is designed to cover the identification, monitoring and mitigation of harms, business
model planning and forecasting, recovery and wind-down planning, and assessing the adequacy of financial resources.

Financial risks arising from financial instruments are categorised into market, credit, counterparty and liquidity risks which, together with how the Group
categorises and manages these risks, are described below.

Market risk
Market risk is defined as the risk that the value of our residual portfolio will decrease due to the change in market risk factors. The three standard market risk
factors are price moves, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Mitigation of market risk
The Group benefits from a number of factors which also reduce the volatility of its revenue and protect it from market shocks as follows:

— Natural mitigation of concentration
The Group acts asamarket maker in over 10,000 cross-asset class instruments, specifically equities, equity indices, commaodities, treasuries, foreign
exchange and cryptocurrencies. Due to the high level of notional turnover there is a high level of internal risk crossing and natural aggregation across
instruments and asset classes to mitigate significant single instrument concentration risk within the portfolio.

— Natural aggregation
Inthe year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had over 55,000 trading active clients. This large international client base has a diverse range of trading strategies
resultinginthe Group enjoying a high degree of natural aggregation between clients. This “portfolio effect” leads to a significant reductionin the Group's net
market risk exposure.

— Ease of hedging
The Group predominantly acts as a market maker inlinear, highly liquid financial instruments in which it can easily neutralise market risk exposure throughiits
prime broker (“PB") arrangements. In order to avoid over-reliance on one arrangement the Group aims to have at least two PBs per asset class. For instruments
where there is no equivalent underlying market (e.g. Countdowns) the Group controls its risk through setting prudent position/exposure limits. This is further
augmented by dealer monitoring and intervention, which can take the form of restricting the size offered or, if deemed necessary, restricting the clients’ ability
to take apositioninaninstrument.

Market risk limits

Market risk exposures are managed in accordance with the Group's Risk Appetite Statement and Group Risk Management Framework to ensure that the
Group has sufficient capital resources to support the calculated market risk capital requirement as well as staying within its risk appetite. The Group manages
this component under notional position limits that are set on aninstrument and asset class level with overarching capital-based limits.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Market risk continued

Client exposures can vary significantly over a short period of time and are highly dependent on underlying market conditions. The Group’s own funds
requirements ("OFR”) are calculated in accordance with the IFPR. The market risk OFR has increased compared to the prior year and remains within the
Board-approvedrisk appetite.

31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP OFR £°000 £000
Asset class
Consolidated equities 41,367 38,872
Commodities 10,545 6,562
Fixedincome andinterest rates 2,613 677
Foreignexchange 26,182 21,806
Cryptocurrencies 699 589
81,406 68,506

Market price risk — stress testing

Group Financial Risk conducts market price risk stress testing on a daily basis to quantify the potential losses to which the Group is exposed from adverse market
movestoitsresidual exposure. The residual exposure is derived by all products offered to clients, after taking into account the hedging performed by the Groupin
accordance with the hedging strategy.

Arange of risk measurement techniques are used including Value at Risk (*VaR”), Expected Shortfall (‘ES”) and Stress Testing models. The models are
performed for both likely and probable scenarios as well as an extreme stress scenario, where the stress factors simulate low probability high severity events
toassess potential losses from tail events.

The end-of-day market risk VaR modelis performed using a one-day holding period with a 99% confidence interval with a 12-month lookback. A more severe
stressis also performed, based on maximum daily moves in the same lookback period.

Inaddition, for asset classes where the Group sees highintraday client turnover, stress testing is performed onintraday exposures by stressing the largest
positions during the trading session.

The VaR holding periodis one day; therefore the model assumes exposure is maintained and does not take into account potential risk mitigation actions which the
desk cantake by hedging the net exposure intraday. The stress factors are reviewed and updated periodically ensuring recent volatility is captured in the model.

The table below shows the end-of-day market risk VaR model resullts:

31March 31March
2024 2023
£000 £000
Market risk (10,778) (18,284)

Non-trading book interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from either less interest being earned or more being paid oninterest-bearing assets andliabilities due to a change in the relevant floating rate.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through a limited number of channels:income on segregated client and own funds; debits on client balances that are
over a pre- defined threshold; an exposure to the credit market through fixed income investments and liquidity money market funds; and changes to the value
of fixed rate UK government securities held. The Group benefits from a robust cash position that is actively optimised to manage exposure to interest rates and
enhancereturn.

The sensitivity analysis performedis based on a reasonable and possible move in the floating rate by 1.00% upwards (31 March 2023:1.00%) and 1.00%
downwards (31 March 2023: 0.50%).

Thisis summarisedin the below table and reflects the Group'’s view that in the current economic environment, interest rate volatility is unlikely to have a significant
impact onthe profits of the Group.

Changesininterest rate variables result in a decrease/increase in the fair value of fixed rate financial assets classified as fair value through OCI. This has no
materialimpact on the Group’s equity.

31March 2024
Absolute Absolute
increase decrease
GROUP £°000 £000
Impact of 1.00% change 1.00% change
Profit after tax 4,232 (5,287)
Equity 4,232 (5,287)
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30. Financial risk management continued
Non-trading book interest rate risk continued
31March2023

Absolute Absolute
increase decrease
GROUP £000 £000
Impact of 1.00%change 0.50% change
Profit after tax 4,274 (2572)
Equity 4,274 (2,572)

Non-trading book foreign exchange risk
Foreignexchangerrisk is the risk that the Group's results are impacted by movements in foreign exchange rates. CMC is exposed to foreign exchange risk in the
formof transaction and translation exposure.

Transaction exposure is fromholdings of cash and other current assets and liabilities in a currency other than the base currency of the entity. Thisrisk is hedged each
month by the treasury team according to a policy based on a cap and floor model, with gains/losses recognised in the income statement. Any foreign exchange
transaction exposures are hedged in accordance with the Group Foreign Exchange Hedging Policy. Given the effectiveness of the hedging programme (income
statementimpactin year ended 31 March 2024:loss of £1,033,000 (year ended 31 March 2023:loss of £845,000), no sensitivity analysis has been performed.
The instruments used for economically hedging foreign exchange risk are derivative financial instruments and are reported as described in note 17.

Translation exposure occurs when the net assets of an entity are denominated in a foreign currency other than GBP, when the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Positionis prepared.

Credit risk
Creditriskis the risk of losses arising from a counterparty failing to meet its obligations as they fall due. Credit risk is divided into credit, counterparty and
settlement risk. Below are the channels of credit risk the Group is exposed through:

- financial institutions (“FIs”);and
— clients.

Financialinstitution credit risk
The Group has relationships with a number of counterparties that provide prime brokerage and/or banking services (e.g. cash accounts, foreign exchange
trading, credit facilities, custodian services, etc.).

Flcreditrisk can materialise in the following ways:
— ForFlsusedasabank and those as a broker, the Group does not receive the funds the Fls hold on the Group’s account.

— ForFlsusedasaprime broker, a default will resultin a loss of any unrealised profits and could cause the need to re-hedge at a different broker ata
different price.

— ForFlsusedasacryptocurrency counterparty, the loss of physical assets.

Mitigation of Fls credit risk
Tomitigate or avoid a creditloss:

— The Group maintains, where practical, a range of relationships to reduce over-reliance on a single FI —as detailed in the Group Counterparty Concentration
Risk Policy.

— The Group regularly monitors the creditworthiness of the Fls that it is exposed to and reviews counterparties at least annually — as detailed in the Group Hedge
Counterparty Selection Policy.

— The Group hasintroduced a new internal stress test model to measure exposure to credit risk, which is based on regulatory adopted methodology for
calculating unexpected loss. Inputs to the modelinclude credit ratings which are used to derive a probability of default for each counterparty.

Contractuallosses can be reduced by the “close-out netting” conditions in the ISDA and broker agreements. If a specified event of default occurs, all transactions
orall of agiventype are terminated and netted (i.e. set off against each other) at market value or, if otherwise specified in the contract orif itis not possible to obtain
amarket value, at an amount equal to the loss suffered by the non-defaulting party in replacing the relevant contract.

In order to manage both credit and counterparty credit risk within appetite the Group sets internal limits. As definedin the Group’s policies the limits determine the
total balance that can be held with each rated FI, each unrated Fl and each cryptocurrency counterparty. These limits are expressed as a maximum percentage
of capital,inthe case of rated Fls, or a fixed amount for both unrated Fls and cryptocurrency counterparties. Liquidity Risk Management monitors the credit
quality of all Fls and cryptocurrency counterparties, by tracking the credit ratings issued by Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch rating agencies, the credit
default swap ("CDS") spreads determined in the CDS market, share price, performance against arelevant index, and other relevant metrics.

Allrated Fls that the Group transacts with are of investment grade quality, with the exception of one counterparty to which the Group has limited exposure;
however, no quantitative credit rating limits are set by the Group that Fls must exceed because the choice of suitable Fls is finite and therefore setting minimum
rating limits could lead to the possibility that no Fls are able to meet them. As an alternative, the Group reviews negative rating action andlarge CDS spread widening to
Fls onacase-by-case basis. Should aninstitution’s credit rating fall below investment grade, the Executive Risk Committee will be called and options discussed.
Possible actions by the Group to reduce exposure to Fls depend on the nature of the relationship and the practical availability of substitute Fls. Possible actions
include the withdrawal of cash balances from a Fl on a daily basis, switching a proportion of hedge trading to another prime broker Fl or ceasing all commercial
activity with the Fl.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Credit risk continued

Mitigation of Fls credit risk continued

The tables below present CMC Markets plc’s exposure to credit institutions (or similar) based on their long-term credit rating:

31March 2024

Net derivative

Cashand cash Amounts due financial
equivalents from brokers Other assets instruments Total
GROUP £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
AA+to AA- 32,841 3 — - 32,844
A+toA- 30,535 131,631 — — 162,166
BBB+toBBB- 60,897 84,042 — — 144,939
Unrated 36,027 13,206 12,258 24,553 86,044
160,300 228,882 12,258 24,553 425,993

31March 2023 (Restated)

Net derivative

Cashandcash Amounts due financial
equivalents frombrokers Otherassets instruments Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
AA+to AA- 52,744 = = = 52,744
At+toA- 37,138 — — — 37138
BBB+to BBB- 41,361 182,951 = 1,106 225,418
Unrated 14,975 5,203 1,984 11,092 33,254
146,218 188,154 1,984 12,198 348,554

Client counterparty risk

The Group's CFD, spread bet and the recently launched OTC options business operates a real-time mark-to-market trading facility where clients are required to
lodge collateral against positions, with any profits and losses generated by the client credited and debited automatically to their account. As with any leveraged
product offering, there is the potential for a client to lose more than the collateral lodged.

Client counterparty risk captures the risk associated with a client defaulting on its obligations due to the Group. As the Group does not offer most of its retail clients
creditterms and has arobust liquidation process, client counterparty risk willin general only arise when markets and instruments gap and the movement in the
value of a client’s leveraged portfolio exceeds the value of the equity that the client has held at the Group leaving the client account in deficit.

“Negative balance protection” accounts do not pose counterparty risk to the Group as the maximum loss for this account type is limited to their account value.

Inaddition, the Group provides stockbroking services in the UK and Singapore, as well as in Australia where it operates as a designated clearing broker. For the
stockbroking business trading is subject to settlement process for financial products. This exposes the Group to settlement risk if a client or counterparty do
not fulfiltheir side of the agreement by failing to deliver the underlying stock or value of the contract. The majority of client orders are fully vetted at the point of
execution, which limits the settlement exposure generation. Inrelation to other counterparties, the Group is exposed to settlement risk from executing brokers
for transactions not directly cleared on an exchange.

Mitigation of client counterparty risk

— Liquidation process
Thisis the automated process of closing a client’s open position(s) if the account’s total equity is not enough to cover a predefined percentage of required
margin for the portfolio held.

— Pre-emptive processes are also in place where a client’s free equity (total equity less total margin requirement) becomes negative'. At this point the client’s
accountisrestricted fromincreasing their position and a notification is sent inviting them to review their account.

1 Clientsin some regions may use limited risk accounts, where itis guaranteed that a client cannot move to a negative equity balance.

— Tieredmargin
Tiered margins were implemented in September 2013 on the Next Generation platform. It enables the Group to set higher margin rates (therefore requiring
aclienttolodge more collateral) against positions that are deemed to be more risky due to risk profile, which could be due to size relative to the underlying
turnover, the Group's risk appetite or volatility of the instrument.

— Positionlimits
Position limits can be implemented on aninstrument and client level. The instrument level enables the Group to control the total exposure the Group acquiresin
asingle instrument. Ataclient level this ensures that the client can only reach a pre-defined size in any one instrument or asset class. Additionally, a position limit
onanunderlyinginstrument can be applied limiting the overall exposure that can be reached through different futures of the same underlying . For FX the client
position limits are based on Net Open Position (‘NOP”) which limits the currency exposure a client can reach via different FX pairs.

Client counterparty risk stress testing

Group Financial Risk conducts client counterparty risk stress testing on a daily basis based on aninternal model developed to assess the potential client
counterparty risk exposure. The Group's stress testing is based on scenarios with different severity including stress factors which simulate low probability
severe events to assess potentialimpact.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Credit risk continued

Clientreceivables history

The Group determines expected credit losses for amounts due from clients, based on historical experience and forward-looking considerations. The totalloss
allowance provided for the year was £190,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: loss allowance reversed : £1,408,000 ), which amounts to 0.1% of total revenue (year
ended 31March 2023: 0.4%). During the year, trade receivables of £473,000 were written off, which represented 0.1% of revenue (year ended 31 March 2023:
£1,615,000, 0.5% of revenue).

The table below details the movement on the Group allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables under the expected credit loss model:

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March2023

GROUP £'000 £000

At the beginning of the year 4,247 6,219
Loss allowance on trade receivables (reversed)/provided 190 (857)
Trade receivables written off (473) (1,615)

At the end of the year 3,964 4,247

Debtageing analysis
The Group seeks to minimise the effects of client debts on the Company’s profit and loss. Client debts are managed very early in their lifecycle in order to minimise
the likelihood of them ageing. Debts that are past due carry an expected credit loss provision as set out in the table below:

31March 2024
Debt Provision
GROUP £°000 £°000
Less than one month 5,596 1
Oneto three months 42 15
Three to twelve months 270 203
Over twelve months 4,028 3,745
9,936 3,964

31March2023

Debt Provision

GROUP £000 £000
Lessthanone month 936 23
One to three months 3,367 1
Three to twelve months 189 146
Over twelve months 4,229 4,066
8,721 4,247

The ECL onamounts due from brokers, accrued income and the Company’s trade and other receivables balances is immaterial in both current and prior years.
Please refer to note 19 for information on the ECL on UK government securities and note 20 for information onthe ECL on cash and cash equivalents.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that there is insufficient available liquidity to meet the obligations of the Group as they fall due.

Liquidity is managed centrally for the Group by the treasury team, with oversight froma second line provided by the liquidity risk team. The Group utilises a
combination of liquidity forecasting and stress testing (formally in the ICARA) to ensure that it retains access to sufficient liquid resources under both normal and
stressed conditions to meet ts liabilities as they fall due. Liquidity forecasting incorporates the impact of liquidity regulations in force in each jurisdiction that the
Groupis active inand otherimpediments to the free movement of liquidity around the Group, including its own protocols on minimum liquidity to be retained by
overseas entities. The Group has introduced a revised Liquid Asset Threshold Requirement (‘LATR”) modelin line with the IFPR regulatory requirements, to
better estimate the maximum amount of liquid assets required over the course of the next 12 months under business-as-usual and periods of plausible stress.
The new modelis based on forward-looking estimates and is updated on a daily basis, providing a dynamic management of requirements.

Liquidity stress testingis performed quarterly using arange of firm-specific and market-wide scenarios that represent severe but plausible stress events that
the Group could be exposed to over the short and medium term. The firm takes a holistic stress testing approach, using a scenario comprised of multiple stress
events occurring simultaneously. The Group ensures that the tests are commensurate toits current and future liquidity risk profile. Output from the quarterly
stress testing process is used to calibrate a series of limits and metrics which are monitored and reported to senior management daily. This process seeks to
ensure that the Group has appropriate sources of liquidity in place to meet its liabilities as they fall due under both “business as usual” and stressed conditions.
Due to the risk management strategy adopted and the changeable scale of the client trading book, the largest and most variable consumer of liquidity is PB
margin requirements. The collateral calls are met in cash from own funds and cash received from non-segregated clients who have signed a TTCA agreement
but to ensure liquidity is available for extreme spikes, the Group has a committed bank facility of £55.0 million, syndicated by two different banks, to meet short-
term liquidity obligations to PBsin the event that it does not have sufficient access to own cash and to leave a sufficient liquidity buffer to cope with a stress event.

The Group does not actively engage in maturity transformation as part of its underlying business model and therefore maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities
does not represent a material liquidity risk. The maturity analysis tables are presentedin note 29.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Liquidity risk continued

Ownfunds

Ownfundsis a key measure the Group uses to monitor the overall level of liquidity available to the Group. Own funds includes investments in UK government
securities and corporate bonds, the majority of which are held to meet the Group’s regulatory threshold requirements under IFPR. The derivation of own funds is
shownin the table below:

31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP £°000 £000
Cashand cash equivalents (net of bank overdraft) 160,300 146,218
Amount due from brokers 228,882 188,154
Otherassets 12,258 1,984
Financialinvestments 50,921 30,606
Derivative financial instruments (excluding client CFD positions) (current assets) — 1,106

452,361 368,068
Less: title transfer funds (119,591) (49,409)
Less:amount due to brokers (6,982) (8,927)

Less: derivative financial instruments (excluding client CFD positions) (current liabilities) — —

Own funds 325,788 309,732

The following Own Funds Flow Statement summarises the Group’s generation of own funds during each year and excludes all cash flows in relation to monies
held on behalf of clients. Additionally, short-term financial investments, amounts due from brokers and amounts receivable/(payable) on the derivative financial
instruments have been included within “own funds” in order to provide a clear presentation of the Group’s potential cash resources.

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 63,333 52163
Adjustments for:
Depreciationand amortisation 27,423 15,637
Other non-cash adjustments 2,045 1,629
Tax paid (8,602) (17,060)
Own funds generated from operating activities 84,199 52,369
Movement in working capital (21,036) (13,995)
Outflow from investing activities
Net purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (19,876) (28,221)
Other outflow frominvesting activities (2,800) (8)
Outflow from financing activities
Dividends paid (13,688) (85,040)
Share buyback - (27,264)
Other outflow from financing activities (7,319) (6,754)
Total outflow frominvesting and financing activities (43,683) (97,287)
Increase/(decrease) in own funds 19,480 (58,913)
Ownfunds at the beginning of the year 309,732 369,947
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (3,424) (1,302)
Own funds at the end of the year 325,788 309,732

Capital management
The Group's objectives for managing capital are as follows:

— tocomply withthe capital requirements set by the financial market regulators to which the Group is subject;
— toensurethat all Group entities are able to operate as going concerns and satisfy any minimum externally imposed capital requirements; and

— toensure that the Group maintains a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

CMC Markets plc-169
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2024



Notes to the consolidated and parent company financial statements continued
For the year ended 31March 2024

30. Financial risk management continued

Capital management continued

The capital resources of the Group consist of equity, being share capital reduced by own shares held in trust, share premium, other reserves and retained
earnings, which at 31March 2024 totalled £403,493,000 (31 March 2023: £374,015,000). The Group has been compliant with all applicable prudential regulatory
requirements to whichitis subject throughout the year.

The Group's ICARA review document, prepared in accordance with FCA requirements, is an ongoing assessment of CMC Markets plc's risks and risk mitigation
strategies, to ensure that adequate financial resources are maintained against risks that the Group wishes to take to achieve its business objectives.

The outcome of the ICARA is presented as an Internal Capital and Liquidity Assessment document covering the Group. Itis reviewed and approved by the Board
atleast onanannualbasis.

Disclosure documents have been prepared that contain relevant information regarding the Group’s FCA regulated entities’ capital adequacy, risk
management objectives and policies, governance and remuneration policies and practices. These are available on the CMC Markets plc website
(www.cmemarkets.com/group). The Group’s country-by-country reporting disclosure is also available in the same location on the website.

31. Share-based payment

The Group operates both equity and cash settled share based payment schemes for certain employees including Directors.

Current awards have been granted under the terms of the Management Equity Plan 2015 (2015 MEP”), the Combined Incentive Plan (2018 CIP"), the UK
Share Incentive Plan (‘UK SIP”) and the International Share Incentive Plan (‘Australian SIP”). Equity settled schemes are offered to certain employees, including
Executive Directors in the UK and Australia, and automatically vest on the vesting date subject to conditions described below for each scheme. Cash settled
schemes are offered to certain employees outside of the UK and Australia. During the year ended 31 March 2024 equity schemes for UK employees were
settled net of employee taxes due. The rights of participants in the various employee share schemes are governed by detailed terms, including in relation to
arrangements which would apply in the event of a takeover.

Consolidated Income Statement charge for share-based payments
The total costsrelating to these schemes for the year ended 31 March 2024 was £2,757,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £2,229,000).

Forthe year ended 31 March 2024 the charge relating to equity settled share-based payments was £2,364,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £2,123,000) and the
charge relating to cash settled share-based payments was £393,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £106,000).

No shares were gifted to employees during the year (year ended 31 March 2023: nil).

Currentschemes

2015 MEP

Share awards granted under the 2015 MEP are predominantly equity settled, with the exception of certain participants that are cash settled. The Remuneration
Committee approves any awards made under the 2015 MEP. Current schemes are:

— Long TermIncentive Plan: awards to senior management and critical staff, excluding Executive Directors. These are awarded in the form of share awards and
Options. The share awards have dividend equivalence where additional shares will be awarded in place of dividends on vesting. The only vesting conditions of
the 2020 and 2021 equity settled awards is that employees remain employed by the Group, with the 2022 equity awards having a non-market performance
condition of cumulative PBT over a three-year period in addition to remaining employed by the Group. This was revised in May 2023, with the performance
condition now being aligned to net operating income over the same period. The vesting conditions of the 2023 Option awards are that employees remain
employed by the Group and the price of the CMC Markets plc’s shares must be greater than the relevant exercise price at the vesting date.

The fair value of share awards were calculated using the average of the share price three days prior to the grant date. The fair value of the Options granted during
the year was calculated using the Black-Scholes model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution (where material),
the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option,
andthe correlations and volatilities of the peer group companies.

2018 CIP

Share awards granted to the Executive Directors under the 2018 CIP have been in the form of conditional awards and are equity settled. The Remuneration
Committee approves any awards made under the 2018 CIP. Shares awarded are deferred over a period of at least three years subject to a performance underpin.
The Committee will review Group performance over the relevant period, taking into account factors such as: a) the Company’s TSR performance; b) aggregate
profit levels; and ¢) any regulatory breaches during the period.
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31. Share-based payment continued
Current schemes continued

Share awards
Number
Dividend
equivalent
Awarded Forfeited awarded Exercised

Share price Atthe start during the during the during the during the Attheend
Scheme ataward Vestingdate of the year year year year year of the year
Combined Incentive Plan 349.2p 20 July 2023 107,774 — (14,212) — (93,562) —
Combined Incentive Plan 349.2p 20 July 2024 80,831 —_ (10,640) 1,704 —_ 71,895
Combined Incentive Plan 349.2p 20 July 2025 80,828 — (10,637) 1,704 — 71,895
Combined Incentive Plan 445.8p 22 July 2024 117,692 — (24,000) 1,772 — 95,464
Combined Incentive Plan 445.8p 21July 2025 88,268 - (18,000) 1,329 — 71,597
Combined Incentive Plan 445.8p 20 July 2026 88,268 — (18,000) 1,329 — 71,597
Combined Incentive Plan 280.8p 14 July 2025 96,788 —_ (12,647) 2,129 —_ 86,270
Combined Incentive Plan 280.8p 13 July 2026 72,591 — (9,482) 1,596 — 64,705
Combined Incentive Plan 280.8p 12 July 2027 72,591 — (9,484) 1,596 — 64,703
Long Term Incentive Plan 445.8p 20 July 2023 402,093 — (10,115) — (391,978) —
Long Term Incentive Plan 280.8p 20 July 2025 1,473,020 — (301,298) 38,498 — 1,210,220
Combined Incentive Plan 149.5p 21July 2025 — 167,397 — 4,376 171,773
Combined Incentive Plan 149.5p 21July 2026 - 125,548 — 3,282 128,830
Combined Incentive Plan 149.5p 21July 2027 — 125,548 — 3,282 — 128,830
Total 2,680,744 418,493 (438,515) 62,597 (485,540) 2,237,779

The weighted average share price at exercise of awards was 154 pence, the weighted average exercise price of exercised awards for UK participants (354,692
shares) was £nil and for Australian participants (130,848 shares) was £nil. The weighted average remaining contractual life of share awards outstanding at 31 March
2024 was 1.5 years and the weighted average share price of share awards granted during the period was 149.5 pence.

Options
Awarded Forfeited Exercised

At the start during the during the during the Attheend
Scheme Exercise price Vesting date of the year year year year of the year
Long Term Incentive Plan 152.8p 21July 25 — 2,069,308 (384,718) — 1,684,590
Long Term Incentive Plan 229.2p 21July 26 - 5,653,374 (1,051,050) — 4,602,324
Long Term Incentive Plan 305.6p 21July 27 —_ 5,169,124 (961,022) —_ 4,208,102
- 12,891,806 (2,396,790) - 10,495,016

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at 31 March 2024 was 2.5 years

Inaddition, cash settled share awards and options have been granted and vest in periods from July 2025 to July 2027. Balances of 179,551 share awards and 2,153,181
options remained at the end of the period, with a total carrying value of £382,000 as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £197,000). All of the share awards benefit
fromdividend equivalence. The value of the share awards is the share price on the date these awards vest. The weighted average remaining contractual life of
share awards outstanding at 31 March 2024 was 1.3 years and the weighted average exercise price of exercised awards was £nil.

UK and Australia SIP awards
Shares awarded under the UK SIP scheme are held in trust in accordance with UK tax authority conditions and all shares awarded under the Australian scheme
are heldina UK trust. Employees are entitled to receive dividends in the form of additional shares on the shares held in trust as long as they remain employees.

UK employees are invited to subscribe for up to £1,800 of partnership shares relating to each tax year with the Company matching ona one-for-one basis.
Allmatching shares vest after three years should the employee remain employed by the Group for the term of the award.

Australianemployees are invited to subscribe for up to the equivalent of £1,800 of investment shares with the Company matching on a one-for-one basis.
Matching shares for each scheme vest on the third anniversary after award date should the employee remain employed by the Group for the term of the award.
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31. Share-based payment continued
Current schemes continued
UK and Australia SIP awards continued

Number
Awarded Forfeited Exercised
Country Share price Vesting Atthe start during the during the during the Attheend
of award Award date ataward period/date of the year year year year of the year
UK April 2020 to 194.6pto April 2023 to 45,808 — (1,689) (44,119) -
March 2021 425.2p March 2024
UK April2021to 225.8pto April 2024 to 66,858 — (3,958) (5,123) 57,777
March2022 518.0p March2025
UK April2022to 219.0pto April 2025 to 97,839 — (9,618) (7,103) 81,118
March 2023 313.6p March 2026
UK April2023 to 90.8pto April 2026 to —_ 211,025 (8,102) (9,425) 193,498
March 2024 182.0p March 2027
Australia 5 April2020 201.0p 5 April2023 2,314 — — (2,314) —
Australia 6 April 2021 527.0p 6 April 2024 2,563 —_ —_ —_ 2,563
Australia 6 April 2022 270.0p 8 April 2025 3,174 — — — 3,174
Australia 6 April 2023 175.0p 6 April 2026 — 6,950 — — 6,950
Total 218,556 217,975 (23,367) (68,084) 345,080

The weighted share price at the exercise date of awards exercised during the year ended 31 March 2024 was 133.2 pence (year ended 31 March 2023:
253.5pence).

The fair value of SIP awards is determined to be the share price at grant date without making adjustments for dividends as awardees are entitled to dividend
equivalents over the vesting period.

Movement in share awards and options
12,891,806 Options and 707,597 new share awards were granted in the year ended 31 March 2024 (year ended 31 March 2023: Options: Nil, Share awards:
1,947,449) and these are detailed above in the current schemes section. Movements in the number of share awards outstanding are as follows:

Yearended

Year ended 31 March 2024 31March2023

Options Share awards Share awards

GROUP Number Number Number
At beginning of year — 2,899,300 1,712,119
Awarded (including dividend equivalents) 12,891,806 707,597 1,947,449
Forfeited (2,396,790) (493,413) (187,699)
Exercised — (531,973) (572,569)
Atend of year 10,495,016 2,581,511 2,899,300

32. Retirement benefit plans

A defined contribution planis a post-employment benefit planinto which the Group pays fixed contributions to a third-party pension provider and has no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions are recognised as staff expenses in the income statement in the years during which related
employee services are fulfilled.

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for its Directors and employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Groupinindependently administered funds.

The pension charge for these plans for the year ended 31 March 2024 was £3,439,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: £2,743,000).

33. Related party transactions

Company
The amounts outstanding with Group entities at year end were as follows:

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023

COMPANY £000 £000

Amounts due from subsidiaries — 1,879
Amounts due to subsidiaries 4,426 —

Allamounts above are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.
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33. Related party transactions continued

Group
Transactions between the Group and its other related parties are disclosed below:

Compensation of key management personnel

Shareholder information

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP £000 £000
Key management compensation:

Short-term employee benefits 3,280 2,620

Post-employment benefits 88 57

Share-based payments 632 609

4,000 3,286

Year ended Yearended

31March 2024 31March 2023

GROUP £000 £000

Aggregate remuneration of highest paid Director 1,027 871

Key management comprises the Board of CMC Markets plc only. Compensation of key management personnelis disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration
reportonpage 94.

Directors’ transactions
Anumber of the Directors have company credit cards and have, during the course of the year, used the company credit cards for personal expenses. All personal
expenses have been reimbursed by the Directors, with the exception of the item above.

There were no other transactions with Directors.

34. Contingent liabilities

The Group's geographical reach exposesit to a high degree of uncertainty regarding the interpretation of local regulatory, tax and legal matters in each territory
inwhich it has operations. In addition, the Group is party to various contractual relationships that could result in non-performance claims and other contractual
breaches and from time to time isinvolved in disputes as part of the ordinary course of business.

Incertaininstances, legal disputes can pose a have a significant financial exposure, however the Group’s manages these risks proactively to resolve disputes and
claims are usually resolved without any material loss. The Group makes provision for claims where costs are likely to be incurred.

Where there are uncertainties regarding regulatory, tax and legal matters and a provision has not been made, there are no contingent liabilities where the Group
considers any material adverse financialimpact to be probable.

Notice of class action lawsuit
The Group received notice of a class action lawsuit being brought against one of its operating entities on 31 May 2022. The scope of the claim s still being defined,
and there has been no material progress. As aresult an assessment regarding the probability and size of financial outflow cannot be determined.

Brexit approach

Thereis regulatory uncertainty regarding the Group's historical approach to the use of reverse solicitation provisions allowing EEA clients to trade with UK
subsidiaries after 31 December 2020. The risk to the approach has now been mitigated given the majority of EEA clients’ activities with the UK subsidiary ceased
prior to 31March 2021. The Group continues to engage with the regulatory authorities in the EEA markets where the UK subsidiary continued to service clients
after 31 December 2020. Whilst it is possible that regulatory censure may result from these matters, they are in their early stages and such an outcome is not
currently considered probable.

UK banking surcharge

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group reached an agreement with the UK tax authority HMRC, in relation to the ability of its UK entities to satisfy

the conditions for exemption from the banking surcharge tax. The matter is now closed without any additional costs and with HMRC agreeing to the Group’s
original position that it was not subject to the banking surcharge tax for the periods in question. The group has therefore concluded that the potential exposure of
£23.4 million arising from this matter as at 31 March 2023 is no longer in question and as such no contingent liability exposure exists as at the balance sheet date.

Open tax enquiries
The Group has open tax enquiries in relation to its European operations arising from historical product launches and more routine enquires inits North American
entities. The potential outcome of these enquiriesis unclear and there is no certainty whether there may be a financial cost to the Group.

35. Ultimate controlling party
The Group’s ultimate controlling party is Lord Cruddas by virtue of his majority shareholding in CMC Markets plc.

36. Events after the reporting period

There were no significant events after the reporting period.
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Group history

CMC Markets plc began trading
in 1989 as a foreign exchange
broker, led by founder Lord Peter
Cruddas. In 1996, the Group
launched the world’s first online
retail forex trading platform,
offering its clients the opportunity
to take advantage of markets
previously only accessible to
institutional traders.
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CMC Markets plc has since become a global leader in online trading. There
have beenanumber of significant milestones for the Group over the past 30
years, as it has expanded into new markets around the world and continues to
promote innovation and new trading technology.

In2000, CMC Markets plc expanded its business to become a CFD broker.
Avyear later, the Group launched an online financial spread betting service,
becoming the first spread betting company to release the daily Rolling Cash®
bet. The groundbreaking daily Rolling Cash® concept was to become an
industry benchmark. In 2002, CMC Markets plc openedits first overseas
office in Sydney, launching into the Australian market as an online CFD and
forex provider. By 2007, the Group had expanded its global footprint with
officesinNew Zealand, Germany, Canada, Singapore and Sweden. Further
global growth followed over the next few years, with offices opened across
Europe —and most recently in Poland, in 2015. The Group continued to grow
its product offering during the year, following the launch of its fixed-odds
Countdowns productin 2015.

The Company successfully listed onthe London Stock Exchange in February
2016.In April 2016 CMC Markets plc successfully introduced Digital 100s.

Further cementing its place as one of the industry leaders, the Group

was awarded a number of important accolades during the year. In the

2016 Investment Trends UK Leveraged Trading Report, whichmeasures
customer satisfaction, CMC Markets plc ranked first across 17 service
categories among CFD traders. The Group achieved the highest rating for
overall satisfaction, mobile trading, platform features and chartingin all three
product segments of spread betting, CFD trading and FX. Additional notable
recognition came as the Company won Financial Services Provider of the
Year for the fourth successive year, an award voted for by the readers of
Shares Magazine.

The Company also received Best CFD Broker for its burgeoning institutional
offering, inline with one of its core strategic objectives.

The Company successfully completed the white label stockbroking
partnership with ANZ Bankin Australia during 2018, representing the largest
migration of client accountsin Australian Stock Exchange history and making
the Company the second largest retail stockbroker in the country.

In2021CMC Markets launched its dedicated institutional brand, CMC
Connect, positioning the Company to service the ever-growing number of
clienttypesinterestedinits products.
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Timeline

1989

CMC Markets plc begins
operationsinthe UK

2002

Opensfirst non-UK officein

Sydney, Australia

Next Generation platformis
launched; offices openedin Italy
and France; and spread betting
iPhone app launchedinthe UK
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CMC Markets plc wins Financial
Services Provider of the Year
(Shares Magazine)

2000

Starts offering CFDsinthe UK

Offices openedin Beijing, Canada
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Launches online spread betting

serviceinthe UK

2007

opened; and Goldman Sachs
purchases 10% stake

2012

Spread betting app for
Android™ launched

Singapore and Sweden offices

CMC Markets plc celebrates 25
years of beingaworld leaderin
online trading

Countdowns launched;
Poland and Austria offices
opened; and Stockbroking Pro
platformlaunched

CMC Markets plclistsonthe
LLondon Stock Exchange,
tradingas CMCX; and Digital
100s launched

CMClInvestlaunchedinthe UK,
offering stockbroking services to

CMC Markets plc celebrates its CMC Markets plc releases
30thyearandlaunches exclusive dedicated institutional brand,
cryptocurrency, forex and CMC Connect UK clients

commodity indices

2008

CMC Markets (Australia) starts
offering a stockbroking service
following the acquisition of local
stockbroker Andrew West & Co

CMC Markets plc wins 33
industry awards globally

CMC Markets (Australia)
completes the ANZ Bank white
label stockbroking transaction
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Five-year summary
Group income statement
For the year ended 31March

2022 2021
2024 2023 (Restated) (Restated) 2020
£m £m £m £m £m
Net operatingincome 332.8 288.4 2819 409.8 252.0
Adjusted operating expenses (267.2) (233.9) (188.3) (184.7) (151.3)
Operating profit 65.6 545 93.6 2251 100.7
Share of results of associates (0.3) — — — —
Finance costs (2.0) (2.3) (2.1) (17) (21)
Profit before tax 63.3 522 915 223.3 98.7
Taxation (16.4) (10.8) (20.0) (45.8) .7
Profit after tax 46.9 414 7.5 1776 86.9
Other metrics
2022 2021

2024 2023 (Restated) (Restated) 2020
Own funds generated from operations (£Em) 84.2 524 881 199.3 102.0
Profit margin
PBT margin (%) 19.0 181 325 545 39.2
Earnings per share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS (pence) 16.7 14.7 246 61.3 301
Diluted EPS (pence) 16.7 14.6 245 61.0 29.9
Dividend per share
Interim dividend per share (pence) 1.00 3.50 350 9.20 2.85
Final dividend per share (pence) 7.30 3.90 8.88 2143 1218
Total ordinary dividend per share (pence) 8.30 740 12.38 30.63 15.08
Client metrics (unaudited)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Trading revenue per active client (£) 4,685 3,968 8715 4,560 3,750
Trading number of active clients 55,294 58,737 64,243 76,591 57,202
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Five-year summary continued
Group statement of financial position

At31March
2022 2021
2024 2023 (Restated) (Restated) 2020
£m £m £m £m £m

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 28.9 B85 30.3 10.3 46
Property, plantand equipment 28.5 22.8 23.2 25.0 281
Deferredtax assets 6.2 48 6.0 6.4 16.5
Financial investments — — 11815 — —
Trade and other receivables 2.8 27 1.8 1.8 2.3
Investmentinassociates 2.5 — — — —
Total non-current assets 68.9 65.6 74.8 43.5 515
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 162.0 130.6 148.2 129.8 186.3
Derivative financialinstruments 31.6 14.2 8.8 6.2 54
Current tax recoverable 19 9.0 16 22 0.8
Financialinvestments 50.9 30.6 14.5 281 254
Other assets 12.3 20 134 — —
Amounts due from brokers 228.9 188.2 208.9 267.8 134.3
Cashand cash equivalents 160.3 146.2 176.6 118.9 84.3
Total current assets 647.9 520.8 5720 553.0 436.5
Total assets 716.8 586.4 646.8 596.5 488.0
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 272.8 182.2 2126 158.3 17741
Amounts due to brokers 70 89 124 13.8 —
Derivative financial instruments 71 20 37 27 24
Share buyback liability — — 273 — —
Borrowings — — 0.2 0.9 0.9
Lease liabilities 4.9 5.6 49 46 47
Current tax payable 21 04 17 0.3 —
Short-term provisions 3.9 0.8 04 1.9 0.5
Total current liabilities 297.8 2001 263.2 182.5 185.6
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables — — — — —
Borrowings — — — 0.2 0.8
Lease liabilities 12.0 6.2 9.3 10.8 14.6
Deferredtax liabilities 3.2 4.0 &8 16 2.2
Long-term provisions 0.3 21 21 18 19
Total non-current liabilities 15.5 12.3 147 14.4 19.5
Total liabilities 313.3 2124 2779 196.9 2051
EQUITY
Total equity 403.5 374.0 368.9 399.5 2829
Total equity and liabilities 716.8 586.4 646.8 596.5 488.0
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Proposed final dividend for the

year ended 31 March 2024

Ex-dividend date: Thursday 11 July 2024
Record date: Friday 12 July 2024
Dividend payment date: Friday 9 August 2024

Annual General Meeting

The 2024 AGM will be held at 10:00am on
Thursday 25 July 2024 at 133 Houndsditch,
London EC3A7BX.

Registrars/shareholder enquiries
Link Group can be contacted to deal withany
questions regarding your shareholding using the
contact details listed below. Alternatively, you can
access www.cmcmarketsshares.co.uk, where
you can view and manage all aspects of your
shareholding securely.

E: shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Mail

Link Group

10th Floor

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds.S14DL

Phone
T:0371664 0300

Callsto 0371664 0300 are charged at the
standard geographic rate and will vary by provider.

Calls outside the United Kingdom are charged at
the applicable international rate.

Phone lines are open between 9:00amand
5:30pm, Monday to Friday excluding public
holidays in England and Wales.
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CMC Markets plc
133 Houndsdlitch

London

EC3A7BX

United Kingdom

Registered number: 05145017
T:02071708200
www.cmcmarkets.com

LEI:213800VB75KAZBFH5UO7

Company Secretary
Roy Tooley

Investor relations
E:investor.relations@cmcmarkets.com

www.cmcmarkets.com/group/investor-relations

Brokers
PeelHunt LLP
100 Liverpool Street
London

EC2M 2AT

RBC Capital Markets
100 Bishopsgate
London

EC2N4AA

Independent auditor
Deloitte LLP

1New Street Square

London

EC4A3HQ

Legal advisers
Linklaters LLP

One Silk Street
London

EC2Y8HQ

Media relations advisers
Camarco

40 Strand

London

WC2N5RW

Global offices

UK —head office
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Appendices

Appendix: Alternative Performance Measures
a.Reconciliation of trading net revenue

2024 2023
GROUP £m £m
Trading revenue (note 4) 274.3 252.0
Trading introducing partner commission and betting levies (note 3) (15.2) (18.9)
Trading net revenue 259.1 2331
b. Reconciliation of investing net revenue

2024 2023
GROUP £m £m
Investing revenue (note 4) 45.7 557
Investing introducing partner commissions (note 3) (1.7) (17.8)
Investing netrevenue 34.0 379
c.Reconciliation of interestincome

2024 2023
GROUP £m £m
Interestincome on own funds 1.2 47
Income on client funds 23.8 9.2
Interestincome 35.0 13.9
d.Reconciliation of net operating income

2024 2023
GROUP £m £m
Trading netrevenue (a) 259.1 2331
Investing net revenue (b) 34.0 379
Interestincome (c) 35.0 13.9
Otherrevenue (note 4) 4.7 85
Net operatingincome 332.8 288.4
Reconciliation of trading revenue per client
GROUP 2024 2023
Trading netrevenue - £m (a) 259.1 2331
Trading active clients (e) 55,294 58,737
Trading revenue per client - £ (a/e) 4,685 3,968
Reconciliation of non-statutory summary Group balance sheet to primary statements
Fixed assets

March 2024 March 2023

GROUP £'000 £000
Intangible assets (note 12) 28,906 35,342
Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 28,546 22,771
Lease liabilities (note 23) (16,915) (11,818)
Lease debtors presented within other debtors presented (note 16) 548 392
Fixed assets 41,085 46,687
Fixed assets (rounded to £m) 411 46.7
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Working capital

March 2024 March 2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Trade and other receivables (note 16) 164,809 133,282
Lease debtors presented within fixed assets above (548) (892)
Derivative financial instruments — client CFD positions (note 17) 24,553 11,092
Trade and other payables (note 21) (272,811) (182,284)
Provisions (note 24) (4,194) (2,902)
Title transfer funds! 119,591 49,409
Working capital 31,400 8,205
Working capital (rounded up to £m) 31.4 8.2
1 Amounts deducted from “own funds”.
Deferredtax net asset

March 2024 March 2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Deferredtax assets (note 14) 6,177 4768
Deferred tax liabilities (note 14) (3,244) (4,012)
Deferred tax net asset 2,933 756
Deferred tax net asset (rounded to £m) 2.9 0.8
Net tax receivable / (payable)

March 2024 March 2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Current tax receivable 1,917 9,066
Current tax payable (2,147) (431)
Net tax receivable / (payable) (230) 8,635
Net tax receivable / (payable) (rounded to £m) (0.2) 8.6
Reconciliation of adjusted operating expenses to primary statements

March 2024 March 2023
GROUP £'000 £000
Operating expenses (note 5) 254.9 2335
Impairment of intangible assets (note 12) 12.3 04
Adjusted operating expenses including variable remuneration 267.2 233.9
Less: variable remuneration 17.7) (16.7)
Adjusted operating expenses excluding variable remuneration 249.5 217.2
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